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As required by Government Code, §2002.011(4), the Texas Register publishes
executive orders issued by the Governor of Texas. Appointments and proclamations
are also published. Appointments are published in chronological order. Additional

CJOVERNO

information on documents submitted for publication by the Governor’s Office can be obtained by calling (512) 463-1828.

Appointments
Appointments for September 13, 2012

Appointed to the Board of Pilot Commissioners for Galveston County
Ports for a term to expire February 1,2015, W. Bradshaw "Brad" Boney
of Galveston (replacing James Toups, Sr. of League City who re-
signed).

Appointed to the Central Colorado River Authority for a term to
expire February 1, 2015, Herman Law of Burkett (replacing David
McWhorter of Albany who resigned).

Appointed to the State Health Services Council for a term to expire
February 1, 2013, Maria F. Teran of El Paso (replacing Jacinto Juarez
of Laredo whose term expired).

Appointed to the Texas Commission on Fire Protection for a term to
expire February 1, 2017, Laurence P. "Pat" Ekiss of Taylor (replacing
Christopher Connealy of Cedar Park who resigned).

Appointed to the Texas Crime Stoppers Council for a term to expire
September 1, 2016, Jorge E. Gaytan of Houston (Mr. Gaytan is being
reappointed).

Appointed to the Texas Crime Stoppers Council for a term to expire
September 1, 2016, Emerson Lane, Jr. of Beaumont (Mr. Lane is being
reappointed).

Appointed to the Texas Crime Stoppers Council for a term to expire
September 1, 2016, Ernesto "Ernie" Rodriguez, Jr. of McAllen (re-
placing Nelda Garcia of Ben Bolt whose term expired).

Appointed to the Advisory Council on Emergency Medical Services for
a term to expire January 1, 2018, Jodie Harbert, III of College Station
(Mr. Harbert is being reappointed).

Appointed to the Advisory Council on Emergency Medical Services
for a term to expire January 1, 2018, Donald G. Phillips of Weatherford
(Dr. Phillips is being reappointed).

Appointed to the Advisory Council on Emergency Medical Services for
aterm to expire January 1, 2018, Karen M. Pickard of Ovilla (replacing
Peter Wolf of Windthorst whose term expired).

Appointed to the Advisory Council on Emergency Medical Services
for a term to expire January 1, 2018, Shirley Scholz of Ransom (Ms.
Scholz is being reappointed).

Appointed to the Advisory Council on Emergency Medical Services for
a term to expire January 1, 2018, Alan H. Tyroch of El Paso (replacing
Luis Fernandez of Tyler whose term expired).

Appointments for September 21, 2012

Appointed as Deputy Administrator and Commissioner for the Inter-
state Compact for Juveniles for a term to expire at the pleasure of
the Governor, Daryl Liedecke of Austin (replacing Donna Bonner of
Round Rock who resigned).

Appointing Clinton Harp as designee to serve as an Ex-Officio/Non-
Voting member of the Texas Economic Development Corporation for
a term at the pleasure of the Governor. Mr. Harp replaces Kathy Walt.

Appointed to the North Central Texas Regional Review Committee for
a term at the pleasure of the Governor, Joseph E. Helmberger of Farm-
ersville (replacing Christy Schell of Nevada).

Rick Perry, Governor
TRD-201204965

¢ ¢ ¢
Proclamation 41-3307
TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME:

RICK PERRY, Governor of the State of Texas, issued an Emergency
Disaster Proclamation on July 5, 2011, certifying that exceptional
drought conditions posed a threat of imminent disaster in specified
counties in Texas.

WHEREAS, record high temperatures, preceded by significantly low
rainfall, have resulted in declining reservoir and aquifer levels, threat-
ening water supplies and delivery systems in many parts of the state;
and

WHEREAS, prolonged dry conditions continue to increase the threat
of wildfire across many portions of the state; and

WHEREAS, these drought conditions have reached historic levels and
continue to pose an imminent threat to public health, property and the
economy; and

WHEREAS, this state of disaster includes the counties of Andrews,
Archer, Bailey, Bandera, Baylor, Blanco, Borden, Briscoe, Brooks,
Brown, Burnet, Callahan, Cameron, Castro, Childress, Clay, Cochran,
Coke, Comal, Concho, Cottle, Crane, Crockett, Crosby, Culberson,
Dawson, Dickens, Duval, Eastland, Ector, Fannin, Fisher, Floyd,
Foard, Gaines, Garza, Gillespie, Glasscock, Grayson, Hale, Hall,
Hardeman, Haskell, Hidalgo, Hockley, Howard, Hudspeth, Irion, Jack,
Jeff Davis, Jim Hogg, Jim Wells, Jones, Kendall, Kenedy, Kent, Kerr,
Kimble, King, Kleberg, Knox, Lamb, Llano, Loving, Lubbock, Lynn,
Martin, Mason, McCulloch, Medina, Menard, Midland, Mitchell,
Montague, Motley, Nolan, Nueces, Oldham, Parmer, Presidio, Ran-
dall, Reagan, Real, Red River, Runnels, San Saba, Schleicher, Scurry,
Shackelford, Starr, Stephens, Sterling, Stonewall, Sutton, Swisher,
Taylor, Terrell, Terry, Throckmorton, Tom Green, Upton, Val Verde,
Ward, Webb, Wichita, Wilbarger, Willacy, Williamson, Winkler, Wise,
Yoakum and Young.

THEREFORE, in accordance with the authority vested in me by Sec-
tion 418.014 of the Texas Government Code, I, LIEUTENANT GOV-
ERNOR DAVID DEWHURST, Acting Governor of the State of Texas,
do hereby renew the disaster proclamation and direct that all necessary
measures, both public and private as authorized under Section 418.017
of the code, be implemented to meet that threat.

GOVERNOR October 5, 2012 37 TexReg 7821



As provided in Section 418.016 of the code, all rules and regulations David Dewhurst, Lieutenant Governor
that may inhibit or prevent prompt response to this threat are suspended

for the duration of the state of disaster. Acting Governor

. . . . TRD-201204966
In accordance with the statutory requirements, copies of this proclama-
tion shall be filed with the applicable authorities. L4 ¢

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and
have officially caused the Seal of State to be affixed at my Office in the
City of Austin, Texas, this the 7th day of September, 2012.

37 TexReg 7822 October 5, 2012 Texas Register
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‘TaE c ATTORNEY
gENE RAL An index to the full text of these documents is available from
the Attorney General's Internet site hitp./www.oag. state.&x. us.

Telephone: 512-936-1730. For information about pending requests for opinions, telephone 512-463-2110.

An Attorney General Opimion is a written interpretation of existing law. The Attorney General writes opinions as part of his
responsibility to act as legal counsel for the State of Texas. Opinions are written only at the request of certain state officials. The
Texas Government Code indicates to whom the Attomey General may provide a legal opinion. He may not write legal opinions
for private individuals or for any officials other than those specified by statte. (Listing of authorized requestors:

hitp://www.oag.state.tx us/opinopen/opinhome. shtml. )

Requests for Opinions
RQ-1083-GA

Requestor:

The Honorable Isidro R. Alaniz
District Attorney

49th Judicial District

Post Office Box 1343

Laredo, Texas 78042

Re: Whether a member of a governmental body may leave an open
meeting to confer privately with the employees of that governmental
body (RQ-1083-GA)

Briefs requested by October 24, 2012

For  further information, please access the website at
www.oag.state.tx.us or call the Opinion Committee at (512) 463-2110.

TRD-201205120

Katherine Cary

General Counsel

Office of the Attorney General
Filed: September 26, 2012

¢ ¢ ¢
Opinions
Opinion No. GA-0969
Raymund A. Paredes, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Higher Education
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
Post Office Box 12788
Austin, Texas 78711-2788

Re: Authority of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to
promulgate a rule that would permit a veteran who is entitled to two
kinds of federal education benefits to be eligible to apply for benefits
under section 54.341, Education Code, based upon the federal program
to which the veteran opts to apply rather than on the federal program
which he or she is entitled to use (RQ-1053-GA)

SUMMARY

Under section 54.341 of the Education Code, a court would likely con-
clude that the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board has author-
ity to adopt a rule which would allow a veteran applying for the state
Hazlewood Act Tuition Exemption who is otherwise entitled to federal
Chapter 33 benefits to not first exhaust his or her Chapter 33 benefits.

Opinion No. GA-0970

Mr. Zak Covar

Executive Director

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Post Office Box 13087

Austin, Texas 78711-3087

Re: Whether a state agency's demand for restitution based upon an
unadjudicated claim for breach of a grant contract constitutes a "debt"
to the state for purposes of section 403.055, Government Code (RQ-
1054-GA)

SUMMARY

The act of sending a letter requesting restitution damages based upon an
unadjudicated claim for breach of a grant contract issued under chapter
386 of the Health and Safety Code will not, by itself, establish a debt
to the state for purposes of section 403.055 of the Government Code.
The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality could establish the
existence of a debt to the state if specific contract terms that create an
agreement between the state and grantee establish a debt, if the Com-
mission can allege the existence of a debt by statutory reference, or if
the Commission can establish the debt by some other lawfully effective
means, including a TCEQ internal administrative process that provides
the grantee with the requisite due process.

Once the Commission has established a debt to the state and provided
grantees with due process, including an opportunity to contest the
amount or existence of a contract breach, the Commission may report
a person to the comptroller as indebted to the state under Government
Code subsection 403.055(f).

Opinion No. GA-0971

The Honorable Russell W. Malm
Midland County Attorney

500 North Loraine, Suite 1101
Midland, Texas 79701

ATTORNEY GENERAL October 5, 2012
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Re: Authority of a county bail bond board with regard to attorneys
who execute bail bonds: Clarification of Attorney General Opinion No.
GA-0197 (2004) (RQ-1058-GA)

SUMMARY

A bail bond board may use a felony conviction to suspend or revoke the
authorization granted to an attorney under Occupations Code section
1704.163 only if the conviction resulted from conduct involved with
the practice of executing a bail bond or acting as a surety.

If a bail bond board determines that an attorney has committed a felony
that may be used to suspend or revoke his or her right to act under Oc-
cupations Code section 1704.163, the board would be the appropriate

body to determine how the attorney may remedy the felony conviction
and whether such remedial action has occurred in a given instance.

For  further information, please access the website at
www.oag.state.tx.us or call the Opinion Committee at (512) 463-2110.
TRD-201205093

Katherine Cary

General Counsel

Office of the Attorney General

Filed: September 25, 2012

¢ ¢ ¢
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SPROPOSED

ULE

Proposed rules include new rules, amendments to existing rules, and repeals of existing rules.
A state agency shall give at least 30 days' notice of its intention to adopt a rule before it

adopts the rule. A state agency shall give all interested persons a reasonable opportunity to
submit data, views, or arguments, orally or in writing (Government Code, Chapter 2001).
Symbols in proposed rule text. Proposed new language is indicated by underlined text. [Square-brackets-and-strikethrough]
indicate existing rule text that is proposed for deletion. “(No change)” indicates that existing rule text at this level will not be

amended.

TITLE 4. AGRICULTURE

PART 1. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE

CHAPTER 17. MARKETING AND
PROMOTION

The Texas Department of Agriculture (department) proposes
amendments to Chapter 17, Subchapter B, §§17.30 - 17.33,
concerning the department's livestock facilities, Subchapter C,
§8§17.51 -17.53, 17.55 - 17.57, 17.59, and 17.60, concerning
the GO TEXAN certification and marketing program, and Sub-
chapter D, §17.73, concerning the department's farmers market
certification program; new §§17.61 - 17.63, concerning the
department's GO TEXAN certification and marketing program;
and new Subchapter J, §§17.600 - 17.604, concerning the de-
partment's GO TEXAN certified retirement community program,
and the repeal of §17.54, concerning denial of applications, and
Subchapter J, §§17.600 - 17.610, concerning the GO TEXAN
Wildlife Program. The amendments to §§17.30 - 17.33 are
proposed to clarify references to the department's export-import
facilities, and make those consistent with the Texas Agriculture
Code, Chapter 146, Subchapter B. The amendment to the title
of Subchapter C, as well as amendments made throughout that
subchapter are proposed to correct the terminology used to
refer to the GO TEXAN certification mark, previously referred
to as the "GO TEXAN and Design Mark." The amendments to
§17.51 clarify and add definitions related to the GO TEXAN
program. The amendments to §17.52 add a reference to the
new §17.63, as well as correct terminology referring to the
GO TEXAN certification mark. The amendment to §17.53
incorporates the application denial process defined in §17.54,
which is proposed for repeal. The amendments to §17.55 add
renewal application procedures for those authorized to utilize
the GO TEXAN certification mark. The amendments to §17.56
and §17.59 correct the terminology used to refer to the GO
TEXAN certification mark. The amendments to §17.57 clarify
persons eligible to qualify for associate GO TEXAN registration,
as well as terminology associated with eligible registrants. The
amendments to §17.60 outline benefits available to GO TEXAN
Restaurant Program registrants, and clarifies requirements to
be eligible for the program.

New §17.61 incorporates Subchapter J, GO TEXAN Wildlife Pro-
gram, which is proposed for repeal, into Subchapter C. New
§17.62 creates a new GO TEXAN program for farm and ranch
registrants and outlines application and eligibility requirements.
New §17.63 defines eligibility for licensing of the GO TEXAN cer-
tification mark for commercial use, including definition of applica-
tion, licensing and royalty fees. The amendments to §17.73 de-
fine a minimum percentage of Texas grown products that farmers

markets are required to provide, and also makes a grammatical
correction. New Subchapter J, GO TEXAN Certified Retirement
Community Program, §§17.600 - 17.604, transfers this program
from 4 TAC Chapter 29, Subchapter C, to Chapter 17, with no
substantive changes made to eligibility requirements or fees.

New §17.62 and §17.63 include provisions related to fees.
These fees are necessary to comply with changes made to the
funding of the department's marketing program by the 82nd
Texas Legislature. The Legislature has required that all of the
costs of administering this program be entirely offset by revenue
generated for the program and has authorized the agency to col-
lect fees accordingly. In order to meet this Legislative mandate,
the department has first reviewed programs for cost savings and
efficiencies, then restructured programs, as needed, to provide
the best service possible at a reasonable cost to program users.
Proposed new §17.62 and §17.63 will authorize fees so that
the GO TEXAN program may continue, under the cost recovery
requirement imposed by the 82nd Legislature.

Bryan Daniel, Chief Administrator, Trade and Business Devel-
opment, has determined that for the first five years the amended
and new sections and repeals are in effect, there will be fiscal im-
plications for state government as a result of administering or en-
forcing the proposed new and amended sections in Subchapter
C, due to the collection of application, license and royalty fees for
program participation in the GO TEXAN promotional marketing
program. It is not possible to determine the amount of revenue
applications, license agreements and royalty fees will generate.
Applicants to the new Farm and Ranch Program established un-
der §17.62 will pay a fee based upon the level of membership,
with fees ranging from $100 to $5,000. Applicants for a license
to use the GO TEXAN certification mark under §17.63 will pay
an application fee of $35, and upon approval of an application,
will pay a $250 licensing fee. In addition, a licensee will pay a
royalty fee of 3.0 percent of annual gross receipts from the sale
of licensed products in excess of $5,000. The charging of fees is
necessary to enable the continued operation of a leaner, cost-ef-
ficient program due to a new Legislative requirement that this
program generate revenue to completely offset its costs. The
ability of the department to provide a quality program will be im-
pacted if the department does not assess a fee that recovers the
full cost of the program. There will be no fiscal implications for
local government.

Mr. Daniel has also determined that for each year of the first five
years the proposed amended and new sections are in effect, the
public benefit anticipated as a result of enforcing the amended
and new sections will be increased recognition of the GO TEXAN
certification mark through additional outreach methods and an
increase in consumption of Texas agricultural products through
the continuation of the GO TEXAN Program. There will be a cost
to individuals, small and micro-businesses that choose to partic-
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ipate in the department's GO TEXAN programs. Applicants to
the new Farm and Ranch Program established under §17.62 will
pay a fee based upon the level of membership, with fees rang-
ing from $100 to $5,000. Applicants for a license to use the GO
TEXAN certification mark under §17.63 will pay an application
fee of $35, and upon approval of an application, will pay a $250
licensing fee. In addition, a licensee will pay a royalty fee of 3.0
percent of annual gross receipts from the sale of licensed prod-
ucts in excess of $5,000.

Comments on the proposal may be submitted to Bryan Daniel,
Chief Administrator, Trade and Business Development, Texas
Department of Agriculture, P.O. Box 12847, Austin, Texas 78711.
Comments must be received no later than 30 days from the date
of publication of the proposal in the Texas Register.

SUBCHAPTER B. LIVESTOCK FACILITIES
4 TAC §§17.30 - 17.33

The amendments to §§17.30 - 17.33 are proposed pursuant to
the Texas Agriculture Code (the Code), §146.021, which pro-
vides the department with the authority to operate livestock facil-
ities to receive and hold for processing animals and animal prod-
ucts transported in international trade and establish and collect
reasonable fees for yardage, maintenance, feed, medical care,
facility use, and other necessary expenses incurred in the course
of processing those animals; and the Code, §12.016, which pro-
vides the department with the authority to adopts rules as nec-
essary to administer its duties under the Code.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapters 12 and 46.

$17.30.  Purpose and Definitions.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of these rules is to ensure that the
animals at the Texas Department of Agriculture livestock [expert] fa-
cilities are secured in quarters that meet the requirements and guide-
lines established by the United States Department of Agriculture and
the receiving country.

(b) Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in
these sections, shall have the following meanings, unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise.

(1) (No change.)

(2) Livestock [expert] facilities--The Texas Department of
Agriculture livestock export, import, inspection and processing facili-
ties located in Brownsville, El Paso, Houston, [Pel Rio;] Eagle Pass,
and Laredo.

(3) Consignor--Owner, broker, or other person consigning
livestock to the livestock [expert] facilities or otherwise engaging the
services of the facilities.

(4)-(5) (No change.)

$§17.31.  Operation of Livestock [Expert] Facilities.

(a) Any service or use of the livestock [expert] facilities not
clearly or specifically described in this section shall be subject to agree-
ment between each facility manager and each consignor prior to imple-
mentation, and shall be subject to the policies of the department and the
State of Texas.

(b) Selling, buying, bargaining, trading, or change of owner-
ship of livestock is strictly forbidden on the premises of the livestock
[expert] facilities. However, the department may utilize the facilities
for official departmental livestock marketing functions.

(c) Livestock [expert] facilities will not supply feed. The con-
signor may provide his own feed or may make arrangements with a
local feed supplier. The consignor shall be solely responsible for pay-
ment for feed. Labor for the feeding of livestock at the facilities will be
furnished by the department at no additional charge. If the consignor
fails to provide feed for his livestock, the livestock [expert] facility
may obtain feed on behalf of the consignor and the consignor shall re-
imburse the facility for all expenses incurred in obtaining the feed.

(d) The following schedule of fees applies to all livestock
[expert] facilities with the exception of the Houston facility. Sched-
uled fees include necessary water, pen space and necessary labor
for feeding of livestock and assisting in conducting any inspections
requested. Stall space, bedding, hay, feed, spray, and any overtime
fees or wages are not included in the fee schedule. Stalls are available
on a first-come, first-served basis. The cost of stalls is $20 per head
for the first 24 hours and $20 per head for each additional 24 hours.
For horses, mules, cattle and calves, except feeder/slaughter cattle:
first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $5.00; each 24 hours thereafter:
$8.00. For breeding sheep and goats: first 24 hours or fraction thereof:
$2.00; each 24 hours thereafter: $3.50. For breeding hogs: first 24
hours or fraction thereof: $3.00; each 24 hours thereafter: $4.50. For
feeder/slaughter sheep and goats: first 24 hours or fraction thereof:
$1.00; each 24 hours thereafter: $1.00. For feeder/slaughter hogs: first
24 hours or fraction thereof: $2.00; each 24 hours thereafter: $2.00.
For feeder/slaughter cattle: first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $3.00;
each 24 hours thereafter: $3.00. For poultry: first 24 hours or fraction
thereof: $2.50; each 24 hours thereafter: $2.50. For baby chicks or
fertile eggs: first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $50 per load; each 24
hours thereafter: $50. For exotic livestock or exotic fowl: first 24
hours or fraction thereof: $5.00; each 24 hours thereafter: $5.00.

(e) The following schedule of fees applies to the Houston live-
stock [expert] facility only. Scheduled fees include necessary water,
pen space and necessary labor for feeding of livestock and assisting in
conducting any inspections requested. Stall space, bedding, hay, feed,
spray, and any overtime fees or wages are not included in the fee sched-
ule. Stalls are available on a first-come, first-served basis. The cost of
stalls is $40 per head for the first 24 hours and $40 per head for each
additional 24 hours. For cattle, horses and mules: first 24 hours or frac-
tion thereof: $10; each 24 hours thereafter: $10. For sheep, goats and
hogs: first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $5.00; each 24 hours thereafter:
$5.00. For poultry: first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $2.50; each 24
hours thereafter: $2.50. For baby chicks or fertile eggs: first 24 hours
or fraction thereof: $50 per load; each 24 hours thereafter: $50. For
exotic livestock or exotic fowl: first 24 hours or fraction thereof: $10;
each 24 hours thereafter: $10.

(f) (No change.)

(g) At the request of the consignor, the livestock [expert] fa-
cility may detain the consignor's livestock at the facility until such time
as the consignor authorizes their release.

(h) (No change.)

(i) The consignor of the livestock shall be responsible for the
outcome of inspections and any injuries or damages incidental to such
inspections or use of the services, quarters, or grounds of the livestock

[expert] facilities.

(j) Pursuant to the Texas Agriculture Code, §146.024 [146.024
ernon's 1982)], livestock or other animals left in the livestock
[expert] facilities for longer than 30 calendar days may be sold at
public auction to satisfy any unpaid fees or other indebtedness to the
department and private suppliers.
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(k) Fees are due and payable at the conclusion of each permit-
ted transaction. Payment by certified check or money order may be
required of any user whose previous payment by check has been re-
turned due to insufficient funds. Users who are in default of payment
to the facilities may be denied use of the facilities until such time as all
outstanding fees have been paid in full. For purposes of this section,
a permitted transaction may include the importation or exportation of
one or more loads of livestock through the department's facilities by
one or more consignors during a one-week period.

(1) (No change.)

§17.32.  Hours of Operation of Livestock [Expert] Facilities.

(a) Business hours. Business hours for the livestock [expert]
facilities shall be from 8 a.m. until 5 p.m. Monday through Friday,
except for official state and federal holidays. When necessary, livestock
[expert] facility managers may, at their discretion, alter these normal
hours of operation. If deemed necessary by the department, livestock
[expert] facilities located along the Texas-Mexico border may remain
open on certain state or national holidays. Consequently, the facilities
may close on official Mexican holidays.

(b) Special arrangements. Arrangements for receiving, ship-
ping, handling, or feeding of livestock during times other than normal
working hours must be made with the respective livestock [expert] fa-
cility manager or office manager prior to 4 p.m. on normal work days,
Monday through Friday, exclusive of holidays. Requests for operation
of facilities during nonbusiness hours shall be made at least 24 hours
in advance.

(c) Operations during nonbusiness hours. Consignors who use
the livestock [expert] facilities at times other than the business hours
provided in subsection (a) of this section shall be assessed a surcharge
consisting of $50 per shipment plus $10 per departmental employee
per hour or portion of an hour that is worked during the nonbusiness
hours. The surcharge established by this subsection is not applicable
to the Houston livestock [expert] facility.

§17.33.  Access to Livestock [£Expert] Facilities.

(a) General public. Users of the livestock [expert] facilities
are permitted to operate their motor vehicles and livestock trailers in
the facility parking and loading/unloading areas. These persons may
also use the facility waiting areas and rest rooms. Due to safety and
security concerns, non-employees are forbidden from entering all other
areas of the livestock [expert] facilities, including livestock holding
pens, lanes, and chutes, as well as all inside office and storage areas.
Anyone seeking access to the inside offices, livestock holding pens,
lanes, and chutes must obtain the approval of, or be accompanied by a
facility employee.

(b) (No change.)
This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed

by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205000

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER C. GO TEXAN CERTIFICA-
TION MARK

4 TAC §§17.51 - 17.53,17.55 -17.57,17.59 - 17.63

The amendments to §§17.51 - 17.53, 17.55 - 17.57, 17.59,
17.60, and new 17.61 - 17.63 are proposed pursuant to the
Texas Agriculture Code, §12.0175, which provides the depart-
ment with authority to establish programs by rule to promote
and market agricultural products and other products grown,
processed, or produced in the state, and charge a membership
fee, as provided by department rule, for each participant in a
program, and adopt rules to administer a program established
under §12.0175, and §12.031, as amended by Senate Bill
1086, 82nd Legislature, 2011, which provides the department
with the authority to assess and collect fees or royalties on
department-owned registered certification marks and to collect
event fees or royalties for marketing and promotional activities
authorized by §12.0175.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapter 12.

§17.51. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this subchapter, shall
have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates oth-
erwise. For purposes of this subchapter, the department shall have the
sole discretion to determine whether a product meets the qualifications
defined in this section.

(1) Associate GO TEXAN Registrants
[membersAicensees]--Persons who apply and are granted limited use
of the mark by the department for assistance in the promotion and
implementation of the GO TEXAN program.

(2) - (4) (No change.)

(5) Fishing--The act or sport of capturing fish.

(6) [€5)] Food--Agricultural products produced or pro-
cessed in Texas for human consumption.

(7) Genetics--The business, engineering, and science of
cloning, creating, harvesting, implanting, manipulating, marketing,
producing, researching, or selling animal eggs, embryos, genes,
genetic characteristics, or semen.

(8) [©] GO TEXAN Certification [and Design]
mark--The GO TEXAN certification [and Design] mark is a cer-
tification mark that is registered with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office and the Texas Secretary of State's office by the
department.

Figure: 4 TAC §17.51(8)
[Figure: 4 TAC §17:51(6)]

(9) [H] GO TEXAN Restaurant Program--A program, as
defined in §17.60 of this title (relating to GO TEXAN Restaurant Pro-
gram) established by the department to allow Texas restaurants to par-
ticipate in the GO TEXAN marketing program.

i) are located in Texas;}
i) are permitted in accordance with all state and
loeal laws and regulations; and}

produets:]
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[(B) Persons who apply arc granted usc of the mark for
the promotion and assistance of the GO TEXAN program.]

(10) [€8)] Horticulture products--Nursery, floral and green-
house plants or plant products produced in Texas from seeds, root-
ings, cuttings, tissue cultures, seedlings or other propagation materi-
als. Non-Texas plants being produced for such a period during which
they are transplanted or increased in plant size and volume of container.
Texas and non-Texas produced plant-based horticulture products pro-
cessed in Texas.

(11) Hunting--The capturing or harvesting of wildlife.

(12) [9)] Livestock feed, feed supplements and pet food--
Agricultural products produced or processed in Texas for animal con-
sumption.

(13) Mobile food establishment--A vehicle mounted food
establishment that is readily moveable that meets the requirements set
forth in Title 25, Part 1, Chapter 229, Subchapter K, §229.169 of the
Texas Administrative Code (relating to Mobile Food Establishments).

(14) [61®)] Natural fibers--Fibers which have been pro-
duced from Texas crops or shorn from Texas livestock, and which are
used in textiles, apparel, and other goods. The term "natural fibers"
also includes leather made from the hides of animals and reptiles.

(15) [EH] Natural woods--Forestry products produced
from Texas hardwood and softwood timber and may include, but
not be limited to, furniture, home furnishings, building construction
materials, pulp and paper.

(16) [(12)] Other Products--

(A) Any product produced in Texas which is not a Texas
agricultural product, as defined in paragraph (24) [(19)] of this section,
but is:

(i) produced, manufactured, constructed or created
within the state; or

(ii)  is processed within the state such that it has been
altered by a mechanical or physical value-added procedure in Texas to
change or add to its physical characteristics; and

(iii) such product enhances the GO TEXAN pro-
gram;

(B) Products described in subparagraph (A) of this
paragraph which are produced in Texas, but processed outside of Texas
do not meet GO TEXAN program requirements, unless facilities for
processing are not reasonably available in Texas.

(C) For purposes of this subchapter, the department
shall have the sole discretion to determine whether a product qualifies
as being an "other product" or processed other product and shall have
the sole discretion to determine whether a product enhances the GO
TEXAN program.

f33) Persen—An individual; firm; partnership; eorpera-
tion; governmental entity, or association of individuals}

(17) [E4)] Processed food product--Non-Texas agricul-
tural food product which has undergone a value-added procedure in
Texas to change or add to its physical characteristics, including, but
not limited to, cooking, baking, heating, drying, mixing, grinding,
churning, separating, extracting, cutting, fermenting, distilling, evis-
cerating, preserving, or dehydrating. [Eer purpeses of this subehapter;
the department shall have the sole diseretion to determine whether a
produet qualifies as being a processed food produet:]

(18) [(45)] Processed natural fiber or natural wood product-
-Non-Texas raw, natural fiber or natural wood which has undergone
mechanical or physical changes in Texas resulting in a finished, distinct
product. [Eer purpeses of this subehapter; the department shall have
the sole discretion to determine whether a product qualifies as being a
proeessed natural fiber and woed produet]

(19) [E6)] Produced in Texas--An agricultural product is
produced in Texas if:

(A) the agricultural product is grown, raised, nurtured,
sown, or cultivated within the state; or

(B) the agricultural product has been altered by a me-
chanical or physical value-added procedure in Texas to change or add
to its physical characteristics.

(C) Products produced in Texas, but processed out of
Texas do not meet GO TEXAN program requirements, unless facilities
for processing are not reasonably available in Texas.

(20) [(4D] Producer--Any person who:

(A)  produces agricultural product(s) grown, raised,
nurtured, sown, or cultivated in the State of Texas;

(B) produces Texas processed agricultural product(s);
or

(C) produces Texas product(s) that is/are not processed
outside of Texas, unless facilities for processing are not reasonably
available in Texas.

(21) Registrant--A person in good standing with the depart-
ment who is authorized to use the GO TEXAN certification mark for
the purpose of verifying their product or service as grown, produced,
manufactured or provided in Texas.

(22) Restaurant--An operation that stores, prepares, serves,
vends, or otherwise provides food for human consumption, such as a
restaurant, satellite or catered feeding location; or mobile food estab-
lishment. Restaurant registrants do not include:

(A) any establishment that offers only prepackaged

foods;

(B) a produce stand that only offers whole, uncut fresh
fruits and vegetables;

(C) afood processing plant;

(D) a kitchen in a private home if prepared for sale or
service at a function such as a religious or charitable organization's bake
sale; or

(E) abed and breakfast.

(23) [E®)] Texas processed agricultural product--Non-
Texas agricultural product, excluding processed food product and pro-
cessed natural wood and natural fiber product, which has undergone
a value added procedure in Texas that changes or adds to its physical
characteristics. [Eor purpeses of this subchapter; the department shall
have the sele diseretion to determine whether a produet qualifies as
being a Texas processed agricultural produet]

(24) [9)] Texas agricultural product--An agricultural,
apicultural horticultural, silvicultural, viticultural, or vegetable prod-
uct, either in its natural or processed state, that has been produced,
processed, or otherwise had value added to the product in this state,
including:

(A) equine species;

(B) feed for use by livestock or poultry;
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(C) fish or other aquatic species;

(D) livestock, a livestock product, or a livestock

by-product;
(E) planting seed;

(F) poultry, a poultry product, or a poultry by-product;
or

(G) wildlife processed for food or by-products.

§17.52.  Application for Registration to Use the GO TEXAN
Certification [and Design] Mark.

(a) No person shall use, employ, adopt, or utilize the GO
TEXAN certification [and Design] mark, unless prior application
for registration [er heensing] has been made to the department and
permission [te make such use; > adoption; or utilization)|
has been granted. In addition to any other fee that may be assessed
under this chapter, the department may assess a fee or royalty as de-
scribed in §17.63 of this title (relating to Licensing of the GO TEXAN
Certification Mark) for use of the GO TEXAN certification mark.

(b) Unless permission is otherwise granted by the department,
the GO TEXAN certification [and Design] mark may only be used by
registrants [and licensees] to certify and promote the following Texas

[agrientural] products:
(1) (No change.)

(2) agricultural food products processed in Texas, regard-
less of origin, and unprocessed agricultural food products grown in
Texas. A food service company, excluding restaurants, is not eligi-
ble for membership unless it processes a packaged product for resale,
in which case, the mark may only be used to promote the specific pro-
gram-eligible products. Food service companies may not use the mark
[in any general fashien] to promote the approved business or its ser-
vices in a manner that would mislead consumers to believe it was a
GO TEXAN member;

(3)-(4) (No change.)
(5) leather, textile, or apparel products approved by the
department [eommissioner] as being:
(A) - (B) (No change.)

(6) (No change.)

(7) meat(s). In order to be certified as "GO TEXAN",
meat(s), applicants must meet the following criteria:

(A) Livestock or exotic animals must [Beef. Must be
from eattle that] have been born, raised, fed, slaughtered and/or fabri-
cated in Texas.

By Lamb and geat. Must be from sheep or goats that
have been born; raised; fed; slaughtered and/er fabricated in Texas-}
been bern; raised; fed; slaughtered and/or fabricated in Texas-

D) Poultry: Must be from poultry that have been born;
raised; slaughtered and/or fabricated in Texas:}
been born; raised; fed; slaughtered and/or fabricated in Texas-}

(B) [(®)] For purposes of this paragraph, "fabricated"

shall be defined as the process of taking a carcass and cutting the carcass
into wholesale or retail cuts of meat.

(8) - (15) (No change.)
(16) Texas processed agricultural product(s); [and]

(17) Texas restaurants as provided for in §17.60 of this title
(relating to GO TEXAN Restaurant Program);[<]

(18) other products produced, manufactured, constructed
or created within the state; or processed within the state as described
in §17.51 of this title; and

(19) wildlife services as described in §17.61 of this title
(relating to GO TEXAN Wildlife Program).

(c) Applications submitted under this section shall be made in
writing on a form prescribed by the department. Application forms may
be obtained by contacting the Texas Department of Agriculture Market-
ing and International Trade Section [Premetion Divisien] at P.O. Box
12076 [12847], Austin, Texas 78711, phone (512) 463-7624.

(d) Applications shall be submitted to: [the assistant commis-
stoner for] Marketing and International Trade Section [Premetien],
Texas Department of Agriculture, P.O. Box 12076 [12847], Austin,
Texas 78711; or electronically, as prescribed by the department.

(e) Applications will not be processed without [Hf appreved;
applicants shall remit] the required registration fee [with the appliea-
tion].

(f) Upon approval of the application [reeeipt of the registration
fee], the department shall provide [mail to] the registrant [er licensee]

a certificate of registration, which is valid for one year and shall expire
on the last day of the month corresponding to the license anniversary
date. The department shall also provide copies of the mark, suitable
for reproduction, upon request of the registrant.

(g) Other than the authorized use of the mark, no registrant [er
licensee] shall use any statement of affiliation or endorsement by the
State of Texas or the department in the selling, advertising, marketing,
packaging, or other commercial handling of GO TEXAN products and
services, or operation of [eperating] GO TEXAN restaurants.

(h) Registrants [and licensees] shall indemnify and hold harm-
less the commissioner, the State of Texas, and the department for any
claims, losses, or damages arising out of or in connection with that per-
son's advertising, marketing, packaging, manufacture, or other com-
mercial handling of GO TEXAN products and services, or the opera-
tion of restaurants.

(i) (No change.)

(j) Registrants shall do nothing inconsistent with the owner-
ship of the mark in the department, and all use of the mark by any
registrant shall inure to the benefit of and be on behalf of the depart-
ment. Further the registrants shall not have any right, title, or interest
in the mark, other than the right to use the mark as authorized in accor-
dance with the certificate of registration. Registrants waive the right
to attack [must agree not to attack the title of] the department's own-
ership, use of and permissions granted by the department associated

with [department to] the mark[; or attack the validity of the certificate
effegas&aﬂeﬂef%hepem%ssieﬂgﬁﬂ%%dbyﬂ*eéepaﬁmeﬂﬂ

(k) The nature and quality of the goods sold by registrants in
connection with the mark shall conform to any standards which are
[may be] set [from time to time] by the department. Registrants shall
cooperate with the department [eommissioner] by permitting reason-
able inspection of the registrant's operation and promptly supplying the
department [eommissioner] with specimens of use of the mark upon re-
quest. Registrants shall not use the mark on goods sold or marketed as
products from another country or state, or as products from a city or
region outside of Texas, unless prior written authorization is received
from the department.
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() Registrants [and licensees] shall comply with all applicable
laws and regulations and obtain all appropriate governmental approval
pertaining to the selling, advertising, marketing, packaging, manufac-
turing, or other commercial handling of the products or operation of
restaurants covered by the certification of registration.

(m) Registrants shall use the mark only in the form and man-
ner, and with appropriate legends, as prescribed [from time to time] by
the department [commissioner].

(n) The department shall have the sole right and discretion to
bring infringement or unfair competition proceedings involving the GO
TEXAN certification [and Destgn] mark. Failure to bring proceedings
does not constitute a waiver of the department's rights and does not
preclude all other available legal actions.

(0) The department may consider in its evaluation of an appli-
cant or registrant any information regarding an applicant or member
that could impair the department's efforts to promote the development
of markets for Texas agriculture and other products. This includes in-
formation that the product may not enhance the integrity and positive
image of the program, including, but not limited to, a review of the
applicant's criminal background, as authorized by applicable laws and
regulations.

fp) The consideration of information as provided in subsee-
that may net enhanee the integrity and pesitive image of the program;
including; but not limited to; a review of eriminal information; as al-
lowed by applicable laws and regulations.]

§17.53.  Action on Application.

(a) Application. Within [The assistant commissioner for Mar-
keting and Promeotion; Texas Department of Agriculture; within] 30
days of receipt of an application for registration , the department [er
license to use the GO TEXAN and Design mark;] shall make an initial
determination of whether such registration permission shall be granted
or denied, and notify the applicant in writing [ef his decision]. If the
applicant is denied registration, then the applicant shall be provided a
reason for such denial.

(b) Denial. An application or renewal of registration to use the
GO TEXAN certification mark may be denied if:

(1) application is not made in compliance with §17.52
of this title (relating to Application for Registration to Use the GO
TEXAN Certification Mark);

(2) the applicant cannot provide adequate assurances that
the product, service or restaurant for which application is made qual-
ifies and will continue to qualify for the program(s) in which it is en-
rolled;

(3) the product is of a quality markedly inferior to that rep-
resentative of similar products produced in Texas;

(4) the applicant has misused the GO TEXAN certification
mark prior to the date of application; or

(5) applicant's use of the GO TEXAN certification mark
would either:

(A) impair or frustrate the department's efforts to ex-
pand or encourage development of the markets for Texas agricultural

(c) [(®)] Appeal. If the applicant wishes to contest such initial
determination, notice of protest shall be filed by the applicant with the
department [eemmissioner] within 15 days of receipt by the applicant
of notice of such initial determination. The date of notification is the
date the notice was mailed by first class mail or sent electronically to
the applicant. Should notice of protest be timely filed, the applicant's
request shall be administered as a contested case as provided for the Ad-
ministrative Procedure Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2001,
and Chapter 1 of this title (relating to General Procedures [Praetice and
Procedure]).

(d) [€e)] Failure to file Notice of Protest. If notice of protest
has not been filed with the department [eemmissioner] within 15 days
of receipt by the applicant of notice of such initial determination, such
initial determination shall become final.

$17.55. Registration and [ef These Entitled to] Use of the GO
TEXAN Certification [and Design] Mark.

fa) The commissioner shall enroll in a register the names ef all
persons granted permission under these sections to use the GO TEXAN
é&m&gﬁefmalbﬂsmessheufsmtheefﬁeesef%he?%e&slaepaﬁmemef
Agricultare; 1700 Neorth Congress Avenue; Austin; Texasd

fb) The procedure for annual renewal of registration of per-
sons autherized to use the GO TEXAN and Design mark is as folows:}

[(})  Forty-five days before the expiration date of the regis-
tration; the department shall mail to each person previously registered
or licensed to use the GO TEXAN and Design mark a statement setting

[2) Al payments are due by the expiration date of the reg-

3 Within 30 days of receipt by the department of the re-
newal statement; together with the annual registration fee; the depart-
ment will mail to the registrant a renewal certificate of registration-}

H4) Failure to remit the annual registration fee by the due
te%m}ttheaﬂﬂualfegts&aﬂeﬂfeem&hm%édﬁysef%hedueda{e
shall result in the expiration of the registration and a new application
for membership will be required for re-instatement to the program-}

(a) [€e)] Membership. An annual fee for registration in the
GO TEXAN [GO TEXAN; GO TEXAN Associate and/or GO TEXAN
Restaurant]| program shall be paid to the department. Applicants may
select from three different levels of membership. Annual fees and ben-
efits for each level of membership are described in paragraphs (1) - (3)
of'this subsection. The department may;, in its sole discretion, from time
to time, revise or update the benefits for each level of membership. All
benefits are subject to continued authorization and appropriation of the
program by the Texas Legislature.

(1) Tier 1 - $100. Benefits for this membership level in-
clude licensed use of the GO TEXAN certification mark and listing in
GO TEXAN program databases [ searchable database of GO TEXAN
pregram members].

(2) Tier 2 - $500. Benefits for this membership level
include all the benefits provided for Tier 1 members, plus listing in
relevant [applicable] GO TEXAN [electronic resources; smartphone

and other products; or

(B) fail to enhance the integrity and image of the pro-
gram, as determined by the department; or

(6) it has been determined not to be in accordance with de-

applieations or] publications provided by the department up to three
hours of marketing or advertising consulting services by department
staff; eligibility for participation in the department's GO TEXAN Part-
ner Program; [and] discounts on GO TEXAN program merchandise;
enrollment of additional GO TEXAN restaurant locations under the

partment policy.

same name at no additional charge.
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(3) Tier 3 - $1,000. Benefits for this membership level
include all the benefits provided for Tier 2 members, plus increased
discounts on GO TEXAN program merchandise, membership
award/plaque to denote program participation and display of a com-
pany graphic on the GO TEXAN website.

4) [(] GO TEXAN program members may also par-
ticipate as sponsors in the program. Sponsorship levels begin at
$5,000 and include all benefits available to Tier 3 members, set out in
paragraph [subseetion {e)] (3) of this subsection [seetior], plus addi-
tional benefits that may be provided for in a sponsorship agreement
between the GO TEXAN program member and applicant.

(b) Renewal. The procedure for annual renewal of registration
of persons authorized to use the GO TEXAN certification mark is as
follows.

(1) Thirty days before the expiration date of the registra-
tion, the department shall send each person previously registered to
use the GO TEXAN certification mark a statement of the amount due
as an annual registration fee.

(2) All payments are due by the expiration date of the reg-
istration.

(3)  After receipt of the renewal and annual fee, the depart-
ment will send an approved registrant a certificate of registration.

(4) Failure to remit the annual registration fee by the due
date shall result in the registrant being designated as inactive. Failure
to remit the annual registration fee within 366 days of the due date
shall result in the expiration of the registration and a new application
for membership will be required for re-instatement to the program.

(c) Limited use restrictions.

(1) Registrant shall be granted a limited, non-exclusive li-
cense to use the mark solely in conjunction with the reproduction, dis-
play, advertisement and promotion for which registrant has applied,
within the United States, for the registration period.

(2) Registrant will immediately cease use of the certifica-
tion mark upon the expiration of the registration period, unless an ap-
plication for renewal has been submitted to and approved by the de-

partment.

(3) Registrant's proposed use shall be subject to review and
acceptance by the Department.

(4) Upon request, registrant shall promptly furnish the de-
partment a sample of any material bearing the mark, including but not
limited to all advertising, promotional, and display materials, at no
charge, for the department's written approval prior to any use thereof.

(5) Registrant's authorized use shall be of high standard
that promotes the goodwill and reputation of the program and the de-

partment.

(6) As required by the department, registrant shall affix on
all items utilized in the authorized use, appropriate legal notices, as
follows: "GO TEXAN is a certification mark of, and is used with per-
mission from the Texas Department of Agriculture".

(7) Registrant's authorization to use the certification mark,
shall not be construed to grant or assign any right, title or interest in or
to the mark or the goodwill attached thereto.

(8) Any and all use of the mark by registrant as allowed
under program rules shall inure solely to the benefit of the department.

(d) List of Registrants. A list of registrants and available con-
tact information may be found on the program website at www.go-

texan.org.
§17.56. Termination of Registration To Use the GO TEXAN
Certification [and Design] Mark.

(a) Registration to use the GO TEXAN certification [and De-
sign| mark may be revoked at any time if the mark is misused, as de-
termined by the department.

(b) Misuse of the GO TEXAN certification [and Destgn] mark
includes, but is not limited to:

(1) (No change.)

(2) use of the mark in the selling, advertising, marketing,
packaging, or other commercial handling of a product which is of a
quality markedly inferior to that representative of similar products pro-
duced in Texas; [of]

(3) use of the mark that would either:

(A) (No change.)

(B) fail to enhance the integrity and image of the pro-
gram, as determined by the department; or

(4) use of the mark in a manner violating any rule promul-
gated by the department [commissioner].

(c) Proceedings for the revocation of registration to use the
GO TEXAN certification [and Design] mark shall be conducted in the
manner provided for contested cases by the Administrative Procedure
Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2001, and Chapter 1 of this title
(relating to General Procedures [Praetice and Proeedure]).

(d) A proceeding for revocation of registration to use the GO
TEXAN certification [and Design] mark shall not preclude the commis-
sioner from pursuing any other remedies, including, where applicable,
the penal and injunctive remedies provided for by law.

$§17.57.  Associate GO TEXAN Registrants [Members].

(a) Statement of purpose; Applicability. This section autho-
rizes retailers, qualified livestock shows, distributors, communities and
other entities to become associate GO TEXAN members and assist the
department with the promotion and implementation of the GO TEXAN
program. [Fhe Associate GO TEXAN Member Program is established
to provide a marketing program that allows persons interested in as-
GO TEXAN program use of the Texas Department of Agriculture's GO
TEXAN and Design mark only on promotional items that mect stan-
dards and rules. In addition to the certification of retailers to use the
GO TEXAN and Design mark in their efforts to promete the program;
this section provides that livestock shows, distributors, and other en-
requirements of this seetion:]

(b) Application process.

(1) Application to use the GO TEXAN certification [and
Design] mark in accordance with this section, shall be made in the same
manner as provided in §17.52 of this title (relating to Application for
Registration To Use the GO TEXAN Certification [and Design] Mark).

(2) (No change.)

(c) Eligibility Requirements and Registrant [Membership]
Categories.

(1) Eligibility requirements. All retailers, livestock shows,

distributors and other entities [meeting the requirements of the Texas
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Agriculture Code (the Code), §46.004, and administrative rules pro-
mulgated to 1 Chapter 46 of the Code;] interested in assist-
ing the department with the promotion and implementation of the GO
TEXAN program may apply for Associate GO TEXAN membership.

(2) Limitations. [Licensees granted] Associate GO
TEXAN Registrants [membership;] shall only use the mark for the
limited purpose stated in the certificate of registration. Use of the
mark by Associate GO TEXAN registrants [members] is limited to
general promotion of the GO TEXAN program and use is subject to
department rules.

(3) Livestock Shows and Festivals. A registrant's
[Hieensee's] use of the mark is limited to promotion of the GO TEXAN
program at livestock shows and festivals in Texas that promote Texas
agricultural products.[]

(4) Retailer. A registrant's [licensee's] use of the mark is
limited to general promotion of GO TEXAN products as defined in
§17.51 and §17.52 of this title (relating to Definitions and Application
for Registration To Use the GO TEXAN Certification [and Design]
Mark) in its retail locations.[3]

15) Egquine-related Entities: A licensee's use of the mark
is Limited fo onal activities for oau ies]
(5) [€6)] Other entities. A registrant's [licensee's] use of the

mark is limited to promotion of [the entity's speeific commedity(ies) o]
the [general] GO TEXAN program, products, and members.

(6) [€P)] Distributors. A registrant's [licensee's] use of the
mark is limited to the promotion of GO TEXAN members' products or
the general promotion of GO TEXAN products, as defined in §17.51
and §17.52 of this title.

HH licensee shall be granted a limited; non-exelusive k-
cense to use the mark solely in conjunction with the reproduction;
display, advertisement and prometion for which licensee has applied;

H2) licensee shall furnish the department a sample of any
material bearing the mark; ineluding but net limited to all advertising;
promotional; and display materials; at no charge; for the department's
written approval prier to any use thereefi]

3) licensee's licensed use shall be of high standard:}

H4) licensee shall affix on all items utilized in the licensed
is a certification mark of; and is used under license from; the Texas
Department of Agrieulture;]

5) licensee's license to use; shall not be construed to grant
or assign any right; title or interest in or to the mark or the goodwill
attached thereto;]

H6) any and all use of the mark by registrant as allowed
under program rules shall inure selely to the benefit of the department}

(d) [€e)] Printers and media. Printers' and media companies'
use of the mark is limited to reproduction of the mark for use by current
program members on their approved products. Printers and media com-
panies are not eligible for the GO TEXAN Partner Program as associate
members. A printer may be eligible for GO TEXAN membership if it
creates original works produced in Texas; or Associate membership if
the printer can demonstrate its desire and ability to assist the promotion
of the GO TEXAN program and its members.

§$17.59.  Non-Agricultural Member, Other Products; Products Pro-
duced in this State.

(a) Permission to use the GO TEXAN certification [and De-
stga] mark. Permission to use the GO TEXAN certification [and De-
sign] mark may be granted by the Department to registrants and li-
censees who have been properly certified as a "Non-Agricultural Mem-
ber" to promote Texas "Other Products", as defined in §17.51 of this
title (relating to Definitions).

(b) Application process:

(1) Application to use the GO TEXAN certification [and
Design] mark in accordance with this section, shall be made in the same
manner as provided in §17.52 of this title (relating to Application for
Registration to [Te] Use the GO TEXAN Certification [and Design]
Mark).

(2) (No change.)
fe) Edigibility Requi and Limited Use Restrictions:]

[(H) licensees granted use of the GO TEXAN and Design
use is subjeet to department rales

H2) licensee shall be granted a limited; non-exelusive H-
cense to use the mark solely in conjunction with the reproduction,
display, advertisement and prometion associated with the produet for
which licensee has applied; within the United States; on the date(s)
which licensee specified in the applications}

13) licensee shall furnish the department a sample of any
material bearing the mark; ineluding but not limited to all advertising;
promotional; and display materials; at no charge; for the department's
written approval prier to any use thereof:}

H4) licensee's proposed licensed use shall be subjeet to re-
view and acceptance by the Department;]

[(5) licensee shall affix on all items utilized in the licensed
use, appropriate legal notices, as follows: GO TEXAN and Design
is a certification mark of, and is used under license from, the Texas
Department of Agriculture:]

f6) licensee's license to use; shall not be eonstrued to grant
or assign any right; title or interest in or to the mark or the goodwill
attached thereto; and]

1D any and all use of the mark by registrant as allowed
under program rules shall inure solely to the benefit of the department.]

(c) [€&] Eligibility for Participation in the GO TEXAN Partner
Program. Registrants [and licensees] admitted into the GO TEXAN
[membership] program under this section are not eligible to receive
GO TEXAN Partner Program grant funds.

$§17.60. GO TEXAN Restaurant Program.
(a) (No change.)

(b) Restaurant Requirements: To be eligible for the GO
TEXAN Restaurant Program, members shall meet and agree to the
following requirements:

(1) Restaurant members must [shall purchase and]| use
product(s) made, grown, processed or value added in Texas, and
whenever possible, should use [as well as] products produced by GO
TEXAN members. If a restaurant does not purchase or use product(s)
made, grown, processed or value added in Texas, the restaurant's GO
TEXAN membership will be revoked and the restaurant will not be
allowed to participate in the program.
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Restaurant members must complete and submit the an-
nual GO TEXAN survey]

(2) [63)] Restaurant must be a [permitted] food establish-
ment or mobile food establishment located in Texas permitted and
conducting business [providing restaurant service located in Texas
that is permitted] in accordance with all federal, state and local laws
pertaining to [and] restaurant or food service operations [regulations)].

fe) Restaurants headquartered out of state must have a plaece
of business with a Texas address to be considered eligible for GO
TEXAN Restaurant Program membership.]}

(c) [(&)] Display of GO TEXAN Restaurant Program Items:

(1) Restaurant members may post their [membership] cer-
tificate of registration to give notice that their establishment is an offi-
cial GO TEXAN Restaurant member.

(2) Restaurant members shall, whenever possible, display,
advertise and promote product(s) made, grown, processed or value
added in Texas to consumers within the restaurant. Texas Department
of Agriculture will provide a copy of the GO TEXAN certification mark
[tege] for use in promotion of the Texas restaurant establishment , upon

request.
(d) [€e)] Application Process:

(1) Application to use the GO TEXAN certification [and
Design] mark in accordance with this section shall be made in the same
manner as provided in §17.52 of this title (relating to Application for
Registration to Use the GO TEXAN Certification [and Design] Mark).

(2) Applicants must certify on the application that all ap-
plicable GO TEXAN Restaurant Program requirements are met.

(3) Except as otherwise provided in this section, all re-
quirements for eligibility [membership] in the general GO TEXAN
program shall apply to restaurants registered [eertified] under this
section.

(4) An applicant must submit a GO TEXAN Restaurant
Program [Member]| application and an annual GO TEXAN member-
ship fee, based on the benefit [membership] tier or sponsorship se-
lected by the restaurant, as set forth in §17.55 of this title [chapter]
(relating to Registration and [ef These Entitled to] Use of the GO
TEXAN Certification [and Design] Mark), for each restaurant that ap-
plicant would like to be eligible for [participate in] the GO TEXAN
Restaurant Program. GO TEXAN Restaurant program registrants will

(B) Tier 2, 3 and sponsor applicants. If an applicant
operates multiple restaurant locations under the same name, applicant
must submita GO TEXAN restaurant program member application and
pay the annual GO TEXAN membership fee as set forth in §17.55 of
this title for the first restaurant location, as identified in the application.
The applicant may choose to enroll additional locations under the same
name at no additional charge.

(5) For each location application submitted, applicant
[Restaurants] must certify that it maintains all necessary food permits,
as required by law. [submit a copy of the establishment's food permit
that has been issued by the restaurant's applicable licensing ageney
with the membership appl—tea&e&] If a restaurant establishment loses
its permit or if the permit is revoked by the [its] applicable llcensmg
agency, the establishment's GO TEXAN registration [membership] is
void, no refund will be provided, and the restaurant must immediately
cease use of the GO TEXAN certification mark.

(6) The department may assess and collect additional fees
for participation in special events administered, conducted, established,
organized, provided for, or sponsored by the department, whether in its
own name or in cooperation with others, in connection with the GO
TEXAN Restaurant Program.

§17.61. GO TEXAN Wildlife Program.
(a) Statement of Purpose.

(1) Pursuantto §12.0175 and §12.027 of the Texas Agricul-
ture Code, the department establishes the GO TEXAN Wildlife Pro-
gram to promote businesses and organizations that are based around
Texas' diverse and extensive wildlife resources.

(2) Nothing in this subchapter shall affect any statute or
rule pertaining to the administration, conservation, governance, or reg-
ulation of this state's wildlife or wildlife resources, or have any effect
on the construction or interpretation of any other statute or rule.

(b) Eligibility Requirements.

(1) To be eligible for the GO TEXAN Wildlife Program
and use of the GO TEXAN certification mark, an application must be
made the same manner as provided in §17.52 of this title (relating to
Application to Use the GO TEXAN Certification Mark). Applicant
must be a business or organization conducting business in Texas that is
based around Texas' diverse and extensive wildlife resources.

(2) Anceligible applicant may qualify for certification under
the program as:

be billed registration fees for all participating locations yearly. [¥f an
the applicant must submit a GO TEXAN Restaurant Program Mem-
on the membership tier selected by the applicant for the first or initial
restaurant location; as identified in the application. Should the apph-
cant choose to enroll additional locations under the same name; the
applicant shall pay an additional $10.00 annual fee for cach additional
restaurant location that operates under the same name and that is en-
rolled in the program. GO TEXAN Restaurant Program Members will
be billed the annual registration membership fees on an annual basis:]

(A) Tier 1 applicants. If an applicant operates multiple
restaurant locations under the same name, the applicant must submit
a GO TEXAN Restaurant Program Member application and pay the
annual GO TEXAN membership fee as set forth in §17.55 of this title
for the first or initial restaurant location, as identified in the application.
Should the applicant choose to enroll additional locations under the
same name, the applicant shall pay an additional $10.00 annual fee for

(A) A product - To obtain certification under the pro-
gram as a product, an eligible entity must produce a product. The ap-

plicant must be:
(i) abreeder of wildlife;

(i) engaged in the field of wildlife genetics;

(iii) _a producer, supplier, retailer or wholesaler of
wildlife or their byproducts;

(iv) a producer, supplier, retailer or wholesaler of
fish or their byproducts;

(v) a manufacturer or producer of a commodity,
good, or merchandise utilized for hunting, fishing, or wildlife recre-
ation that has been manufactured in, produced in, or value added in
Texas; or

(vi) a manufacturer or producer of any type of com-
modities, goods, or merchandise consisting of, related to, or utilized in

each additional restaurant location that operates under the same name

connection with wildlife, including, without limitation, eggs, embryos,

and that is enrolled in the program.

genes, or semen.
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(B) A service business or organization - To obtain certi-
fication under the program as a service, an eligible entity must provide

(e) Additional benefits. In addition to the benefits listed in
§17.55 of this title (relating to Registration and Use of the GO TEXAN

a service in Texas that is based around Texas wildlife. The applicant

Certification Mark), TDA shall provide Farm and Ranch registrants

must possess all applicable licenses and permits, and be:

(i) a landowner that provides leases for hunting or

fishing;
(i) afishing, hunting, or wildlife guide;

(iii)  a hunting ranch, destination or facility;

(iv) _afishing camp, destination or facility;

(v) awildlife or animal farm, destination or facility;

(vi) a farm or ranch that provides wildlife recre-
ational opportunities to the general public;

(vii) _a fishery;

(viii) a wildlife park, destination or facility; or

(ix) _a service provider in the area of wildlife genet-

ics; or

(x) ataxidermist or wildlife processing facility.

(C) A promoter - To obtain certification under the pro-
gram as a promoter, the applicant must promote a wildlife product or
service at one or more locations in Texas, including, without limitation,
as a tradeshow or wholesaler.

(c) Use of GO TEXAN certification. An applicant approved
for certification under the program shall be authorized to use the GO
TEXAN certification as authorized by the department as a certification
that the business meets the characteristics, requirements and standards
set forth in this subchapter and that its business is based upon Texas
wildlife. Except as otherwise provided in this section, §§17.53, 17.55,
and 17.56 of this title (relating to requirements for membership in the
general GO TEXAN program) shall apply to entities certified under
this section.

§17.62. GO TEXAN Farm and Ranch Program.

(a) Statement of Purpose. The GO TEXAN Farm and Ranch
Program is established to provide a marketing program that authorizes
farms and ranches interested in assisting the department with the pro-
motion of the GO TEXAN program use of the GO TEXAN certification
mark.

(b) Application process.

(1) Application to use the GO TEXAN certification mark
in accordance with this section, shall be made in the same manner as
provided in §17.52 of this title (relating to Application for Registration
to Use the GO TEXAN Certification Mark).

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this section, §§17.53,
17.55, and 17.56 of this title (relating to requirements for membership
in the general GO TEXAN program), shall apply to entities certified
under this section.

(c) Eligibility Requirements. All commercial farms and
ranches located and operating in Texas may apply for registration with
the GO TEXAN Farm and Ranch Program.

(d) Limitations. Registrants granted GO TEXAN Farm and
Ranch membership, shall only use the mark for the limited purpose
stated in the certificate of registration. A registrant's use of the mark is
limited to promotion of the entity's specific commodity, and the general
GO TEXAN program. Use of the mark by GO TEXAN Farm and
Ranch members is subject to department regulation.

a GO TEXAN Farm and Ranch Program gate sign to designate their
participation in the program. In the event that the registration is not
renewed or is terminated, the GO TEXAN Farm and Ranch sign must
be removed immediately.

§17.63. Licensing of the GO TEXAN Certification Mark.

(a) Except as specifically authorized under this chapter, no per-
son may depict, display, or use, in any manner, the GO TEXAN certi-
fication mark without obtaining prior written permission from the de-
partment. A person may seek such permission by filing an application
for use of the GO TEXAN certification mark with the department. All
information submitted with a request for license becomes the property

of the department.

(b) A request for a license under this section must be accom-
panied by a $35 non-refundable application fee.

(c) Upon approval of a request, and payment of a $250 licens-
ing fee, a license will be issued to the applicant. Failure to pay the
licensing fee within 30 days of approval shall result in denial of the
license and cancellation of the approved request.

(d) A licensee under this section shall pay a royalty fee of 3.0
percent of annual gross receipts from the sale of licensed products in
excess of $5,000.

(e) A license under this section is not required for the depic-
tion, display, or use of the GO TEXAN certification mark under the
following circumstances:

(1) use of the GO TEXAN certification mark for an histor-
ical, educational, or other purpose that benefits the public if authorized
in writing by the department prior to such use; or

(2) use authorized by §§17.52(b), 17.55(c)(1), 17.57(c)(2),
17.59(a), 17.60(b)(2), and 17.61(c) of this title (relating to use of the
GO TEXAN certification mark).

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205001

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER C. GO TEXAN AND DESIGN
MARK
4 TAC §17.54

(Editor's note: The text of the following section proposed for repeal
will not be published. The section may be examined in the offices of the
Texas Department of Agriculture or in the Texas Register office, Room
245, James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street, Austin, Texas.)

The repeal of §17.54 is proposed under Texas Agriculture Code,
§12.0175, which provides the department with authority to estab-
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lish programs by rule to promote and market agricultural prod-
ucts and other products grown, processed, or produced in the
state and adopt rules to administer a program established under
§12.0175.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapter 12.

$§17.54.  Denial of Application to Use the GO TEXAN and Design
Mark.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205002

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER D. CERTIFICATION OF
FARMERS MARKET
4 TAC §17.73

The amendments to §17.73 are proposed pursuant to the Texas
Agriculture Code, §12.0175, which provides the department with
authority to establish programs by rule to promote and market
agricultural products and other products grown, processed, or
produced in the state and adopt rules to administer a program
established under §12.0175.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapter 12.

§17.73.  Eligibility Requirements.

A farmers market is eligible for certification if:
(1)-(2) (No change.)

(3) ataminimum, 75 percent [the farmers market assoeia-
tion bylaws require that a eertain pereentage] of all agricultural prod-
ucts sold through the farmers market are grown in Texas;

(4) [the farmers market association bylaws require that a
eertain number;| at least two or more, of its members are farmers selling
their own produce; and

(5) [the farmers market asseciation bylaws require that] all
agricultural products sold at the market are [shall be] of merchantable
quality.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205003

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER J. GO TEXAN WILDLIFE
PROGRAM
4 TAC §§17.600 - 17.610

(Editor's note: The text of the following sections proposed for repeal
will not be published. The sections may be examined in the offices of the
Texas Department of Agriculture or in the Texas Register office, Room
245, James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street, Austin, Texas.)

The repeal of §§17.600 - 17.610 is proposed pursuant to the
Texas Agriculture Code, §12.0175, which provides the depart-
ment with authority to establish programs by rule to promote
and market agricultural products and other products grown, pro-
cessed, or produced in the state, and charge a membership fee,
as provided by department rule, for each participant in a pro-
gram, and adopt rules to administer a program established un-
der §12.0175.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapter 12.

§17.600.  Authority.

$§17.601. Purpose.

§17.602.  Definitions.

$17.603.  Qualification for the Program.

$17.604. Application.

§17.605. Standards for Certification under the Product Category.
$17.606. Standards for Certification under the Service Category.
§17.607. Standards for Certification under the Promoter Category.
$17.608.  Effect of Application.

§17.609. Selection.

§17.610. Go Texas Certification Mark.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205004

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER J. GO TEXAN CERTIFIED
RETIREMENT COMMUNITY PROGRAM
4 TAC §§17.600 - 17.604
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The new §§17.600 - 17.604 are proposed pursuant to the Texas
Agriculture Code, §12.040, which provides for the department to
establish and maintain a Texas Certified Retirement Community
Program and adopt rules to implement the program.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code
Chapter 12.

§17.600. Definitions.
The following words and terms, when used in this subchapter, shall
have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates oth-

granted. The sponsor should be a recognizable entity within the com-
munity, have a physical location with regular office hours, and should
have the capacity and resources to manage the community's retirement
recruitment efforts.

(B) After approval, a Go Texan Certified Retirement
Community may change the sponsor by notifying the department in

writing.

(3) Program guidelines and applications are available on
the agency website www.retireintexas.org, or from Texas Department

erwise.

(1) Applicant--A unit of general local government seeking
membership certification in the Go Texan Certified Retirement Com-
munity Program.

(2) Application--Written request for certification under the
Go Texan Certified Retirement Community Program in the format pre-
scribed by the department.

(3) Commissioner--The commissioner of agriculture of the
State of Texas or the commissioner's designee.

(4) Department--The Texas Department of Agriculture.

(5) Guidelines--Guidelines promulgated by the department
for completing the application for the Program and administration of
the program.

(6) Local government--An entity defined as a unit of gen-
eral local government in 42 United States Code, §5302(a)(1).

(7) Program--The Go Texan Certified Retirement Commu-
nity Program.

(8) Sponsor--A board, organization or panel designated in
the application by the applicant to serve as the community's primary
contact regarding all aspects of the Program.

(9) Staff--Staff of the department.

$17.601. Statement of Purpose.
The Go Texan Certified Retirement Community Program is established
to:

(1) promote Texas as a retirement destination to retirees
and potential retirees both in and outside Texas;

(2) assist Texas communities in their efforts to market
themselves as desirable retirement locations and to develop communi-
ties that retirees would find attractive for a retirement lifestyle;

(3) assist in the development of retirement communities
and long term living communities for economic development purposes
and as a means of providing a potential workforce and enriching Texas
communities; and

(4) increase tourism to Texas by promoting the state as a
desirable retirement location to visitors and those seeking retirement

options in Texas.

§17.602. Application; Review; Fees.
(a) General information.

(1) An applicant community must be a unit of general local
government.

(2) Sponsor required.

(A) The applicant must designate a sponsor that will
be responsible for working with the department during the application
process and will serve as the primary contact for disseminating infor-
mation to potential retirees through the Program if the certification is

of Agriculture, Marketing and International Trade, P.O. Box 12847,
Austin, Texas 78711.

(4) Each applicant must submit a completed application to:
Texas Department of Agriculture, Marketing and International Trade,
P.O. Box 12076, Austin, Texas 78711.

(5) No changes to the application will be allowed after the
application is submitted, unless they are a result of Staff recommenda-
tions.

(b) Applications must be submitted within the time prescribed
by the department and include:

(1) a completed score sheet as provided in the Program
Guidelines;

(2) a completed retiree desirability assessment to include
the following information regarding the applicant community:

(A) information on the applicant's demographics, geog-
raphy and climate;
(B) Texas state and local tax structure;

(C) local housing availability, opportunities and cost;

(D) climate;

(E) personal safety or security;

(F) employment opportunities;

(G) availability of health care services and other ser-
vices along the continuum of care, including home-based and commu-
nity-based services, housing for the elderly, assisted living, personal
care, and nursing care facilities;

(H) availability of emergency medical services and the
name and location of any hospital within a 75-mile radius of the com-

munity;

(I) public transportation and major highways;

(J) continuing education;

(K) leisure living;

(L) recreation areas and facilities;

(M) the performing arts;

(N) festivals and events;

(O) sports at all levels;

(P) crime statistics;

(Q) any other information requested by the department.

(3) evidence of support from area businesses, churches,
clubs, media, and other entities, as necessary for the success of the
program in the community;

(4) amarketing plan detailing the Program's mission as ap-
plied to the community, the target market, the competition, an analysis
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of the community's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and dangers,

§17.604. Certification and Use of "Texas Certified Retirement Com-

and the strategies the community will employ to attain the goals of the

munity" or other Department Marks, Expiration and Renewal of Cer-

Program;

(5) along-term plan outlining the steps the community will
undertake to maintain its desirability as a destination for retirees, in-
cluding an outline of plans to correct any facility and service deficien-
cies identified in the retiree desirability assessment; and

(6) any other information required by the Program Guide-

lines.

(¢) Review and approval.

(1) Staff will score the applications and review the appli-
cations for eligibility and completeness.

(2) Applicant will be notified of any deficiencies and given
20 days to rectify deficiencies. Staff may work with the applicant to
improve or modify the application, with the intent of helping the ap-
plicant achieve certification. An application containing an excessive
number of deficiencies, or deficiencies of a material nature may not be
considered for certification.

(3) After the scoring and application process is complete,
Staff will make a recommendation for approval or denial of the request
for certification to the commissioner. The commissioner will make the
final decision regarding certification.

(4) The department will notify the applicant of approval or
denial of the application within 75 days of the date of receipt of the
completed application.

(d) Upon notice of approval of the application, an application
fee must be promptly submitted in an amount equal to the greater of:

(1) $5,000; or

(2) $0.25 multiplied by the population of the community,
as determined by the most recent census.

$17.603.  Providing Assistance to Certified Communities.

(a) The department shall provide the following assistance to
certified communities:

(1) assistance in the training of local staff and volunteers;

(2) ongoing oversight and guidance in marketing, plus up-
dates on retirement trends;

(3) provide information on eligibility for inclusion in the
state's media efforts, public relations campaigns and promotions, in-
cluding being on the department's internet website;

(4) provide information on eligibility for state financial as-
sistance for brochures, support material, and advertising; and

(5) an evaluation and program assessment on maintaining
and improving the community's desirability as a home for retirees.

(b) Upon the department's approval of an application for cer-
tification, a staff member will schedule a visit to the applicant com-
munity to discuss the Program with the sponsor and other interested
parties, including a discussion of what specific assistance will be pro-
vided to the certified community by the department.

(c) Staff will consult with the community annually and evalu-
ate the effectiveness of the Program.

(d) The department may revoke approval to use the certifica-
tion mark GO TEXAN if a community or a sponsor fails to comply
with the Program guidelines.

tificate.

(a) Certification. Certification under this program shall allow
the approved community to use the words "Texas Certified Retirement
Community" as well as any marks created by the department for use in
the program, to promote the community to retirees, potential retirees
and to any other interested parties.

(b) Expiration and renewal of Certification.

(1) A community's certification expires on the fifth an-
niversary of the date the initial certification is issued.

(2) To be considered for recertification by the department,
an applicant community must:

(A) complete and submit a new application (including
appropriate fees); and

(B) submit data demonstrating the success or failure of
the community's efforts to market and promote itself as a desirable lo-
cation for retirees and potential retirees.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205005

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ L4 ¢
CHAPTER 29. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The Texas Department of Agriculture (the department) proposes
an amendment to Chapter 29, Subchapter A, §29.3, the repeal
of Subchapter B, §§29.20 - 29.33, concerning the GO TEXAN
Rural Community Program, and the repeal of Subchapter C,
§§29.50 - 29.56, concerning the GO TEXAN Certified Retire-
ment Community Program. Section 29.3 is amended to elimi-
nate reference to the Texas Department of Economic Develop-
ment, which no longer exists, and to update the section. Chapter
29, Subchapter B is proposed for repeal to allow for the program
and benefits to be incorporated into the GO TEXAN Associate
Registrant section located in Chapter 17 of this title, at Subchap-
ter C, §17.57. Chapter 29, Subchapter C is repealed to allow for
that subchapter to be added to Chapter 17 of this title as Chapter
17, Subchapter J.

Bryan Daniel, Chief Administrator for Trade and Business De-
velopment, has determined that, for the first five-year period the
proposed amendment and repeals are in effect, there will be no
fiscal implications for state government as a result of the ad-
ministration or enforcement of the proposed amendment and re-
peals. There will be no fiscal implications for local government.

Mr. Daniel has also determined that for each year of the first
five years the proposed amendment and repeals are in effect,
the public benefit anticipated as a result of administration and
enforcement of the amendment will be the updating of outdated
references, and of the repeals will be the elimination of dupli-

PROPOSED RULES October 5, 2012 37 TexReg 7837



cate rules and clarification and ease of locating information by
locating them within the department's Marketing and Promotion
rules. There will be no adverse fiscal impact on individuals, small
or micro businesses as a result of the proposed amendment and
repeals.

Written comments on the proposal may be submitted to Bryan
Daniel, Chief Administrator for Trade and Business Develop-
ment, Texas Department of Agriculture, P.O. Box 12847, Austin,
Texas 78711. Written comments must be received no later than
30 days from the date of publication of the proposal in the Texas
Register.

SUBCHAPTER A. ECONOMIC DEVELOP-
MENT PROGRAM
4 TAC §29.3

The proposed amendment of §29.3 is proposed pursuant to the
Texas Agriculture Code, §12.027, which provides the depart-
ment with the authority to develop and maintain economic de-
velopment programs for rural areas in the state to promote eco-
nomic growth in rural areas and assist communities in maximiz-
ing potential business opportunities, and to charge member fees
for participation in such programs.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code,
Chapter 12.

$29.3.  Staffing;, Cooperation with other Agencies.
To implement the tasks set forth in §29.2 of this title (relating to Ad-
ministration of the Program), the Department will:

(1) (No change.)

(2) cross-train its staff regarding economic development
programs administered by the department [Texas Department of Eco-
nomie Development];

(3) cooperate with [the Texas Department of Economic De-
velopment (and any] other state, federal, or local agencies engaged in
economic development activities[}] in coordinating meetings with pub-
lic and private entities to disseminate information beneficial to rural ar-
eas; and

(4) (No change.)
This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.
Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205022

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

L4 ¢+ 4
SUBCHAPTER B. GO TEXAN RURAL
COMMUNITY PROGRAM RULES
4 TAC §§29.20 - 29.33

(Editor's note: The text of the following sections proposed for repeal
will not be published. The sections may be examined in the offices of the

Texas Department of Agriculture or in the Texas Register office, Room
245, James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street, Austin, Texas.)

The repeal of Chapter 29, Subchapter B, §§29.20 - 29.33, is
proposed pursuant to the Texas Agriculture Code, §12.027,
which provides the department with the authority to develop and
maintain economic development programs for rural areas in
the state to promote economic growth in rural areas and assist
communities in maximizing potential business opportunities,
and to charge member fees for participation in such programs.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code,
Chapter 12.

$29.20.  Statement of Purpose.

$§29.21.  Definitions.

$29.22.  Administration.

$29.23.  Eligibility for Certified Membership: Application.
$29.24.  Eligibility for Associate Membership,; Application.
$29.25.  Application Submission and Review.

$29.26.  Appeal of Application Determination.

$§29.27.  Denial of Application.

§29.28.  Registration of Those Entitled to Use the Mark.
$§29.29.  Use of the Mark.

$29.30.  Termination of Registration and License to Use the Mark.
$29.31.  Benefits of Membership.

$29.32.  Expiration and Renewal of Certified Membership.
$§29.33.  Use of the "Texas Yes!" Mark.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205023

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER C. GO TEXAN CERTIFIED
RETIREMENT COMMUNITY PROGRAM
4 TAC §§29.50 - 29.56

(Editor's note: The text of the following sections proposed for repeal
will not be published. The sections may be examined in the offices of the
Texas Department of Agriculture or in the Texas Register office, Room
245, James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street, Austin, Texas.)

The repeal of Chapter 29, Subchapter C, §§29.50 - 29.56 is pro-
posed pursuant to the Texas Agriculture Code, §12.040, which
provides for the department to establish and maintain a Texas
Certified Retirement Community Program and adopt rules to im-
plement the program.

The code affected by the proposal is the Texas Agriculture Code,
Chapter 12.

§29.50.  Definitions.

§29.51.  Overview of Program.

$29.52.  Contents of Application; Fees.

$29.53.  Application/Selection Process.

§29.54.  Providing Assistance to Certified Communities.
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$29.55.  Use of "Texas Certified Retirement Community" or other De-
partment Marks.

$29.56. Expiration and Renewal of Certification.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205024

Dolores Alvarado Hibbs

General Counsel

Texas Department of Agriculture

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-4075

L4 L4 L4
TITLE 19. EDUCATION

PART 2. TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY

CHAPTER 129. STUDENT ATTENDANCE
SUBCHAPTER AA. COMMISSIONER'S
RULES

19 TAC §129.1023

(Editor's note: The text of the following section proposed for repeal
will not be published. The section may be examined in the offices of
the Texas Education Agency or in the Texas Register office, Room 245,
James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street, Austin, Texas.)

The Texas Education Agency (TEA) proposes the repeal of
§129.1023, concerning student attendance. The section ad-
dresses provisions related to student attendance accounting
standards. The proposed repeal would remove from the Texas
Administrative Code (TAC) redundant provisions that duplicate
those already included in the handbook adopted by reference
in 19 TAC §129.1025, Adoption by Reference: Student Atten-
dance Accounting Handbook.

Section 129.1023 was adopted effective May 10, 2001, and
amended effective October 23, 2008. The section requires
school districts and charter schools to use the student atten-
dance accounting standards established by the commissioner
of education and describes the procedures to be included in
the annual TEA publication on student attendance accounting
standards. The section also specifies that Foundation School
Program allotments may be revised as a result of investigative
activities by the TEA division responsible for school financial
audits.

During the recent statutorily required review of 19 TAC Chap-
ter 129, Subchapter AA, TEA staff determined that the rule is no
longer needed as its provisions duplicate those in the student at-
tendance accounting handbook adopted by reference in 19 TAC
§129.1025. In addition, stakeholders who participated in the
commissioner-initiated rule review process that took place dur-
ing 2010 and 2011 also recommended that 19 TAC §129.1023
be repealed.

The proposed repeal would have no procedural or reporting im-
plications. The proposed repeal would have no locally main-
tained paperwork requirements.

Shirley Beaulieu, associate commissioner for finance/chief fi-
nancial officer, has determined that for the first five-year period
the repeal is in effect there will be no additional costs for state
or local government as a result of enforcing or administering the
repeal.

Ms. Beaulieu has determined that for each year of the first five
years the repeal is in effect the public benefit anticipated as a
result of enforcing the repeal will be the removal of redundant
provisions from the TAC. There is no anticipated economic cost
to persons who are required to comply with the proposed repeal.

There is no direct adverse economic impact for small businesses
and microbusinesses; therefore, no regulatory flexibility anal-
ysis, specified in Texas Government Code, §2006.002, is re-
quired.

The public comment period on the proposal begins October
5, 2012, and ends November 5, 2012. Comments on the
proposal may be submitted to Cristina De La Fuente-Valadez,
Rulemaking, Texas Education Agency, 1701 North Congress
Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701, (512) 475-1497. Comments
may also be submitted electronically to rules@tea.state.tx.us
or faxed to (512) 463-5337. A request for a public hearing on
the proposal submitted under the Administrative Procedure Act
must be received by the commissioner of education not more
than 14 calendar days after notice of the proposal has been
published in the Texas Register on October 5, 2012.

The repeal is proposed under the Texas Education Code (TEC),
§42.004, which authorizes the commissioner, in accordance with
rules of the State Board of Education, to take such action and
require such reports consistent with TEC, Chapter 42, as may be
necessary to implement and administer the Foundation School
Program.

The repeal implements the TEC, §42.004.

§129.1023.  Student Attendance Accounting Standards.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 20,
2012.

TRD-201204967

Cristina De La Fuente-Valadez

Director, Rulemaking

Texas Education Agency

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-1497

¢ ¢ ¢

19 TAC §129.1025

The Texas Education Agency (TEA) proposes an amendment to
§129.1025, concerning student attendance. The section adopts
by reference the annual student attendance accounting hand-
book. The handbook provides student attendance accounting
rules for school districts and charter schools. The proposed
amendment would adopt by reference the 20712-2013 Student
Attendance Accounting Handbook.

Legal counsel with the TEA has recommended that the proce-
dures contained in each annual student attendance accounting
handbook be adopted as part of the Texas Administrative Code
(TAC). This decision was made in 2000 as a result of a court de-
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cision challenging state agency decision making via administra-
tive letters and publications. Given the statewide application of
the attendance accounting rules and the existence of sufficient
statutory authority for the commissioner of education to adopt
by reference the student attendance accounting handbook, staff
proceeded with formal adoption of rules in this area. The inten-
tion is to annually update the rule to refer to the most recently
published student attendance accounting handbook. Data from
previous school years will continue to be subject to the student
attendance accounting handbook as the handbook existed in
those years.

Each annual student attendance accounting handbook provides
school districts and charter schools with the Foundation School
Program (FSP) eligibility requirements of all students, prescribes
the minimum requirements of all student attendance accounting
systems, lists the documentation requirements for attendance
audit purposes, specifies the minimum standards for systems
that are entirely functional without the use of paper, and details
the responsibilities of all district personnel involved in student at-
tendance accounting. The TEA distributes FSP resources under
the procedures specified in each current student attendance ac-
counting handbook. The final version of the student attendance
accounting handbook is published on the TEA website each July
or August. A supplement, if necessary, is also published on the
TEA website.

The proposed amendment to 19 TAC §129.1025 would add new
subsection (a) to specify that the student attendance accounting
guidelines and procedures established by the commissioner of
education under 19 TAC §129.21, Requirements for Student At-
tendance Accounting for State Funding Purposes, and the Texas
Education Code (TEC), §42.004, will be published annually. The
proposed amendment would also adopt by reference the student
attendance accounting handbook for the 2012-2013 school year.

Significant changes to the 2012-2013 Student Attendance Ac-
counting Handbook from the 2011-2012 Student Attendance Ac-
counting Handbook Version 2 include the following.

Section 1

Text describing the handbook and its purpose would be moved
from the middle of Section 1 to the introduction to Section 1.

Requirements related to original documentation of attendance
would be clarified.

Information on how to navigate within the electronic version of
the handbook would be added.

Section 2

Throughout Section 2, the term "electronic attendance account-
ing system" would be changed to "automated attendance ac-
counting system."

The statement that failure to provide attendance records during
an audit could result in the agency's retaining 100 percent of a
district's FSP allotment for the undocumented attendance would
be changed to state that this failure will result in the agency's
retaining 100 percent of the allotment. Also, a clarification of the
term "undocumented attendance" would be added.

Requirements related to period absence reports would be clari-
fied.

Section 3

The example for average daily attendance (ADA) eligibility code
0 that references parentally placed private school students aged

5 through 25 years would be corrected to reference parentally
placed private school students aged 5 through 21 years.

A subsection on the funding eligibility of time spent in an on-cam-
pus online course that is not provided through the Texas Virtual
School Network (TxVSN) would be added.

Information on the enrollment eligibility of students who have re-
ceived a General Educational Development (GED) certificate or
have been court-ordered to obtain one would be added.

A brief statement about the offense of parent contributing to
nonattendance would be added.

General attendance-taking rules would be clarified.

Information on "excused" absences for participation in certain
short-term classes provided by the Texas School for the Blind
and Visually Impaired or Texas School for the Deaf would be
added. The statement that a student may be considered in atten-
dance for funding purposes if the student is a Medicaid-eligible
child participating in the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagno-
sis, and Treatment programs implemented by the Texas Health
and Human Services Commission would be deleted because it
impermissibly requires the solicitation of confidential information.
Information on "excused" absences for participation in natural-
ization oath ceremonies would be clarified. Information about
adopting a policy regarding parental consent for student depar-
tures from school would be clarified.

A statement that an exemption from taking a final exam is not
an exemption from the "2-through-4-hour" requirement would be
added.

Because the term "other health impairment" does not apply to
regular education students or to the General Education Home-
bound (GEH) program, the definition of this term would be re-
moved from the GEH program subsection.

A clarification that time spent on campus taking required state
assessments cannot count as any part of the number of hours
of GEH service for eligible days present would be added.

Information on state funding of summer school would be revised
to clarify that, as with any other student, a student participating
in the Optional Flexible School Day Program is not eligible to
generate more than 180 days' worth of attendance per year. A
statement would be added explaining that, for 2012-2013, the
only funded program allowing for state funding of instructional
days beyond the 180 days making up the state funding year is a
program for providing extended school year services to eligible
students.

Section 4

The section on special education would be heavily revised and
reorganized. Hyperlinked cross-references and links to applica-
ble TEA web pages would be added throughout the section.

Information and coding charts that appear in the subsection on
special education eligibility but are not specifically related to spe-
cial education eligibility would be moved to more appropriate
subsections. Eligibility information would be expanded and re-
vised.

Special education enrollment procedures would be clarified.

Special education withdrawal procedures would be revised to
address required notification and revocation of parental consent
for receipt of special education services.
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Information on services for private or home school students who
are eligible for and in need of special education would be clarified
and moved out of the subsection on general special education
enrollment procedures and into two separate subsections.

The subsection on instructional arrangement/setting codes
would be reorganized so that coding information appeared in
the numerical order of the codes.

Information on instructional arrangement/setting code 00 would
be clarified and revised.

The eligibility criteria for the homebound instructional ar-
rangement/setting would be clarified. Also, the subsection on
homebound service eligibility criteria for students with chronic
illnesses and/or acute health problems would be deleted, as
the eligibility criteria for these students are the same as those
for any other student who has been determined to be eligible
for special education and related services. Information specific
to homebound services and students younger than six years of
age would be added. Documentation requirements for special
education homebound services would be clarified and revised.
A clarification that time spent on campus taking required state
assessments cannot count as any part of the number of hours
of homebound service for eligible days present would be added.

Information on the mainstream instructional arrangement/setting
would be reorganized and revised. The paragraph related to
community-based preschools would be moved to the subsection
on off home campus instructional arrangements/settings.

Information on the resource room/services instructional arrange-
ments/settings would be clarified.

Information on the self-contained, mild/moderate/severe, regular
campus instructional arrangements/settings would be clarified.

A clarification regarding foster homes would be added to the sub-
section on the residential care and treatment facility instructional
arrangements/settings.

Information on reporting of students in the off home campus in-
structional arrangements/settings would be added.

Information on speech therapy indicator codes would be clarified
and revised.

A new major subsection on preschool programs for children with
disabilities would be added. The coding charts that appear in
the subsection on special education eligibility in general and that
would be moved to this new subsection would be revised.

Information on special education services for infants and tod-
dlers would appear in its own major subsection.

Information on special education shared services arrangements
would appear in its own major subsection. The subsection would
include information on regional day school program for the deaf
shared services arrangements.

The coding chart titled "Services for Students With Disabilities-
Exceptions to the Norm" would appear in its own major subsec-
tion. Erroneous instructional arrangement/setting coding infor-
mation for students served in Head Start programs would be cor-
rected in the chart.

Information on extended school year services would be clarified
and would appear in its own major subsection.

Information on eligible days present and contact hours would be
clarified.

Special education documentation requirements would be clari-
fied.

The subsection providing special education instructional ar-
rangement/setting coding examples would be reorganized so
that coding information appeared in the numerical order of
the codes. Examples that appear in the wrong instructional
arrangement/setting code subsection would be moved. Speech
therapy indicator code examples would be clarified.

Section 5

In the subsection on career and technical education (CTE) con-
tact-hour funding eligibility, requirements related to teacher cer-
tification would be clarified. Also, requirements related to the
teacher of record would be revised.

Information on auditing of CTE courses and Public Education
Information Management System (PEIMS) coding would be
added.

Information on how to determine CTE "V" codes would be clari-
fied.

Information on required documentation for CTE Problems and
Solutions courses would be revised.

General CTE documentation requirements would be revised.

Information on the PEIMS 415 record and students who drop a
CTE course would be clarified.

Section 6

A statement that the terms "limited English proficient student,"
"English language learner," and "student of limited English pro-
ficiency" are interchangeable would be added to the section's
introduction. The subsections making up this section would be
reordered to place information on withdrawal and evaluation of
exited students after information on program eligibility, eligible
days present, and service requirements.

A subsection explaining that districts are required to implement
the English language proficiency standards would be added.

The chart containing exit criteria for the bilingual and English as a
second language (ESL) education programs would be updated.

A statement that all staff serving limited English proficient
students must receive training in sheltered instruction would be
added.

In the subsection on student record documentation, the word
"permanent” would be removed from references to a student's
record, as it implies that documentation must be kept indefinitely
instead of for five years from cessation of services. Documenta-
tion requirements related to assessment participation would be
updated. Information about forwarding of records would be up-
dated.

Section 7

Information on prekindergarten eligibility based on automatic
eligibility for the National School Lunch Program would be re-
vised, as would information on prekindergarten eligibility based
on homelessness.

Section 10

References to the Texas Youth Commission (TYC) or Texas Ju-
venile Probation Commission (TJPC) would be changed to be
references to the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).
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The subsection on compensatory and accelerated instruction for
at-risk students would be removed, as the information in the sub-
section is unrelated to attendance accounting.

The subsection on Alternative Education Campuses of Choice
and residential facilities evaluated under alternative education
accountability (AEA) procedures would be removed, as the infor-
mation in the subsection is unrelated to attendance accounting.

Information on residential alternative education programs for stu-
dents in residential facilities would be clarified. Also, a statement
about statutorily required notifications that residential facilities
must make would be added.

Information specific to on-campus and off-campus disciplinary
alternative education programs (DAEPs) would be removed, as
it is not directly related to attendance accounting.

Information on evaluation of DAEPs and juvenile justice alter-
native education programs (JJAEPs) would be moved from the
deleted subsection related to entities that are evaluated under
AEA procedures, which do not apply to DAEPs and JJAEPSs, to
the subsection related to DAEPs and the subsection related to
JJAEPs.

Information on expulsions would be revised to better reflect
statute and to reflect statutory changes that are effective with
the 2012-2013 school year.

Information on memorandums of understanding for JJAEPs
would be revised to reflect statutory changes that are effective
with the 2012-2013 school year.

The chart related to ADA eligibility coding for JUAEP students
would be updated to include coding information for JUAEP place-
ments under the TEC, §37.309(b).

Section 11

A subsection related to dual credit course eligibility requirements
specific to students enrolled in Early College High Schools would
be added.

A subsection on dual credit documentation requirements would
be added.

TxVSN student eligibility requirements would be clarified, as
would information on TxVSN funding and attendance account-
ing.

A subsection containing guidance related to remote instruction
that is not delivered through the TxVSN would be added.

Section 13

Glossary definitions of obsolete terms would be deleted. The
definition of "direct, regularly scheduled" would be revised. The
entry for "early childhood intervention" would be changed to be
an entry for "early childhood intervention services," and informa-
tion in the entry would be revised. The entry for "nonpublic day
school" would be changed to be an entry for "nonpublic school"
that included information on both nonpublic day schools and res-
idential nonpublic schools.

The proposed amendment would place the specific procedures
contained in the 20712-2013 Student Attendance Accounting
Handbook in the TAC. The TEA distributes FSP funds according
to the procedures specified in each annual student attendance
accounting handbook. Data reporting requirements are ad-
dressed through the PEIMS.

The handbook has long stated that school districts and open-en-
roliment charter schools must keep all student attendance docu-
mentation for five years from the end of the school year. Any new
student attendance documentation required to be kept would
correspond with the student attendance accounting requirement
changes described previously.

Shirley Beaulieu, associate commissioner for finance/chief fi-
nancial officer, has determined that for the first five-year period
the amendment is in effect there will be no additional costs for
state or local government as a result of enforcing or administer-
ing the amendment.

Ms. Beaulieu has determined that for each year of the first five
years the amendment is in effect the public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing the amendment will be to continue to inform
the public of the existence of annual publications specifying at-
tendance accounting procedures for school districts and charter
schools. There is no anticipated economic cost to persons who
are required to comply with the proposed amendment.

There is no direct adverse economic impact for small businesses
and microbusinesses; therefore, no regulatory flexibility anal-
ysis, specified in Texas Government Code, §2006.002, is re-
quired.

The public comment period on the proposal begins October
5, 2012, and ends November 5, 2012. Comments on the
proposal may be submitted to Cristina De La Fuente-Valadez,
Rulemaking, Texas Education Agency, 1701 North Congress
Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701, (512) 475-1497. Comments
may also be submitted electronically to rules@tea.state.tx.us
or faxed to (512) 463-5337. A request for a public hearing on
the proposal submitted under the Administrative Procedure Act
must be received by the commissioner of education not more
than 14 calendar days after notice of the proposal has been
published in the Texas Register on October 5, 2012.

The amendment is proposed under the TEC, §30A.153, which
requires the commissioner to adopt rules for the implementa-
tion of Foundation School Program funding for the state virtual
school network, including rules regarding attendance account-
ing; and the TEC, §42.004, 74th Texas Legislature, 1995, which
authorizes the commissioner of education, in accordance with
rules of the State Board of Education, to take such action and
require such reports consistent with TEC, Chapter 42, as may be
necessary to implement and administer the Foundation School
Program.

The amendment implements the TEC, §30A.153 and §42.004.

$§129.1025. Adoption by Reference: Student Attendance Accounting
Handbook.

(a) The student attendance accounting guidelines and proce-
dures established by the commissioner of education under §129.21 of
this title (relating to Requirements for Student Attendance Accounting
for State Funding Purposes) and the Texas Education Code, §42.004, to
be used by school districts and charter schools to maintain records and
make reports on student attendance and student participation in special
programs will be published annually.

(b) [€@)] The standard procedures that school districts and
charter schools must use to maintain records and make reports on
student attendance and student participation in special programs for
school year 2012-2013 [2041-2012] are described in the official Texas
Education Agency (TEA) publication 2012-2013 [2011-2042] Student

Attendance Accounting Handbook [¥ersion 2], which is adopted by
this reference as the agency's official rule. A copy of the 201/2-2013
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[2044-2012] Student Attendance Accounting Handbook [Version 2]
is available for examination during regular office hours, 8:00 a.m.
to 5:00 p.m., except holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays, at the Texas
Education Agency, 1701 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas
78701. In addition, the publication can be accessed from the TEA
official website. The commissioner [ef edueation] will amend the
2012-2013 [2044-2042] Student Attendance Accounting Handbook

[Fersion 2] and this subsection adopting it by reference, as needed.

(c) [#b)] Data from previous school years will continue to be
subject to the student attendance accounting handbook as the handbook
existed in those years.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 20,

2012.

TRD-201204968

Cristina De La Fuente-Valadez

Director, Rulemaking

Texas Education Agency

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-1497

¢ ¢ ¢
TITLE 22. EXAMINING BOARDS

PART 5. STATE BOARD OF DENTAL
EXAMINERS

CHAPTER 107. DENTAL BOARD
PROCEDURES

SUBCHAPTER A. PROCEDURES
GOVERNING GRIEVANCES, HEARINGS,
AND APPEALS

22 TAC §107.2

The Texas State Board of Dental Examiners (SBDE) proposes
new §107.2, concerning Effect of Child Support Payment Default
on Licensure Application and Renewal.

The section is proposed to address the stipulations of Texas
Family Code, §232.0135 relating to denial of license renewal of
a child support obligor who has failed to pay child support for
six months or more. The proposed section states that the Board
shall refuse to grant initial licensure or renewal of an existing li-
cense upon notice from a child support agency that an obligor
has failed to pay child support for six months or more. The pro-
posed section addresses the conditions that must be met before
an obligor who has failed to pay child support for six months or
more may be granted an initial license or renewal of an existing
license.

Mr. Glenn Parker, Executive Director, has determined that for
each year of the first five-year period the section is in effect,
there will be no fiscal implications for local or state government
as a result of enforcing or administering the section. Mr. Parker
has also determined that for each year of the first five years the
section is in effect the public benefit anticipated as a result of
enforcing the section will be protection of the public health and

safety. There will not be an effect on small businesses. There
is no anticipated economic cost to persons who are required to
comply with the proposed section.

Comments on the proposal may be submitted in writing to
Nycia Deal, Staff Attorney, State Board of Dental Examiners,
333 Guadalupe, Tower 3, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701.
Comments may also be submitted electronically to nycia@ts-
bde.texas.gov or faxed to (512) 463-7452. To be considered,
all written comments must be received by the State Board of
Dental Examiners no later than 30 days from the date that this
new section is published in the Texas Register.

The new section is proposed under Texas Government Code
§2001.021 et seq. and Texas Occupations Code §254.001,
which authorize the Board to adopt and enforce rules necessary
for it to perform its duties.

The proposal affects Texas Occupations Code, Title 3, Subtitle
D and Texas Administrative Code, Title 22, Part 5.

$107.2.  Effect of Child Support Payment Default on Licensure Appli-
cation and Renewal.

(a) "License" means a license, certificate, registration, permit,
or other authorization issued by the Board.

(b) Initial applications and applications for renewal of licenses
issued by the board are subject to the course of action established by
the Texas Family Code, §232.0135.

(c¢) Upon notice from a child support agency that an obligor
has failed to pay child support for six months or more, the Board shall
refuse to grant initial licensure or renewal of an existing license to an
obligor until the Board is notified by the child support agency that the
obligor has:

(1) paid all child support arrearages;

(2) established with the child support agency a satisfactory
repayment schedule or is in compliance with a court order for payment
of the arrearages;

(3) been granted an exemption from this subsection as part
of a court-supervised plan to improve the obligor's earnings and child
support payments; or

(4) successfully contested the denial before the child sup-
port agency in accordance with §232.0135(d), Texas Family Code.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205043

Glenn Parker

Executive Director

State Board of Dental Examiners

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-0977

¢ L4 ¢
22 TAC §107.3

The Texas State Board of Dental Examiners (SBDE) proposes
new §107.3, concerning Effect of Student Loan Payment Default
on License Renewal.
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The section is proposed to address the stipulations of Texas Edu-
cation Code, §57.491 relating to Loan Default Ground for Nonre-
newal of Professional and Occupational License. The proposed
section states that the Board shall refuse to grant renewal of an
existing license to a licensee who has defaulted on a student loan
guaranteed by the Texas Guaranteed Student Loan Corporation
(TGSLC), defaulted on a repayment agreement or failed to enter
a repayment agreement. The proposed section addresses the
conditions that must be met before an obligor who has not com-
plied in one of the enumerated ways may be granted renewal of
an existing license.

Mr. Glenn Parker, Executive Director, has determined that for
each year of the first five-year period the section is in effect, there
will be no fiscal implications for local or state government as a
result of enforcing or administering the rule. Mr. Parker has also
determined that for each year of the first five years the section is
in effect the public benefit anticipated as a result of enforcing the
section will be protection of the public health and safety through
enforcement of state law and regulation. There will not be an
effect on small businesses. There is no anticipated economic
cost to persons who are required to comply with the proposed
section.

Comments on the proposal may be submitted in writing to
Nycia Deal, Staff Attorney, State Board of Dental Examiners,
333 Guadalupe, Tower 3, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701.
Comments may also be submitted electronically to nycia@ts-
bde.texas.gov or faxed to (512) 463-7452. To be considered,
all written comments must be received by the State Board of
Dental Examiners no later than 30 days from the date that this
new rule is published in the Texas Register.

The new section is proposed under Texas Government Code
§2001.021 et seq. and Texas Occupations Code §254.001,
which authorize the Board to adopt and enforce rules necessary
for it to perform its duties.

The proposal affects Texas Occupations Code, Title 3, Subtitle
D and Texas Administrative Code, Title 22, Part 5.

§107.3.  Effect of Student Loan Payment Default on Licensure Re-
newal.

(a) "License" means a license, certificate, registration, permit,
or other authorization issued by the Board.

(b) Initial applications and applications for renewal of licenses
issued by the Board are subject to the course of action established by
the Texas Education Code, §57.491.

(c) The Board shall refuse to renew a license due to a default
on a student loan guaranteed by Texas Guaranteed Student Loan Cor-
poration (TGSLC), a default on a repayment agreement with TGSLC
or a failure to enter a repayment agreement with TGSLC, unless the
licensee presents to the Board a certificate issued by the corporation

certifying that:

(1) the licensee has entered a repayment agreement on the
defaulted loan; or

(2) thelicensee is not in default on a loan guaranteed by the
corporation.

(d) The Board shall provide its applicants and licensees with
written notice of the nonrenewal policies established under §57.491 of
the Texas Education Code and an opportunity for a hearing in accor-
dance with the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act, Texas
Government Code, §§2001.001, et seq.

(e) As required by §57.491(c) of the Texas Education Code,
the Board, on an annual basis, shall prepare a list of the agency's li-
censees and submit the list to the corporation in hard copy or electronic
form.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205083

Glenn Parker

Executive Director

State Board of Dental Examiners

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-0977

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 112. VISUAL DENTAL HEALTH
INSPECTIONS
22 TAC §112.1, §112.2

The State Board of Dental Examiners (SBDE) proposes amend-
ments to §112.1, Definitions, and §112.2, Visual Dental Health
Inspection. The provisions of §112.1 and §112.2 address visual
dental health inspections and the parties and purposes by whom
and for which visual dental health inspections may be performed.

The proposed amendment to §112.1 clarifies the parties who
may perform dental health inspections and introduces a limited
oral health evaluation as an additional category of dental assess-
ments. The proposed amendment to §112.2 permits certain den-
tal students and dentist employees of certain public health orga-
nizations to perform visual dental health inspections.

Mr. Glenn Parker, Executive Director, has determined that for
each year of the first five-year period the amended sections are
in effect, there will be no fiscal implications for local or state gov-
ernment as a result of enforcing or administering the sections.
Mr. Parker has also determined that for each year of the first five
years the sections are in effect the public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing the sections will be increased access to pre-
ventive dental care and data relating to dental health in the state.
There will be no foreseen effect on small businesses. There is no
anticipated economic cost to persons who are required to com-
ply with the proposed sections.

Comments on the proposal may be submitted in writing to
Nycia Deal, Staff Attorney, State Board of Dental Examiners,
333 Guadalupe, Tower 3, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701.
Comments may also be submitted electronically to nycia@ts-
bde.texas.gov or faxed to (512) 463-7452. To be considered,
all written comments must be received by the State Board of
Dental Examiners no later than 30 days from the date that these
amended sections are published in the Texas Register.

The amendments are proposed under Texas Government Code
§2001.021 et seq. and Texas Occupations Code §254.001,
which authorize the Board to adopt and enforce rules necessary
for it to perform its duties.

The proposal affects Texas Occupations Code, Title 3, Subtitle
D and Texas Administrative Code, Title 22, Part 5.
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§112.1.  Definitions.

The following words and terms when used in this chapter shall have
the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

(1) Visual Dental Health Inspection--an inspection made
by students engagd in a formal education program in dentistry or dental
hygiene or by health care workers, other than dentists, dental hygien-
ists, dental assistants, physicians and physician assistants.

(2) Limited Oral Evaluation--a non-comprehensive evalu-
ation of an individual who is not a patient of record made by a licensed
dentist for the following limited purposes:

(A) screening for symptoms of oral cancer; and/or

(B) evaluating minors or members of underserved pop-
ulations for current or potential dental problems.

(3) [)] Dental instruments--any device used by dentists
to examine, diagnose or treat patients, or any device used by dental
hygienists to treat patients, that may be used in an invasive manner
under normal circumstances.

(4) [63)] Diagnosis--the translation of data gathered by
clinical and radiographic examination into an organized, classified
definition of the conditions present.

(5) [)]Health care worker--a person who furnishes health
care services in direct patient care situations under a license, certificate,
or registration issued by the state.

(6) [€5)] Invasive manner--a procedure resulting in surgical
entry into tissues, cavities, or organs or the manipulation, cutting or
removal of any oral or perioral tissue, including tooth structure.

$112.2.  Visual Dental Health Inspection.

(a) A visual dental health inspection is performed as a group
activity taking place in a school or other institutional setting for the
purpose of making a gross assessment of the dental health status of
group members, at no cost to the members. It is cursory and does not
involve the use of dental instruments, though use of gloves, tongue de-
pressors and intra oral lighting is encouraged. Further, it does not in-
volve making a diagnosis, providing treatment, or treatment planning.
Individuals performing visual dental health inspectsions in accordance
with this chapter do [A healtheare worker does] not engage in the prac-
tice of dentistry if the inspection process is limited to recognizing when
tissue does not appear normal and encouraging the member to appoint
with a licensed Texas dentist.

(b) A visual dental health inspection may be performed by
a dentist, pre-doctoral student under faculty supervision, or graduate
dental student affiliated with a dental school accredited by the Com-
mission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association
to conduct research or for educational purposes in the field of dentistry,
or by dental personnel employed by the State of Texas Department
of State Health Services (DSHS), Department of Aging and Disabil-
ity (DADS), or by any public health dentist employed by any other
state, county, of city health department for the purposes of oral health

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205041

Glenn Parker

Executive Director

State Board of Dental Examiners

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-0977

¢ ¢ ¢

22 TAC §112.3

The State Board of Dental Examiners (SBDE) proposes new
§112.3, concerning Limited Oral Evaluation. The section is pro-
posed to permit dentists to perform non-diagnostic, non-compre-
hensive evaluations of individuals for the purposes of screening
for oral cancer and/or evaluating minors or underserved popula-
tions.

The proposed new section defines limited oral evaluations, the
situations in which a dentist may perform limited oral evaluations,
the standard of care expected of the dentist and the recordkeep-
ing requirements of limited oral evaluations.

Mr. Glenn Parker, Executive Director, has determined that for
each year of the first five-year period the section is in effect, there
will be no fiscal implications for local or state government as a
result of enforcing or administering the section. Mr. Parker has
also determined that for each year of the first five years the sec-
tion is in effect the public benefit anticipated as a result of enforc-
ing the section will be increased access to preventive oral can-
cer screenings and dental care for underserved populations and
minors. There will be no foreseen effect on small businesses.
There is no anticipated economic cost to persons who are re-
quired to comply with the proposed section.

Comments on the proposal may be submitted in writing to
Nycia Deal, Staff Attorney, State Board of Dental Examiners,
333 Guadalupe, Tower 3, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701.
Comments may also be submitted electronically to nycia@ts-
bde.texas.gov or faxed to (512) 463-7452. To be considered,
all written comments must be received by the State Board of
Dental Examiners no later than 30 days from the date that this
proposed section is published in the Texas Register.

The new section is proposed under Texas Government Code
§2001.021 et seq. and Texas Occupations Code §254.001,
which authorize the Board to adopt and enforce rules necessary
for it to perform its duties.

The proposal affects Texas Occupations Code, Title 3, Subtitle
D and Texas Administrative Code, Title 22, Part 5.

§112.3.  Limited Oral Evaluation.
(a) A limited oral evaluation is performed by a licensed dentist
in conjunction with a federal, state, county, or city government health-

surveillance, oral health program planning, or epidemiological surveys

care program, a non-profit organization, or an educational institution.

required by state or federal agencies. A visual dental health inspection

It is a non-diagnostic, non-comprehensive evaluation of an individual

is performed for the purpose of making a gross assessment of the den-

who is not a patient of record made for the limited purpose of screening

tal health status of group members, at no cost to the members. It does

for symptoms of oral cancer and/or evaluating minors or underserved

not involve making a diagnosis, providing treatment, or treatment plan-

populations for current or potential dental problems.

ning.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

(b) A limited oral evaluation must be provided at no cost to
the patient or any third party. The evaluation must result in a written
assessment of findings that is retained by the dentist and provided to

the patient.
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(c) A limited oral evaluation is exempt from the requirements
of the minimum standard of care for a comprehensive examination in
§108.7 of this title (relating to Minimum Standard of Care, General)
and §108.8 of this title (relating to Records of the Dentist), except as
required by this section. The dentist must obtain written, informed con-
sent as to the limited nature and non-diagnostic results of the evaluation
from the patient or his/her parent or guardian. The dentist must provide
a copy of the written informed consent and the results of the evalua-
tion to the patient or his/her parent or guardian. The written informed
consent must clearly evidence the name of the evaluating dentist, the
patient's name, and the date of evaluation.

(d) A limited oral evaluation shall not be performed for busi-
ness promotion or patient solicitation purposes. A dentist performing a
limited oral evaluation must comply with all rules and laws governing
professional conduct and business promotion. Following the evalua-
tion, the dentist may recommend or refer the patient to a dentist for
follow-up examination.

(e) Either the dentist or the entity qualifying under subsection
(a) of this section shall retain a copy of the written informed consent
and the results of the evaluation for five years from the date of the
evaluation.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205042

Glenn Parker

Executive Director

State Board of Dental Examiners

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 475-0977

¢ ¢ ¢

PART 21. TEXAS STATE BOARD OF
EXAMINERS OF PSYCHOLOGISTS

CHAPTER 465. RULES OF PRACTICE
22 TAC §465.38

The Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists proposes
an amendment to §465.38, Psychological Services for Public
Schools. The proposed amendment clarifies that Licensed Spe-
cialists in School Psychology may only provide psychological
services in the public schools and may not practice indepen-
dently in any setting outside of the public schools.

Darrel D. Spinks, Executive Director, has determined that for the
first five-year period the proposed amendment will be in effect
there will be no fiscal implications for state or local government
as a result of enforcing or administering the rule.

Mr. Spinks also has determined that for each year of the first
five years the rule is in effect the public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing the rule will be to help the Board protect
the public. There will be no effect on small businesses. There
is no anticipated economic cost to persons who are required to
comply with the rule as proposed.

Comments on the proposed amendment may be submitted to
Brenda Skiff, Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists,

333 Guadalupe, Suite 2-450, Austin, TX 78701, (512) 305-7700
or email brenda@tsbep.state.tx.us within 14 days of publication
of this proposal in the Texas Register.

The amendment is proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
Title 3, Subtitle I, Chapter 501, which provides the Texas State
Board of Examiners of Psychologists with the authority to make
all rules, not inconsistent with the Constitution and Laws of this
State, which are reasonably necessary for the proper perfor-
mance of its duties and regulations of proceedings before it.

No other code, articles or statutes are affected by this section.

$465.38.  Psychological Services for Public Schools.

This rule acknowledges the unique difference in the delivery of school
psychological services in the public schools from psychological ser-
vices in the private sector. The Board recognizes the purview of the
State Board of Education and the Texas Education Agency in safe-
guarding the rights of public school children in Texas. The mandated
multidisciplinary team decision making, hierarchy of supervision, reg-
ulatory provisions, and past traditions of school psychological service
delivery both nationally and in Texas, among other factors, allow for
rules of practice in the public schools which reflect these occupational
distinctions from the private practice of psychology.

(1) Definition.

(A) The specialist in school psychology license permits
the licensee to provide school psychological services only in Texas
public schools. A person utilizing this license may not provide psycho-
logical services in any context or capacity outside of their employment
or contract with the public schools.

(B) A licensed specialist in school psychology (LSSP)
means a person who is trained to address psychological and behav-
ioral problems manifested in and associated with educational systems
by utilizing psychological concepts and methods in programs or ac-
tions which attempt to improve the learning, adjustment and behavior
of students. Such activities include, but are not limited to, addressing
special education eligibility, conducting manifestation determinations,
and assisting with the development and implementation of individual
educational programs.

(C) The assessment of emotional or behavioral distur-
bance, for educational purposes, using psychological techniques and
procedures is considered the practice of psychology.

(2) Titles. The correct title for persons holding this license
is Licensed Specialist in School Psychology or LSSP. Only individuals
who meet the requirements of Board rule §465.6 of this title (relating
to Listings, Public Statements and Advertisements, Solicitations, and
Specialty Titles) may refer to themselves as School Psychologists. No
individual may use the title Licensed School Psychologist. An LSSP
who has achieved certification as a Nationally Certified School Psy-
chologist (NCSP) may use this credential along with the license title of
LSSP.

(3) Providers of School Psychological Services. School
psychological services may be provided in Texas public schools only
by individuals authorized by this Board to provide such services. Indi-
viduals who may provide such school psychological services include
LSSPs and interns or trainees as defined in Board rule §463.9 of this
title (relating to Licensed Specialist in School Psychology) and per-
sons seeking to fulfill the licensing requirements of Board rule §463.8
of this title (relating to Licensed Psychological Associate), Board rule
§463.10 of this title (relating to Provisionally Licensed Psychologists),
and Board rule §463.11 of this title (relating to Licensed Psychologist).
Nothing in this rule prohibits public schools from contracting with li-
censed psychologists and licensed psychological associates who are not
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LSSPs to provide psychological services, other than school psychol-
ogy, in their areas of competency. School districts may contract for
specific types of psychological services, such as clinical psychology,
counseling psychology, neuropsychology, and family therapy, which
are not readily available from the licensed specialist in school psychol-
ogy employed by the school district. Such contracting must be on a
short term or part time basis and cannot involve the broad range of
school psychological services listed in paragraph (1)(B) of this sec-
tion. An LSSP who contracts with a school district to provide school
psychological services may not permit an individual who does not hold
a valid LSSP license to perform any of the contracted school psycho-
logical services.

(4) Supervision.

(A) Direct, systematic, face-to-face supervision must
be provided to:

(i) Interns as defined in Board rule §463.9 of this ti-
tle.

(i) Individuals who meet the training requirements
of Board rule §463.9 of this title and who have passed the National
School Psychology Examination at the Texas cutoff score or above and
who have been notified in writing of this status by the Board. These
individuals may practice under supervision in a Texas public school
district for no more than one calendar year. They must be designated
as trainees.

(iii) LSSPs for a period of one academic year fol-
lowing licensure unless the individual also holds licensure as a psy-
chologist in Texas. This supervision may be waived for individuals
who legally provided full-time, unsupervised school psychological ser-
vices in another state for a minimum of three academic years immedi-
ately preceding application for licensure in Texas as documented by the
public schools where services were provided and who graduated from
a training program approved by NASP or accredited in school psychol-
ogy by APA or who hold NCSP certification.

(iv)  LSSPs when the individual is providing psycho-
logical services outside his or her area of training and supervised ex-
perience.

(B) Nothing in this rule applies to administrative super-
vision of psychology personnel within Texas public schools, performed
by non-psychologists, in job functions involving, but not limited to, at-
tendance, time management, completion of assignments, or adherence
to school policies and procedures.

(5) Supervisor Qualifications. Supervision may only be
provided by a LSSP, who has a minimum of three years of experience
providing psychological services in the public schools of this or an-
other state. To meet supervisor qualifications, a licensee must be able
to document the required experience by providing documentation from
the authority that regulates the provision of psychological services in
the public schools of that state and proof that the licensee provided
such services, documented by the public schools in the state in which
the services were provided. Any licensed specialist in school psychol-
ogy may count one full year as an intern or trainee as one of the three
years of experience required to perform supervision.

(6) Conflict Between Laws and Board Rules. In the event
of a conflict between state or federal statutes and Board rules, state or
federal statutes control.

(7) Compliance with Applicable Education Laws. LSSPs
shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws affecting the
practice of school psychology, including, but not limited to:

(A) Texas Education Code;

(B) Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA), 20 U.S.C. §1232q;

(C) Individuals with Disabilities
(IDEA), 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq;

(D) Texas Public Information Act ("Open Records
Act"), Texas Government Code, Chapter 552;

(E) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Education Act

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205039

Darrel D. Spinks

Executive Director

Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 305-7706

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 469. COMPLAINTS AND
ENFORCEMENT
22 TAC §469.1

The Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists proposes
an amendment to §469.1, Timeliness of Complaints. The pro-
posed amendment would ensure that the time period for alleging
a violation of a Board rules does not exceed the records reten-
tion period.

Darrel D. Spinks, Executive Director, has determined that for the
first five-year period the proposed amendment will be in effect
there will be no fiscal implications for state or local government
as a result of enforcing or administering the rule.

Mr. Spinks also has determined that for each year of the first
five years the rule is in effect the public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing the rule will be to help the Board protect
the public. There will be no effect on small businesses. There
is no anticipated economic cost to persons who are required to
comply with the rule as proposed.

Comments on the proposed amendment may be submitted to
Brenda Skiff, Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists,
333 Guadalupe, Suite 2-450, Austin, TX 78701, (512) 305-7700
or email brenda@tsbep.state.tx.us within 14 days of publication
of this proposal in the Texas Register.

The amendment is proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
Title 3, Subtitle I, Chapter 501, which provides the Texas State
Board of Examiners of Psychologists with the authority to make
all rules, not inconsistent with the Constitution and Laws of this
State, which are reasonably necessary for the proper perfor-
mance of its duties and regulations of proceedings before it.

No other code, articles or statutes are affected by this section.

$469.1.  Timeliness of Complaints.

(a) A complaint is timely filed if it is received by the Board, in
proper form, within five years of the date of the termination of profes-
sional services and does not allege sexual misconduct or a violation of
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Board rule §465.22(d) of this title (relating to Psychological Records,
Test Data and Test Protocols).

(b) A complaint alleging sexual misconduct by a licensee is
timely filed if received within seven years after termination of services
or within three years of a client or subject of evaluation reaching the
age of majority, whichever is greater. [A complaint alleging sexual
misconduct by a licensee is timely filed if received within ten years of
the termination of services or the patient's reaching the age of majority:|

(c) A complaint alleging a violation of Board rule §465.22(d)
of this title is timely filed if received within seven years after termi-
nation of services with the client or subject of evaluation, or three
years after a client or subject of evaluation reaches the age of majority,
whichever is greater. [A eemplaint alleging a violation of Board rule
the last contaet with the client or subjeet of forensie evaluation or; if
the elient or subjeet is a minor; until ten years after the miner reaches
the age of majority:]

(d) Any statute of limitations applying to a complaint filed
against a licensee by a health licensing board in another jurisdiction,
or filed by another health licensing board in Texas, begins after that ju-
risdiction's or authority's investigation is complete.

(e) A complaint based on discipline in another jurisdiction is
timely filed within five years of the date that the board receives notice
of the disciplinary action.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205040

Darrel D. Spinks

Executive Director

Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 305-7706

¢ ¢ ¢

PART 34. TEXAS STATE BOARD OF
SOCIAL WORKER EXAMINERS

CHAPTER 781. SOCIAL WORKER
LICENSURE

The Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners (board) pro-
poses amendments to §§781.102, 781.201, 781.203, 781.204,
781.209, 781.210, 781.304, 781.312, 781.316, 781.401,
781.404, 781.411, 781.412, 781.502, 781.505, 781.506,
781.508, 781.511, 781.514 and 781.603 and new 781.419,
concerning the licensure and regulation of social workers.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The proposed new §781.419 results from statutory changes
made during the 82nd Legislative Session (2011), by the pas-
sage of Senate Bill (SB) 1733, codified in the Texas Occupations
Code, Chapter 55, requiring the board, by rule, to set alternative
licensure requirement procedures for military spouses. Specific
amended sections in this proposal update licensure require-
ments and standards of practice in the regulation of social

workers, and revisions are outlined in the section-by-section
summary of this preamble.

SECTION-BY-SECTION SUMMARY

This summary considers only those sections which were sub-
stantially changed in language, meaning, or intent. A number
of non-substantive modifications are proposed for the chapter in
order to meet the objectives of improving draftsmanship and en-
suring clarity.

The amendment to §781.102 recognizes and defines Indepen-
dent Non-clinical Practice and Independent Practice Recognition
as "unsupervised practice."

The amendment to §781.201 adds to the Code of Conduct a
new population group to whom social workers shall not refuse to
perform any act or service for which the social worker is licensed
under this chapter.

The amendment to §781.203 specifies the requirements a social
worker must ensure are met prior to providing services to a mi-
nor client named in a Suit Affecting Parent Child Relationships
(SAPCR).

Section 781.204 prohibits a social worker from accepting remu-
neration to or from any person or entity for securing or soliciting
social work clients or patronage for or from any health care pro-
fessional and also provides warnings that such actions will sub-
jectthe violator to disciplinary action. In addition, the amendment
to §781.204 recognizes certain exceptions to record keeping re-
quirements.

The amendment to §781.209 recognizes the certain exceptions
to client records and record keeping requirements enumerated
in §781.204.

The amendment to §781.210 prohibits a social worker from ac-
cepting remuneration to or from any person or entity for secur-
ing or soliciting social work clients or patronage for or from any
health care professional in billing and financial relationships.

The amendment to §781.304 limits the circumstances that allow
board or staff members to provide guidance to social workers.

The amendment to §781.312 reflects that a social worker's
impartiality and non-discrimination must include gender identity
and expression to whom social workers shall not refuse to
perform any act or service for which the social worker is licensed
under this chapter.

Section 781.316 reflects the current board licensure fees.

The amendment to §781.401 specifies the current acronym for
"Licensed Social Worker-Advanced Practitioner" and extends
the maximum timeframe for supervision and supervised experi-
ence.

The amendment to §781.404 modifies the board's recognition of
board-approved supervisors and the supervision process; limits
the number of supervised hours which may be counted toward
licensure or specialty recognition; and specifies the process for
approval of applicable supervision plans.

The amendment to §781.411 limits an applicant's temporary li-
cense by the board to one per lifetime, per licensing category.

The amendment to §781.412 clarifies board policy regarding
the number of times an unsuccessful applicant may take the
licensing examination before he or she must formally request
and receive permission from the board to retake the exami-
nation, as well as under what circumstances an unsuccessful
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applicant may retake the exam if he or she has failed the exam
the maximum allowable attempt times.

The amendment to §781.502 specifies licensure renewal dates.

Section 781.505 specifies requirements related to converting ac-
tive licensure to inactive status, payment of appropriate, related
fees and consequences for failure to follow these requirements.
Additionally, the proposed amendments limit the time period for
inactive status and set forth the process a licensee on inactive
status must follow in order to reactivate the license.

The amendment to §781.506 sets forth limitations on a licensee's
emeritus status as well as the process a licensee on emeritus
status must follow in order to reactivate the license, obtain board-
approved supervisor status and consequences for an emeritus
licensee who fails to reactive his or her license within 48 months
of conversion. Additionally, this amended section limits the abil-
ity of an eligible licensee to convert from emeritus status to active
status once per lifetime.

The amendment to §781.508 specifies that a licensee must com-
plete the required hours of continuing education, even for the first
renewal of the license.

The amendment to §781.511 specifies that individuals or enti-
ties who receive automatic approval as continuing education
providers under this chapter will not receive board documen-
tation of the automatic approval and will not be included in the
board's rosters of supervisors. Additionally, the amendment
states additional mandatory information a continuing education
provider must include on the certificate of attendance issued to
each program participant upon program conclusion.

The amendment to §781.514 deletes the limitation of the num-
ber of continuing education hours which may be approved by the
board in one renewal cycle for successful completion of an inde-
pendent study provider.

The amendment to §781.603 authorizes the board executive di-
rector to request client records from a licensee in complaint pro-
cedures and to close certain complaints as non-jurisdictional be-
fore presenting them to the Ethics Committee at that committee's
next scheduled meeting. In addition, the amendment allows the
board's Ethics Committee to resolve certain pending complaints
without a formal disciplinary action or formal hearing.

FISCAL NOTE

Carol Miller, LMSW-AP, Executive Director, has determined that
for each of the first five years the sections are in effect, there
will be fiscal implications to the state government as a result of
enforcing or administering the sections as proposed.

It is estimated that 25% of persons on inactive and emeritus sta-
tus will reactivate their licenses annually. This number translates
to approximately 134 persons. Under the proposed rules, reac-
tivation requires completion of the jurisprudence examination at
a cost of $40 per person. The state will receive 12.5% of the
$40 fee, or $5; therefore, it is estimated that state revenues will
increase by $670 each fiscal year of the first five fiscal years the
sections are in effect.

Ms. Miller has determined that there will be no fiscal implications
to local governments.

SMALL AND MICRO-BUSINESS IMPACT ANALYSIS

Ms. Miller has determined that there will be no effect on small
businesses or micro-businesses required to comply with the sec-
tions as proposed. This was determined by interpretation of the

rules that small businesses and micro-businesses will not be re-
quired to alter their business practices in order to comply with
the sections.

ECONOMIC COSTS TO PERSONS AND IMPACT ON LOCAL
EMPLOYMENT

Under the proposed amendments, persons who choose to place
their licenses on inactive or emeritus status and later choose to
return their license to regular status will be required to complete
the jurisprudence examination as a condition of license reacti-
vation. Currently, the jurisprudence examination is a cost of $40
per person. There is no anticipated negative impact on local em-
ployment.

PUBLIC BENEFIT

In addition, Ms. Miller has also determined that for each year of
the first five years the sections are in effect, the public will benefit
from adoption of the sections. The public benefit anticipated as
a result of enforcing or administering the sections is to continue
to ensure public health and safety through the effective licensing
and regulation of social workers.

REGULATORY ANALYSIS

The board has determined that this proposal is not a "major en-
vironmental rule" as defined by Government Code, §2001.0225.
"Major environmental rule" is defined to mean a rule the spe-
cific intent of which is to protect the environment or reduce risk
to human health from environmental exposure and that may ad-
versely affect, in a material way, the economy, a sector of the
economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the environment or the
public health and safety of a state or a sector of the state. This
proposal is not specifically intended to protect the environment
or reduce risks to human health from environmental exposure.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The board has determined that the proposed rules do not restrict
or limit an owner's right to his or her property that would other-
wise exist in the absence of government action and, therefore,
do not constitute a taking under Government Code, §2007.043.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Comments on the proposal may be submitted to Carol Miller,
LMSW-AP, Executive Director, Texas State Board of Social
Worker Examiners, Mail Code 1982, P.O. Box 149347, Austin,
Texas 78714-9347 or by email to Isw@dshs.state.tx.us. When
emailing comments, please indicate "Comments on Proposed
Rules" in the subject line. Comments will be accepted for 30
days following publication of the proposal in the Texas Register.

SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL PROVISIONS
22 TAC §781.102
STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendment is proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
§505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt rules necessary
for the performance of its duties.

The amendment affects Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 505.
§$781.102.  Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, shall have
the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

(1) - (36) (No change.)
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(37) Independent non-clinical practice--The unsupervised
practice of non-clinical social work outside the jurisdiction of an orga-
nizational setting, in which the social worker, after having completed
all requirements for independent non-clinical practice recognition, as-
sumes responsibility and accountability for the nature and quality of
client services, pro bono or in exchange for direct payment or third
party reimbursement.

(38) Independent Practice Recognition--A specialty recog-
nition related to unsupervised non-clinical social work at the LBSW
or LMSW category of licensure, which denotes that the licensee has
earned the specialty recognition, commonly called IPR, by successfully
completing additional supervision which enhances skills in providing
independent non-clinical social work.

(39) - (62) (No change.)

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205077

Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER B. CODE OF CONDUCT AND
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE
22 TAC §§781.201, 781.203, 781.204, 781.209, 781.210
STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendments are proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
§505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt rules necessary
for the performance of its duties.

The amendments affect Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 505.

§781.201. Code of Conduct.

(a) A social worker must observe and comply with the code
of conduct and standards of practice set forth in this subchapter. Any
violation of the code of conduct or standards of practice will constitute
unethical conduct or conduct that discredits or tends to discredit the
profession of social work and is grounds for disciplinary action.

(1) A social worker shall not refuse to perform any act or
service for which the person is licensed solely on the basis of a client's
age;[5] gender;[;] race;[;] color;[;] religion;[;] national origin;[;] disabil-
ity;[5] sexual orientation; gender identity and expression;[;] or political
affiliation.

(2) - (13) (No change.)

(b) (No change.)

§781.203. General Standards of Practice.
This section establishes standards of professional conduct required of
a social worker. The licensee, following applicable statutes:

(1) - (8) (No change.)

(9) shall ensure that the client or a legally authorized per-
son representing the client has signed a consent for services, when ap-

propriate. Prior to commencement of social work services with a mi-
nor client who is named in a Suit Affecting Parent Child Relationship
(SAPCR), the licensee shall ensure that all legally authorized persons
representing the client have signed a consent for services, if applicable.
A licensee shall maintain these documents in the client's record.

§781.204.  Relationships with Clients.
(a) (No change.)

(b) The social worker shall not give or receive a commission,
rebate, or any other form of remuneration for referring clients. A li-
censee shall not intentionally or knowingly offer to pay or agree to
accept any remuneration directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in
cash or in kind, to or from any person, firm, association of persons,
partnership, corporation, or entity for securing or soliciting clients or
patronage for or from any health care professional. In accordance with
the provisions of the Act, §505.451, a licensee is subject to disciplinary
action if the licensee directly or indirectly offers to pay or agrees to ac-
cept remuneration to or from any person for securing or soliciting a
client or patronage. Payment of credentialing or other fees to insur-
ance companies or other third party payers to be part of an approved
provider list shall not be considered as a violation of this chapter.

(c) - (e) (No change.)

(f) A social worker shall keep accurate records of services to
include, but not be limited to, dates of services, types of services,
progress or case notes and billing information for a minimum of five
years for an adult client and five years beyond the age of 18 years of
age for a minor, or in compliance with applicable laws or professional
standards. If the foregoing provision conflicts with the standards, re-
quirements, or procedures for records generated in the course and scope
of rendering services as a social worker, either directly or indirectly, for
an educational institution, or a federal, state, or local governmental en-
tity or political subdivision, the foregoing provision does not apply.

(g) (No change.)

(h) A licensee shall not make any false, misleading, deceptive,
fraudulent or exaggerated claim or statement about the effectiveness of
the licensee's services; the licensee's qualifications, capabilities, back-
ground, training, experience, education, professional affiliations, fees,
products, or publications; the type, effectiveness, qualifications, and
products or [ef] services offered by an organization or agency; or the
practice or field of social work.

(i) - (@) (No change.)
§781.209.  Client Records and Record Keeping.
Following applicable statutes, the licensee shall:
(1) - (3) (No change.)

(4) keep client records for five years for adult clients and
five years beyond the age of 18 for minor clients unless the record keep-
ing provision of §781.204(f) of this title (relating to Relationships with
Clients) conflicts with the standards, requirements, or procedures for
records generated in the course and scope of rendering services as a so-
cial worker, either directly or indirectly, for an educational institution,
or a federal, state, or local governmental entity or political subdivision,
the foregoing provision in §781.204(f) of this title does not apply;

(5) - (6) (No change.)
§781.210. Billing and Financial Relationships.

(a) Alicensee shall not intentionally or knowingly offer to pay
or agree to accept any remuneration directly or indirectly, overtly or
covertly, in cash or in kind, to or from any person, firm, association
of persons, partnership, corporation, or entity for securing or soliciting
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clients or patronage for or from any health care professional. In accor-
dance with the provisions of the Act, §505.451, a licensee is subject
to disciplinary action if the licensee directly or indirectly offers to pay
or agrees to accept remuneration to or from any person for securmg
or soliciting a client or patronage. [In accordance with the provisions
of the Act, §505.451, a licensee is subject to disciplinary action if the
licensee directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly; in eash or in kind;
offers to pay or agrees to acecept remuneration to or from any persen
or entity for seeuring or soliciting a client or patronage.| Payment of
credentialing or other fees to insurance companies or other third party
payers to be part of an approved provider list shall not be considered
as a violation of this chapter.

(b) - (¢) (No change.)

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205078

Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER C. THE BOARD

22 TAC §§781.304, 781.312, 781.316
STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendments are proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
§505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt rules necessary
for the performance of its duties.

The amendments affect Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 505.
§781.304.  Transaction of Official Board Business.
(a) (No change.)

(b) The board shall not be bound by any board member's or
staff member's statement or action except when such statement or ac-
tion results from the board's specific instructions. Board member or
staff member opinions, except when a statement or action is in pur-
suance of specific instructions of the board, about ethical dilemmas or
practice issues should never be substituted for appropriate professional
consultation.

(¢) (No change.)
§781.312.  Impartiality and Non-discrimination.

(a) The board shall make all decisions in the discharge of its
statutory authority without regard to any person's age;[;] gender;[;]
race;[;] color;[5] religion;[5] national origin [5] disability;[;] sexual ori-
entation; gender identity and expression;[;] or political affiliation.

(b) (No change.)
§781.316. Fees.

(a) The following are the board's fees:
(1) (No change.)
(2) license fee for LBSW, or LMSW--$60 [biennially];

(3) (No change.)
(4) license fee for LCSW--$100 [biennially];
(5) - (21) (No change.)

(b) - (¢) (No change.)

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205079

Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ ¢ ¢
SUBCHAPTER D. LICENSES AND
LICENSING PROCESS

22 TAC §§781.401, 781.404, 781.411, 781.412, 781.419
STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendments and new rule are proposed under Texas Oc-
cupations Code, §505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt
rules necessary for the performance of its duties.

The amendments and new rule affect Texas Occupations Code,
Chapter 505.

§781.401.  Qualifications for Licensure.
(a) (No change.)

(b) Specialty Recognition. The following education and expe-
rience is required for specialty recognitions.

(1) Licensed Master Social Worker-Advanced Practitioner
(LMSW-AP).

(A) - (B) (No change.)

(C) Has had a minimum of 100 hours of board-ap-
proved supervision, over the course of the 3000 hours of experience,
with a board-approved supervisor. Supervised experience must have
occurred within the five calendar years immediately preceding the date
of LMSW-AP [EESW] application. If supervision was completed
in another jurisdiction, the social worker must have the supervision
verified by the regulatory authority in the other jurisdiction. If such
verification is impossible, the social worker may request that the board
accept alternate verification of supervision.

(D) (No change.)
(2) Independent Non-clinical Practice.

(A) (No change.)

(B) While fully licensed as a social worker has had 3000
hours of board-approved supervised full-time social work experience
over a minimum two-year period, but within a maximum five-year
[feur-year] period or its equivalent if the experience was completed
in another state. Board-approved supervised professional experience
must comply with §781.404 of this title and all other applicable laws
and rules.
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(©) (No change.)
(¢) (No change.)

$§781.404. Recognition as a Board-approved Supervisor and the Su-
pervision Process.

(a) (No change.)

(b) A person who wishes to be a board-approved supervisor
must file an application and pay the applicable fee.

(1) A board-approved supervisor must be actively licensed
in good standing by the board as an LBSW, an LMSW, an LCSW, or
be recognized as an Advanced Practitioner (LMSW-AP), or hold the
equivalent social work license in another jurisdiction. An individual
whose licensure status is emeritus may not serve as a board-approved
supervisor. The person applying for board-approved status must have
practiced at his/her category of licensure for two years. The board-ap-
proved supervisor shall supervise only those supervisees who provide
services that fall within the supervisor's own competency.

(2)-(11) (No change.)

(12) A board-approved supervisor who wishes to provide
supervision towards licensure as an LCSW or towards specialty
recognition in Independent Practice (IPR) or Advanced Practitioner
(LMSW-AP), which is supervision for professional growth, must
comply with the following.

(A) - (B) (No change.)

(C) Supervision shall occur in proportion to the number
of actual hours worked, with a base line of one hour of supervision for
every 40 hours worked. If the supervisee works full-time, supervision
shall occur on average at least twice a month and for no less than four
hours per month; if the supervisee works part-time (at least 20 hours
per week), supervision shall occur on average at least once a month
and no less than two hours per month. Supervisory sessions shall last
at least one hour and no more than two hours per session. No more than
10 hours of supervision may be counted in any one month, or 30-day
period, as appropriate, towards satisfying minimum requirements for
licensure or specialty recognition.

(D) (No change.)

(E) Supervision toward licensure or specialty recogni-
tion must extend over a full 3000 hours over a period of not less than 24
full months and a period of not more than [te] 48 full months for LCSW
or LMSW-AP or not more than 60 full months for Independent Prac-
tice Recognition (IPR). Even if the individual completes the minimum
of 3000 hours of supervised experience and minimum of 100 hours of
supervision prior to 24 months from the start date of supervision, su-
pervision which meets the board's minimum requirements shall extend
to a minimum of 24 full months. A month is a 30-day period or the
length of the actual calendar month, whichever is longer.

(F)- (H) (No change.)
(13) (No change.)

(c) Alicensee who submits one of the following: a Clinical Su-
pervision Plan, a Non-Clinical Supervision Plan, or a Board-Ordered
Supervision Plan, to the board for approval, shall receive a written re-
sponse from the board of either approval or deficiency related to the
plan. If no written response is received by the licensee within four
weeks of submission of the plan, it is the responsibility of the licensee
who has submitted the plan to follow-up with the board office related
to receipt and/or status of the plan within 60 days of submission. If
written approval or deficiency is sent to the last known address of the

licensee, a board response related to acceptance of the plan shall be
considered to have been sent. Supervision and supervised experience
hours are not acceptable to meet minimum requirements towards licen-
sure or specialty recognition or to satisfy the terms of a board order if
not accrued under a board-approved plan without explicit authorization
from the board.

$781.411.
(a) - (g) (No change.)

(h) A temporary license will not be granted to an applicant who
has held a temporary license for the same license category previously
within his/her lifetime [within the previous five years].

(i) - ) (No change.)
§781.412.  Examination Requirement.
(a) - (b) (No change.)

(c) If an applicant fails the [first] examination on the first at-
tempt of his/her lifetime, the individual may retake the examination no
more than two additional times. An applicant who has failed the ex-
amination on the first, second, and third attempts [three times] must
request in writing to the board to retake the examination a fourth time.
The board may order the applicant to complete one or more social work
educational courses as a prerequisite to retaking the examination.

(d) (No change.)

(e) If an applicant fails the examination on the fourth attempt,
the person's application will be voided. The applicant will not be per-
mitted to reapply for licensure for one year. Each subsequent attempt
must be approved by the appropriate committee of the board.

®-(@©
§781.419. Military Spouse.

(a) This section sets out the alternative license procedure for
military spouse required under Occupations Code, Chapter 55 (relating
to License While on Military Duty and for Military Spouse).

Temporary License.

(No change.)

(b) The spouse of a person serving on active duty as a member
of the armed forces of the United States who holds a current license
issued by another state that has substantially equivalent licensing re-
quirements shall complete and submit an application form and fee. In
accordance with Occupations Code, §55.004(c), the executive direc-
tor may waive any prerequisite to obtaining a license after reviewing
the applicant's credentials and determining that the applicant holds a
license issued by another jurisdiction that has licensing requirements
substantially equivalent to those of this state.

(c) The spouse of a person serving on active duty as a mem-
ber of the armed forces of the United States who within the five years
preceding the application date held the license in this state that expired
while the applicant lived in another state for at least six months is qual-
ified for licensure based on the previously held license, if there are no
unresolved complaints against the applicant and if there is no other bar
to licensure, such as criminal background or non-compliance with a
board order.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205080
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Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ L4 ¢
SUBCHAPTER E. LICENSE RENEWAL AND
CONTINUING EDUCATION

22 TAC §§781.502, 781.505, 781.506, 781.508, 781.511,
781.514

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendments are proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
§505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt rules necessary
for the performance of its duties.

The amendments affect Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 505.
§781.502.  Renewal Cycles.

The license renewal date is the last day of the month of the licensee's
birth month. The first renewal of licensure following issuance of the
license will be valid for a period of 13 to 24 months, depending on the
licensee's birth month. Subsequent to the first renewal period, licenses
[Eieenses] must be renewed every two years, and the renewal extends
for two years. [The license renewal date is the last day of the licensee's
birth month.]

$§781.505. Inactive Status.

(a) A licensee who does not wish to practice social work in
the State of Texas and whose license has not expired may request the
board to grant inactive status anytime before the license expires. If a
licensee requests conversion to inactive status within 45 days of the
expiration date for the license, the individual must provide verification
of completion of all continuing education requirements for the renewal.

(b) (No change.)

(c) The inactive status conversion fee and any applicable re-
newal fee and penalty fee for late renewal must be paid prior to the
date the license expires.

(d) A licensee on inactive status must renew the inactive li-
cense and pay all applicable inactive renewal fees throughout the du-
ration of the inactive status. A licensee on inactive status who fails to
remit the biennial inactive status renewal fee or who otherwise fails to
renew the inactive license timely ceases to be licensed and must reapply
for licensure and meet all current minimum requirements for licensure
in place at the time of submission of the new application for licensure.

(e) A license, if appropriately converted and renewed as inac-
tive, may be on inactive status for no more than 48 consecutive months
or for no more than 96 months total in a lifetime. There must be a
minimum of 48 months of active licensure before subsequent inactive
status may be requested and granted.

() [€] A licensee on inactive status must notify the board in
writing to reactivate the license, provide proof of completion of the Ju-
risprudence Exam completed within six months of the date of request-
ing reactivation of the license, and pay the conversion fee for inactive
to active status. The reactivated license status shall begin seven days
after the board receives the licensee's reactivation fee.

$781.506. Emeritus Status.
(a) (No change.)

(b) The emeritus licensee may only use his or her emeritus title
while providing social work services as a volunteer without compen-
sation. The emeritus licensee who volunteers social worker services is
under the board's jurisdiction and must comply with the Code of Con-
duct and Professional Standards of Practice, as well as the Act and the

rule requirements in this chapter.

(¢) An emeritus licensee whose license is in good standing
[Heense] can be reinstated to an active license within 48 months of
conversion to emeritus status [without being subjeet to the additional
penalty for late renewal]. To be eligible for an active [a rew] license
through reinstatement of an emeritus license, the emeritus licensee
shall submit an [updated] application for licensure at the appropriate
category, as well as proof of completion of the Jurisprudence Exam
within six months prior to requesting reactivation, and payment of the
licensing [and Heense] fee. Verification of education, supervision, and
examination score is not required. Verification of completion of the
Jurisprudence Exam is required.

(d) Anemeritus licensee who reactivates his/her license within
48 months of conversion to emeritus status may not regain board-ap-
proved supervisor status upon activation without verification of com-
pletion of minimum requirements as a board-approved supervisor in
place at the time of reactivation. An emeritus licensee who reactivates
his/her license within 48 months may regain other specialty recogni-
tion(s) without demonstration of meeting current minimum require-
ments for that specialty recognition.

() An emeritus licensee who does not reactivate his/her li-
cense within 48 months of conversion to emeritus status may not ever
convert the license to active status. An emeritus licensee who did not
reactive his/her license within 48 months of conversion must reapply
for active licensure and meet all current minimum requirements for li-
censure, specialty recognition, and board-approved supervisor status in
place at the time of application. If all current minimum requirements
for licensure are met, upon issuance of a new license and license num-
ber, the emeritus license will be null and void.

(f) A licensee who converts to emeritus status may only reac-
tivate the license to active status once per lifetime.

§781.508. Hour Requirements for Continuing Education.

(a) A licensee must complete a total of 30 clock-hours bienni-
ally of continuing education obtained from board-approved continuing
education providers. A licensee must complete a total of 30 clock-
hours of continuing education obtained from a board-approved con-
tinuing education provider even for the first renewal of the licensure
following issuance of the license, which is valid for a period of 13 to
24 months, depending on the licensee's birth month.

(b) - (¢) (No change.)

$§781.511. Requirements for Continuing Education Providers.
(a) - (b) (No change.)

(c) Entities that receive automatic status as approved providers
without applying or paying fees include accredited colleges and uni-
versities; a national or statewide association, board or organization
representing members of the social work profession; nationally ac-
credited health or mental health facilities; or a person or agency ap-
proved by any state or national organization in a related field such as
medicine, law, psychiatry, psychology, sociology, marriage and family
therapy, professional counseling, and similar fields of human service
practice. Regarding entities that receive automatic status as approved
providers under this section, the board will not provide documentation
of board-approved status nor will the board include such entities in its
roster of board-approved providers.

(d)-(G) (No change.)
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(k) It is the provider's responsibility to provide each program
participant with a legible certificate of attendance after the program
ends. The certificate shall include the provider's name, approval num-
ber, and expiration date of the provider's approved status; the partici-
pant's name; the program title, date, and place; the credit hours earned,
including the ethics hours credited; the provider's signature or that of
the provider's representative; and the board contact information, which
shall at a minimum, include the board's name and web address.

() - (p) (No change.)
§781.514. Credit Hours Granted.

The board will grant the following credit hours toward the continuing
education requirements for license renewal.

(1)-(5) (No change.)

[6) Credit hours may be earned by suecessful completion
of an independent study program directly related to seetal work offered
or approved by an approved provider. With the exception of persons
residing outside the United States; a maximum of 20 eredit hours for

(6) [€P] A licensee may carry over to the next renewal
period up to 10 credit hours earned in excess of the continuing edu-
cation renewal requirements. Continuing education earned during the

licensee's birth month may be used for the current renewal or for the
following year.

(7)  [€8)] Completing the jurisprudence examination shall
count as three hours of the continuing education requirement in ethics
and social work values, as referenced in §781.508(b) of this title.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,

2012.

TRD-201205081

Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER F. COMPLAINTS AND
VIOLATIONS

22 TAC §781.603
STATUTORY AUTHORITY

The amendment is proposed under Texas Occupations Code,
§505.201, which authorizes the board to adopt rules necessary
for the performance of its duties.

The amendment affects Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 505.
$§781.603. Complaint Procedures.
(a) - (f) (No change.)

(g) The executive director initially reviews the complaint to
determine jurisdiction. If a complaint appears to be within the board's
jurisdiction, the executive director shall decide whether to authorize
sending a copy of the complaint to the respondent and requesting a
response, which may include but not be limited to requesting that a

copy of the client's records be attached to the response. If the executive
director does not authorize written notification of the respondent, the
complaint will be referred for an investigation and the assigned inves-
tigator will determine whether the respondent will be notified by letter,
phone call, site visit, or some other appropriate means. If the complaint
is against a person licensed by another board, the department staft will
forward the complaint to that board not later than the 15th day after
the date the agency determines that the information shall be referred to
the appropriate agency as provided in Government Code, Chapter 774,
relating to exchange of information between regulatory agencies.

(h) If the allegations clearly do not fall within the board's ju-
risdiction, the executive director may consult with both the attorney
for the board as well as the board chair or his/her designee, and if all
agree, the executive director may close the complaint and will present
the case to the Ethics Committee at the committee's next meeting. The
Ethics Committee retains the right to request full disclosure of any case
closed and order a comprehensive hearing of the complaint.

(i) - (n) (No change.)

(o) The Ethics Committee may resolve pending complaints in
which no violation is found or substantiated, or in which a violation is
found, but the violation does not seriously affect the health and safety
of clients or other persons, with actions which are not considered for-
mal disciplinary actions. These include: issuance of an advisory no-
tice, warning letter; or informal reminder; issuance of a "Conditional
Letter of Agreement;" and/or other actions as deemed appropriate by
the Ethics Committee. The licensee is not entitled to a hearing on the
matters set forth in the notice, letter, reminder, "Conditional Letter of
Agreement," or other action but may submit a written response to be in-
cluded in the complaint record. Such actions by the Ethics Committee
may be introduced as evidence in any subsequent disciplinary action
involving acts or omissions after receipt of the notice, letter, reminder,
"Conditional Letter of Agreement," a cease and desist letter, or other
action which does not involve a formal disciplinary action.

(1) An advisory notice, warning letter or informal re-
minder. The Ethics Committee may resolve pending complaints
by issuance of a formal advisory notice, warning letter, or informal
reminder informing licensees of their duties under the Act or this
chapter, whether the conduct or omission complained of appears to
violate such duties, and whether the board has a concern about the
circumstances surrounding the complaint.

(2) A "Conditional Letter of Agreement." The Ethics Com-
mittee may resolve pending complaints by issuance of a "Conditional
Letter of Agreement" informing licensees of their duties under the Act
or this chapter, whether the conduct or omission complained of ap-
pears to violate such duties, and creating board-ordered conditions for
the long-term resolution of the issues in the complaint. This "Condi-
tional Letter of Agreement" specifies the immediate disposition of the
complaint. The licensee is issued the "Conditional Letter of Agree-
ment" by the Ethics Committee, executive director, or designee; a sig-
nature of agreement by the licensee is not required. If the licensee fails
to comply with all the board-ordered conditions in the specified time
frame outlined in the "Conditional Letter of Agreement," the licensee
will not have a right to a subsequent review of the issues in the orig-
inal complaint by the Ethics Committee, but rather, a new complaint
will be opened for the original violation(s), and notice of the viola-
tion(s) will be issued to the licensee, proposing to impose a formal dis-
ciplinary action as the resolution. The disciplinary action proposed for
failure to comply with a "Conditional Letter of Agreement" will be a
reprimand, unless otherwise specified by the Ethics Committee. "Pro-
cedures for Revoking, Suspending, Probating or Denying a License, or
Reprimanding a Licensee" shall apply when a formal disciplinary ac-
tion is proposed.
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(3) Other actions. The Ethics Committee may resolve
pending complaints with other actions, including issuance of a cease
and desist letter, which are not considered formal disciplinary actions.

f(o) If a violation is found but it does not seriously affect the
health and safety of clients or other persons; the committee may resolve
the complaint by informal metheds such as a eease and desist letter or
an informal agreement with the violator to correct the vielation

(p) - (s) (No change.)

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205082

Timothy M. Brown, LCSW

Chair

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 776-6972

¢ ¢ ¢

PART 39. TEXAS BOARD OF
PROFESSIONAL GEOSCIENTISTS

CHAPTER 851. TEXAS BOARD OF
PROFESSIONAL GEOSCIENTISTS LICENSING
AND ENFORCEMENT RULES

SUBCHAPTER B. P.G. LICENSING, FIRM
REGISTRATION, AND GIT CERTIFICATION

22 TAC §§851.25, 851.30, 851.45

The Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists (Board) pro-
poses amendments to 22 TAC §§851.25, 851.30, and 851.45,
concerning the licensure and regulation of Professional Geosci-
entists.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The Board proposes amendments to enhance the section on Ed-
ucation requirements; to clarify the registration requirements for
Geoscience Firms; and to specify and clarify the requirements
and application process for Geoscientist-in-Training certificate
holders who apply for P.G. licensure.

SECTION BY SECTION SUMMARY

An amendment to §851.25 is proposed to add language to pro-
vide that a commercial evaluation of a degree shall be accepted
in lieu of an official transcript only if the credential evaluation ser-
vice has indicated that the credential evaluation was based on a
verified official academic record or transcript.

Amendments to §851.30 are proposed regarding firms that offer
or perform geoscience services on a part-time basis to eliminate
the requirement that a P.G. in responsible charge must have a
physical presence at the relevant firm location and be a regular
full-time employee of the firm; and to clarify that a firm's registra-
tion cannot be renewed once the registration has been expired
for one year. A firm must re-apply to become registered again.

Amendments to §851.45 are proposed to clarify the require-
ments regarding the P.G. application process for an individual
who is certified as a Geoscientist-in-Training.

FISCAL NOTE

Charles Horton, Executive Director, has determined that for the
first five-year period the sections are in effect there will be no
fiscal impact for state or local government as a result of enforcing
or administering the sections as proposed.

SMALL AND MICRO-BUSINESS ECONOMIC IMPACT ANALY-
SIS

Mr. Horton has determined that there may be little to no antici-
pated economic costs to small businesses or micro-businesses
required to comply with proposed §§851.25, 851.30, and 851.45.
There will be no anticipated economic cost to persons who are
required to comply with the proposed sections. Consequently,
an economic impact statement or regulatory flexibility analysis
is not required.

There is no anticipated negative impact on local government.
PUBLIC BENEFIT

Mr. Horton has also determined that for each year of the first five
years the sections are in effect, the public will benefit from adop-
tion of the sections. The public benefit anticipated as a result
of enforcing or administering the sections is that Texas Board
of Professional Geoscientists (TBPG) application rules are clar-
ified, firm registration guidelines are clarified, and the Board will
be able to more effectively regulate the public practice of geo-
science in Texas, which will protect and promote public health,
safety, and welfare.

REGULATORY ANALYSIS OF MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL
RULES

The Board has determined that these proposals are not a
"major environmental rule" as defined by Government Code,
§2001.0225. "Major environmental rule" is defined to mean a
rule the specific intent of which is to protect the environment
or reduce risk to human health from environmental exposure
and that may adversely affect, in a material way, the economy,
a sector of the economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the
environment or the public health and safety of a state or a
sector of the state. Although Professional Geoscientists and
Registered Geoscience Firms play a key role in environmental
protection for the state of Texas, this proposal is not specifically
intended to protect the environment nor reduce risks to human
health from environmental exposure.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Mr. Horton has determined that the proposal does not restrict or
limit an owner's right to his or her property that would otherwise
exist in the absence of government action and, therefore, do not
constitute a taking under Government Code, §2007.043.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Comments on the proposal may be submitted in writing either in
person or by courier to Charles Horton, Executive Director, Texas
Board of Professional Geoscientists, 333 Guadalupe Street,
Tower I-530, Austin, Texas 78701 or by mail to P.O. Box 13225,
Austin, Texas 78711 or by e-mail to chorton@tbpg.state.tx.us.
When e-mailing comments, please indicate "Comments on
Proposed Rules" in the e-mail subject line. Please submit
comments within 30 days following publication of the proposal
in the Texas Register.
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The proposed amendments are authorized by the Texas Occu-
pations Code §1002.151 which provides that the Board shall
adopt and enforce rules consistent with the Texas Geoscience
Practice Act (the Act); by Occupations Code §1002.154 which
provides that Board shall enforce the Act; by Occupations Code
§1002.255 which provides for license eligibility requirements
regarding education and work experience; and by Occupation
Code §1002.351 which provides that the Board may adopt
rules relating to the public practice of geoscience by a firm or
corporation.

The proposed amendments affect Occupations Code, Chapter
1002.

$851.25.  Education.

(a) An applicant must have graduated from a course of study
from an accredited university or program in one of the following dis-
ciplines of geoscience satisfactory to the Board that consists of at least
four years of study and includes at least 30 semester hours or 45 quar-
ter hours of credit in geoscience, of which at least 20 semester hours
or 30 quarter hours of credit must be in upper-level college courses in
that discipline; or satisfactorily completed other equivalent educational
requirements as determined by the Board.

(1) Geology or sub-discipline of geology including but not
limited to engineering geology, petroleum geology, hydrogeology, and
environmental geology.

(2) Geophysics.
(3) Soil science.

(b) An official transcript (including either grades or mark
sheets and proof that the degree was conferred) shall be provided
for the degree(s) utilized to meet the educational requirements for
licensure. Official or notarized copies of transcripts shall be submitted
to the Board. Official transcripts shall be forwarded directly to the
Board office by the respective registrars. The applicant is responsible
for ordering and paying for all such transcripts. Additional academic
information including but not limited to grades and transfer credit shall
be submitted to the Board at the request of the Executive Director.

(c) If transcripts cannot be transmitted directly to the Board
from the issuing institution, the Executive Director may recommend
alternatives to the Board for its approval. Such alternatives may include
validating transcripts in the applicant's possession through a Board-
approved commercial evaluation service.

(d) Degrees and coursework earned at foreign universities
shall be acceptable if the degree conferred and coursework has been
determined by a member of the National Association of Credential
Evaluation Services (NACES) to be equivalent to a degree conferred
by or coursework completed in an accredited institution or program.
It is the applicant's responsibility to have degrees and coursework so
evaluated. The commercial evaluation of a degree shall [will net] be
accepted in lieu of an official transcript only if the credential evaluation
service has indicated that the credential evaluation was based on a
verified official academic record or transcript.

(e) The relevance to the licensing requirements of academic
courses, the titles of which are not self-explanatory, must be substan-
tiated through course descriptions in official school catalogs, bulletins,
syllabi, or by other means.

(f) The Board shall accept no coursework which an applicant's
transcript indicates was not completed with a passing grade or for
credit.

(g) In evaluating two or more sets of transcripts from a single
applicant, the Board shall consider a quarter hour of academic credit as
two-thirds of a semester hour.

$851.30. Firm Registration.

(a) Registrationrequired: Unless an exemption applies, as out-
lined in Texas Occupations Code §1002.351(b), a firm or corporation
may engage in the public practice of geoscience only if the firm is cur-
rently registered with the Board; and

(1) The geoscientific work is performed by, or under the su-
pervision of, a Professional Geoscientist who is in responsible charge
of the work and who signs and seals all geoscientific reports, docu-
ments, and other records as required by this chapter; or

(2) The business of the firm or corporation includes the
public practice of geoscience as determined by Board rule and a prin-
cipal of the firm or an officer or director of the corporation is a Profes-
sional Geoscientist and has overall supervision and control of the geo-
scientific work performed in this state. As provided in §851.10(21) of
this chapter, the term firm includes corporations, sole-proprietorships,
partnerships and/or joint stock associations. For the purposes of this
section, the term public includes but is not limited to political subdi-
visions of the state, business entities, and individuals. The Board has
the authority under the Act to issue an annual certificate of registration
to applicants that, subsequent to review and evaluation, are found to
have met all requirements of the Act and Board rules. The Board has
the authority under the Act to deny a certificate of registration to any
applicant found not to have met all requirements of the Act and Board
rules. This section does not apply to an engineering firm that performs
service or work that is both engineering and geoscience. For the pur-
pose of fees, Geoscience Firms are categorized as either:

(A) An unincorporated sole-proprietorship (a single
owned Professional Geoscientist's geoscience business that has no
separate legal existence from its owner) registered by the Board to
engage in the public practice of geoscience; or

(B) Any other type of firm, corporation, partnership
(whether or not the partnership is an incorporated entity) or other
business entity registered by the Board to engage in the public practice
of geoscience.

(b) Unless registered by the Board or exempt from registra-
tion under Texas Occupations Code §1002.351, an individual, firm, or
corporation may not represent to the public that the individual, firm,
or corporation is a Professional Geoscientist or able to perform geo-
scientific services or prepare a geoscientific report, document, or other
record that requires the signature and seal of a license holder under
Texas Occupations Code §1002.263(b).

(c) Registration requirements: In order to be eligible to regis-
ter as a Geoscience Firm with the Board, the firm must:

(1) Affirm and demonstrate that the firm is an unincorpo-
rated sole-proprietorship or another business entity that offers or per-
forms work that includes the public practice of geoscience;

(2) Identify an Authorized Official of a Firm who shall be
responsible for: the process of submitting the application for the initial
registration of the firm with the Board; ensuring that the firm maintains
compliance with the requirements of registration with the Board; en-
suring that the firm complies with all laws, codes, rules, and standards
applicable to the public practice of geoscience; ensuring that the firm
renews its registration status as long as the firm offers or provides pub-
lic geoscientific services; and communicating with the Board regarding
any matter;

(3) Operate under a business model such that:
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(A) The geoscientific work is performed by, or under
the supervision of, a licensed Professional Geoscientist who is in re-
sponsible charge of the work and who signs and seals all geoscientific
reports, documents, and other records as required by this chapter; or

(B) The principal business of the firm or corporation is
the public practice of geoscience as determined by Board rule and a
principal of the firm or an officer or director of the corporation is a li-
censed Professional Geoscientist and has overall supervision and con-
trol of the geoscientific work performed in this state;

(4) Identify the business model and the Professional Geo-
scientist who fulfills the role of the licensed Professional Geoscientist
in paragraph (3) of this subsection;

(5) Unless the firm is an unincorporated sole-proprietor-
ship or an unincorporated partnership, a firm seeking registration with
the Board must register the firm with the Office of the Secretary of State
(SOS) and obtain a certificate of authority. If the firm operates under
a name other than that which is filed with the SOS, an Assumed Name
Certificate must be filed with the County Clerk. A firm's SOS certifi-
cate of authority number and all Assumed Name Certificate instrument
numbers must be provided to the Board upon initial application. If the
firm is a sole-proprietorship and the firm operates under a name that
does not include the last name of the individual sole proprietor, the
firm shall file an Assumed Name Certificate with the County Clerk;

(6) Submit an application for registration of a firm (form
C), in accordance to the procedures outlined in subsection (d) of this
section;

[(7) A firm that offers or performs professional geoscience
serviees enly on a part-time basis must ensure that the Professional
Geeosecientist who performs the geoseientifie work or wheo direetly su-
pervises the geoseientifie work while the firm is in operation has phys-
ical presence and is a regular full-time employee of the firm- An aetive
licensee whe is a sele proprieter shall satisfy the requirement of the
regular full-time employee:]

(7) [€8)] Upon initial application, a firm shall affirm that the
licensed Professional Geoscientist performing or supervising the geo-
scientific work for a Geoscience Firm is a regular full-time employee.
A Geoscience Firm shall provide evidence of the full-time employment
status upon request of the Board. This subsection does not prohibit
a licensed Professional Geoscientist from performing consulting geo-
science services on a part-time basis as an individual. A Geoscience
Firm shall provide that at least one regular full-time Professional Geo-
scientist employee directly supervise all geoscience work performed in
branch, remote, or project offices. If such a branch, remote or project
office is normally staffed full-time while performing geoscience work
or is represented by the firm as a permanent full-time office, then at
least one regular full-time Professional Geoscientist must be physically
present in each such office.

(d) Firm Registration Application Process.

(1) The Authorized Official of a Firm shall complete and
submit, along with the required application fee, the form furnished by
the Board which includes but is not limited to the following information
listed in subparagraphs (A) - (E) of this paragraph:

(A) The name, address, and communication number of
the firm offering to engage or engaging in the practice of professional
geoscience for the public in Texas;

(B) The name, position, address, and communication
numbers of each officer or director;

(C) The name, address and current active Texas Pro-
fessional Geoscientist license number of each regular, full-time geo-

science employee performing geoscientific work for the public in Texas
on behalf of the firm;

(D) The name, location, and communication numbers
of each subsidiary or branch office offering to engage or engaging in
the practice of professional geoscience for the public in Texas, if any;
and

(E) A signed statement attesting to the correctness and
completeness of the application.

(2) Upon receipt of all required materials and fees and hav-
ing satisfied requirements in this section, the firm shall be registered
and a unique Geoscience Firm registration number shall be assigned to
the firm registration. The new firm registration shall be set to expire at
the end of the calendar month occurring one year after the firm regis-
tration is issued.

(3) An application is active for one year including the date
that it is filed with the Board. After one year an application expires.

(4) Obtaining or attempting to obtain a firm registration by
fraud or false misrepresentation is grounds for an administrative sanc-
tion and/or penalty.

(5) Applications are not reviewed until the application and
fee have been received in the TBPG office. Applicants are initially
notified of any deficiencies in the application.

(6) Applicants should respond to a deficiency notice within
forty-five (45) days from the date of notification for applicants to cor-
rect deficiencies. If an applicant does not respond to a deficiency notice
or does not ensure that necessary documents are provided to the TBPG
office, the application will expire as scheduled one year after the date
it became active.

(e) The application fee will not be refunded.

(f) The initial certificate of registration shall be valid for a pe-
riod of one year from the date it is issued, plus any days remaining
through the end of that month. A renewed firm registration is valid for
a period of one year from the expiration date of the firm registration
being renewed.

(g) A Geoscience Firm's completed and approved registration
is the legal authority granted the holder to actively offer or practice
geoscience upon meeting the requirements as set out in the Act and
these rules. When a firm registration is issued, a firm registration cer-
tificate, the first firm registration certificate expiration card, and the
first portable firm registration card is provided to the new Geoscience
Firm. The firm registration certificate shall bear the name of the firm,
the firm's unique Geoscience Firm registration number, and the date the
firm registration was originally issued. The firm registration certificate
is not valid proof of current registration as a firm, unless the firm regis-
tration certificate expiration card is accompanying the firm registration
certificate and the date on the firm registration certificate card is not
expired. The firm registration certificate expiration card shall bear the
name of the firm, the firm's unique firm registration license number,
and the date the firm registration will expire, unless it is renewed. The
portable firm registration card shall bear the name of the firm, the firm's
unique Geoscience Firm registration number, the date the registration
was originally issued, and the date the registration will expire, unless
it is renewed.

(h) At least sixty (60) days in advance of the date of the expi-
ration, the Board shall notify each firm holding a certificate of regis-
tration of the date of the expiration and the amount of the fee that shall
be required for its renewal for one year. The certificate of registration
may be renewed by completing the renewal application and paying the
annual registration renewal fee set by the Board. It is the sole responsi-
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bility of the firm to pay the required renewal fee prior to the expiration
date, regardless of whether the renewal notice is received.

(i) A certificate of registration which has been expired for less
than one (1) year may be renewed by completing a firm registration
renewal application; an affirmation signed by the Authorized Official
of a Firm and the licensed Professional Geoscientist who performs or
supervises the geoscience work for the firm indicating whether geosci-
entific services were offered, pending, or performed for the public in
Texas when the firm's registration was expired and payment of a $50
late renewal penalty. If a firm under application for late firm regis-
tration renewal has met the requirements for renewal and has indicated
that the geoscience services were offered, pending, or performed for the
public in Texas while the firm's registration was expired, unless certain
allegations of misconduct are present, the firm's registration shall be
renewed. Information regarding unregistered geoscience practice re-
ceived under this section shall be referred to the enforcement division
for appropriate action that could include the initiation of a complaint
by the Board. A firm registration that has been expired for more than
one year is permanently expired and may not be renewed; a new appli-

cation is required.
(j) The application fee is non-refundable.

$851.45.  Relationship of Geoscientist-in-Training Certification to Li-
censure of Professional Geoscientists.

The Geoscientist-in-Training (GIT) Certification is intended as a step-
ping stone toward licensure as individuals are gaining acceptable geo-
science experience. Upon accruing five years of post graduate geo-
science work experience, individuals [Iadividuals] who are GIT certi-
fied and in good standing with the Board will [enly] need to:

(1) submit TBPG's Initial P.G. License Application;

(2) submit the application fee as detailed in §851.80 of this
chapter;

(3) supply letters of reference as detailed in §851.24 of this
chapter;|[5]

(4) provide evidence of experience as described in §851.23
of this chapter;[;] and

(5) successfully pass the appropriate practice exam of AS-
BOG or CSSE. The degree program, coursework and transcripts are
evaluated during the application phase for GIT Certification, and shall
not be re-evaluated upon application for licensure as a Professional
Geoscientist.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 20,

2012.

TRD-201204998

Charles Horton

Executive Director

Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 936-4405

¢ ¢ ¢
TITLE 28 INSURANCE

PART 1. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF

INSURANCE

CHAPTER 1. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
SUBCHAPTER D. EFFECT OF CRIMINAL
CONDUCT

DIVISION 2. PROCEDURES GOVERNING
PERSONS SUBJECT TO 18 U.S.C. §1033 AND
§1034

28 TAC §§1.520 - 1.530

The Texas Department of Insurance (TDI) proposes new Division
2, entitled Procedures Governing Persons Subject to 18 U.S.C.
§1033 and §1034, to include new proposed 28 TAC §§1.520 -
1.530, concerning standard procedures for persons convicted of
certain felony offenses to obtain written consent to engage in
the business of insurance. The department is adding "Division
1, Fitness and Licensing" to existing §§1.501 - 1.509 which out-
lines TDI's procedures in determining whether persons applying
for a license or authorization are honest, trustworthy, reliable,
and fit to hold those positions. No amendments are proposed to
existing §§1.501 - 1.509. TDI will not consider any comments,
including requests for amendments, regarding existing §§1.501
- 1.509.

Sections 1.520 - 1.530 are necessary to: (i) implement the Vi-
olent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, Public
Law 103 - 322, H.R. 3355, Title 18 United States Code §1033
and §1034, effective September 13, 1994, which prohibits any
individual convicted of a criminal felony of dishonesty, a breach
of trust, or an offense under 18 U.S.C. §1033, from engaging or
participating in the business of insurance without written consent
from an insurance regulatory official authorized to regulate the
insurer; and (i) sets forth the procedures by which the commis-
sioner will determine whether individuals convicted of a criminal
felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense
under 18 U.S.C. Section 1033, should be granted, denied, or re-
voked written consent to engage or participate in the business
of insurance in Texas.

The Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, ef-
fective September 13, 1994, H.R. 4092 (103rd), provides that the
legislative intent of the Act is to control and prevent crime. The
Act creates criminal penalties and authorizes the U.S. Attorney
General to bring civil or criminal actions against offenders. The
Act makes it a federal crime for certain individuals convicted of
a state or federal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust
from engaging in the business of insurance unless the individual
is specifically authorized by written consent from an insurance
regulatory official authorized to regulate the insurer. The com-
missioner is TDI's chief executive and administrative officer with
the authority to enforce laws applicable to TDI, and therefore, the
regulatory official at TDI authorized to regulate the insurer. The
commissioner has the discretion to determine the method of in-
quiry regarding the determination of whether to grant or deny an
individual's request for written consent because the Act does not
specify the method.

Sections 1.520 - 1.530 set forth the scope of the convicted per-
son's consent process, clarify the procedure for consent appli-
cation submission, outline the criteria that the commissioner will
review in determining whether to grant written consent, and ad-
dress denials and administrative appeals of such denials. The
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proposal is necessary to maintain effective regulation of the busi-
ness of insurance in Texas by establishing requirements and pro-
cedures to further ensure that persons granted written consent
are honest, trustworthy, reliable, and fit. This proposal does not
impose additional requirements or costs on persons with cur-
rent licenses or authorizations, nor should it affect the status of
that current license or authorization, to the extent the person has
made full disclosure to TDI of all criminal conduct. An individual
that maintains a current license or authorization may incur ad-
ditional costs under this proposal as a result of a subsequent
criminal conviction.

The use of criminal history information is necessary to confirm
that an applicant is subject to the Act and TDlI's rules, as well
as to assist the commissioner in determining whether to grant
or deny written consent under 18 U.S.C. §1033. The proposal
utilizes TDI's standard requirement for obtaining an individual's
criminal history information by using the individual's fingerprints.
Generally, the proposal does not require any individual who has
previously provided TDI fingerprints as part of an earlier sub-
mission that was granted or approved to resubmit fingerprints.
However, TDI has the authority to request additional information
from applicants under §1.525 and an applicant has a duty to dis-
close to TDI certain information under §1.527. Any fingerprints
submitted as part of a request for written consent that is granted
may also be used for subsequent license or authorization appli-
cation submissions.

The Act specifies that any individual who has been convicted of
any criminal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or
who has been convicted of an offense under 18 U.S.C §1033,
may engage in the business of insurance or participate in the
business if the person has the written consent of any insurance
regulatory official authorized to regulate the insurer, which con-
sent specifically refers to 18 U.S.C §1033(e). The prohibition
under the Act applies to individuals who willfully engage or par-
ticipate in the writing of insurance, or the reinsuring of risks, by
an insurer, including all acts necessary or incidental to writing or
reinsuring, and the activities of persons who act as, or are, offi-
cers, directors, agents, or employees of insurers, or other per-
sons authorized to act on their behalf, whose activities affect in-
terstate commerce. Under the proposal, TDI has the discretion
to determine whether Texas is the appropriate state from which
an applicant should request written consent.

Section-By-Section Overview of the Proposal.

Section 1.520 addresses Purpose and Scope. Section 1.520(a)
provides that the purpose of Division 2 is to implement 18 U.S.C.
§1033 by establishing procedures for TDI and the commissioner
to (i) obtain criminal history information; (ii) obtain background
information; and (iii) determine the fitness of applicants. Sec-
tion 1.520(b) mirrors the broad application of the Act by speci-
fying that the rules reach to any individual who engages or par-
ticipates in the business of insurance whose activities affect in-
terstate commerce and who has been convicted of any criminal
felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense un-
der the Act. The Act covers all acts necessary or incidental to the
writing of insurance or reinsurance and the activities of persons
who act as or are officers, directors, producers, or employees
and the activities of persons who act as or are officers, directors,
producers, or employees and includes those authorized to act
on their behalf. These subsections are necessary to describe
the applicability of Division 2.

Section 1.520(c) tracks §1.501(b) and identifies the persons to
whom these sections apply. Section 1.520(d) clarifies that the

laws and regulations regarding the fithess of individuals to apply
for a license or authorization with TDI and other states are not
preempted by these rules. These proposed rules are separate
and in addition to state statutory and regulatory licensing qualifi-
cations. This section is necessary to explain that even though a
person may obtain written consent from the commissioner under
these rules, the person may still be barred from the insurance
industry by state law. The Act does not provide for automatic
letters of consent for individuals who possess a state insurance
license, does not contain grandfather provisions for individuals
already transacting the business of insurance, and does not pro-
vide a time limit on how far back the felony conviction triggering
the requirement to request written consent must have occurred.
Section 1.520(d) further provides that an individual could violate
state statutory and regulatory licensing requirements, as well as
Division 2, by failing to inform TDI of a prior criminal conviction
on a license application.

Section 1.520(e) incorporates severability clause language to
conform to current agency style.

Section §1.521 addresses Definitions. The §1.521(1) definition
of "Act" means the Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement
Act of 1994, Title 18 United States Code §1033 and §1034. In
§1.521(2) the term "applicant” clarifies that the term includes any
person subject to the Act requesting written consent from TDI, as
opposed to an applicant for a license, and refers to the definitions
in §1.521(10) and (11).

The §1.521(3) definition of "business of insurance" is as defined
in 18 U.S.C. §1033(f)(1), which provides that "business of in-
surance" means (i) the writing of insurance; (ii) the reinsuring of
risks; (iii) all acts necessary or incidental to such writing or rein-
suring; and (iv) the activities of persons who act as, or are, of-
ficers, directors, agents, or employees of insurers, or other per-
sons authorized to act on their behalf. The term also includes
acts provided in Insurance Code §101.051.

The §1.521(4) definition of "commissioner" clarifies that the term
means the commissioner of insurance or her or his designee.
This definition is necessary to define the term as used in Division
2.

The §1.521(5) definition of "control" is as defined in Insurance
Code §823.005, which provides in §823.005(a), that for pur-
poses of Insurance Code Chapter 823, control is the power to
direct, or cause the direction of, the management and policies of
a person, other than power deriving from an official position with
or corporate office held by the person. The power may be pos-
sessed directly or indirectly by any means, including through the
ownership of voting securities or by contract, other than a com-
mercial contract for goods or nonmanagement services. Insur-
ance Code §823.005(b) provides that, for purposes of this chap-
ter, a person controls another if the person possesses the power
described by Subsection (a) with regard to the other person. In-
surance Code §823.005(c) provides that, after providing notice
and opportunity for hearing to each person in interest, the com-
missioner may determine that, notwithstanding the absence of
a presumption under §823.151, a person controls an authorized
insurer if the person, directly or indirectly and alone or under
an agreement with one or more other persons, exercises such
a controlling influence over the management or policies of the
insurer that it is necessary or appropriate in the public interest
or for the protection of the insurer's policyholders that the per-
son be considered to control the insurer. The commissioner will
make specific findings of fact to support a determination under
this subsection. This definition is necessary to define the term as

PROPOSED RULES October 5, 2012 37 TexReg 7859



used in the definition of "person subject to the Act" in §1.521(11)
of this title.

The §1.521(6) definition of "criminal felony involving dishonesty
or a breach of trust" incorporates the list of crimes that may con-
tain an element of dishonesty or breach of trust, as outlined in the
Guidelines for State Insurance Regulators to the Violent Crime
Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994: United States Code
Sections 1033 and 1034, adopted by the NAIC in 2011. The list
of crimes is not exhaustive and there is no time limit on how long
ago the felony conviction may have occurred.

In §1.521(7), the term "domestic" means an entity organized un-
der the laws of Texas or a commercially domiciled insurer as de-
fined in Insurance Code §823.004. This definition is necessary
to define the term as used in the definition of "person subject to
the Act" in §1.521(11) of this title.

In §1.521(8), the term "insurer" is as defined in 18 U.S.C.
§1033(f)(2). Title 18 U.S.C. §1033(f)(2) provides that the term
"insurer" means any entity, the business activity of which is
the writing of insurance or the reinsuring of risks, and includes
any person who acts as, or is, an officer, director, agent, or
employee of that business.

The §1.521(9) definition of "interstate commerce" is as defined in
18 U.S.C. §1033(f)(3), which provides that the term means com-
merce within the District of Columbia, or any territory or posses-
sion of the United States; all commerce between any point in the
State, territory, possession, or the District of Columbia and any
point outside thereof; all commerce between points within the
same State through any place outside such State; or all other
commerce over which the United States has jurisdiction.

The §1.521(10) definition of "offense under the Act" means the
enumerated offenses in 18 U.S.C. §1033.

In §1.521(11) the term "person subject to the Act" includes any
individual who has been convicted of a criminal felony involving
dishonesty or a breach of trust, or who has been convicted of an
offense under the Act, who intends to engage or participate in the
business of insurance in Texas, whose activities affect interstate
commerce. This definition is necessary to incorporate the broad
scope of individuals to whom the Act applies. Title 18 U.S.C.
§1033(f)(1) provides that the "business of insurance" includes,
in relevant part, all acts necessary or incidental to the writing or
reinsuring of risks and the activities of persons who act as, or
are, officers, directors, agents, or employees of insurers or who
are other persons authorized to act on behalf of such persons.
The group of "other persons" authorized to act on behalf of offi-
cers, directors, agents, or employees of insurers would include
any subcontractors, third-party administrators, consultants, pro-
fessionals, and those who receive compensation or remunera-
tion from such business.

The §1.521(12) definition of "request for written consent” clarifies
that only a completed request for written consent form submitted
to TDI by a person subject to the Act, as defined in §1.521(11),
constitutes a request for written consent that may be considered
the commissioner.

Section 1.521(13) defines the term "TDI" as the Texas Depart-
ment of Insurance.

Section 1.521(14) defines "written consent" as the commis-
sioner's granting of authorization for a person subject to the Act
to engage or participate in the business of insurance in Texas to
implement 18 U.S.C. §1033(e)(1)(A).

Section 1.522 addresses Written Consent Required. Section
1.522(a) explains that any person subject to the Act is required
to obtain written consent from the commissioner to participate or
engage in the business of insurance in Texas. TDI considered
the NAIC Guidelines for State Insurance Regulators to the Vio-
lent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, adopted to
be effective 2011, that stated, in part, that it could not have been
the intent of Congress to allow one state to extend its statutory
power into other jurisdictions. Therefore, Texas requires indi-
viduals participating or engaging in the business of insurance in
Texas to request written consent from the commissioner. If the
commissioner determines that another state is the appropriate
state from which an individual must request written consent, or
TDI does not regulate the insurer, the request for written consent
will be denied and a notice explaining the reasons for denial will
be sent to the applicant as provided under §1.529 of this title.

Section 1.522(b) is necessary to explain that the current regula-
tions regarding licensing individuals with criminal backgrounds in
Chapter I, Subchapter D, (relating to effect of criminal conduct)
are in addition to the requirements under Division 2. A person
subject to the Act must be granted written consent to retain a li-
cense or authorization, and before any new or renewal license
or authorization will be issued. Title 18 U.S.C. §1033 does not
provide for any grandfather provisions by which an individual al-
ready licensed may be exempt from the requirements under the
Act. A person currently licensed is still required to obtain written
consent from the commissioner to engage or participate in the
business of insurance in Texas.

Section 1.522 (c) explains that a person subject to the Act must
be granted written consent from the commissioner, as opposed
to merely submitting a request for written consent, before engag-
ing or participating in the business of insurance in Texas.

Section 1.522(d) provides that TDI may share information
with other states regarding an individual's request for written
consent. The NAIC guidelines provide for the exchange of
data regarding applicants for written consent under 18 U.S.C.
§1033. Participating state insurance departments established
the National Special Activities Database which can be used to
securely share data on applicants requesting written consent.
This section is necessary to ensure that accurate information is
exchanged among states where the person subject to the Act
engages in the business of insurance in multiple jurisdictions.

Section 1.523 addresses Insurer Responsibility under the Act.
The Act provides that it is a federal crime for any individual who
is engaged in the business of insurance whose activities affect
interstate commerce to willfully permit a person subject to the
Act to willfully engage or participate in the business of insurance
without written consent. This section is necessary to clarify that
under the Act, insurers have an obligation not to willfully permit a
person convicted of a felony crime of dishonesty or a breach of
trust to engage or participate in the business of insurance without
written consent.

Section 1.524 addresses Request for Written Consent. Section
1.524(a) and (b) are necessary to address the availability of the
request for written consent form and the process by which the
request for written consent form may be submitted to TDI. The
request for written consent form is necessary because, under 18
U.S.C. §1033, the commissioner developed guidelines relating
to the matters that TDI will consider in determining whether to
grant, deny, or revoke written consent. These matters include
criminal background checks for each applicant. Section 1.524(c)
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is necessary to inform applicants that assistance with submitting
a request for written consent is available by calling TDI.

Section 1.524(d) - (f) provide the screening criteria and factors
by which the commissioner will evaluate whether to grant or deny
written consent. Section 1.502 provides the guidelines used by
TDI to determine a person's fitness for holding a license, autho-
rization, certification, permit, or registration, and the person's fit-
ness to have the ability to control licensed, registered, permitted,
certificate holding, and authorized entities, when that person has
committed a criminal offense or has engaged in fraudulent or dis-
honest activity. The commissioner employs the same principles
as are set forth in §1.502 to determine whether the mitigating
or extenuating factors provided to TDI in the screening criteria
outweigh the serious nature of the criminal offense when viewed
in light of the applicant's occupation. The commissioner deter-
mined that, in addition to other factors, the screening criteria for
applicants for licensure and authorization under §1.502 should
be utilized in determining whether a person subject to the Act
should be granted written consent under Division 2. Although
the Act also applies to other persons without a license or autho-
rization from TDI, the commissioner determined that the same
principles set forth in §1.502 are the best means to determine
whether a person subject to the Act is fit to be granted written
consent and worthy of public confidence.

Occupations Code Chapter 53 states the general procedure a
licensing authority must employ when considering the conse-
quences of a criminal record on granting or continuing a per-
son's license, registration, or authorization. Occupations Code
§53.025 authorizes a licensing authority to issue guidelines relat-
ing to its practice under Chapter 53. Insurance Code §§801.101,
801.102, and 801.151 - 801.155 authorize the commissioner to
review the fitness and reputation of officers, directors, and per-
sons in control of insurance companies and to refuse or revoke a
certificate of authority to any company based on a determination
that such officer, director, or controlling person is not worthy of
public confidence.

Section 1.524(qg) clarifies that it is the responsibility of the person
subject to the Act to secure and provide to TDI the information
and documentation required by this section.

Section 1.525 addresses Requirement to Provide Fingerprints
and Documents. Section 1.525(a) requires an applicant to sub-
mit all additional requested information to TDI within 30 days
of the date the request is mailed to the applicant by TDI. This
30-day provision allows the applicant adequate time to submit
the additional information and specifies a uniform minimum time
period for all applicants. TDI will send the applicant a notice of
deficiency if the requested information is not submitted to TDI. If
TDI does not receive the information within 180 days of the date
the notice of deficiency was mailed by TDI, the request for writ-
ten consent may be denied or deemed incomplete. This section
is consistent with 28 TAC §1.806 regarding a deficient applica-
tion for an agent's license and provides uniform procedures by
which TDI will notify applicants of deficiencies in the request for
written consent.

Section 1.525(b) requires an applicant to submit to TDI a com-
plete set of the applicant's fingerprints, full payment for all pro-
cessing fees charged by the Texas Department of Public Safety
and the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and all additional iden-
tifying information required by the Texas Department of Public
Safety and the Federal Bureau of Investigation for processing fin-
gerprints. The individual's fingerprints will either be submitted di-
rectly to DPS, if captured by the DPS electronic vendor, or to TDI

and then to DPS if captured on paper. The fingerprint processing
fee charged by DPS is set by Government Code §411.088(a)(2).
The associated fingerprint processing fee charged by the FBI is
set by federal authority and is made known to TDI by DPS. This
section is necessary because fingerprints are the only method
the FBI will accept to produce identity and criminal history infor-
mation. The proposed section utilizes the secure and uniform
procedures by which TDI already obtains a complete criminal
history from individuals applying for a license or authorization
and from individuals who are seeking to be associated with a
regulated entity. These same procedures will be utilized for other
persons not seeking a license from TDI, but who are engaged or
participating in the business of insurance in Texas.

Section 1.525(c) clarifies that the procedures and requirements
for fingerprint application, format, use, and confidentiality in Divi-
sion 1 of this subchapter (relating to Fitness for Licensing) apply
to persons subject to the Act requesting written consent.

Section 1.526 addresses Effect of False or Misleading State-
ments. The truth and veracity of documents and information
submitted by or on behalf of the person subject to the Act are
essential in identifying the fitness of the applicant to engage or
participate in the business of insurance in Texas. If TDI deter-
mines that the person subject to the Act, or her or his represen-
tative, has made false or misleading statements, or has failed
to disclose information, the commissioner may deny the request
for written consent or revoke the written consent. Section 1.526
further provides that TDI's Fraud Section will make an indepen-
dent determination whether TDI should pursue an investigation
of fraudulent insurance acts under the Insurance Code or these
rules, or whether referral to another law enforcement agency or
federal prosecutor should be made. This section is necessary
because ultimately, only a federal prosecutor or court will deter-
mine how restrictive or broadly to apply the statute. Additionally,
these rules do not and cannot establish a crime under federal
law. However, TDI has the authority to provide for the financial
soundness and the economic safety of insurers and consumers
by ensuring that insurers regulated by TDI are not in violation of
federal criminal law.

Section 1.527 addresses Disclosure. Section 1.527 requires a
person subject to the Act granted written consent under Division
2 to notify TDI within 30 days of certain information, including (i)
a felony conviction; (ii) an administrative action taken against the
person subject to the Act by a financial or insurance regulator of
a state or the United States; (iii) increased job duties; (iv) admin-
istrative or other legal proceedings filed regarding her or his au-
thorized or unauthorized insurance activities; (v) revocations and
suspensions of any license or authorization, receivership, and
administrative sanctions; and (vi) if written consent is revoked,
suspended, terminated, granted, or altered by another regula-
tory official. This section is necessary because written consent
granted by the commissioner is conditioned upon the person re-
maining in the same or similar job position with the same duties.
The occurrence of the events required to be disclosed to TDI in
§1.527 requires the person subject to the Act to request a new
written consent from the commissioner. This section is neces-
sary because the commissioner considers it important that per-
sons subject to the Act granted written consent are honest, trust-
worthy, and reliable.

Section 1.528 addresses Burden of Proof. Section 1.528 pro-
vides that the burden of proof is on the person subject to the Act
to show that, although he or she has been convicted of a criminal
felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense un-
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der the Act, circumstances, facts, and conditions are present that
allow the commissioner to grant written consent. This section is
necessary because the person subject to the Act is seeking af-
firmative relief. The person subject to the Act also has relative
access to and control over information pertinent to the merits of
her or his case.

Section 1.529 addresses Revocation or Denial of Written Con-
sent. In §1.529(a) and (b) the commissioner developed guide-
lines relating to the matters that the commissioner will consider
in determining whether to deny or revoke any written consent
under the commissioner or TDI's jurisdiction. These matters in-
clude if the applicant moves insurance activities to another state;
has a license or authorization denied, suspended, revoked, sur-
rendered, forfeited, cancelled, terminated, or altered in Texas or
another state, or by any association; is convicted of a criminal
felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust or an offense
under the Act after written consent was granted; or violates the
terms, conditions, or restrictions of the written consent. In addi-
tion to the factors and screening criteria considered in §1.524,
the commissioner may deny a request for written consent if the
individual is not a person subject to the Act as defined in §1.521
of this title; the applicant violates Division 2; Texas is not the ap-
propriate state to grant written consent; or the applicant's request
for written consent was denied or revoked by another state. TDI
may utilize the NAIC National Special Activities Database as pro-
vided under §1.522(d) of this title to share information regarding
a request for written consent from a person that is not subject to
Division 2, or if Texas is not the appropriate state due to a lack of
regulatory interest over the applicant's proposed insurance ac-
tivities, as reflected in her or his request for written consent.

Section 1.529(c) provides that if written consent is denied or re-
voked, TDI will send the applicant a notice setting forth a state-
ment of legal authority and a short, plain statement of the factors
pertinent to the denial or revocation. Section 1.529(d) provides
that if written consent is denied or revoked, TDI will not grant a
license or authorization to any person subject to the Act or permit
a person subject to the Act to retain a license or authorization.
This provision does not alter the statutes and rules regulating de-
nial and revocation of a license. Section 1.529(e) provides that
a person subject to the Act will have 30 days from the date of
notice to make a written request for a hearing. Section 1.529(f)
explains that if a written request for hearing is not made, the
notice of denial or revocation will constitute a final agency deci-
sion. This section is necessary to explain that the commissioner
has the discretion to determine whether to grant or deny an indi-
vidual's request for written consent. It also clarifies that written
consent from the commissioner is a prerequisite to retain or ob-
tain an insurance license. The laws and regulations regarding
the fitness of individuals to apply for or retain a license or autho-
rization issued by TDI are not preempted by these rules.

Section 1.530 addresses Hearing. If a person subject to the Act
requests a hearing, the hearing will be conducted by the State
Office of Administrative Hearings. The hearing is subject to the
procedures for contested cases under Government Code Chap-
ter 2001 and Insurance Code Chapter 40.

FISCAL NOTE. Chris Bean, director, Agent and Adjuster Licens-
ing, has determined that for each year of the first five years the
proposed sections will be in effect, there will be no fiscal impact
to state and local governments as a result of the enforcement or
administration of the proposal. TDI estimates that there will be
no measurable effect on local employment or the local economy
as a result of the proposal.

PUBLIC BENEFIT/COST NOTE. Mr. Bean also has determined
that for each year of the first five years the new proposed §§1.520
- 1.530 are in effect, there are several public benefits anticipated
because of the enforcement and administration of the proposal,
as well as potential costs for persons required to comply with the
proposal.

ANTICIPATED PUBLIC BENEFITS

The public benefits anticipated as a result of the proposal in-
clude: (i) providing a concise procedural overview to prohibited
persons requesting written consent from the commissioner, in-
cluding their rights to administrative review and responsibilities
in providing documentation as requested in a timely manner; (ii)
the opportunity for the reintroduction of rehabilitated convicted
offenders into employment in the business of insurance; and (iii)
providing for the exchange of information by states regarding re-
quests for written consent to promote efficient application pro-
cesses and prevent applicants forum shopping among states.

ANTICIPATED COSTS TO COMPLY WITH THE PROPOSAL

TDI anticipates that there will be probable costs to persons
required to comply with several of the proposed new sec-
tions during each year of the first five years that the rules
will be in effect. The total probable economic costs to indi-
viduals required to comply with the fingerprint requirement
in §1.525 is approximately $41.45 for an electronic finger-
print submission and $51.45 for a paper fingerprint card
submission for an individual fingerprinted at a law enforce-
ment agency in Texas. An individual is required to use TDI's
form for electronic fingerprint submission to TDI, available at:
https://www.tdi.state.tx.us/forms/finagentlicense/FAST_form_fi-
nal.pdf. There is an electronic fingerprinting processing and
collection fee of $41.45 payable to the participating vendor. The
fee includes consolidated DPS and FBI records electronically
processed and collected at a participating vendor and submitted
to TDI on behalf of the applicant.

While TDI anticipates that most individuals in Texas will utilize
the convenience and reliability offered by authorized electronic
fingerprint services, an individual may choose to submit a paper
fingerprint card instead of an electronic submission. Human Re-
sources Code §80.001(b) authorizes a criminal law enforcement
agency to charge an amount not to exceed $10 for capturing fin-
gerprints on a paper fingerprint card. Based on this information,
TDI anticipates that an individual choosing to submit her or his
fingerprints on a paper fingerprint card may be subject to a fin-
gerprint collection fee of $0.00 to $10 charged by a criminal law
enforcement agency in Texas. An individual in a state other than
Texas will be subject to the fees in the state in which they have
their fingerprints captured on a paper fingerprint card, which may
vary from state to state. In addition to a fee of $41.45 charged
by an authorized company processing the fingerprints on behalf
of DPS, an individual must pay the fee associated with the local
law enforcement agency capturing their fingerprints on a paper
fingerprint card, for a total estimated cost of $51.45 for a paper
fingerprint card submission. TDI's form for paper fingerprint card
submission is available at: https://www.tdi.state.tx.us/forms/fina-
gentlicense/FAST_CARD.pdf.

According to  http://www.traviscountyclerk.org/eclerk/Con-
tent.do?code=M.18, certified copies in Travis County may be
requested by phone, email, or in person with a $5.00 per docu-
ment charge for the certification service plus an additional cost
of $5.00 per document search. This cost will vary depending on
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the county in which the individual requests certified copies and
the total number of pages per record.

Any additional information that must be supplied by an individual
at the time of fingerprinting is minimal and TDI does not antici-
pate an associated cost with providing the required information.
TDI anticipates that an individual should only have to submit a
complete set of fingerprints under the proposed rules one time,
so long as the applicant maintains a continuous authorization
with TDI.

ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT AND REGULATORY FLEX-
IBILITY ANALYSIS FOR SMALL AND MICRO BUSINESSES.
The costs to comply will not vary between the smallest and
largest businesses because individual prohibited persons are
required to submit and provide all required documentation
for consideration by TDI in the granting or denying of a letter
of consent. Different business models or personnel benefits
offered may result in cost differences between entities. These
differences, however, are a matter of choice and are not a
result of the proposed rules. Although TDI does not believe
that the proposed amendments will have an adverse effect on
small and micro businesses, TDI considered the purpose of the
applicable statutes, which is to prevent and control crime, and
has determined that it is neither legal nor feasible to waive the
provisions of the proposed amendments for small or micro busi-
nesses. To waive or modify the requirements of the proposed
amendments for small and micro businesses would result in a
disparate effect on policyholders and other persons affected by
the amendments.

TAKINGS IMPACT ASSESSMENT. TDI determined that no pri-
vate real property interests are affected by this proposal and that
this proposal does not restrict or limit an owner's right to property
that would otherwise exist in the absence of government action
and, therefore, does not constitute a taking or require a takings
impact assessment under Government Code §2007.043.

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC COMMENT. To be considered, written
comments on the proposal must be submitted no later than 5:00
p.m. on November 5, 2012 to Sara Waitt, General Counsel, Mail
Code 113-2A, Texas Department of Insurance, P.O. Box 149104,
Austin, Texas 78714-9104. An additional copy of the comment
must be simultaneously submitted to Chris Bean, Director, Agent
and Adjuster Licensing, Financial Regulation Division, MC 107-
1A, P.O. Box 149104, Austin, Texas 78714-9104. Any request
for a public hearing should be submitted separately to the Office
of the Chief Clerk before the close of the public comment period.
If a hearing is held, written and oral comments presented at the
hearing will be considered.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY. The new sections are proposed un-
der Title 18 U.S.C. §1033(e) (Crimes by or Affecting Persons
Engaged in the Business of Insurance whose Activities Affect
Interstate Commerce), Occupations Code Chapter 53 (Conse-
quences Of Criminal Conviction), Government Code Chapter
411 (Department of Public Safety of The State Of Texas), in-
cluding §411.106 (Access to Criminal History Record Informa-
tion: Texas Department of Insurance); §411.083 (Dissemination
of Criminal History Record Information); and §411.087 (Access
to Criminal History Record Information Maintained by Federal
Bureau of Investigation or Local Criminal Justice Agency).

Additionally, the new sections are proposed under Insurance
Code §36.001 (General Rulemaking Authority), §82.051(Can-
cellation or Revocation of Authorization), §801.056 (Failure to
Provide Complete Set of Fingerprints: Ground for Denial of

Application), §801.101(Department Inquiry), §4001.005 (Rules),
§4001.103 (Failure to Provide Complete Set of Fingerprints:
Ground for Denial of Application), and §4005.101 (Grounds for
License Denial or Disciplinary Action).

Title 18 U.S.C. §1033(e)(1)(A) provides that any individual who
has been convicted of any criminal felony involving dishonesty
or a breach of trust, or who has been convicted of an offense
under this section, and who willfully engages in the business of
insurance whose activities affect interstate commerce or partic-
ipates in the business, will be fined as provided in this title or
imprisoned not more than five years, or both. Title 18 U.S.C.
§1033(e)(1)(B) states any individual who is engaged in the busi-
ness of insurance whose activities affect interstate commerce
and who willfully permits the participation described in subpara-
graph (A) will be fined as provided in this title or imprisoned not
more than five years, or both. Title 18 U.S.C. §1033(e)(2) pro-
vides that a person described in paragraph (1)(A) may engage
in the business of insurance or participate in the business if the
person has the written consent of any insurance regulatory offi-
cial authorized to regulate the insurer, which consent specifically
refers to this subsection.

Occupations Code Chapter 53 states the general procedure a
licensing authority must employ when considering the conse-
quences of a criminal record on granting or continuing a person's
license, authorization, certificate, permit, or registration.

Government Code §411.106 authorizes TDI to receive criminal
history information from the DPS regarding insurance company
principals and officers and applicants for any entity holding or
seeking a license, certificate, permit, registration, or other au-
thorization issued by TDI to engage in a regulated activity under
the Insurance Code. Government Code §411.083 and §411.087
authorize TDI to obtain, through DPS, criminal history informa-
tion from the FBI on those individuals described in Government
Code §411.106.

Insurance Code §36.001 provides that the commissioner may
adopt any rules necessary and appropriate to implement the
powers and duties of TDI under the Insurance Code and other
laws of this state.

Insurance Code §82.051 provides that after notice and oppor-
tunity for a hearing, the commissioner may cancel or revoke an
authorization if the holder of the authorization is found to be in
violation of, or to have failed to comply with, this code or a rule of
the commissioner. Insurance Code §801.056 authorizes TDI to
request a complete set of fingerprints from individuals controlling
an insurance company, an insurance company's corporate offi-
cers, and individual applicants for any license, permit, registra-
tion, certification, or other authorization issued by TDI to engage
in a regulated activity under the Insurance Code.

Insurance Code §§801.101, 801.102, and 801.151 - 801.155 au-
thorize the commissioner to review the fitness and reputation
of officers, directors, and persons in control of insurance com-
panies and to refuse or revoke a certificate of authority to any
company based on a determination that such officer, director, or
controlling person is not worthy of public confidence.

Insurance Code §4001.005 authorizes the commissioner to
adopt rules necessary to implement Insurance Code Title 13.

Insurance Code §4001.103 also authorizes TDI to request a
complete set of fingerprints from individual applicants for any
license, permit, or other authorization issued by TDI to engage
in a regulated activity under Insurance Code Title 13.
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Insurance Code §4005.101 provides that TDI may deny or re-
voke a license to an individual licensed under Insurance Code
Title 13, if that individual has been convicted of a felony or has
engaged in fraudulent or dishonest activities.

CROSS REFERENCE TO STATUTE. Division 2 rules affect the
following statutes: 18 U.S.C. §1033; Insurance Code §§82.051
- 82.053, 101.051, 823.005, 4005.101 - 4005.103, Chapter 40,
Chapter 701, and Article 21.47; Occupations Code Chapter 53;
and Government Code Chapter 2001.

§1.520. Purpose and Scope.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this division is to implement 18
United States Code §1033 and §1034 that authorize any individual
who has been convicted of a criminal felony involving dishonesty or
a breach of trust, or who has been convicted of an offense under 18
U.S.C. §1033, to request written consent from the commissioner to en-
gage or participate in the business of insurance in Texas. This division
establishes the procedures by which TDI may obtain criminal history
information and any additional documentation on applicants. To effect

(i) _the writing of insurance;

(ii) _the reinsuring of risks;

(iii)  all acts necessary or incidental to such writing
or reinsuring; and

(iv) the activities of persons who act as, or are, offi-
cers, directors, agents, or employees of insurers, or who are other per-
sons authorized to act on behalf of such persons; and

(B) acts provided in Insurance Code §101.051.

(4) Commissioner--The commissioner of insurance or her
or his designee.
(5) Control--As defined in Insurance Code §823.005.

(6) Criminal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of
trust--A felony offense with elements of:

(A) any type of fraud, including insurance fraud, mail
fraud, mortgage fraud, Medicare fraud, land fraud, tax fraud, securities

this implementation, TDI developed guidelines to determine the fitness

fraud, and criminal fraud;

of applicants. TDI considers it important that authorization holders be
honest, trustworthy, and reliable.

(b) Scope. This division applies to any individual who en-
gages or participates in the business of insurance whose activities af-
fect interstate commerce and who has been convicted of any criminal
felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense under 18
U.S.C. §1033.

(c) Use of terms. As used in this division:

(1) the terms "license holder," "licensee," and "authoriza-
tion holder" include all persons listed in §1.501(b) of this title (relating
to Purpose and Application); and

(2) theterms "license" and "authorization" include all types
of licenses, registrations, certificates, permits, or authorizations listed
in §1.501(b) of this title.

(d) Applicability of other laws. State statutory and regulatory
licensing qualifications and requirements are separate from require-
ments under the Act and this division. Failure to inform TDI of a prior
criminal conviction on a license application could result in a violation
of'this division, as well as constitute grounds for denial or revocation of
an insurance license. State laws limiting the ability of certain persons
with criminal records to engage in the business of insurance operate
independently from the Act, and are not preempted or modified by the
Act.

(e) Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds that
any provision of this subchapter or its application to any person or cir-
cumstance is invalid for any reason, the invalidity does not affect other
provisions or applications of this subchapter that can be given effect
without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provi-
sions of this subchapter are severable.

§1.521. Definitions.
The following words and terms, when used in this division, have the
following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) Act--The Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement
Act of 1994, Title 18 United States Code (U.S.C.) §1033 and §1034.

(2) Applicant--Any person subject to the Act requesting
written consent.

(3) Business of insurance--
(A) as defined in 18 U.S.C. §1033, means:

(B) counterfeiting or passing counterfeit money;

(C) bribery and bribe receipt;

(D) any crime involving false pretenses;

(E) money laundering;

(F) extortion;

(G) forgery or any crime involving the falsification of

documents;

(H) embezzlement;

(I) criminal impersonation;

(J) fraudulent conveyance of property;

(K) fraudulent use of credit or debit card,

(L) knowingly issuing a bad check;

(M) any crime involving the making or utterance of a
false statement;

(N) perjury and subornation of perjury;

(O) knowingly possessing a forged instrument;

(P) knowingly receiving or possessing stolen property;

(Q) theft by deception;

(R) witness or evidence tampering; or

(S) crimes of financial exploitation.

(7) Domestic--A commercially domiciled insurer as de-
fined in Insurance Code §823.004 or an entity organized under the
laws of Texas.

(8) Insurer--As defined in 18 U.S.C. §1033(f)(2).
defined in 18 U.S.C.

(9) Interstate commerce--As
1033(f)(3).

(10) Offense under the Act--As defined in 18 U.S.C.
§1033, including:

(A) knowingly, with the intent to deceive, making any
false material statement or report or willfully and materially overvalu-
ing any land, property, or security in connection with any financial re-
ports or documents presented to any regulatory official or agency for
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the purposes of influencing the actions of that official, agency, or ap-
pointed agent or examiner;

(B) willfully embezzling, abstracting, purloining, or
misappropriating any of the money, funds, premiums, credits, or other
property of any person engaged in the business of insurance;

(C) knowingly making any false entry of material fact
in any book, report, or statement with intent to deceive any person
about the financial condition or solvency of a business;

(D) corruptly influencing, obstructing, or impeding, or

(d) Sharing of information with other states. TDI may share
information and materials with other states and agencies in accord with
procedures established by the NAIC National Special Activities Data-
base for the sharing of information pertaining to requests for written
consent under the Act.

§1.523.  Insurer Responsibility Under the Act.

Title 18 U.S.C. §1033(e)(1)(B) provides that any individual who is en-
gaged in the business of insurance whose activities affect interstate
commerce and who willfully permits a person subject to the Act to en-
gage or participate in the business of insurance without written consent

endeavoring corruptly to influence, obstruct, or impede the due and

may be in violation of the Act. It is the responsibility of persons au-

proper administration of the law, by threats or force or by any threat-

thorizing anyone to conduct the business of insurance not to willfully

ening letter or communication under which any proceeding is pending

permit a person subject to the Act to engage or participate in the busi-

before any insurance regulatory official or agency.

(11) Person subject to the Act--Any individual who has

ness of insurance without written consent.

§1.524.  Request for Written Consent.

been convicted of a criminal felony involving dishonesty or a breach
of trust, or who has been convicted of an offense under the Act, who
intends to engage or participate in the business of insurance in Texas,
whose activities affect interstate commerce. This includes an individ-
ual who is engaged or participating in the business of insurance in Texas
and who:

(A) is, becomes, or has responsibilities similar to a prin-
cipal, partner, officer, owner, director, or controlling sharecholder of a
domestic insurer;

(B) is a person in control of a domestic entity;

(C) is a domestic limited liability company member,
manager, or consultant;

(D) is an employee, solicitor, broker, consultant, sub-
contractor, independent contractor, actuary, reinsurer, or underwriter
for a domestic insurer or resident licensee;

(E) s an applicant for, or holder of, any type of license,
registration, certification, permit, or authorization that TDI may deny
or revoke; or

(F) does not have written consent from any regulatory
official authorized to regulate the insurer.

(12) Request for written consent--A completed request for
written consent form submitted to TDI by a person subject to the Act.

(13) TDI--The Texas Department of Insurance

(14) Written consent--The commissioner's granting of au-
thorization for a person subject to the Act to engage or participate in
the business of insurance in Texas.

§1.522.

Written Consent Required.

(a) Written consent required. A person subject to the Act must

(a) Request for written consent form. A request for written
consent form is available online at http:/www.tdi.texas.gov/forms/
and by mail from the Texas Department of Insurance, Agent and
Adjuster Licensing, Financial Regulation Division, MC 107-1A, P.O.
Box 149104, Austin, Texas 78714-9104 or 333 Guadalupe, Austin,
Texas 78701.

(b) Submission of request. A person subject to the Act may re-
quest written consent by completing and submitting a request for writ-
ten consent form as provided in paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsec-
tion.

(1) The request for written consent form may be submitted
by mail to the Texas Department of Insurance, Agent and Adjuster Li-
censing, Financial Regulation Division, MC 107-1A, P.O. Box 149104,
Austin, Texas, 78714-9104.

(2) Upon TDI's making available the Request for Written
Consent Form in a format that may be completed and submitted online,
an applicant may submit the request in this manner.

(c) Assistance. Assistance with submitting a request for writ-
ten consent form is available by calling Agent and Adjuster Licensing
at 512-322-3503.

(d) Screening criteria. A person subject to the Act requesting
written consent from the commissioner under this section must submit
to TDI a signed and notarized application on a form prescribed and
provided by TDI, and include, as part of or in connection with the ap-
plication, the following information:

(1) name, official and business mailing addresses, and so-
cial security number of the applicant and any other names and social
security numbers used by the applicant and dates of such use;

(2) place and date of birth. If the applicant was not born in
the United States, the date of first entry and port of entry, whether he

not engage or participate in the business of insurance in Texas without

or she is a citizen of the United States, and if naturalized, when, where,

written consent from the commissioner. Any person subject to the Act

and how he or she became naturalized. The number of the Certificate

who intends to engage or participate in the business of insurance in

of Naturalization must be provided;

Texas must submit to TDI a request for written consent. TDI has the
sole discretion to determine whether Texas is the appropriate state for
a person subject to the Act to request written consent.

(b) Licensees subject to the Act. A person subject to the Act
must be granted written consent from the commissioner to retain a li-
cense or authorization, and before any new or renewal license or au-
thorization will be issued.

(c) Restriction of action. Nothing in this division may be con-
strued to permit a person subject to the Act to engage or participate in
the business of insurance while that individual is applying for written
consent from the commissioner.

(3) names of any relatives by blood or marriage who are
currently serving in any capacity in the same business of insurance or
with any sponsoring insurer;

(4) history of employment and business associations, in-
cluding any military service, in chronological order;

(5) professional licenses or authorizations presently held or
held at any date in the past relating to the business of insurance, includ-
ing as a producer, agent, broker, solicitor, or third-party administrator;

(6) whether the applicant has ever had a consumer com-
plaint, administrative, or other legal proceeding filed regarding her or
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his authorized or unauthorized insurance activities. This includes a list

and the duties and responsibilities thereof. The statement as to reputa-

of all revocations and suspensions of any license or authorization, re-

tion should attest to the applicant's reputation in her or his community,

ceivership, and administrative sanctions;

(7) the applicant's current or proposed job description and
insurance activities, as well as the name and address of the current
or proposed sponsoring insurer, agency officer, or employer, to which
the request for written consent will apply, supported by an affidavit
from the insurer's or agency president (or her or his lawfully delegated
designee) stating that: the applicant will only perform those insurance

circle of business, or social acquaintances. The statement must state
that the reference is being provided in connection with a request for
written consent to engage or participate in the business of insurance
despite the existence of a conviction of a criminal felony involving
dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense under the Act; and

(19) any other information the applicant believes will assist
the commissioner in determining whether to grant written consent.

activities as fully described in the application, the application is to the
best of her or his knowledge true and correct, and the applicant will not
be placed in a position in which the person's activities will constitute a
risk or threat to insurance consumers or the insurer;

(8) a life-long listing by date and place of all arrests to-

(e) Serious nature of criminal offense. The commissioner will
not grant a request for written consent if the applicant has been con-
victed of a criminal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or
an offense under the Act unless the commissioner finds that the matters
set out in subsection (f) of this section outweigh the serious nature of

gether with a statement of the circumstances of each violation which led

the criminal offense when viewed in light of the applicant's occupation.

to each arrest. Also list by date and place all convictions for felonies,
misdemeanors, or offenses and all imprisonment or jail terms, together
with a statement of the circumstances of each violation which led to
each conviction;

(9) whether the applicant has received a full pardon or other
type of pardon from any conviction;

(10) a statement of the details of any conviction for a crim-

(f) Factors considered.

(1) The commissioner will consider the factors specified in
18 U.S.C. §1033, Occupations Code §53.022 and §53.023, §1.502 of
this title (relating to Licensing Persons with Criminal Backgrounds),
and mitigating and aggravating circumstances, in determining whether
to grant a request for written consent to a person subject to the Act
listed in §1.501(b) of this title (relating to Purpose and Application).

inal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or any offense
under the Act. This includes the date of each offense, applicant's age
at the date of each offense, and the time that has since elapsed;

(11) names and location of all insurers, together with a de-

(2) For persons who are not applicants for, or holders of, a
license or authorization issued by TDI, or a person listed in §1.501(b)
of this title, the commissioner will consider the following factors in
determining whether the applicant's conviction of a criminal felony in-

scription of the activities performed for each insurer, for which the per-

volving dishonesty or a breach of trust directly relates to the duties and

son subject to the Act has:

(A) been appointed to act as an agent, advised, repre-
sented, or in any manner worked for;

(B) engaged or participated in an act necessary or inci-

responsibilities of the applicant's occupation:

(A) the nature and seriousness of the crime;

(B) the relationship of the crime to the purposes for re-
questing written consent to engage in the occupation;

dental to the business of insurance, including any activity or act as an
officer, director, agent, or employee of an insurer, or as a person autho-
rized to act on behalf of such persons;

(12) whether the applicant has ever applied for written con-
sent from any other state, and if so, the outcome of that preceding, the
state's determination, and all supporting documentation;

(13) a full explanation of the reasons or grounds the appli-
cant's insurance activities for which written consent is sought will not
be contrary to the intent and purpose of 18 U.S.C. §1033, and thus will
not pose a risk or threat to insurance consumers or the insurer;

(14) the bearing, if any, the criminal offense or offenses

(C) the extent to which written consent might offer an
opportunity to engage in further criminal activity of the same type as
that in which the person previously had been involved; and

(D) the relationship of the crime to the ability, capacity,
or fitness required to perform the duties and discharge the responsibil-
ities of the occupation.

(3) In addition to the factors listed in paragraph (1) and (2)
of this subsection, the commissioner will consider the following ev-
idence in determining the fitness to perform the duties and discharge
the responsibilities of the occupation of a person who has been con-
victed of a criminal felony involving dishonesty or a breach of trust, or

will have on the applicant's fitness or ability to perform one or more of

an offense under the Act:

the duties, activities, or responsibilities presented on the application;

(15) whether the applicant has made full payment of out-

(A) the extent and nature of the person's past criminal

activity;

standing court costs, supervision fees, fines, and restitution concerning
the offense or offenses;

(16) whether there exists any evidence of mitigating or ex-
tenuating circumstances surrounding the applicant's commission of the
offense or offenses;

(17) what evidence exists of the applicant's rehabilitation;

(18) character endorsements, letters, or other forms of
statement addressed to the commissioner, attesting to the character
and reputation of the applicant. The statements as to character should
indicate the length of time the writer has known the applicant and
should describe the applicant's character traits as they relate to the

(B) the age of the person when the crime was commit-

ted;
(C) the time that has elapsed since the person's last
criminal activity;

(D) the conduct and work activity of the person prior to
and following the criminal activity;

(E) evidence of the person's rehabilitation or rehabilita-
tive efforts while incarcerated or following release; and

(F) other evidence of the person's present fitness, in-
cluding letters of recommendation from:

employment, position, or activities for which written consent is sought
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(i) _prosecutor, law enforcement, and correctional of-
ficers who prosecuted, arrested, or had custodial responsibility for the

(2) full payment for all processing fees charged by the
Texas Department of Public Safety and the Federal Bureau of Investi-

person;

(ii) _the sheriff or chief of police in the community
where the person resides; and

(iii) _any other persons in contact with the person.

(G) Inaddition to the factors and evidence listed in sub-
paragraphs (A) through (F) of this subsection, an applicant must also
furnish proof that the applicant has:

(i) maintained of a record of steady employment;

gation; and

(3) all additional identifying information required by the
Texas Department of Public Safety and the Federal Bureau of Investi-
gation for processing fingerprints.

(c) Confidentiality, format, use, and application of fingerprint
requirement. Except as otherwise provided, the procedures and re-
quirements for fingerprint application, format, use, and confidentiality
in Division 1 of this subchapter (relating to Fitness for Licensing) ap-
ply to persons subject to the Act requesting written consent.

(i) supported the applicant's dependents where ap-

§1.526. Effect of False or Misleading Statements.

plicable;
(iii) otherwise maintained a record of good conduct;

Any written consent granted by the commissioner will be conditioned
upon the truth and veracity of the documents and information submitted

and

(iv) paid all outstanding court costs, supervision
fees, fines, and restitution as may have been ordered in all criminal
cases in which the applicant or holder has been convicted.

(4) In addition to the factors listed in paragraphs (1), (2),

by or on behalf of the person subject to the Act. If TDI determines that
the person subject to the Act, or her or his representative, has made
false or misleading statements, or has failed to disclose information,
the commissioner may deny the request for written consent or revoke
the written consent. TDI's Fraud Section will make an independent de-
termination whether TDI should pursue an investigation of fraudulent

and (3) of this subsection, the commissioner will consider the following
factors in determining whether the applicant poses a risk or threat to

insurance acts under the Insurance Code or these rules, or whether re-
ferral to another law enforcement agency or federal prosecutor should

insurance consumers or the insurer:

(A) whether and to what extent the person has made a
material false statement in an application, renewal, or other documents
filed with the commissioner; and

(B) whether and to what extent the person has made
material false statements in applications or other documents filed with
other state or federal agencies.

(g) Requirement to provide information. It will be the respon-
sibility of the person subject to the Act to secure and provide to TDI
the information and documentation required by subsection (d) of this
section.

§1.525.  Requirement to Provide Fingerprints and Documents.

(a) Submission of documents. An applicant must submit all
requested information to TDI within 30 days of the date TDI mails a
request for additional information, including any requested additional
documents, certified copies of all court documents, and fingerprints.

(1) Ifan applicant fails to submit all requested information
as provided in this section, TDI will submit a written notice of defi-
ciency to the applicant which sets out the specific additional informa-
tion required for completion. After one written notice of deficiency has
been issued, another is not required.

(2) TDImay deny or deem incomplete any request for writ-

be made.
$1.527.  Disclosure.

A person subject to the Act granted written consent under this division
must notify TDI within 30 days of a felony conviction, an administra-
tive action taken against the person subject to the Act by a financial or
insurance regulator of a state or the United States, increased job duties,
and administrative or other legal proceedings filed regarding her or his
authorized or unauthorized insurance activities. This includes revoca-
tions and suspensions of any license or authorization, receivership, and
administrative sanctions. If written consent is revoked, suspended, ter-
minated, granted, or altered by another regulatory official, the person
subject to the Act is required to submit written notification and all sup-
porting documentation to TDI immediately.

§1.528.  Burden of Proof.

The burden of proof is on the person subject to the Act to show that,
although he or she has been convicted of a criminal felony involving
dishonesty or a breach of trust, or an offense under the Act, circum-
stances, facts, and conditions are present that allow the commissioner
to grant the request for written consent. The person subject to the Act
is not entitled as a matter of right to be granted written consent.

§1.529.  Revocation or Denial of Consent.

(a) Revocation. TDI may revoke any written consent that it
has issued and may notify the Fraud Section of TDI if the applicant:

ten consent that is not complete within 180 days of the date TDI mails
the written notice of deficiency, and TDI may:

(A) close a pending request for written consent and ap-
plication files for a license or authorization; and

(B) take actions available under Insurance Code
§§82.051 - 82.053 and §§4005.101 - 4005.103.

(b) Fingerprint requirement. In the manner described in

(1) moves insurance activities to another state;

(2) has a license or authorization denied, suspended, re-
voked, surrendered, forfeited, cancelled, terminated, or altered in Texas

or another state, or by any association;

(3) s convicted of a criminal felony involving dishonesty
or a breach of trust or an offense under the Act after written consent

was granted;

§1.509 of this title (relating to Fingerprint Format and Complete
Application), an applicant must, at or near the same time that he or she
sends her or his request for written consent, also send:

(1) acomplete set of the individual's fingerprints;

(4) violates the terms, conditions, or restrictions of the writ-

ten consent; or

(5) violates this division.

(b) Denial. In addition to the factors and screening criteria
considered in §1.524 of this title (relating to Request for Written Con-
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sent), the commissioner may deny a request for written consent for the
following reasons, including if:

(1) theapplicantis not a person subject to the Act as defined
in §1.521 of this title (relating to Definitions);

(2) the applicant violates this division;

(3) TDI determines that Texas is not the appropriate state
for the applicant to request written consent; or

(4) the applicant's request for written consent was denied
or revoked by another state.

(c) Written notice. If the commissioner determines that the re-
quest for written consent should be denied or the written consent should
be revoked, TDI will issue a notice setting forth a statement of legal au-
thority and a short, plain statement of the factors pertinent to the denial
or revocation.

(d) Effect of denial or revocation. TDI will not grant a license
or authorization to any person subject to the Act or permit a person sub-
ject to the Act to retain a license or authorization if the commissioner
has denied a request for written consent or revoked the written consent.

(¢) Request for hearing. The person subject to the Act will
have 30 days from the date of notice to make a written request for a

hearing.

() Final agency decision. If a written request for hearing is not
made, the notice of denial or revocation will constitute a final agency
decision.

§1.530. Hearing.

If a person subject to the Act requests a hearing, the hearing shall be
conducted by the State Office of Administrative Hearings. The hearing
is subject to the procedures for contested cases under Government Code
Chapter 2001 and Insurance Code Chapter 40.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 19,
2012.

TRD-201204947

Sara Waitt

General Counsel

Texas Department of Insurance

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 463-6327

¢ ¢ ¢

PART 2. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
INSURANCE, DIVISION OF WORKERS'
COMPENSATION

CHAPTER 126. GENERAL PROVISIONS
APPLICABLE TO ALL BENEFITS
28 TAC §126.17

The Texas Department of Insurance (Department), Division of
Workers' Compensation (Division) proposes new §126.17, con-
cerning Guidelines for Examination by a Treating Doctor or Re-
ferral Doctor After a Designated Doctor Examination to Address

Issues Other Than Certification of Maximum Medical Improve-
ment and the Evaluation of Permanent Impairment.

Statutory Background

This new section is proposed due to statutory amendments in
House Bill 2605, enacted by the 82nd Legislature, Regular Ses-
sion, effective September 1, 2011 (HB 2605) which codify into
the Texas Workers' Compensation Act (Act) the ability of the in-
jured employee who is required to be examined by a designated
doctor to request an examination by the injured employee's treat-
ing or a referral doctor to determine the issue(s) decided by the
designated doctor.

Specifically, HB 2605 amended Labor Code §408.0041
by adding subsections (f-2) and (f-4). Under Labor Code
§408.0041(f-2), an injured employee required to be examined
by a designated doctor may request a medical examination
to determine maximum medical improvement and the injured
employee's impairment rating from the injured employee's treat-
ing doctor or another doctor to whom the injured employee is
referred by the treating doctor if the designated doctor's opinion
is the injured employee's first evaluation of maximum medical
improvement and impairment rating and the injured employee
is not satisfied with the designated doctor's report. Labor
Code §408.0041(f-4) requires the Commissioner of Workers'
Compensation (Commissioner) by rule to adopt guidelines
prescribing the circumstances under which an examination
by the injured employee's treating doctor or another doctor to
whom the injured employee is referred by the treating doctor
to determine any issue under Labor Code §408.0041(a), other
than an examination under Labor Code §408.0041(f-2), may be
appropriate. The purpose behind these legislative amendments
was to provide the injured employee the ability to obtain from
his or her treating doctor or a referral doctor a second opinion
on the issue(s) determined by the designated doctor and, if
the injured employee seeks dispute resolution on the issue,
evidence the injured employee can use in the dispute resolution
process in an attempt to overcome the presumptive weight of
the designated doctor's opinion on the issue(s).

Whereas Labor Code §408.0041(f-2) governs post-designated
doctor examinations on maximum medical improvement and im-
pairment rating, the rules required by Labor Code §408.0041(f-4)
are to govern post-designated doctor examinations on issues in
Labor Code §408.004(a)(3) - (6). This proposed new section im-
plements the requirements of Labor Code §408.0041(f-4).

The Division published an informal draft of the proposed new
section on the Division's website from August 2, 2012 until Au-
gust 23, 2012, and received seven informal comments on the
proposed section. The Division made several changes to the
rule text as a result of the informal comments.

Description of the Proposed New Section
Proposed New §126.17.

Proposed new §126.17 sets forth guidelines prescribing the
circumstances under which an examination by a treating doctor
or referral doctor to determine any issue under Labor Code
§408.0041(a), other than maximum medical impairment and
impairment rating, may be appropriate. This new rule is neces-
sary in order to implement Labor Code §408.0041(f-4) which
requires the Commissioner by rule to adopt such guidelines.

Proposed New §126.17(a)
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This proposed subsection prescribes the circumstances under
which the treating doctor or referral doctor examination may be
appropriate as required by Labor Code §408.0041(f-4). Pro-
posed new §126.17(a) provides an examination by the injured
employee's treating doctor or another doctor to whom the injured
employee is referred by the treating doctor to determine any is-
sue under Labor Code §408.0041(a)(3) - (6) may be appropriate
after a designated doctor examination if: (1) the designated doc-
tor issued an opinion on the issue; (2) the injured employee is not
satisfied with the designated doctor's opinion; and (3) the treating
doctor or a referral doctor has not already provided the injured
employee with a written report that meets the standard described
by subsection (b) of this new section on the issue addressed by
the designated doctor. These prescribed circumstances are nec-
essary in order to allow the injured employee to seek a second
opinion of the designated doctor's report only when a legitimate
dispute with the designated doctor report exists. The prescribed
circumstances therefore are designed to allow a treating doctor
or referral doctor examination after a designated doctor exami-
nation only when the injured employee is not satisfied with the
designated doctor's decision on the issue and the treating doc-
tor or a referral doctor has not already provided the injured em-
ployee with a written report that can be used to dispute the desig-
nated doctor report. Additionally, the prescribed circumstances
are necessary in order to prevent duplicative examinations by the
treating doctor or a referral doctor on the issue(s) decided by the
designated doctor which could impose unnecessary costs on the
workers' compensation system. The prescribed circumstances
therefore provide that the examination would not be appropriate
if the treating doctor or a referral doctor has already prepared
a requisite written report on the issue determined by the desig-
nated doctor.

Proposed New §126.17(b).

Proposed new §126.17(b) provides that the treating or the refer-
ral doctor shall complete a narrative report. The report should
include objective findings of the examination and an analysis
that explains how the objective findings lead to the conclusion
reached by the doctor. This report must be filed with the insur-
ance carrier, the injured employee, and the injured employee's
representative. Notwithstanding §129.5 of this title (relating to
Work Status Reports), if the treating doctor or the referral doctor
examines the injured employee to address an issue relating to
return to work, the doctor must also file a Work Status Report.
A narrative report is necessary because it documents the doc-
tor's findings. The direction of what this report should contain is
necessary in order to ensure that the report is of sufficient qual-
ity to be useful in the dispute resolution process if the injured
employee is not satisfied with the designated doctor's opinion,
which, by statute, has presumptive weight. The quality of the re-
port provides something of value to assist in a prompt and fair
dispute resolution process, one of the basic goals of the work-
ers' compensation system under Labor Code §402.021. Addi-
tionally, this subsection is necessary in order to ensure that all
parties have notice of the treating or referral doctor's opinion on
the issue(s) that were the subject of the examination.

Proposed New §126.17(c)

Proposed new §126.17(c) provides that the insurance carrier
shall reimburse the injured employee reasonable travel ex-
penses as specified in Chapter 134, Subchapter B of this title
(relating to Miscellaneous Reimbursement incurred in attending
an appropriate medical examination). This proposed subsection
is necessary to clarify that existing Division rules in Chapter 134,

Subchapter B of this title that govern reimbursement of travel
expenses will apply as specified in those rules when an injured
employee attends an examination that is appropriate under this
proposed new section.

Proposed New §126.17(d)

Proposed new §126.17(d) provides that nothing in §126.17 is
construed to limit or prohibit the injured employee from obtain-
ing reasonable and necessary medical care for the compensable
injury or from obtaining a written report from a treating doctor or a
referral doctor on any issue under Labor Code §408.0041(a)(3)
- (6) prior to a designated doctor examination. This proposed
subsection is necessary in order to provide clarity and to pre-
vent anyone from construing this section in a manner that would
prevent an injured employee from obtaining any medical bene-
fit the injured employee is entitled to under Labor Code Title 5
and Division rules. This proposed subsection also clarifies that
§126.17 does not limit an injured employee's ability to obtain a
written report from a treating or referral doctor prior to a desig-
nated doctor examination since proposed new §126.17 provides
guidelines for the appropriateness of these examinations after
the designated doctor examination.

Erika Copeland, Director, Designated Doctor Outreach and
Oversight has determined that for each year of the first five
years the proposed new section will be in effect there will be
minimal new fiscal implications to state or local government as
a result of enforcing or administering the proposed new section.
There will be no measurable fiscal effect on local employment
or the local economy as a result of the proposed new section.

The proposed new section may minimally increase administra-
tive costs to the Division in terms of communications and out-
reach to system participants. However, Ms. Copeland has de-
termined that all duties and responsibilities associated with im-
plementing the proposed new section can be accomplished by
utilizing existing agency resources.

Local and state government entities, when acting in the capacity
of an insurance carrier, will be impacted in the same manner
as other insurance carriers that are required to comply with the
proposed new section, as described later in this preamble.

There will be no measurable effect on local employment or the
local economy as a result of this proposal.

Ms. Copeland has determined that for each year of the first five
years the proposed new section will be in effect the public ben-
efit anticipated as a result of enforcing the new section will be
clarity in the circumstances under which an examination by a
treating doctor or referral doctor after a designated doctor ex-
amination pursuant to Labor Code §408.0041(f-4) may be ap-
propriate. Additionally, the proposed new section will provide di-
rection to treating or referral doctors regarding reporting require-
ments for these examinations, which will enhance the usability of
these written reports by injured employees who want to dispute
the designated doctor's opinion. Furthermore, insurance carriers
are given guidance regarding the injured employee's reimburse-
ment of reasonable travel expenses in attending an appropriate
medical examination under the proposed new section.

Ms. Copeland has determined that for each year of the first five
years the proposed new section will be in effect there will be
no cost to injured employees under the proposed new section.
Should an injured employee incur travel expenses in attending
an appropriate medical examination under the proposed new
section, the injured employee will be reimbursed by the insur-
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ance carrier when such examination is not reasonably available
within 30 miles from where the injured employee lives and the
distance travelled to attend the examination is greater than 30
miles one way.

Ms. Copeland has determined that for each year of the first five
years the proposed new section will be in effect there will be
some costs to insurance carriers in the workers' compensation
system associated with this proposed section. However, it is not
possible for the Division to calculate a system-wide cost for this
proposed new section because the Division cannot estimate how
often these examinations will occur. The Division anticipates
treating and referral doctors who conduct these examinations
under this proposed new section will bill for these examinations
using existing evaluation and management codes indicating that
an office visit occurred, which is consistent with the manner that
health care providers currently use to bill for these examinations.
Assuming the use of the mid to upper level of established pa-
tient office visit Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) Codes,
the estimated cost per appropriate examination under this pro-
posed new section would be from $114 to $225 depending on
the type of issue being reviewed by the treating or referral doctor,
the detail of the examination, and the complexity of the medical
decision. The Division has determined that the total estimated
cost for an insurance carrier to comply with this proposed section
will vary based upon the total number of bills received for an ap-
propriate examination and the level of evaluation and manage-
ment codes billed by the treating doctor or referral doctor. The
proposed rule does not expand the circumstances where an in-
surance carrier reimburses the treating doctor or referral doctor.
The Division notes that if the treating doctor or referral doctor
examination involves an issue relating return to work, then the
doctor must file a Work Status Report and the amount of reim-
bursement currently allowed for these reports is $15 pursuant to
§129.5.

As required by the Government Code §2006.002(c), the Divi-
sion has determined that the proposal may have an adverse
economic effect on the small and micro-businesses that may be
required to comply with the proposed new section. The Division
estimates that 30 insurance carriers required to comply with the
proposed new section may qualify as small or micro-businesses
for the purposes of Government Code §2006.001. The cost of
compliance with the proposal will not vary between large busi-
nesses and small or micro-businesses, and the Division's cost
analysis and resulting estimated costs in the Public Benefit/Cost
Note portion of this proposal is equally applicable to small or
micro-businesses. Since the Division has determined that the
proposed new section may have an adverse economic effect on
small or micro-businesses, this proposal contains the required
economic impact statement and a regulatory flexibility analysis,
as detailed under Government Code §2006.002.

Even if the proposed new section would have an adverse impact
on small or micro-businesses, it is neither legal nor feasible to
waive the provisions to all affected entities and individuals.

The Division also considered not adopting the proposed new
section, implementing different requirements or standards for the
affected small and micro-businesses, and exempting small and
micro-businesses from the requirements of the proposed new
section.

Not adopting the proposed new section. The Division rejected
this approach because it would not comply with the requirements
of Labor Code §408.0041(f-4), which requires the Commissioner
by rule to adopt guidelines prescribing the circumstances under

which an examination by the treating doctor or referral doctor to
determine any issue under Labor Code §408.0041(a), other than
maximum medical improvement and impairment rating, after a
designated doctor examination, may be appropriate.

Implementing different requirements or standards for the af-
fected small or micro-businesses. The Division rejected this
option because implementing different requirements or stan-
dards would cause confusion amongst injured employees and
treating doctors since they would likely not be able to identify
the affected small or micro-businesses amongst the insurance
carriers and their affiliates in the state.

Exempting small and micro-businesses from the requirements
of the new section. The Division rejected this approach be-
cause it would not comply with the legislative requirement under
§408.0041(f-4) as described above.

Therefore, it is neither legal nor feasible to waive the require-
ments of the proposed new section for small or micro-busi-
nesses.

The Division has determined that no private real property inter-
ests are affected by this proposal and that this proposal does not
restrict or limit an owner's right to property that would otherwise
exist in the absence of government action and, therefore, does
not constitute a taking or require a takings impact assessment
under the Government Code §2007.043.

To be considered, written comments on the proposal
must be submitted no later than 5:00 p.m. CST on
November 5, 2012. Comments may be submitted via
the internet through the Division's internet website at
http://www.tdi.texas.gov/wc/rules/proposedrules/index.html,

by email at rulecomments@tdi.state.tx.us or by mailing or
delivering your comments to Maria Jimenez, Texas Department
of Insurance, Division of Workers' Compensation, Workers'
Compensation Counsel, MS-4D, 7551 Metro Center Drive,
Suite 100, Austin, Texas 78744-1645.

A public hearing on this proposal will be held on October 15,
2012 at 1:30 CST in the Tippy Foster Conference Room of the
Texas Department of Insurance, Division of Workers' Compen-
sation, 7551 Metro Center Drive, Austin, Texas 78744-1645.
The Division provides reasonable accommodations for per-
sons attending meetings, hearings, or educational events, as
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. If you require
accommodations in order to attend the hearing please contact
Idalia Salazar at (512) 804-4403 at least two business days
prior to the confirmed hearing date.

The hearing will also be audio streamed; to listen to the au-
dio stream access the Public Outreach Events /Training Cal-
endar website at http://www.tdi.texas.gov/wc/events/index.html
and then click on the "Broadcast" link for the hearing. Media
Player 7 (or new version) or RealPlayer 10 (or newer version)
are required to hear the audio stream. Audio streaming will be-
gin approximately five minutes before the scheduled time of the
hearing.

The public hearing date, time, and location should be con-
firmed by those interested in attending or listening via audio
stream; the hearing may be confirmed by visiting the Divi-
sion's Public Outreach Events/Training Calendar website at
http://www.tdi.texas.gov/wc/events/index.html. Written and oral
comments presented at the hearing will be considered.

This new rule is proposed under the Labor Code §408.0041,
and under the general authority of §§402.00111, 402.0128 and
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402.061. In relevant part, Labor Code §408.0041 sets forth that
the Commissioner by rule shall adopt guidelines prescribing the
circumstances under which an examination by the injured em-
ployee's treating doctor or another doctor to whom the injured
employee is referred by the treating doctor to determine any is-
sue under Labor Code §408.0041(a), other than an examination
under Labor Code §408.0041(f-2), may be appropriate.

Labor Code §402.00111 provides that the Commissioner shall
exercise all executive authority, including rulemaking authority,
under Title 5, Labor Code.

Labor Code §402.00128 lists the general powers of the Com-
missioner including the power to hold hearings and the authority
to assess and enforce penalties as authorized by Title 5, Labor
Code.

Labor Code §402.061 provides the Commissioner the authority
to adopt rules as necessary to implement and enforce the Work-
ers' Compensation Act.

The following statute is affected by this proposal: Labor Code
§408.0041.

§126.17.  Guidelines for Examination by a Treating Doctor or Refer-
ral Doctor After a Designated Doctor Examination to Address Issues
Other Than Certification of Maximum Medical Improvement and the
Evaluation of Permanent Impairment.

(a) An examination by the injured employee's treating doctor
or another doctor to whom the injured employee is referred by the treat-
ing doctor to determine any issue under Labor Code §408.0041(a)(3) -
(6) may be appropriate after a designated doctor examination if:

(1) the designated doctor issued an opinion on the issue;

(2) theinjured employee is not satisfied with the designated
doctor's opinion; and

(3) the treating doctor or the referral doctor has not already
provided the injured employee with a written report that meets the stan-
dard described by subsection (b) of this section on the issue addressed
by the designated doctor.

(b) The treating doctor or the referral doctor shall complete a
narrative report. The report should include objective findings of the ex-
amination and an analysis that explains how the objective findings lead
to the conclusion reached by the doctor. This report shall be filed with
the insurance carrier, the injured employee and the injured employee's
representative. Notwithstanding §129.5 of this title (relating to Work
Status Reports), if the treating doctor or the referral doctor examines
the injured employee to address an issue relating to return to work, the
doctor must also file a Work Status Report.

(c) The insurance carrier shall reimburse the injured employee
for all reasonable travel expenses as specified in Chapter 134, Subchap-
ter B of this title (relating to Miscellaneous Reimbursement) for attend-
ing an appropriate medical examination.

(d) Nothing in this section is construed to limit or prohibit
the injured employee from obtaining reasonable and necessary med-
ical care for the compensable injury or from obtaining a written report
from a treating doctor or a referral doctor on any issue under Labor
Code §408.0041(a)(3) - (6) prior to a designated doctor examination.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 24,
2012.

TRD-201205084

Dirk Johnson

General Counsel

Texas Department of Insurance, Division of Workers' Compensation
Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012

For further information, please call: (512) 804-4703

¢ 14 ¢
TITLE 30. ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

PART 1. TEXAS COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

CHAPTER 305. CONSOLIDATED PERMITS

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ,
agency, or commission) proposes amendments to §§305.50,
305.64, 305.69, 305.122; and new §305.176.

These amendments were originally published for proposal in the
April 27, 2012, issue of the Texas Register (37 TexReg 2988),
withdrawn on September 19, 2012, and are re-proposed herein.

Background and Summary of the Factual Basis for the Proposed
Rules

The federal hazardous waste program is authorized under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA),
§3006. States may obtain authorization from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to administer the haz-
ardous waste program at the state level. State authorization
is a rulemaking process through which EPA delegates the
primary responsibility of implementing the RCRA hazardous
waste program to individual states in lieu of EPA. This process
ensures national consistency and minimum standards while
providing flexibility to states in implementing rules. State RCRA
programs must always be at least as stringent as the federal
requirements.

Since the beginning of the federal hazardous waste program, the
State of Texas has continuously participated in the EPA's autho-
rization program. To maintain RCRA authorization, the commis-
sion must adopt regulations to meet the minimum standards of
federal programs administered by EPA. Because the federal reg-
ulations undergo regular revision, the commission adopts new
regulations periodically to meet the changing federal regulations.

Texas received authorization of its hazardous waste "base pro-
gram" under the RCRA on December 26, 1984. Texas received
authorization for revisions to its base hazardous waste program
on February 17, 1987 (Clusters | and Il). Texas submitted further
revisions to its hazardous waste program and received final au-
thorization of those revisions on March 15, 1990, July 23, 1990,
October 21, 1991, December 4, 1992, June 27, 1994, Novem-
ber 26, 1997, October 18, 1999, September 11, 2000, June 14,
2005 (Clusters Il - X), March 5, 2009 (Clusters Xl - XV), and May
7, 2012 (Clusters IX and XV - XVIII).

The commission proposes in this rulemaking parts of RCRA Rule
Clusters XIX, XX, and XXI that implement revisions to the fed-
eral hazardous waste program, which were made by EPA be-
tween July 1, 2008 and June 30, 2011. Both mandatory and op-
tional federal rule changes in these clusters are proposed to be
adopted. Adoption of one of the federal rule changes is manda-
tory in order to maintain RCRA authorization. Although not nec-
essary in order to maintain authorization, EPA also recommends
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that the optional federal rule changes be incorporated into the
state rules. In addition, the commission proposes revisions to
parts of previously adopted Clusters XIV, XV, XVI, and XVII that
implement revisions requested by EPA to maintain authorization.
Establishing equivalency with federal regulations will enable the
State of Texas to operate all aspects of the federal hazardous
waste program in lieu of the EPA.

The commission also proposes revisions to Chapter 305 to clar-
ify requirements for financial capability reviews in conjunction
with permit issuances, amendments, transfers, extensions, and
renewals for hazardous waste management facilities and also
to revise the timing of financial assurance submittals by new
owners in conjunction with permit transfers for hazardous waste
management facilities.

All proposed rule changes are discussed further in the Section by
Section Discussion portion of this preamble. Two corresponding
rulemakings are published in this issue of the Texas Register and
include changes to 30 TAC Chapter 335, Industrial Solid Waste
and Municipal Hazardous Waste and 30 TAC Chapter 324, Used
Oil Standards.

Section by Section Discussion

The commission proposes administrative changes throughout
the proposed rulemaking to reflect the agency's current prac-
tices and to conform to Texas Register and agency guidelines.
These proposed changes include correcting typographical,
spelling, and grammatical errors.

§305.50, Additional Requirements for an Application for a Haz-
ardous or Industrial Solid Waste Permit and for a Post-Closure
Order

The commission proposes to amend §305.50, by reorganizing
existing requirements for financial assurance in subsection
(a)(4)(B) - (D) into subsection (a)(4)(B). The reorganization of
information would make it easier to understand the information
requirements for financial capability reviews. Existing subpara-
graphs (E) - (G) are proposed to be relettered to reflect the
elimination of subparagraphs (C) and (D).

§305.64, Transfer of Permits

The commission proposes to amend §305.64(g), to require new
owners and operators of hazardous waste management facili-
ties to provide acceptable financial assurance before the date
that a permit modification is issued authorizing the transfer of
the permit to the new owner or operator. This change is pro-
posed to reduce the potential for the State of Texas to have to
take on the obligation to pay for proper closure, post-closure or
corrective action for a site lacking financial assurance. Exist-
ing rules require a new permittee to provide financial assurance
within six months of a change in ownership or operational con-
trol with the previous owner maintaining financial assurance until
the new permittee does so. This requirement does not change.
An additional requirement is added that the new owner or op-
erator must provide acceptable financial assurance before the
modification transferring the permit will be issued. Collectabil-
ity under certain financial assurance mechanisms is not assured
once a permit has been transferred. For example, insurance
companies have claimed that a transferor has no insurable in-
terest once a facility has been sold and the permit transferred.
In addition, prior owners of hazardous waste management facili-
ties sometimes rely on TCEQ to aggressively pursue recalcitrant
new owners to provide financial assurance in order to obtain re-

lease of the old owner's financial assurance mechanism rather
than establishing a remedy in the sales contract.

This proposed change would make the timing requirements re-
garding new financial assurance for hazardous waste manage-
ment facilities more consistent with other programs at TCEQ.
For instance, financial assurance for underground injection con-
trol (UIC) wells must be provided by the date of the permit trans-
fer. Since many underground injection control wells are owned in
combination with hazardous waste management facilities, trans-
fer of a portion of the financial assurance is already provided by
the date of the permit transfer. In addition, language is being re-
vised to clarify that the previous owner or operator must submit a
request to the executive director in order for the executive direc-
tor to allow termination of the financial assurance mechanism.

§305.69, Solid Waste Permit Modification at the Request of the
Permittee

The commission proposes to amend §305.69(d)(2) to correct the
reference to the title of 30 TAC §39.11 to Text of Public Notice.

The commission proposes to add §305.69(d)(7) to clarify that the
notice requirements of §305.69 do not apply to industrial or haz-
ardous waste facility permits that are declared administratively
complete on or after September 1, 1999.

The commission also proposes to amend §305.69(k), Appendix
I (C)(6) to correct a reference from §335.164(10) to §335.164(8).
Due to renumbering of §335.164 in a previous rulemaking, the
correct citation is §335.164(8).

The commission also proposes to amend §305.69(k), Appen-
dix | (C)(7)(b) to correct a reference from §335.165(11) to
§335.165(13). Due to renumbering of §335.165 in a previous
rulemaking, the correct citation is §335.165(13).

The commission also proposes to amend §305.69(k), Appendix |
(C)(8)(a) to correct a reference to §335.165(9)(B). Due to renum-
bering of §335.165 in a previous rulemaking, the correct citation
should be §335.165(11)(B).

The commission proposes to amend §305.69(k), Appendix |
(G)(5)(c) to correct a typographical error.

§305.122, Characteristics of Permits

The commission proposes to amend §305.122(b) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue of
the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment would re-
instate a missing sentence which was inadvertently omitted by
EPA. The proposed rule would allow certain changes to permits
for cause, such as, modification, revocation and reissuance, or
termination. It would also allow modification to a permit upon re-
quest of a permittee. Such changes must be consistent with ap-
plicable federal regulations. The paragraph and subparagraphs
in the subsection have been renumbered and relettered accord-
ingly. This amendment is recommended by EPA to be adopted
into state rules, but is not required to maintain RCRA authoriza-
tion.

§305.176, Integration with Maximum Achievable Control Tech-
nology (MACT) Standards

The commission proposes new §305.176 to increase the options
to integrate air quality standards into a RCRA hazardous waste
permit. The new language would conform to federal regulations
previously promulgated in the October 12, 2005, issue of the
Federal Register (70 FR 59402). The proposed new section
does not set or impose new air quality standards. The Haz-
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ardous Waste Combustion MACT regulations are multi-media
regulations at the federal and state level, affecting both air qual-
ity and hazardous waste management. The TCEQ has already
adopted certain parts of 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 63, Subpart EEE (i.e., the Hazardous Waste Combustion
MACT rules) prior to this rulemaking under Chapter 305 and air
quality regulations at 30 TAC Chapter 113, Standards of Perfor-
mance for Hazardous Air Pollutants and for Designated Facili-
ties and Pollutants. This proposed rulemaking would incorporate
integration options with MACT standards for hazardous waste
incinerators in Chapter 305, Subchapter |. In a previous rule-
making, an amendment regarding the integration options with
MACT standards was adopted into §305.572 for boilers and in-
dustrial furnaces. Conforming language is proposed in §305.176
to adopt by reference 40 CFR §270.235, Options for Incinera-
tors, Cement Kilns, Lightweight Aggregate Kilns, Solid Fuel Boil-
ers, Liquid Fuel Boilers and Hydrochloric Acid Production Fur-
naces to Minimize Emissions from Startup, Shutdown, and Mal-
function Events. The proposed addition of §305.176 would pro-
vide greater flexibility by allowing operators of incinerators the
same integration options with MACT standards as operators of
boilers and industrial furnaces in §305.572.

Fiscal Note: Costs to State and Local Government

Nina Chamness, Analyst, Strategic Planning and Assessment,
has determined that, for the first five-year period the proposed
rules are in effect, no significant fiscal implications are antici-
pated for the agency as a result of administration or enforcement
of the proposed rules. The proposed rules are not expected to
have a significant fiscal impact on state agencies or units of local
government since they do not typically own or operate hazardous
waste facilities.

The proposed rules are part of a comprehensive rule package
implementing RCRA requirements involving proposed changes
to several chapters of 30 TAC. This fiscal note applies only to
the proposed changes to Chapter 305 which includes adoption
by reference of federal rule changes to the RCRA hazardous
waste program that were adopted by EPA from July 2008 through
July 2011. One of the proposed rule changes to Chapter 305 is
to incorporate final National Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants (NESHAP) for hazardous waste combustors into
Chapter 305. These standards were adopted into Chapter 335
in the last RCRA rule project, and therefore, are currently in
place. These standards implemented Clean Air Act, §112(d)
by requiring hazardous waste combustors to meet hazardous
air pollutants emission standards reflecting the performance of
the MACT. Section 305.176 is proposed to be added to include
this incorporation by reference; and make corrections and/or up-
dates to several sections in Chapter 305 that do not change the
content of the rule.

Separate from EPA amendments, the proposed rules also in-
clude a specific revision to the financial assurance requirements
for industrial and hazardous waste permits. The proposed
amendment to §305.64(g) would require that financial assurance
be provided by a new permittee prior to a permit modification for
transfer being issued rather than allowing the new permittee up
to six months to provide the financial assurance. This financial
assurance change is needed to ensure that a permitted haz-
ardous waste facility will have financial assurance at all times
after a permit modification transferring the permit to a new owner
or operator is issued. It is not certain that all financial assurance
mechanisms would provide coverage for a seller after the facility
is sold and the permit transferred under the existing regulations.

In addition, failure of the buyer and seller to agree upon this
detail in sales agreements sometimes results in demands of the
seller for the agency to pursue the buyer for failure to provide
its own financial assurance and allow the seller's financial
assurance to be released. The rule package also includes a
reorganization of existing requirements for financial assurance
in §305.50. The reorganization of information would make it
easier to understand the information requirements for financial
capability reviews.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a sig-
nificant fiscal impact on governmental entities. State agencies
or units of local government do not typically own or operate haz-
ardous waste facilities.

Public Benefits and Costs

Nina Chamness also determined that for each year of the first
five years the proposed rules are in effect, the public benefit an-
ticipated from the changes seen in the proposed rules will be
protection of the environment and public safety through greater
clarity and continued consistency with federal regulations con-
cerning NESHAP provisions.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a sig-
nificant fiscal impact on individuals. Individuals do not typically
own or operate hazardous waste facilities.

The proposed rules are not expected to have a significant fiscal
impact on large businesses that own or operate hazardous
waste facilities. There are approximately 180 permitted haz-
ardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities statewide.
The proposed rules incorporate final NESHAP for hazardous
waste combustors into Chapter 305. These standards were
adopted into Chapter 335 in the last RCRA rulemaking project,
and therefore, are currently in place. The proposed rules main-
tain consistency regarding emissions standards. The proposed
rules would also require that financial assurance be provided
by a new permittee prior to a permit modification for transfer
being issued rather than allowing the new permittee up to six
months to provide the financial assurance. The cost of financial
assurance is based on estimated facility closure costs, and the
cost of most financial assurance mechanisms range from 2%
to 5% of facility closure costs per year. Currently, the lowest
amount of financial assurance is $30,000 per year and the
highest amount is $120 million per year. Sellers of hazardous
waste facilities would save money since they would not be
required to provide financial assurance for the six-month period
after the sale of their facility. The amount of any savings would
vary widely and depend on the characteristics of the expiring
financial assurance. Purchasers of hazardous waste facilities,
on the other hand, could incur increased costs similar in amount
to the savings by the sellers.

Small Business and Micro-Business Assessment

No adverse fiscal implications are anticipated for small or micro-
businesses as a result of the proposed rules. Very few small
or micro-businesses generate hazardous waste in large enough
quantities to be affected by the rulemaking.

Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Analysis

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a small business regulatory flexibility analysis is not
required because the proposed rules are required to protect the
environment, to comply with federal regulations, and because
the rulemaking does not materially affect a small business for
the first five years the proposed rules are in effect.
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Local Employment Impact Statement

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a local employment impact statement is not re-
quired because the proposed rules do not adversely affect a lo-
cal economy in a material way for the first five years that the
proposed rules are in effect.

Draft Regulatory Impact Analysis Determination

The commission reviewed the proposed rulemaking in light of the
regulatory analysis requirements of Texas Government Code,
§2001.0225, and determined that the rulemaking is not subject to
Texas Government Code, §2001.0225 because it does not meet
the definition of a "major environmental rule" as defined in that
statute. Although the intent of the rulemaking is to protect the en-
vironment and reduce the risk to human health from environmen-
tal exposure, the rulemaking is not a major environmental rule
because it will not adversely affect in a material way the econ-
omy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the
environment, or the public health and safety of the state or a sec-
tor of the state. There is no adverse effect in a material way on
the economy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition,
or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from those revisions
under 42 United States Code (USC), §6926(g), which already
imposes the more stringent federal requirements on the regu-
lated community under the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amend-
ments of 1984. Likewise, there is no adverse effect in a mate-
rial way on the economy, a sector of the economy, productivity,
competition, or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from
those revisions outside 42 USC, §6926(g), because either the
changes are not substantive, the changes move forward com-
pliance with financial assurance requirements without changing
those requirements, or the regulated community benefits from
the greater flexibility and reduced compliance burden. The reg-
ulated community must comply with the more stringent federal
requirements beginning on the effective date of the federal reg-
ulations. Because the regulated community is already required
to comply with the more stringent federal rules, equivalent state
rules would not cause any adverse effects. There is no adverse
effect in a material way on the environment, or the public health
and safety of the state or a sector of the state because the rule-
making is designed to protect the environment, the public health,
and the public safety of the state and all sectors of the state. Be-
cause the rulemaking does not have an adverse material impact
on the economy, the rulemaking does not meet the definition of
a major environmental rule. Furthermore, the rulemaking does
not meet any of the four applicability requirements listed in Texas
Government Code, §2001.0225(a). First, the rulemaking does
not exceed a standard set by federal law. The commission must
meet the minimum standards and mandatory requirements of
the federal program to maintain authorization of the state haz-
ardous waste program. The other changes do not alter substan-
tive requirements although various changes may increase flexi-
bility for the regulated community and move forward compliance
deadlines. Second, although the rulemaking contains some re-
quirements that are more stringent than existing state rules, fed-
eral law requires the commission to promulgate rules that are as
stringent as federal law for the commission to maintain authoriza-
tion of the state hazardous waste program. Third, the rulemak-
ing does not exceed a requirement of a delegation agreement
or contract between the state and an agency or representative
of the federal government, where the delegation agreement or
contract is to implement a state and federal program. On the
contrary, the commission must undertake the waste program.
And fourth, the rulemaking does not seek to adopt a rule solely

under the general powers of the agency instead of under a spe-
cific state law. The commission proposes this rulemaking under
Texas Water Code, §5.103 and §5.105 and under Texas Health
and Safety Code, §361.017 and §361.024.

The commission solicits public comment on the draft regulatory
impact analysis determination. Written comments may be sub-
mitted to the contact person at the address listed under the Sub-
mittal of Comments section of this preamble.

Takings Impact Assessment

The commission evaluated the rulemaking and performed an
assessment of whether Texas Government Code, Chapter
2007 applies. The commission's assessment indicates that
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2007 does not apply to the
rulemaking because this action is reasonably taken to fulfill
an obligation mandated by federal law; therefore, this action
is exempt under Texas Government Code, §2007.003(b)(4).
The specific purpose of the rulemaking is to maintain state
RCRA authorization by adopting state hazardous waste rules
that are equivalent to the federal regulations. The rulemaking
substantially advances this purpose by adopting rules that
incorporate and refer to the federal regulations. Promulgation
and enforcement of the rules is not a statutory or constitutional
taking of private real property. Specifically, the rulemaking does
not affect a landowner's rights in private real property because
this rulemaking does not constitutionally burden the owner's
right to property, does not restrict or limit the owner's right to
property, and does not reduce the value of property by 25% or
more beyond that which would otherwise exist in the absence
of the regulations. The rulemaking seeks to meet the minimum
standards of federal RCRA regulations that are already in place.
42 USC, §6926(g) imposes on the regulated community any
federal requirements that are more stringent than current state
rules. The regulated community must already have complied
with the more stringent federal requirements as of the effective
date of the federal regulations. Because the regulated com-
munity is already required to comply with the more stringent
federal regulations, promulgating equivalent state rules does not
burden, restrict, or limit the owner's right to property and does
not reduce the value of property by 25% or more. Likewise, the
regulated community is not unduly burdened by those revisions
providing greater flexibility, reduced recordkeeping, reporting,
inspection, and sampling requirements.

Consistency with the Coastal Management Program

The commission reviewed the proposed rulemaking and found
that the proposal is subject to the Texas Coastal Management
Program (CMP) in accordance with the Coastal Coordination
Act, Texas Natural Resources Code, §§33.201 et seq., and
therefore must be consistent with all applicable CMP goals
and policies. The commission conducted a consistency de-
termination for the proposed rules in accordance with Coastal
Coordination Act Implementation Rules, 31 TAC §505.22 and
found the proposed rulemaking is consistent with the applicable
CMP goals and policies. The CMP goal applicable to the
rulemaking is to protect, preserve, restore, and enhance the di-
versity, quality, quantity, functions, and values of coastal natural
resource areas (CNRAs). Applicable policies are construction
and operation of solid waste treatment, storage, and disposal
facilities, such that new solid waste facilities and areal expan-
sions of existing solid waste facilities shall be sited, designed,
constructed, and operated to prevent releases of pollutants that
may adversely affect CNRAs and, at a minimum, comply with
standards established under the Solid Waste Disposal Act, 42
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USC, §§6901 et seq. Promulgation and enforcement of these
rules are consistent with the applicable CMP goals and policies
because the proposed rulemaking would update and enhance
the commission's rules concerning hazardous waste facilities.
In addition, the rules would not violate any applicable provisions
of the CMP's stated goals and policies.

Written comments on the consistency of this rulemaking may be
submitted to the contact person at the address listed under the
Submittal of Comments section of this preamble.

Submittal of Comments

Written comments may be submitted to Charlotte Horn, MC
205, Office of Legal Services, Texas Commission on Environ-
mental Quality, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087,
or faxed to (512) 239-4808. Electronic comments may be
submitted at:  http.//wwwb.tceq.texas.gov/rules/ecomments/.
File size restrictions may apply to comments being submitted
via the eComments system. All comments should reference
Rule Project Number 2012-038-335-WS. The comment period
closes November 5, 2012. Copies of the proposed rule-
making can be obtained from the commission's Web site at
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/nav/rules/propose_adopt.html.  For
further information, please contact Cynthia Palomares, P.G.,
P.E., Industrial and Hazardous Waste Permits Section, (512)
239-6079, MC-130, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087.

SUBCHAPTER C. APPLICATION FOR
PERMIT OR POST-CLOSURE ORDER
30 TAC §305.50

Statutory Authority

The amendment is proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to Gen-
eral Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to
adopt any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties
under the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state;
and under Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §361.017
(relating to Commission's Jurisdiction: Industrial Solid Waste
and Hazardous Municipal Waste), THSC, §361.085 (relating to
Financial Assurance and Disclosure by Permit Applicant), and
THSC, §361.024 (relating to Rules and Standards) which autho-
rize the commission to regulate industrial solid waste and haz-
ardous waste and to adopt rules consistent with the general in-
tent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed amendment implements THSC, Chapter 361.

$305.50. Additional Requirements for an Application for a Haz-
ardous or Industrial Solid Waste Permit and for a Post-Closure Order.

(a) Unless otherwise stated, an application for a permit to
store, process, or dispose of solid waste must meet the following
requirements.

(1) One original and three copies of the permit application
shall be submitted on forms provided by or approved by the executive
director and shall be accompanied by a like number of originals and
copies of all required exhibits.

(2) Plans and specifications for the construction and op-
eration of the facility and the staffing pattern for the facility shall be
submitted, including the qualifications of all key operating personnel.
Also to be submitted is the closing plan for the solid waste storage,
processing, or disposal facility. The information provided must be suf-
ficiently detailed and complete to allow the executive director to as-
certain whether the facility will be constructed and operated in com-

pliance with all pertinent state and local air, water, public health, and
solid waste statutes. Also to be submitted are listings of sites owned,
operated, or controlled by the applicant in the State of Texas. For pur-
poses of this section, the terms "permit holder" and "applicant" include
each member of a partnership or association and, with respect to a cor-
poration, each officer and the owner or owners of a majority of the
corporate stock, provided such partner or owner controls at least 20%
of the permit holder or applicant and at least 20% of another business
which operates a solid waste management facility.

(3) Any other information as the executive director may
deem necessary to determine whether the facility and the operation
thereof will comply with the requirements of the Texas Solid Waste
Disposal Act (TSWDA) and Chapter 335 of this title (relating to Indus-
trial Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous Waste), shall be included,
including, but not limited to, the information set forth in the TSWDA,

§4(e)(13).

(4) Anapplication for a permit, permit amendment, or per-
mit modification to store, process, or dispose of hazardous waste is
subject to the following requirements, as applicable.

(A) In the case of an application for a permit to store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste, the application shall also con-
tain any additional information required by 40 Code of Federal Reg-
ulations (CFR) §§270.13 - 270.27 (as amended though July 14, 2006
(71 Federal Register 40254)), except that closure cost estimates shall
be prepared in accordance with 40 CFR §264.142(a)(1), (3), and (4), as
well as §37.131 of this title (relating to Annual Inflation Adjustments
to Closure Cost Estimates), §37.141 of this title (relating to Increase
in Current Cost Estimate), and §335.178 of this title (relating to Cost
Estimate for Closure).

(B) An application for a permit to store, process, or dis-
pose of hazardous waste shall also contain financial information suffi-
cient to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the executive director that the
applicant has sufficient financial resources to operate and close the fa-
cility in a safe manner [and] in compliance with the permit and all appli-
cable rules as well as[; including; but net limited to;] how an applicant
intends to obtain financing for construction of the facility[; and te elose
the faeility properly]. Financial information necessary [submitted] to
satisfy this subparagraph shall be as follows: [meet the requirements
of subparagraph (C) er (D) of this paragraph:]

(i) For publicly traded entities:

(1) copies of the most recent two Securities and
Exchange Commission Form 10-Ks;

(1l) acopy of the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission Form 10-Q for the most recent quarter;

(III) a statement signed by an authorized signa-
tory consistent with §305.44(a) of this title (relating to Signatories to
Applications) explaining in detail how the applicant demonstrates suf-
ficient financial resources to construct, safely operate, properly close,
and provide adequate liability coverage for the facility. This statement
must also address how the applicant intends to comply with the finan-
cial assurance requirements for closure, post-closure, corrective action,
and liability coverage consistent with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this
title (relating to Financial Assurance for Hazardous and Nonhazardous
Industrial Solid Waste Facilities); and

(IV) estimates of capital costs for expansion
and/or construction if the application encompasses facility expansion,
capacity expansion, or new construction; or

(ii) _For privately held entities with audited financial
statements for either of the most recent two fiscal years:
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(1) _complete copies of the audited financial state-
ments for each of the most recent two fiscal years if audits have been

(IV) estimates of capital costs for expansion
and/or construction if the application encompasses facility expansion,

performed in each year. If an audit has not been completed for one of

capacity expansion, or new construction; or

the previous two years, a complete copy of the fiscal year end financial
statement and federal tax return may be substituted in licu of the audit
not performed. The tax return must be certified by original signature of
an authorized signatory as being a "true and correct copy of the return
filed with the Internal Revenue Service." Financial statements shall be
prepared consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and
include a balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, notes

(iv) For applicants possessing a resolution from a
governing body approving or agreeing to approve the issuance of bonds
for the purpose of satisfying the financial assurance requirements of this

subparagraph:

(1) _astatement signed by an authorized signatory
consistent with §305.44(a) of this title explaining in detail how the ap-

to the financial statement, and accountant's opinion letter;

(II) a complete copy of the most current quar-
terly financial statement prepared consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(III) a written statement detailing the informa-

plicant demonstrates sufficient financial resources to construct, safely
operate, properly close, and provide adequate liability coverage for the
facility. This statement must also address how the applicant intends to
comply with the financial assurance requirements for closure, post-clo-
sure, corrective action, and liability coverage consistent with Chapter
37, Subchapter P of this title;

tion that would normally be found in Securities and Exchange Com-
mission's Form 10-K including descriptions of the business and its op-
erations; identification of any affiliated relationships; credit agreements
and terms; any legal proceedings involving the applicant; contingent li-

(1l) a certified copy of the resolution; and

(III)  certification by the governing body of pas-
sage of the resolution.

abilities; and significant accounting policies;

(IV) estimates of capital costs for expansion
and/or construction if the application encompasses facility expansion,
capacity expansion, or new construction; and

(V) a statement signed by an authorized signa-
tory consistent with §305.44(a) of this title explaining in detail how
the applicant demonstrates sufficient financial resources to construct,
safely operate, properly close, and provide adequate liability coverage
for the facility. This statement must also address how the applicant
intends to comply with the financial assurance requirements for clo-
sure, post-closure, corrective action, and liability coverage in accor-
dance with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title; or

(iii) For privately held entities without audited fi-
nancial statements for either of the two most recent fiscal years, or en-
tities choosing not to provide the information provided in clauses (i),
(ii), or (iv) of this subparagraph:

(I) afinancial plan sufficiently detailed to clearly
demonstrate that the applicant will be in a position to readily secure fi-
nancing for construction, operation, and closure if the permit is issued.
The submitted financial plan must be accompanied by original letters
of opinion from two financial experts, not otherwise employed by the
applicant, who have the demonstrated ability to either finance the fa-
cility or place the required financing. The opinion letters must certify
that the financial plan is reasonable; certify that financing is obtainable
within 180 days of final administrative and judicial disposition of the
permit application; and include the time schedule contingent upon per-
mit finality for securing the financing. Only one opinion letter from a
financial expert, not otherwise employed by the applicant, is required
if the letter renders a firm commitment to provide all the necessary fi-

nancing:

(II) _a written detail of the annual operating costs
of the facility and a projected cash flow statement including the period
of construction and first two years of operation. The cash flow state-
ment must demonstrate the financial resources to meet operating costs,
debt service, and financial assurance for closure, post-closure care, and
liability coverage requirements. A list of the assumptions made to fore-
cast cash flow shall also be provided;

(IIl)  astatement addressing how the applicant in-
tends to comply with the financial assurance requirements for closure,
post-closure, corrective action, and liability coverage in accordance
with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title; and

HE) Feor applicants possessing a resolution from a gov-
erning body approving or agreeing to approve the issuance of bonds
for the purpese of satisfying the finanecial assurance requirements of
subparagraph (B) of this paragraph; submission of the following infor-
mation will be an adequate demeonstration:}

£} astatement signed by an autherized signatory in
accordance with §305.44(a) of this title (relating to Signatories to Ap-
plications) explaining in detail how the applicant demeonstrates suffi-
cient finaneial resourees to construct; safely operate; properly ¢lose;
must alse address how the applicant intends to comply with the finan-
and Lability coverage in accordanece with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of
this title (relating to Einancial Assuranee for Hazardous and Nenhaz-

i1 Solid ilities):]

(i)  acertified copy of the resolution; and]

fiii)  certification by the governing body of passage
of the resolution.]
subparagraph (C) of this paragraph; finaneial information submitted to
satisfy the requirements of subparagraph (B) of this paragraph must in-
subparagraph shall be prepared in aceordanece with generally aceepted
accounting principles and include a balance sheet, income statement,
cash flow statement; notes to the financial statements; and accountant's

£) astatement signed by an autherized signatory in
accordance with §305-44(a) of this title explaining in detail how the ap-
plicant demonstrates sufficient financial resources to construet; safely
operate; properly elose; and provide adequate liability coverage for the
facility. This statement must also address how the applicant intends to
comply with the finaneial assurance requirements for elosure; post-clo-
sure, corrective action, and liability coverage in accordance with Chap-
ter 37, Subehapter P of this title:]
mentshalvlebeenwepared%hepreweus%weermereyeaf&%hefeuew
ing finaneial statements:}
two years; and]
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4D the meost current quarterly financial state-
ment prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles:]
mentshaveﬂetbeenpfepared%heprevm&s%wee?mefeyea%&%hefel-
lowing copies of tax returns and finaneial statements:}

) copies of tax returns for the previous twe

years; each eertified by original signature of an authorized signatory
asbemga%fueaﬂdeeﬂeeteepyef%hefetumﬁledwﬁh%hehtemal

fiv)  for publicly traded companies; copies of Seeu-

and the most eurrent Form 10-Q:}
6 for privately-held companies; written disele-
sure of the information that would normally be found in Seecurities and
/(1) descriptions of the business and its opera-

HH) identification of any affliated relation-
[(11l)  credit agreements and terms;]

VD signif . lcies:]

fvit) if an applicant cannot or choeses neot to
finaneial documentation specified in elauses () - (1) of this subpara-
graph and who must or chooses to obtain additional financing through
a new stock offering or new debt issuance for facility expansion; ea-
paeity expansion; or new construction; and for safe operation; proper
elosure; and adequate liability coverage; the following information:}

) a financial plan sufficiently detailed to
elearly demonstrate that the applicant will be in a pesition to readily
is issued: il:hesubmrttedﬁnaﬁelﬁpkmmustbeaeeempamedby
original letters of opinion from two financial experts; not otherwise
employed by the applicant; who have the demeonstrated ability to either
must certify that the financial plan is reasonable; certify that financing
opinion letter from a financial expert, not otherwise employed by
the applicant; is required if the letter renders a firm commitment to
of the facility and a projected cash flow statement including the period
of construction and first two years of operation. The cash flow state-

ment must demeonstrate the finaneial resourees to meet operating costs;
debt service, and financial assurance for closure, post-closure care, and
liability coverage requirements: A list of the assumptions made to fore-
east eash flow shall alse be provided]

(C) [(B)] If any of the information required to be dis-
closed under subparagraph (B) [(D)] of this paragraph would be con-
sidered confidential under applicable law, the information shall be pro-
tected accordingly. During hearings on contested applications, disclo-
sure of confidential information may be allowed only under an appro-
priate protective order.

(D) [E9] An application for a modification or amend-
ment of a permit that includes a capacity expansion of an existing
hazardous waste management facility must also contain information
provided by a Texas licensed professional geoscientist or licensed pro-
fessional engineer delineating all faults within 3,000 feet of the facil-
ity, together with a demonstration, unless previously demonstrated to
the commission or the United States Environmental Protection Agency
[EPA], that:

(i) the fault has not experienced displacement
within Holocene time, or if faults have experienced displacement
within Holocene time, that no such faults pass within 200 feet of the
portion of the surface facility where treatment, storage, or disposal of
hazardous wastes will be conducted; and

(ii)  the fault will not result in structural instability of
the surface facility or provide for groundwater movement to the extent
that there is endangerment to human health or the environment.

(E) [(6)] At any time after the effective date of the re-
quirements contained in Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title (relating
to Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste
Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities), the executive director may
require the owner or operator of an existing hazardous waste manage-
ment facility to submit that portion of his application containing the
information specified in 40 CFR §§270.14 - 270.27. Any owner or op-
erator shall be allowed a reasonable period of time from the date of the
request to submit the information. An application for a new hazardous
waste management facility must be submitted at least 180 days before
physical construction of the facility is expected to commence.

(5) An application for a new hazardous waste landfill
which is filed after January 1, 1986, must include an engineering report
which evaluates the benefits, if any, associated with the construction
of the landfill above existing grade at the proposed site, the costs
associated with the above-grade construction, and the potential ad-
verse effects, if any, which would be associated with the above-grade
construction.

(6) An application for a new hazardous waste landfill, land
treatment facility, or surface impoundment that is to be located in the
apparent recharge zone of a regional aquifer must include a hydroge-
ologic report prepared by a Texas licensed professional geoscientist
or licensed professional engineer documenting the potential effects, if
any, on the regional aquifer in the event of a release from the waste
containment system.

(7) Engineering plans and specifications submitted as part
of the permit application shall be prepared and sealed by a Texas li-
censed professional engineer who is currently registered as required
by the Texas Engineering Practice Act.

(8) After August 8, 1985, any Part B permit application
submitted by an owner or operator of a facility that stores, processes,
or disposes of hazardous waste in a surface impoundment or a land-
fill must be accompanied by information, reasonably ascertainable by
the owner or operator, on the potential for the public to be exposed to
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hazardous wastes or hazardous constituents through releases related to
the unit. By August 8, 1985, owners and operators of a landfill or a
surface impoundment who have already submitted a Part B application
must submit the exposure information required by this paragraph. Ata
minimum, such information must address:

(A) reasonably foreseeable potential releases from both
normal operations and accidents at the unit, including releases associ-
ated with transportation to or from the unit;

(B) the potential pathways of human exposure to haz-
ardous wastes or constituents resulting from documented releases; and

(C) thepotential magnitude and nature of the human ex-
posure resulting from such releases.

(9) In the case of an application for a permit to store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste at a new hazardous waste
management facility, or an application for amendment or modification
of a solid waste management facility permit to provide for capacity
expansion, the application shall also identify the nature of any known
specific and potential sources, types, and volumes of waste to be
stored, processed, or disposed of by the facility and shall identify any
other related information the executive director may require.

(10) In the case of an application for a permit to store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste at a new hazardous waste
management facility, the application must also contain the following:

(A) copies of any relevant land use plans, adopted in ac-
cordance with the Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 211, which
were in existence before publication of the notice of intent to file a solid
waste permit application or, if no notice of intent is filed, at the time
the permit application is filed;

(B) identification of the names and locations of indus-
trial and other waste-generating facilities within 1/2 mile of the facility
in the case of an application for a permit for a new on-site hazardous
waste management facility, and within one mile of the facility in the
case of an application for a permit for a new commercial hazardous
waste management facility;

(C) the approximate quantity of hazardous waste gen-
erated or received annually at those facilities described under subpara-
graph (B) of this paragraph;

(D) descriptions of the major routes of travel in the
vicinity of the facility to be used for the transportation of hazardous
waste to and from the facility, together with a map showing the
land-use patterns, covering at least a five-mile radius from the bound-
aries of the facility; and

(E) the information and demonstrations concerning
faults described under paragraph (4)(D) [()F)] of this subsection.

(11) In the case of an application for a permit to store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste, the application shall also
contain information sufficient to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the
commission that a proposed hazardous waste landfill, areal expansion
of such landfill, or new commercial hazardous waste land disposal
unit is not subject to inundation as a result of a 100-year flood event.
An applicant or any other party may not rely solely on floodplain
maps prepared by the Federal Emergency Management Agency or a
successor agency to determine whether a hazardous waste landfill,
areal expansion of such landfill, or commercial hazardous waste land
disposal unit is subject to such an inundation.

(12) In the case of an application for a permit to store,
process, or dispose of hazardous waste at a new commercial hazardous
management facility, the application shall also contain the following:

(A) information sufficient to demonstrate whether a
burden will be imposed on public roadways by vehicles traveling to
and from the facility, including, at a minimum:

(i) the average gross weight of the various types and
sizes of such vehicles to be used for transportation of hazardous waste;

(it) the average number of such vehicles which
would travel the public roadways; and

(iii)  identification of the roads to be used by vehi-
cles traveling to and from the facility within a minimum radius of 2
1/2 miles from the facility. Such identification must include the major
highways nearest the facility, even if they are located outside the 2 1/2
mile radius;

(B) inaddition to the requirements of subparagraph (A)
of this paragraph, an applicant may submit a letter from the relevant
agency of the state, county, or municipality which has the authority to
regulate and maintain roads which states unequivocally that the roads to
and from the facility are adequate for the loads to be placed on them by
the proposed facility. Such letter will serve as prima facie evidence that
the additional loads placed on the roadways caused by the operation of
the facility would not constitute a burden and thus would not require
that improvements be made to such roadways. Such letter does not,
however, obviate the need to submit the information required under
subparagraph (A) of this paragraph;

(C) evidence sufficient to demonstrate that:

(i) emergency response capabilities are available or
will be available before the facility first receives waste, in the area in
which the facility is located or proposed to be located, that has the abil-
ity to manage a reasonable worst-case emergency condition associated
with the operation of the facility; such evidence may include, but is not
limited to, the following:

(I) in addition to the contingency plan required
under 40 CFR §270.14(b)(7), provisions specifying procedures and
timing of practice facility evacuation drills, where there is a possibility
that evacuation of the facility could be necessary;

(Il) contracts with any private corporation, mu-
nicipality, or county to provide emergency response;

(I1I) weather data which might tend to affect
emergency response;

(IV) adefinition of worst-case emergencies, €.g.,
fires, explosions, the Texas Design Hurricane, or the Standard Project
Hurricane;

(V) atraining program for personnel for response
to such emergencies;

(VD) identification of first-responders;

(V1) identification of local or regional emer-
gency medical services and hospitals which have had hazardous
materials training;

(VIIl) apre-disaster plan, including drills;

(IX) a mechanism for notifying all applicable
government agencies when an incident occurs (i.e., Texas Commission
on Environmental Quality, Texas Parks and Wildlife, General Land
Office, Texas Department of State Health Services, and Texas Railroad
Commission);

(X) a showing of coordination with the local
emergency planning committee and any local comprehensive emer-
gency management plan; and
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(XI) any medical response capability which may
be available on the facility property; or

(ii) the applicant has secured bonding of sufficient
financial assurance to fund the emergency response personnel and
equipment determined to be necessary by the executive director to
manage a reasonable worst-case emergency condition associated
with the facility; such financial assurance may be demonstrated by
providing information which may include, but is not limited to, the
following:

(I) long-term studies using an environmental
model which provide the amount of damages for which the facility is
responsible; and

(1l) costs involved in supplying any of the infor-
mation included in or satisfying any of the requirements of clause (i)(I)
- (XI) of this subparagraph;

(D) if an applicant does not elect to provide its own
facilities or secure bonding to ensure sufficient emergency response
capabilities in accordance with §335.183 of this title (relating to
Emergency Response Capabilities Required for New Commercial
Hazardous Waste Management Facilities), the applicant must provide
prior to the time the facility first receives waste:

(i) documentation showing agreements with the
county and/or municipality in which the facility is located, or docu-
mentation showing agreements with an adjoining county, municipality,
mutual aid association, or other appropriate entity such as professional
organizations regularly doing business in the area of emergency and/or
disaster response; or

(i) demonstration that a financial assurance mecha-
nism in the form of a negotiable instrument, such as a letter of credit,
fully paid in trust fund, or an insurance policy, with the limitation
that the funds can only be used for emergency response personnel and
equipment and made payable to and for the benefit of the county gov-
ernment and/or municipal government in the county in which the facil-
ity is located or proposed to be located; and

(E) a written statement signed by an authorized signa-
tory in accordance with §305.44(a) of this title explaining how the ap-
plicant intends to provide emergency response financial assurance to
meet the requirements of subparagraph (C) or (D) of this paragraph;
and

(F) a summary of the applicant's experience in haz-
ardous waste management and in particular the hazardous waste
management technology proposed for the application location, and,
for any applicant without experience in the particular hazardous waste
management technology, a conspicuous statement of that lack of
experience.

(13) An application for a boiler or industrial furnace burn-
ing hazardous waste at a facility at which the owner or operator uses
direct transfer operations to feed hazardous waste from transport vehi-
cles (containers, as defined in 40 CFR §266.111) directly to the boiler
or industrial furnace shall submit information supporting conformance
with the standards for direct transfer provided by 40 CFR §266.111
and §335.225 of this title (relating to Additional Standards for Direct
Transfer).

(14) The executive director may require a permittee or an
applicant to submit information in order to establish permit conditions
under §305.127(1)(B)(iii) and (4)(A) [§305-12HDA) and (DBIGiD]
of this title (relating to Conditions to be Determined for Individual Per-
mits).

(15) If the executive director concludes, based on one or
more of the factors listed in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph that
compliance with the standards of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart EEE alone
may not be protective of human health or the environment, the execu-
tive director shall require the additional information or assessment(s)
necessary to determine whether additional controls are necessary to en-
sure protection of human health and the environment. This includes
information necessary to evaluate the potential risk to human health
and/or the environment resulting from both direct and indirect expo-
sure pathways. The executive director may also require a permittee or
applicant to provide information necessary to determine whether such
an assessment(s) should be required. The executive director shall base
the evaluation of whether compliance with the standards of 40 CFR
Part 63, Subpart EEE alone is protective of human health or the en-
vironment on factors relevant to the potential risk from a hazardous
waste combustion unit, including, as appropriate, any of the following
factors:

(A) particular site-specific considerations such as prox-
imity to receptors (such as schools, hospitals, nursing homes, day-care
centers, parks, community activity centers, or other potentially sensi-
tive receptors), unique dispersion patterns, etc.;

(B) identities and quantities of emissions of persistent,
bioaccumulative, or toxic pollutants considering enforceable controls
in place to limit those pollutants;

(C) identities and quantities of nondioxin products of
incomplete combustion most likely to be emitted and to pose significant
risk based on known toxicities (confirmation of which should be made
through emissions testing);

(D) identities and quantities of other off-site sources of
pollutants in proximity of the facility that significantly influence inter-
pretation of a facility-specific risk assessment;

(E) presence of significant ecological considerations,
such as the proximity of a particularly sensitive ecological area;

(F) volume and types of wastes, for example wastes
containing highly toxic constituents;

(G) other on-site sources of hazardous air pollutants
that significantly influence interpretation of the risk posed by the
operation of the source in question;

(H) adequacy of any previously conducted risk assess-
ment, given any subsequent changes in conditions likely to affect risk;
and

(I)  such other factors as may be appropriate.

(16) 1If, as the result of an assessment(s) or other informa-
tion, the executive director determines that conditions are necessary in
addition to those required under 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart EEE, Parts
264 or 266 to ensure protection of human health and the environment,
including revising emission limits, he/she shall include those terms and
conditions in a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act permit for a
hazardous waste combustion unit.

(b) An application specifically for a post-closure permit or for
a post-closure order for post-closure care must meet the following re-
quirements, as applicable.

(1) An application for a post-closure permit or a post-clo-
sure order shall contain information required by 40 CFR §270.14(b)(1),
) - (6), (11), (13), (14), (18), and (19), (c), and (d), and any addi-
tional information that the executive director determines is necessary
from 40 CFR §§270.14,270.16 - 270.18, 270.20, or 270.21, except that
closure cost estimates shall be prepared in accordance with 40 CFR
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§264.142(a)(1), (3), and (4), as well as §§37.131, 37.141, 335.127, and
335.178 of this title.

(2) An application for a post-closure order shall also con-
tain financial information sufficient to demonstrate to the satisfaction
of the executive director that the applicant has sufficient financial re-
sources to operate the facility in a safe manner and in compliance with
the post-closure order and all applicable rules. Financial information
submitted to satisfy this paragraph shall meet the requirements of Chap-
ter 37, Subchapter P of this title.

(3) Anapplication for a post-closure order or for a post-clo-
sure permit must also contain any other information as the executive
director may deem necessary to determine whether the facility and the
operation thereof will comply with the requirements of the TSWDA
and Chapter 335 of this title including, but not limited to, the informa-
tion set forth in TSWDA, §361.109.

(4) The executive director may require an applicant for a
post-closure order to submit information in order to establish condi-
tions under §305.127(4)(A) of this title.

(5) An application for a post-closure order or for a post-
closure permit shall also contain the information listed in §305.45(a)(1)
of this title (relating to Contents of Application for Permit).

(6) All engineering and geoscientific information submit-
ted to the agency shall be prepared by, or under the supervision of, a li-
censed professional engineer or licensed professional geoscientist, and
shall be signed, sealed, and dated by qualified professionals as required
by the Texas Engineering Practice Act and the Texas Geosciences Prac-
tice Act and the licensing and registration boards under these acts.

(7) One original and three copies of an application for a
post-closure permit or for a post-closure order shall be submitted on
forms provided by, or approved by, the executive director and shall be
accompanied by a like number of originals and copies of all required
exhibits.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205006

Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER D. AMENDMENTS,
RENEWALS, TRANSFERS, CORRECTIONS,
REVOCATION, AND SUSPENSION OF
PERMITS

30 TAC §305.64, §305.69

Statutory Authority

The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to Gen-
eral Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to
adopt any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties

under the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state;
and under Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §361.017
(relating to Commission's Jurisdiction: Industrial Solid Waste
and Hazardous Municipal Waste), THSC, §361.085 (relating to
Financial Assurance and Disclosure by Permit Applicant), and
THSC, §361.024 (relating to Rules and Standards) which autho-
rize the commission to regulate industrial solid waste and haz-
ardous waste and to adopt rules consistent with the general in-
tent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed amendments implement THSC, Chapter 361.
$§305.64.  Transfer of Permits.

(a) A permitisissued in personam and may be transferred only
upon approval of the commission. No transfer is required for a corpo-
rate name change, as long as the secretary of state can verify that a
change in name alone has occurred. An attempted transfer is not effec-
tive for any purpose until actually approved by the commission.

(b) Except as provided otherwise in subsection (g) of this sec-
tion, either the transferee or the permittee shall submit to the executive
director an application for transfer at least 30 days before the proposed
transfer date. The application shall contain the following:

(1) the name and address of the transferee;
(2) date of proposed transfer;

(3) if the permit requires financial responsibility, the
method by which the proposed transferee intends to assume or provide
financial responsibility, including proof of such financial responsibility
to become effective when the transfer becomes effective;

(4) afeeof $100 to be applied toward the processing of the
application, as provided in §305.53(a) of this title (relating to Applica-
tion Fee);

(5) asworn statement that the application is made with the
full knowledge and consent of the permittee if the transferee is filing
the application; and

(6) any other information the executive director may rea-
sonably require.

(c) Ifno agreement regarding transfer of permit responsibility
and liability is provided, responsibility for compliance with the terms
and conditions of the permit and liability for any violation associated
therewith is assumed by the transferee, effective on the date of the ap-
proved transfer. This section is not intended to relieve a transfer or of
any liability.

(d) The executive director must be satisfied that proof of any
required financial responsibility is sufficient before transmitting an ap-
plication for transfer to the commission for further proceedings.

(e) Ifaperson attempting to acquire a permit causes or allows
operation of the facility before approval is given, such person shall be
considered to be operating without a permit or other authorization.

(f) The commission may refuse to approve a transfer where
conditions of a judicial decree, compliance agreement, or other en-
forcement order have not been entirely met. The commission shall also
consider the prior compliance record of the transferee, if any.

(g) For permits involving hazardous waste under the Texas
Solid Waste Disposal Act, Texas Health and Safety Code Annotated,
Chapter 361 changes in the ownership or operational control of a facil-
ity may be made as Class 1 modifications with prior written approval
of the executive director in accordance with §305.69 of this title (relat-
ing to Solid Waste Permit Modification at the Request of the Permittee).
The new owner or operator must submit a revised permit application no
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later than 90 days prior to the scheduled change. A written agreement
containing a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility between
the current and new permittees must also be submitted to the executive
director. When a transfer of ownership or operational control occurs,
the old owner or operator shall comply with the requirements of Chap-
ter 37, Subchapter P of this title (relating to Financial Assurance for
Hazardous and Nonhazardous Industrial Solid Waste Facilities), until
the new owner or operator has demonstrated compliance with the re-
quirements of Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title. The new owner or
operator must demonstrate compliance with the requirements of Chap-
ter 37, Subchapter P of this title within six months of the date of the
change of ownership or operational control of the facility. Prior to the
executive director issuing the permit modification transferring the per-
mit, the new owner or operator must provide proof of financial assur-
ance in compliance with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title. Upon
demonstration to the executive director [by the new ewner or eperater]
of compliance with Chapter 37[; Subehapter P] of this title, the exec-
utive director shall notify the old owner or operator that he no longer
needs to comply with Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title as of the
date of demonstration.

(h) The commission may transfer permits to an interim permit-
tee pending an ultimate decision on a permit transfer if it finds one or
more of the following:

(1) the permittee no longer owns the permitted facilities;

(2) the permittee is about to abandon or cease operation of
the facilities;

(3) the permittee has abandoned or ceased operating the fa-
cilities; and
(4) there exists a need for the continued operation of the

facility and the proposed interim permittee is capable of assuming re-
sponsibility for compliance with the permit.

(i) The commission may transfer a permit involuntarily after
notice and an opportunity for hearing, for any of the following reasons:

(1) the permittee no longer owns or controls the permitted
facilities;

(2) ifthe facilities have not been built, and the permittee no
longer has sufficient property rights in the site of the proposed facilities;

(3) the permittee has failed or is failing to comply with the
terms and conditions of the permit;

(4) the permitted facilities have been or are about to be
abandoned,

(5) the permittee has violated commission rules or orders;

(6) the permittee has been or is operating the permitted fa-
cilities in a manner which creates an imminent and substantial endan-
germent to the public health or the environment;

(7) foreclosure, insolvency, bankruptcy, or similar pro-
ceedings have rendered the permittee unable to construct the permitted
facilities or adequately perform its responsibilities in operating the
facilities; or

(8) transfer of the permit would maintain the quality of wa-
ter in the state consistent with the public health and enjoyment, the
propagation and protection of terrestrial and aquatic life, and the op-
eration of existing industries, taking into consideration the economic
development of the state and/or would minimize the damage to the en-
vironment; and

(9) the transferee has demonstrated the willingness and
ability to comply with the permit and all other applicable requirements.

(j) The commission may initiate proceedings in accordance
with the Texas Water Code, Chapter 13, for the appointment of a re-
ceiver consistent with this section.

(k) For standard permits, changes in the ownership or opera-
tional control of a facility may be made as a Class 1 modification to
the standard permit with prior approval from the executive director in

accordance with §305.69(k) [§305-69)(a)A)] of this title.

$305.69. Solid Waste Permit Modification at the Request of the Per-
mittee.

(a) Applicability. This section applies only to modifications to
industrial and hazardous solid waste permits. Modifications to munic-
ipal solid waste permits are covered in §305.70 of this title (relating to
Municipal Solid Waste Permit and Registration Modifications).

(b) Class I modifications of solid waste permits.

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsection,
the permittee may put into effect Class 1 modifications listed in Appen-
dix I of subsection (k) of this section under the following conditions:

(A) the permittee must notify the executive director
concerning the modification by certified mail or other means that es-
tablish proof of delivery within seven calendar days after the change is
put into effect. This notification must specify the changes being made
to permit conditions or supporting documents referenced by the permit
and must explain why they are necessary. Along with the notification,
the permittee must provide the applicable information in the form and
manner specified in §1.5(d) of this title (relating to Records of the
Agency), §§305.41 - 305.45 and 305.47 - 305.53 of this title (relating
to Applicability; Application Required; Who Applies; Signatories
to Applications; Contents of Application for Permit; Retention of
Application Data; Additional Contents of Applications for Wastewater
Discharge Permits; Additional Contents of Application for an Injec-
tion Well Permit; Additional Requirements for an Application for a
Hazardous or Industrial Solid Waste Permit and for a Post-Closure
Order; Revision of Applications for Hazardous Waste Permits; Waste
Containing Radioactive Materials; and Application Fee), Subchapter I
of this chapter (relating to Hazardous Waste Incinerator Permits), and
Subchapter J of this chapter (relating to Permits for Land Treatment
Demonstrations Using Field Tests or Laboratory Analyses);

(B) the permittee must send notice of the modification
request by first-class mail to all persons listed in §39.13 of this title
(relating to Mailed Notice). This notification must be made within 90
calendar days after the change is put into effect. For the Class 1 modi-
fications that require prior executive director approval, the notification
must be made within 90 calendar days after the executive director ap-
proves the request; and

(C) any person may request the executive director to re-
view, and the executive director may for cause reject, any Class 1 mod-
ification. The executive director must inform the permittee by certified
mail that a Class 1 modification has been rejected, explaining the rea-
sons for the rejection. If a Class 1 modification has been rejected, the
permittee must comply with the original permit conditions.

(2) Class 1 permit modifications identified in Appendix I
of subsection (k) of this section by a superscript 1 may be made only
with the prior written approval of the executive director.

(3) For a Class 1 permit modification, the permittee may
elect to follow the procedures in subsection (c) of this section for Class
2 modifications instead of the Class 1 procedures. The permittee must
inform the executive director of this decision in the notification re-
quired in subsection (c¢)(1) of this section.

(c) Class 2 modifications of solid waste permits.
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(1) For Class 2 modifications, which are listed in Appendix
I of subsection (k) of this section, the permittee must submit a modifi-
cation request to the executive director that:

(A) describes the exact change to be made to the permit
conditions and supporting documents referenced by the permit;

(B) identifies the modification as a Class 2 modifica-
tion;
(C) explains why the modification is needed; and

(D) provides the applicable information in the form and
manner specified in §1.5(d) of this title and §§305.41 - 305.45 and
305.47 - 305.53 of this title;

(2) The permittee must send a notice of the modification
request by first-class mail to all persons listed in §39.13 of this title and
must cause this notice to be published in a major local newspaper of
general circulation. This notice must be mailed and published within
seven days before or after the date of submission of the modification
request, and the permittee must provide to the executive director evi-
dence of the mailing and publication. The notice must include:

(A) announcement of a 60-day comment period, in ac-
cordance with paragraph (5) of this subsection, and the name and ad-
dress of an agency contact to whom comments must be sent;

(B) announcement of the date, time, and place for a
public meeting to be held in accordance with paragraph (4) of this sub-
section;

(C) name and telephone number of the permittee's con-
tact person,

(D) name and telephone number of an agency contact
person;

(E) location where copies of the modification request
and any supporting documents can be viewed and copied; and

(F) the following statement: "The permittee's compli-
ance history during the life of the permit being modified is available
from the agency contact person."

(3) The permittee must place a copy of the permit modifi-
cation request and supporting documents in a location accessible to the
public in the vicinity of the permitted facility.

(4) The permittee must hold a public meeting no earlier
than 15 days after the publication of the notice required in paragraph
(2) of this subsection and no later than 15 days before the close of the
60-day comment period. The meeting must be held to the extent prac-
ticable in the vicinity of the permitted facility.

(5) The public shall be provided at least 60 days to com-
ment on the modification request. The comment period will begin on
the date the permittee publishes the notice in the local newspaper. Com-
ments should be submitted to the agency contact identified in the public
notice.

(6) No later than 90 days after receipt of the modification
request, subparagraphs (A), (B), (C), (D), or (E) of this paragraph must
be met, subject to §50.33 of this title (relating to Executive Director
Action on Application), as follows:

(A) the executive director or the commission must ap-
prove the modification request, with or without changes, and modify
the permit accordingly;

(B) the commission must deny the request;

(C) the commission or the executive director must de-
termine that the modification request must follow the procedures in
subsection (d) of this section for Class 3 modifications for either of the
following reasons:

(i) there is significant public concern about the pro-
posed modification; or

(ii) the complex nature of the change requires the
more extensive procedures of a Class 3 modification; or

(D) the commission must approve the modification re-
quest, with or without changes, as a temporary authorization having a
term of up to 180 days, in accordance with the following public notice
requirements:

(i) notice of a hearing on the temporary authoriza-
tion shall be given not later than the 20th day before the hearing on the
authorization; and

(ii)  this notice of hearing shall provide that an af-
fected person may request an evidentiary hearing on issuance of the
temporary authorization; or

(E) the executive director must notify the permittee that
the executive director or the commission will decide on the request
within the next 30 days.

(7) If the executive director notifies the permittee of a
30-day extension for a decision, then no later than 120 days after
receipt of the modification request, subparagraphs (A), (B), (C), or
(D) of this paragraph must be met, subject to §50.33 of this title, as
follows:

(A) the executive director or the commission must ap-
prove the modification request, with or without changes, and modify
the permit accordingly;

(B) the commission must deny the request;

(C) the commission or the executive director must de-
termine that the modification request must follow the procedures in
subsection (d) of this section for Class 3 modifications for either of the
following reasons:

(i) there is significant public concern about the pro-
posed modification; or

(i) the complex nature of the change requires the
more extensive procedures of a Class 3 modification; or

(D) the commission must approve the modification re-
quest, with or without changes, as a temporary authorization having a
term of up to 180 days, in accordance with the following public notice
requirements:

(i) notice of a hearing on the temporary authoriza-
tion shall be given not later than the 20th day before the hearing on the
authorization; and

(ii)  this notice of hearing shall provide that an af-
fected person may request an evidentiary hearing on issuance of the
temporary authorization.

(8) If the executive director or the commission fails to
make one of the decisions specified in paragraph (7) of this subsection
by the 120th day after receipt of the modification request, the permittee
is automatically authorized to conduct the activities described in the
modification request for up to 180 days, without formal agency action.
The authorized activities must be conducted as described in the permit
modification request and must be in compliance with all appropriate
standards of Chapter 335, Subchapter E of this title (relating to Interim
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Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment,
Storage, or Disposal Facilities). If the commission approves, with or
without changes, or denies any modification request during the term
of the temporary authorization issued pursuant to paragraph (6) or (7)
of this subsection, such action cancels the temporary authorization.
The commission is the sole authority for approving or denying the
modification request during the term of the temporary authorization.
If the executive director or the commission approves, with or without
changes, or if the commission denies the modification request during
the term of the automatic authorization provided for in this paragraph,
such action cancels the automatic authorization.

(9) In the case of an automatic authorization under para-
graph (8) of this subsection, or a temporary authorization under para-
graph (6)(D) or (7)(D) of this subsection, if the executive director or
the commission has not made a final approval or denial of the modifi-
cation request by the date 50 days prior to the end of the temporary or
automatic authorization, the permittee must within seven days of that
time send a notification to all persons listed in §39.13 of this title, and
make a reasonable effort to notify other persons who submitted written
comments on the modification request, that:

(A) the permittee has been authorized temporarily to
conduct the activities described in the permit modification request; and

(B) unless the executive director or the commission acts
to give final approval or denial of the request by the end of the autho-
rization period, the permittee will receive authorization to conduct such
activities for the life of the permit.

(10) If the owner/operator fails to notify the public by the
date specified in paragraph (9) of this subsection, the effective date
of the permanent authorization will be deferred until 50 days after the
owner/operator notifies the public.

(11) Except as provided in paragraph (13) of this subsec-
tion, if the executive director or the commission does not finally ap-
prove or deny a modification request before the end of the automatic or
temporary authorization period or reclassify the modification as Class
3 modification, the permittee is authorized to conduct the activities de-
scribed in the permit modification request for the life of the permit
unless amended or modified later under §305.62 of this title (relating
to Amendments) or this section. The activities authorized under this
paragraph must be conducted as described in the permit modification
request and must be in compliance with all appropriate standards of
Chapter 335, Subchapter E of this title.

(12) Inthe processing of each Class 2 modification request
which is subsequently approved or denied by the executive director or
the commission in accordance with paragraph (6) or (7) of this sub-
section, or each Class 2 modification request for which a temporary
authorization is issued in accordance with subsection (f) of this section
or a reclassification to a Class 3 modification is made in accordance
with paragraph (6)(C) or (7)(C) of this subsection, the executive direc-
tor must consider all written comments submitted to the agency during
the public comment period and must respond in writing to all signifi-
cant comments.

(13) With the written consent of the permittee, the execu-
tive director may extend indefinitely or for a specified period the time
periods for final approval or denial of a Class 2 modification request or
for reclassifying a modification as Class 3.

(14) The commission or the executive director may change
the terms of, and the commission may deny a Class 2 permit modifica-
tion request under paragraphs (6) - (8) of this subsection for any of the
following reasons:

(A) the modification request is incomplete;

(B) the requested modification does not comply with
the appropriate requirements of Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title
(relating to Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of Haz-
ardous Waste Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities) or other ap-
plicable requirements; or

(C) the conditions of the modification fail to protect hu-
man health and the environment.

(15) The permittee may perform any construction associ-
ated with a Class 2 permit modification request beginning 60 days after
the submission of the request unless the executive director establishes
a later date for commencing construction and informs the permittee in
writing before the 60th day.

(d) Class 3 modifications of solid waste permits.

(1) For Class 3 modifications listed in Appendix I of sub-
section (k) of this section, the permittee must submit a modification
request to the executive director that:

(A) describes the exact change to be made to the permit
conditions and supporting documents referenced by the permit;

(B) identifies that the modification is a Class 3 modifi-
cation;

(C) explains why the modification is needed; and

(D) provides the applicable information in the form and
manner specified in §1.5(d) of this title and §§305.41 - 305.45 and
305.47 - 305.53 of this title; and Subchapter Q of this chapter (relat-
ing to Permits for Boilers and Industrial Furnaces Burning Hazardous
Waste).

(2) The permittee must send a notice of the modification
request by first-class mail to all persons listed in §39.13 of this title and
must cause this notice to be published in a major local newspaper of
general circulation. This notice must be mailed and published within
seven days before or after the date of submission of the modification
request and evidence of the mailing and publication of the notice shall
be provided to the executive director. The notice shall include the fol-
lowing:

(A) all information required by §39.11 of this title (re-
lating to Text of Public [Mailed] Notice);

(B) announcement of a 60-day comment period, and the
name and address of an agency contact person to whom comments must
be sent;

(C) announcement of the date, time, and place for a
public meeting on the modification request, to be held in accordance
with paragraph (4) of this subsection;

(D) name and telephone number of the permittee's con-
tact person;

(E) name and telephone number of an agency contact
person;

(F) identification of the location where copies of the
modification request and any supporting documents can be viewed and
copied; and

(G) the following statement: "The permittee's compli-
ance history during the life of the permit being modified is available
from the agency contact person."

(3) The permittee must place a copy of the permit modifi-
cation request and supporting documents in a location accessible to the
public in the vicinity of the permitted facility.
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(4) The permittee must hold a public meeting no earlier
than 15 days after the publication of the notice required in paragraph
(2) of this subsection and no later than 15 days before the close of the
60-day comment period. The meeting must be held to the extent prac-
ticable in the vicinity of the permitted facility.

(5) The public shall be provided at least 60 days to com-
ment on the modification request. The comment period will begin on
the date the permittee publishes the notice in the local newspaper. Com-
ments should be submitted to the agency contact person identified in the
public notice.

(6) After the conclusion of the 60-day comment period, the
permit modification request shall be granted or denied in accordance
with the applicable requirements of Chapter 39 of this title (relating to
Public Notice), Chapter 50 of this title (relating to Action on Applica-
tions and Other Authorizations), and Chapter 55 of this title (relating
to Requests for Reconsideration and Contested Case Hearings; Public
Comment). When a permit is modified, only the conditions subject to
modification are reopened.

(7) Except as otherwise required by Chapter 39 of this title,
the notice requirements in this section do not apply to Class 3 modifica-
tion applications for industrial or hazardous waste facility permits that
are declared administratively complete on or after September 1, 1999.

(e) Other modifications.

(1) In the case of modifications not explicitly listed in Ap-
pendix I of subsection (k) of this section, the permittee may submit a
Class 3 modification request to the agency, or the permittee may re-
quest a determination by the executive director that the modification
should be reviewed and approved as a Class 1 or Class 2 modification.
If the permittee requests that the modification be classified as a Class
1 or Class 2 modification, the permittee must provide the agency with
the necessary information to support the requested classification.

(2) The executive director shall make the determination de-
scribed in paragraph (1) of this subsection as promptly as practicable.
In determining the appropriate class for a specific modification, the ex-
ecutive director shall consider the similarity of the modification to other
modifications codified in Appendix I of subsection (k) of this section
and the following criteria.

(A) Class 1 modifications apply to minor changes that
keep the permit current with routine changes to the facility or its op-
eration. These changes do not substantially alter the permit conditions
or reduce the capacity of the facility to protect human health or the en-
vironment. In the case of Class 1 modifications, the executive director
may require prior approval;

(B) Class 2 modifications apply to changes that are nec-
essary to enable a permittee to respond, in a timely manner, to:

(i) common variations in the types and quantities of
the wastes managed under the facility permit;

(ii) technological advancements; and

(iii)  changes necessary to comply with new regula-
tions, where these changes can be implemented without substantially
changing design specifications or management practices in the permit;
and

(C) Class 3 modifications reflect a substantial alteration
of the facility or its operations.

(f) Temporary authorizations.

(1) Upon request of the permittee, the commission may
grant the permittee a temporary authorization having a term of up to

180 days, in accordance with this subsection, and in accordance with
the following public notice requirements:

(A) notice of a hearing on the temporary authorization
shall be given not later than the 20th day before the hearing on the
authorization; and

(B) this notice of hearing shall provide that an affected
person may request an evidentiary hearing on issuance of the temporary
authorization.

(2) The permittee may request a temporary authorization
for:

(A) any Class 2 modification meeting the criteria in
paragraph (5)(B) of this subsection; and

(B) any Class 3 modification that meets the criteria in
paragraph (5)(B)(i) or (ii) of this subsection, or that meets any of the
criteria in paragraph (5)(B)(iii) - (v) of this subsection and provides
improved management or treatment of a hazardous waste already listed
in the facility permit.

(3) The temporary authorization request must include:

(A) a specific description of the activities to be con-
ducted under the temporary authorization;

(B) an explanation of why the temporary authorization
is necessary and reasonably unavoidable; and

(C) sufficient information to ensure compliance with
the applicable standards of Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title and
40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 264.

(4) The permittee must send a notice about the temporary
authorization request by first-class mail to all persons listed in §39.13
of this title. This notification must be made within seven days of sub-
mission of the authorization request.

(5) The commission shall approve or deny the temporary
authorization as quickly as practicable. To issue a temporary autho-
rization, the commission must find:

(A) the authorized activities are in compliance with the
applicable standards of Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title and 40
CFR Part 264; and

(B) the temporary authorization is necessary to achieve
one of the following objectives before action is likely to be taken on a
modification request:

(i) to facilitate timely implementation of closure or
corrective action activities;

(ii) to allow treatment or storage in tanks, contain-
ers, or containment buildings, of restricted wastes in accordance with
Chapter 335, Subchapter O of this title (relating to Land Disposal Re-
strictions), 40 CFR Part 268, or Section 3004 of the Resource Conser-
vation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 United States Code, §6924;

(iii)  to prevent disruption of ongoing waste manage-
ment activities;
(iv) to enable the permittee to respond to sudden

changes in the types or quantities of the wastes managed under the
facility permit; or

(v) to facilitate other changes to protect human
health and the environment.

(6) A temporary authorization may be reissued for one ad-
ditional term of up to 180 days provided that the permittee has re-
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quested a Class 2 or 3 permit modification for the activity covered in
the temporary authorization, and:

(A) thereissued temporary authorization constitutes the
commission's decision on a Class 2 permit modification in accordance
with subsection (c)(6)(D) or (7)(D) of this section; or

(B) the commission determines that the reissued tem-
porary authorization involving a Class 3 permit modification request is
warranted to allow the authorized activities to continue while the mod-
ification procedures of subsection (d) of this section are conducted.

(g) Public notice and appeals of permit modification decisions.

(1) The commission shall notify all persons listed in §39.13
of this title within ten working days of any decision under this section
to grant or deny a Class 2 or 3 permit modification request. The com-
mission shall also notify such persons within ten working days after
an automatic authorization for a Class 2 modification goes into effect
under subsection (¢)(8) or (11) of this section.

(2) The executive director's or the commission's decision to
grant or deny a Class 3 permit modification request under this section
may be appealed under the appropriate procedures set forth in the com-
mission's rules and in the Administrative Procedure Act, Texas Govern-
ment Code, Chapter 2001.

(h) Newly regulated wastes and units.

(1) The permittee is authorized to continue to manage
wastes listed or identified as hazardous under 40 CFR Part 261, or
to continue to manage hazardous waste in units newly regulated as
hazardous waste management units if:

(A) the unit was in existence as a hazardous waste facil-
ity unit with respect to the newly listed or characteristic waste or newly
regulated waste management unit on the effective date of the final rule
listing or identifying the waste or regulating the unit;

(B) the permittee submits a Class 1 modification request
on or before the date on which the waste or unit becomes subject to the
new requirements;

(C) the permittee is in substantial compliance with the
applicable standards of Chapter 335, Subchapter E of this title, Chap-
ter 335, Subchapter H, Divisions 1 through 4 of this title (relating to
Standards for the Management of Specific Wastes and Specific Types
of Facilities), and 40 CFR Part 265 and Part 266;

(D) the permittee also submits a complete Class 2 or
3 modification request within 180 days after the effective date of the
final rule listing or identifying the waste or subjecting the unit to Sec-
tion 6921 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Subtitle C
(Subchapter 111 Hazardous Waste Management, 42 United States Code,
§§6921 - 6939¢); and

(E) in the case of land disposal units, the permittee cer-
tifies that each such unit is in compliance with all applicable 40 CFR
Part 265 groundwater monitoring requirements and with Chapter 37 of
this title (relating to Financial Assurance) on the date 12 months after
the effective date of the final rule identifying or listing the waste as haz-
ardous, or regulating the unit as a hazardous waste management unit.
If the owner or operator fails to certify compliance with these require-
ments, the owner or operator shall lose authority to operate under this
section.

(2) New wastes or units added to a facility's permit under
this subsection do not constitute expansions for the purpose of the 25%
capacity expansion limit for Class 2 modifications.

(i) Combustion facility changes to meet 40 CFR Part 63, Maxi-
mum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards. The follow-
ing procedures apply to hazardous waste combustion facility permit
modifications requested under L.9. of Appendix I of subsection (k) of
this section.

(1) Facility owners or operators must have complied with
the Notification of Intent to Comply (NIC) requirements of 40 CFR
§63.1210(b) and (c) that were in effect prior to October 11, 2000, as
amended in 40 CFR §270.42(j) through October 12, 2005 (70 Federal
Register 59402), before a permit modification can be requested under
this section.

(2) If the executive director does not approve or deny the
request within 90 days of receiving it, the request shall be deemed ap-
proved. The executive director may, at his or her discretion, extend
this 90-day deadline one time for up to 30 days by notifying the facil-
ity owner or operator.

(3) Facility owners or operators may request to have spe-
cific RCRA operating and emissions limits waived by submitting a
Class 1 permit modification request under L.10. in Appendix I of sub-
section (k) of this section. The facility owner or operator must:

(A) identify the specific RCRA permit operating and
emissions limits which are requested to be waived;

(B) provide an explanation of why the changes are nec-
essary to minimize or eliminate conflicts between the RCRA permit
and MACT compliance;

(C) discuss how the revised provisions will be suffi-
ciently protective; and

(D) the executive director shall notify the facility owner
or operator whether the Class 1 permit modification has been approved
or denied. If denied, the executive director shall provide justification
for denial.

(4) To request the modification referenced in paragraph
(3) of this subsection in conjunction with MACT performance testing
where permit limits may only be waived during actual test events and
pretesting, as defined under 40 CFR §63.1207(h)(2)(i) and (ii), for an
aggregate time not to exceed 720 hours of operation (renewable at the
discretion of the executive director); the owner or operator must:

(A) submit the modification request to the executive di-
rector at the same time the test plans are submitted to the executive
director; and

(B) the executive director may elect to approve or deny
the request contingent upon approval of the test plans.

(j) Military hazardous waste munitions storage, processing,
and disposal. The permittee is authorized to continue to accept waste
military munitions notwithstanding any permit conditions barring the
permittee from accepting off-site wastes, if:

(1) the facility is in existence as a hazardous waste facility,
and the facility is already permitted to handle waste military munitions,
on the date when waste military munitions become subject to hazardous
waste regulatory requirements;

(2) on or before the date when waste military munitions
become subject to hazardous waste regulatory requirements, the per-
mittee submits a Class 1 modification request to remove or revise the
permit provision restricting the receipt of off-site waste munitions; and

(3) the permittee submits a Class 2 modification request
within 180 days of the date when the waste military munitions become
subject to hazardous waste regulatory requirements.
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(k) Appendix 1. The following appendix will be used for the
purposes of this subchapter which relates to industrial and hazardous
solid waste permit modification at the request of the permittee.
Figure: 30 TAC §305.69(k)

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205007

Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779

¢ ¢ ¢

SUBCHAPTER F. PERMIT CHARACTERIS-
TICS AND CONDITIONS

30 TAC §305.122

Statutory Authority

The amendment is proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to Gen-
eral Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to
adopt any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties
under the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state;
and under Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §361.017
(relating to Commission's Jurisdiction: Industrial Solid Waste
and Hazardous Municipal Waste), THSC, §361.085 (relating to
Financial Assurance and Disclosure by Permit Applicant), and
THSC, §361.024 (relating to Rules and Standards) which autho-
rize the commission to regulate industrial solid waste and haz-
ardous waste and to adopt rules consistent with the general in-
tent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed amendment implements THSC, Chapter 361.

$305.122.  Characteristics of Permits.

(a) Compliance with a Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA) permit during its term constitutes compliance, for pur-
poses of enforcement, with subtitle C of RCRA except for those re-
quirements not included in the permit which:

(1) become effective by statute;

(2) are promulgated under 40 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 268, restricting the placement of hazardous wastes in or on
the land;

(3) are promulgated under 40 CFR Part 264, regarding
leak detection systems for new and replacement surface impound-
ment, waste pile, and landfill units, and lateral expansions of surface
impoundment, waste pile, and landfill units. The leak detection system
requirements include double liners, construction quality assurance
programs, monitoring, action leakage rates, and response action plans,
and will be implemented through the Class 1 permit modifications
procedures of §305.69 of this title (relating to Solid Waste Permit
Modification at the Request of the Permittee); or

(4) are promulgated under 40 CFR Part 265, Subparts
AA, BB, or CC limiting air emissions, as adopted by reference under
§335.112 of this title (relating to Standards).

(b) A permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or ter-
minated during its term for cause as set forth in §305.62 of this title
(relating to Amendments) and §305.66 of this title (relating to Permit
Denial, Suspension, and Revocation), or the permit may be modified
upon the request of the permittee as set forth in §305.69 of this title.

(c) [®)] A permit issued within the scope of this subchapter
does not convey any property rights of any sort, nor any exclusive priv-
ilege, and does not become a vested right in the permittee.

(d) [€e)] The issuance of a permit does not authorize any injury
to persons or property or an invasion of other property rights, or any
infringement of state or local law or regulations.

(e) [€&)] Except for any toxic effluent standards and prohibi-
tions imposed under Clean Water Act (CWA), §307, and standards for
sewage sludge use or disposal under CWA, §405(d), compliance with
a Texas pollutant discharge elimination system (TPDES) permit dur-
ing its term constitutes compliance, for purposes of enforcement, with
the CWA, §§301, 302, 306, 307, 318, 403, and 405; however, a TPDES
permit may be amended or revoked during its term for cause as set forth
in [§]§305.62 and §305.66 of this title. [(relating to Amendment; and
Permit Denial; Revocation and Suspension]

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205008

Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779
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SUBCHAPTER I. HAZARDOUS WASTE
INCINERATOR PERMITS

30 TAC §305.176

Statutory Authority

The new section is proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to Gen-
eral Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to
adopt any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties
under the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state;
and under Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §361.017
(relating to Commission's Jurisdiction: Industrial Solid Waste
and Hazardous Municipal Waste), THSC, §361.085 (relating to
Financial Assurance and Disclosure by Permit Applicant), and
THSC, §361.024 (relating to Rules and Standards) which autho-
rize the commission to regulate industrial solid waste and haz-
ardous waste and to adopt rules consistent with the general in-
tent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed new section implements THSC, Chapter 361.

§305.176.  Integration with Maximum Achievable Control Technol-
ogy (MACT) Standards.

The regulations contained in 40 Code of Federal Regulations §270.235,
Options for Incinerators, Cement Kilns, Lightweight Aggregate Kilns,
Solid Fuel Boilers, Liquid Fuel Boilers, and Hydrochloric Acid Pro-
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duction Furnaces to Minimize Emissions from startup, shutdown, and
malfunction events, are adopted by reference, as amended and adopted
through October 12, 2005 (70 FedReg 59402).

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205009

Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779

¢ ¢ ¢

CHAPTER 324. USED OIL STANDARDS
SUBCHAPTER A. USED OIL RECYCLING

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ,
agency, or commission) proposes amendments to §§324.1 -
324.4,324.6, 324.7, and 324.11 - 324.16; and repeals §324.5.

These amendments were originally published for proposal in the
April 27, 2012, issue of the Texas Register (37 TexReg 3011),
withdrawn on September 19, 2012, and are re-proposed herein.

Background and Summary for the Factual Basis of the Proposed
Rules

The federal used oil recycling program is authorized under the
Used Oil Recycling Act of 1980, Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA), §3014. The United States En-
vironmental Protection Agency (EPA) sets standards for used
oil destined for recycling to prevent mismanagement by genera-
tors, collection centers, transporters, processors and re-refiners,
burners, and marketers. Those federal standards are located in
40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 279.

States may obtain authorization from the EPA to administer the
used oil recycling program at the state level. State authoriza-
tion is a rulemaking process through which EPA delegates the
primary responsibility of implementing the RCRA used oil recy-
cling program to individual states in lieu of EPA. This process
ensures national consistency and minimum standards while pro-
viding flexibility to states in implementing rules. State RCRA pro-
grams must always be at least as stringent as the federal require-
ments.

Since the beginning of the federal used oil recycling program, the
State of Texas has continuously participated in the EPA's autho-
rization program. To maintain RCRA authorization, the commis-
sion must adopt regulations to meet the minimum standards of
federal programs administered by EPA. Because the federal reg-
ulations undergo regular revision, the commission must adopt
new regulations periodically to meet the changing federal regu-
lations.

The commission proposes in this rulemaking parts of RCRA Rule
Clusters XIX - XXI that implement revisions to the federal used
oil recycling program. Establishing equivalency with federal reg-
ulations will enable the State of Texas to operate all aspects of
the federal used oil recycling program in lieu of the EPA. All pro-

posed rule changes are further discussed in the Section by Sec-
tion Discussion portion of this preamble.

Two corresponding rulemakings are published in this issue of
the Texas Register and include changes to 30 TAC Chapter 305,
Consolidated Permits, and 30 TAC Chapter 335, Industrial Solid
Waste and Municipal Hazardous Waste.

Section by Section Discussion

The commission proposes administrative changes throughout
the proposed rulemaking to reflect the agency's current prac-
tices and to conform to Texas Register and agency guidelines.
These proposed changes include correcting typographical,
spelling, and grammatical errors throughout the chapter and
also incorporating by reference the typographical, spelling, and
grammatical corrections in 40 CFR Part 279. In addition, the
commission proposes to replace the phrases "shall be as" and
"will be as" with the phrase, "The commission incorporates by
reference". This change in phrasing would avoid any ambiguity
as to the commission's action to incorporate the federal used
oil rules. Finally, the commission proposes to adopt substan-
tive changes throughout the chapter such as: removing the
requirement to use SW-846 as the testing method to ensure
that used oil does not contain significant concentrations of
halogenated hazardous constituents, adding clarifying language
regarding used oil containing polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs),
and tracking requirements for used oil marketers. The changes
would make it easier for recyclers to comply with the RCRA
regulations.

§324.1, Federal Rule Adoption by Reference

The commission proposes to amend §324.1 to incorporate by
reference the federal regulations promulgated in the July 14,
2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40280). Specifically,
this amendment would update the "amended through" date to
"July 14, 2006 at 71 FedReg 40280." An introductory sentence is
proposed to be added to make clear that recyclers in Texas must
comply with federal used oil regulations and with any additional
requirements specified in Chapter 324. The terms "Administrator
or Regional Administrator," "Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA)," and "Commission" are proposed to be moved to this sec-
tion from the definition section in §324.2.

§324.2, Definitions

The commission proposes to amend §324.2 to make five
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.2 to
incorporate by reference the federal regulations promulgated in
the July 14, 2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40280).
Specifically, this amendment would correct the spelling of the
word "kerosine" to "kerosene" in the definition for "Petroleum re-
fining facility” found in 40 CFR §279.1. Second, the commission
proposes to amend §324.2(5) to replace the word "Recycling"
with the phrase "Recycling of used oil". This change would clar-
ify that this definition pertains to used oil. Third, the commission
proposes to add language to §324.2(7) to revise the definition of
"Secondary containment" to add the clause "shall be designed
to meet the specifications found in §324.22(d)(3) to retain". This
language is integral to the state's program requirements regard-
ing secondary containment for used oil. Fourth, the definitions
for "Administrator or Regional Administrator” found in §324.2(2),
"Commission" found in §324.2(3), and "Environmental Pro-
tection Agency (EPA)" found in §324.2(4) are proposed to be
removed. The terms "Administrator or Regional Administrator,"
"Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)," and "Commission"
are proposed to be moved to §324.1 as part of the Federal
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Rule Adoption by Reference section. Section 324.2 has been
alphabetized and modified accordingly. Fifth, the introductory
phrase "Most words are as defined" is proposed to be changed
to "The commission incorporates by reference the definitions" to
make clear that all definitions in 40 CFR §279.1 are part of the
state regulations and enforceable. However, the commission
also proposes certain additional definitions as part of §324.2.

§324.3, Applicability

The commission proposes to amend §324.3 to make five
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.3 to
adopt by reference the regulations promulgated in the July 30,
2003, issue of the Federal Register (68 FR 44665). This amend-
ment would add revised language in 40 CFR §279.10(i) relating
to Used Oil Containing PCBs. Specifically, this amendment
would clarify when used oil contaminated with PCBs is regulated
under the RCRA used oil management standards and when
it is not. Second, the commission proposes an amendment
to §324.3 to adopt by reference the regulations promulgated
in the June 14, 2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR
34591). This amendment would remove the requirement in 40
CFR §279.10(b)(1)(ii), relating to Applicability, to use SW-846
as the testing method. This change would ensure that the used
oil does not contain significant concentrations of halogenated
hazardous constituents and would make it easier for recyclers
to comply with the RCRA regulations by allowing more flexibility
in method selection and use. Third, the commission proposes
to amend §324.3 to adopt by reference the regulations promul-
gated in the July 14, 2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR
40280). This amendment would make grammatical corrections
to 40 CFR §279.10(b)(2) relating to Applicability and would
change the language in 40 CFR §279.11 relating to Used Oil
Specifications. Fourth, the commission proposes to amend
§324.3 by adding the phrases "The commission incorporates by
reference" and "In addition, the commission adds the following
clarifications and requirements:" and removing the phrases
"applicability will be as" and "and as clarified here". These
revisions would avoid any ambiguity as to the commission's
action to incorporate the federal used oil rules and to clarify that
there are additional state requirements. Fifth, the commission
proposes language to be added to §324.3(5) which reads "and
meet the prohibition requirements found in §324.4 of this title
(relating to Prohibitions) to prevent the discharge of hazardous
waste into a sanitary sewer." This amendment would clarify that
the State of Texas is not allowing the discharge of hazardous
waste into a sanitary sewer.

§324.4, Prohibitions

The commission proposes to amend §324.4 by adding the
phrases "The commission incorporates by reference the" and
"In addition, the commission requires the following:" and re-
moving the phrases "will be as" and "and as specified here."
These changes in phrasing would avoid any ambiguity as to the
commission's action to incorporate the federal used oil rules
and to clarify that there are additional state requirements.

§324.5, Notice by Retail Dealer

The commission proposes the repeal of §324.5 and proposes
to add the statement concerning where to obtain a sign to
§324.7(1)(A) and (3)(A). The proposed repeal allows the regu-
lated community to find the contact address in the same section
where the requirement for signs is placed.

§324.6, Generators

The commission proposes to amend §324.6 to replace the
phrase "shall be as" with the phrase "The commission incor-
porates by reference". This change in phrasing would avoid
any ambiguity as to the commission's action to incorporate the
federal used oil rules.

§324.7, Collection Centers

The commission proposes to amend §324.7 to make four
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.7 to
replace the phrases "Rules for" and "shall be as" with the phrase
"The commission incorporates by reference rules for owners
or operators of all" in front of the phrase "do-it-yourselfer (DIY)
used oil collection centers". This change in phrasing would
avoid any ambiguity as to the commission's action to incorporate
the federal used oil rules, is consistent with the federal rules
and clarifies that the section applies to the owners or operators
of these facilities. Second, the commission proposes to remove
the phrase "and as specified here" and to add the phrase "In
addition, the commission requires the following:". This proposed
change clarifies that there are additional state requirements that
must be followed by collection centers. Third, the commission
also proposes to amend §324.7(1)(A) and (3)(A) to add the
statement concerning where to obtain a sign. This proposed
change would organize all the information on obtaining a sign
in one place. The regulated community would no longer have
to refer to §324.5 to determine how to obtain a sign that is
required to be posted per §324.7(1)(A) and (3)(A). Fourth,
the commission also proposes to amend §324.7(1)(B) and
(3)(B) to remove the mailing address because it is provided on
commission cover letters and forms and to update the agency
name from Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission
to Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

§324.11, Transporters and Transfer Facilities

The commission proposes to amend §324.11 to make four
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.11 by
adding the phrase "The commission incorporates by reference"
and removing the words "are" and ", and in this section" and
adding the phrase "In addition, the commission requires the
following:". These changes would avoid any ambiguity as to
the commission's actions to incorporate the federal used oil
rules and clarify that there are additional state requirements.
Second, the commission proposes to adopt by reference the
federal regulations promulgated in the June 14, 2005, issue of
the Federal Register (70 FR 34591). This amendment would
remove the requirement to use SW-846 as the testing method
in 40 CFR §279.44(c) relating to Rebuttable Presumption for
Used Oil. This amendment would ensure that the used oil does
not contain significant concentrations of halogenated hazardous
constituents and would make it easier for recyclers to comply
with the RCRA regulations by allowing more flexibility in method
selection and use. Third, the commission proposes to amend
§324.11 to adopt by reference the regulations promulgated in
the July 14, 2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40280).
This amendment would make grammatical corrections in 40
CFR §279.43(c)(3)(i) and (5) relating to Used Qil Transportation,
40 CFR §279.44(a) and (c)(2) relating to Rebuttable Presump-
tion for Used Oil, and 40 CFR §279.45(a) relating to Used Oil
Storage at Transfer Facilities. Fourth, the commission proposes
to adopt §324.11(2) to update the agency name from Texas Nat-
ural Resource Conservation Commission to Texas Commission
on Environmental Quality and to remove the mailing address
because it is provided on commission cover letters and forms.

§324.12, Processors and Re-refiners
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The commission proposes to amend §324.12. First, the com-
mission proposes to amend §324.12 by adding the phrases "The
commission incorporates by reference", "owners and operators
of" and "In addition, the commission requires the following:".
These additions would require changing the tense of the words
"processors" and "re-refiners" to "processing" and "re-refining"
and removing the words "are" and "and in this section". These
changes would avoid any ambiguity as to the commission's
actions to incorporate the federal used oil rules, clarify that the
section applies to the owners and operators of these facilities
and clarify that there are additional state requirements. Second,
the commission proposes to amend §324.12(2) and (4) to re-
move the mailing address because it is provided on commission
instruction letters and forms. Third, the commission proposes to
amend §324.12 to update the agency name from Texas Natural
Resource Conservation Commission to Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality. Fourth, the commission proposes to
adopt by reference the federal regulations promulgated in the
June 14, 2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 34591).
This amendment would remove the requirement to use SW-846
as the testing method in 40 CFR §279.53(c) relating to Rebut-
table Presumption for Used Oil. This amendment would ensure
that the used oil does not contain significant concentrations
of halogenated hazardous constituents and makes it easier
for recyclers to comply with the RCRA regulations by allowing
more flexibility in method selection and use. Fifth, the com-
mission proposes to amend §324.12 to adopt by reference the
federal regulations promulgated in the July 14, 2006, issue of
the Federal Register (71 FR 40280). This amendment would
make grammatical corrections in 40 CFR §279.52(a) - (b),
(b)(1)(ii), (6)(ii) and (iii) relating to General Facility Standards;
40 CFR §279.54(qg) relating to Used Oil Management; 40 CFR
§279.55(a) and (b)(2)(i)(B) relating to Analysis plan; 40 CFR
§279.56(a)(2) relating to Tracking; 40 CFR §279.57(a)(2)(ii)
relating to Operating record and reporting; and 40 CFR §279.59
relating to the Management of Residues.

Additionally, the commission proposes to amend the title of
§324.12 from "Processors and Rerefiners" to "Processors and
Re-refiners".

§324.13, Burners of Off-Specification Used Oil for Energy Re-
covery

The commission proposes to amend §324.13 to make five
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.13 by
adding the phrase "The commission incorporates by reference"
and removing the word "are". This change in phrasing would
avoid any ambiguity as to the commission's action to incorporate
the federal used oil rules. Second, the commission proposes
to add the phrase "In addition, the commission requires the
following:" and remove the phrase ", and in this section". This
change would clarify that there are additional state require-
ments. Third, the commission proposes to amend §324.13(2)
to remove the mailing address for the agency because it is
provided on commission cover letters and forms and update
the agency name from Texas Natural Resource Conservation
Commission to Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.
Fourth, the commission proposes to adopt by reference the
federal regulations promulgated in the June 14, 2005, issue of
the Federal Register (70 FR 34591). This amendment would
remove the requirement to use SW-846 as the testing method
in 40 CFR §279.63(c) relating to Rebuttable Presumption for
Used Qil. This amendment would ensure that the used oil does
not contain significant concentrations of halogenated hazardous
constituents and makes it easier for recyclers to comply with

the RCRA regulations by allowing more flexibility in method
selection and use. Fifth, the commission proposes to amend
§324.13 to adopt by reference the regulations promulgated in
the July 14, 2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40280).
This proposed amendment would make grammatical corrections
in 40 CFR §279.63(b)(3) relating to Rebuttable Presumption for
Used Oil and 40 CFR §279.64(e) relating to Used Oil Storage.

§324.14, Marketers of Used Oil Fuel

The commission proposes to amend §324.14 to make five
changes. First, the commission proposes to amend §324.14
by adding the phrases "The commission incorporates by ref-
erence", "These rules", "In addition" and the word "found"
and remove the phrase "and this section". These changes
would avoid any ambiguity as to the commission's action to
incorporate the federal used oil rules and make the sentence
more readable. Second, the commission proposes to amend
§324.14 to remove the mailing address because it is provided
on commission cover letters and forms. Third, the commission
proposes to amend §324.14 to update the agency name from
Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission to Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality. Fourth, the commission
proposes to adopt by reference the federal regulations promul-
gated in the July 30, 2003, issue of the Federal Register (68 FR
44665). This amendment would revise the language in 40 CFR
§279.74(b) relating to Tracking. Specifically, the amendment
would allow the initial marketer of used oil that meets the used
oil fuel specifications in 40 CFR §279.11 to only keep a record of
a shipment of used oil to the facility to which the initial marketer
delivers the used oil. Fifth, the commission proposes to amend
§324.14 to adopt by reference the regulations promulgated in
the July 14, 2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40280).
This amendment would make grammatical corrections in 40
CFR §279.70(b)(1) relating to Applicability.

§324.15, Spills

The commission proposes to amend §324.15 by adding the
phrase "The commission incorporates by reference" and remov-
ing the word "See". This revision would avoid any ambiguity as
to the commission's action to incorporate the federal used oil
rules. The commission also proposes additional language which
would require recyclers to immediately clean up spills that meet
the reportable quantity limit. Specifically, the amendment would
incorporate federal requirements found in 40 CFR §§279.22(d),
279.43(c), 279.45(h), 279.54(g), and 279.64 regarding Report-
ing and Managing Spills. The section would continue to require
used oil recyclers to comply with 30 TAC Chapter 327 relating
to Spill Prevention and Control.

§324.16, Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)

The commission proposes to amend §324.16 by adding the
phrase "The commission incorporates by reference" and re-
moving the phrase "shall be as" and restructuring the sentence
to make it easier to read. These changes would avoid any
ambiguity as to the commission's action to incorporate the
federal used oil rules.

Fiscal Note: Costs to State and Local Government

Nina Chamness, Analyst, Strategic Planning and Assessment,
has determined that, for the first five-year period the proposed
rules are in effect, no significant fiscal implications are antici-
pated for the agency as a result of administration or enforce-
ment of the proposed rules. The proposed rules are not expected
to have a significant fiscal impact on state agencies or units of
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local government since the rules impose no additional require-
ments, clarify ambiguities for the regulated community, and allow
for more flexible testing methods of used oil.

The proposed rules are part of a comprehensive rule package
implementing RCRA requirements involving proposed changes
to several chapters of 30 TAC. This fiscal note applies only to the
proposed changes to Chapter 324 which include adoption by ref-
erence of federal rule changes to the RCRA Used Oil Manage-
ment program that were adopted by EPA from July 2003 through
July 2006 for used oil facilities. The proposed rulemaking would
also incorporate several grammatical corrections to errors found
in 40 CFR Chapter 279. A used oil facility may have several reg-
ulated participants (marketers, burners, transporters, etc.) at the
same facility.

Parts of the proposed rules for Chapter 324 are expected to clear
up current ambiguities regarding the used oil recycling program
for the regulated community. For example, the proposed rule-
making incorporates EPA's intent to clarify the applicability of
the RCRA used oil management standards to used oil containing
PCBs. Specifically, the rulemaking clarifies that used oil that con-
tains less than 50 parts per million of PCBs is generally subject
to regulation under the RCRA used oil management standards.
The proposed rulemaking also incorporates clarifying language
regarding tracking requirements for used oil marketers. Specifi-
cally, the initial marketer need only keep a record of a shipment
of used oil to the facility to which the used oil is delivered.

The proposed rulemaking also makes it easier for used oil fa-
cilities to ensure that used oil does not contain significant con-
centrations of halogenated hazardous constituents by removing
the requirement to use only one testing method (SW-846) as the
testing method for these hazardous elements. Used oil facilities
could use other, equally protective testing methods.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a signif-
icant fiscal impact on governmental entities. The agency knows
of only one governmental entity (a state agency) that participates
in used oil recycling. The proposed rules are clarifying in na-
ture or provide alternative testing methods for used oil recycling.
All testing methods for concentrations of halogenated hazardous
constituents in used oil cost about the same, and the flexibility
of testing methods is not expected to generate significant cost
savings.

Public Benefits and Costs

Nina Chamness also determined that for each year of the first
five years the proposed rules are in effect, the public benefit an-
ticipated from the changes seen in the proposed rules will be
protection of the environment and public safety through contin-
ued consistency with federal regulations for recycling used oil.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a signifi-
cant fiscal impact on individuals. The proposed rules are clarify-
ing in nature or provide alternative testing methods for concen-
trations of halogenated hazardous constituents in used oil.

The proposed rules are not expected to have a significant fiscal
impact on large businesses that own or operate used oil facili-
ties. The agency estimates there may be as many as 397 used
oil facilities statewide. The proposed rules clarify ambiguities re-
garding the used oil recycling program for the regulated commu-
nity and provide alternative testing methods for concentrations of
halogenated hazardous constituents in used oil. Since all testing
methods cost about the same, the flexibility of testing methods
is not expected to generate significant cost savings.

Small Business and Micro-Business Assessment

No adverse fiscal implications are anticipated for small or mi-
cro-businesses as a result of the proposed rules. The proposed
rules clarify ambiguities regarding the used oil recycling pro-
gram for the regulated community and provide alternative test-
ing methods for concentrations of halogenated hazardous con-
stituents in used oil. Since all testing methods cost about the
same, the flexibility of testing methods is not expected to gener-
ate significant cost savings.

Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Analysis

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a small business regulatory flexibility analysis is not
required because the proposed rules are required to protect the
environment and to comply with federal regulations.

Local Employment Impact Statement

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a local employment impact statement is not re-
quired because the proposed rules do not adversely affect a lo-
cal economy in a material way for the first five years that the
proposed rules are in effect.

Draft Regulatory Impact Analysis Determination

The commission reviewed the proposed rulemaking in light of the
regulatory analysis requirements of Texas Government Code,
§2001.0225, and determined that the rulemaking is not subject to
Texas Government Code, §2001.0225 because it does not meet
the definition of a "major environmental rule" as defined in that
statute. Although the intent of the rulemaking is to protect the en-
vironment and reduce the risk to human health from environmen-
tal exposure, the rulemaking is not a major environmental rule
because it will not adversely affect in a material way the econ-
omy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the
environment, or the public health and safety of the state or a sec-
tor of the state. There is no adverse effect in a material way on
the economy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition,
or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from those revisions
under 42 United States Code (USC), §6926(g), which already
imposes the more stringent federal requirements on the regu-
lated community under the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amend-
ments of 1984. Likewise, there is no adverse effect in a material
way on the economy, a sector of the economy, productivity, com-
petition, or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from those
revisions outside 42 USC, §6926(g), because either the changes
are not substantive or the regulated community benefits from the
greater flexibility and reduced compliance burden. The regulated
community must comply with the more stringent federal require-
ments beginning on the effective date of the federal regulations.
Because the regulated community is already required to comply
with the more stringent federal rules, equivalent state rules would
not cause any adverse effects. There is no adverse effect in a
material way on the environment, or the public health and safety
of the state or a sector of the state because the rulemaking is
designed to protect the environment, the public health, and the
public safety of the state and all sectors of the state. Because
the rulemaking does not have an adverse material impact on the
economy, the rulemaking does not meet the definition of a ma-
jor environmental rule. Furthermore, the rulemaking does not
meet any of the four applicability requirements listed in Texas
Government Code, §2001.0225(a). First, the rulemaking does
not exceed a standard set by federal law because the commis-
sion proposes this rulemaking to implement revisions to the fed-
eral hazardous waste program. The commission must meet the
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minimum standards and mandatory requirements of the federal
program to maintain authorization of the state hazardous waste
program. The other changes do not alter substantive require-
ments although various changes may increase flexibility for the
regulated community and move forward compliance deadlines.
Second, although the rulemaking contains some requirements
that are more stringent than existing state rules, federal law re-
quires the commission to promulgate rules that are as stringent
as federal law for the commission to maintain authorization of
the state hazardous waste program. Third, the rulemaking does
not exceed a requirement of a delegation agreement or contract
between the state and an agency or representative of the fed-
eral government, where the delegation agreement or contract is
to implement a state and federal program. On the contrary, the
commission must undertake the waste program. And fourth, the
rulemaking does not seek to adopt a rule solely under the gen-
eral powers of the agency instead of under a specific state law.
The commission proposes this rulemaking under Texas Water
Code, §5.103 and §5.105 and under Texas Health and Safety
Code, §361.017 and §361.024.

The commission solicits public comment on the draft regulatory
impact analysis determination. Written comments may be sub-
mitted to the contact person at the address listed under the Sub-
mittal of Comments section of this preamble.

Takings Impact Assessment

The commission evaluated the rulemaking and performed an
assessment of whether Texas Government Code, Chapter
2007 applies. The commission's assessment indicates that
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2007 does not apply to the
rulemaking because this action is reasonably taken to fulffill
an obligation mandated by federal law; therefore, this action
is exempt under Texas Government Code, §2007.003(b)(4).
The specific purpose of the rulemaking is to maintain state
RCRA authorization by adopting state hazardous waste rules
that are equivalent to the federal regulations. The rulemaking
substantially advances this purpose by adopting rules that
incorporate and refer to the federal regulations. Promulgation
and enforcement of the rules is not a statutory or constitutional
taking of private real property. Specifically, the rulemaking does
not affect a landowner's rights in private real property because
this rulemaking does not constitutionally burden the owner's
right to property, does not restrict or limit the owner's right to
property, and does not reduce the value of property by 25% or
more beyond that which would otherwise exist in the absence
of the regulations. The rulemaking seeks to meet the minimum
standards of federal RCRA regulations that are already in place.
42 USC, §6926(g) imposes on the regulated community any
federal requirements that are more stringent than current state
rules. The regulated community must already have complied
with the more stringent federal requirements as of the effective
date of the federal regulations. Because the regulated com-
munity is already required to comply with the more stringent
federal regulations, promulgating equivalent state rules does not
burden, restrict, or limit the owner's right to property and does
not reduce the value of property by 25% or more. Likewise, the
regulated community is not unduly burdened by those revisions
providing greater flexibility, reduced recordkeeping, reporting,
inspection, and sampling requirements.

Consistency with the Coastal Management Program

The commission reviewed the proposed rules and found that
they are neither identified in Coastal Coordination Act Implemen-
tation Rules, 31 TAC §505.11(b)(2) or (4), nor will they affect

any action/authorization identified in Coastal Coordination Act
Implementation Rules, 31 TAC §505.11(a)(6). Therefore, the
proposed rules are not subject to the Texas Coastal Manage-
ment Program.

Written comments on the consistency of this rulemaking may be
submitted to the contact person at the address listed under the
Submittal of Comments section of this preamble.

Submittal of Comments

Written comments may be submitted to Charlotte Horn, MC
205, Office of Legal Services, Texas Commission on Environ-
mental Quality, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087
or faxed to (512) 239-4808. Electronic comments may be
submitted at:  http.//wwwb.tceq.texas.gov/rules/ecomments/.
File size restrictions may apply to comments being submitted
via the eComments system. All comments should reference
Rule Project Number 2012-038-335-WS. The comment period
closes November 5, 2012. Copies of the proposed rule-
making can be obtained from the commission's Web site at
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/nav/rules/propose_adopt.html.  For
further information, please contact Cynthia Palomares, P.G.,
P.E., Industrial and Hazardous Waste Permits Section, MC-130,
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, TX 78711-3087, (512) 239-6079.

30 TAC §§324.1 - 324.4, 324.6, 324.7, 324.11 - 324.16
Statutory Authority

The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to General
Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to adopt
any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties under
the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state; and under
Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §371.026 (relating to
Registration and Reporting Requirements of Used Oil Handlers,
Other than Generators) and THSC, §371.028 (relating to Rules)
which authorize the commission to regulate used oil handlers, to
implement the used oil recycling program established by THSC,
Chapter 371, and to adopt rules consistent with the general intent
and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed amendments implement THSC, Chapter 371.

§324.1.  Federal Rule Adoption by Reference.

Person(s) managing used oil must comply with the requirements in
this chapter and the [The] requirements in 40 Code of Federal Regula-
tions (CFR)[5] Part 279, Standards for the Management of Used Oil, as
amended through July 14, 2006, at 71 FedReg 40280 [May 26; 1998
at 69 FedReg 28556], which are adopted by reference. For purposes
of this chapter, the term "Administrator" or "Regional Administrator"
used in 40 CFR Part 279 shall be read to mean "State Administrator,
the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality, or his representative." The term "Environmental Protection
Agency" or "EPA" used in 40 CFR Part 279 shall be read to mean
"the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or its successor."

[However, requirements in this chapter also apply.]
$324.2.  Definitions.

The commission incorporates by reference the definitions [Mest words
are as defined] in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §279.1. How-
ever, the following words have these additional meanings:

(1) Aboveground tank--A tank used to store or process
used oil that is not an underground storage tank as defined in 30 TAC
Chapter 334 of this title (relating to Underground and Aboveground
Storage Tanks).
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(2) Earthen area--The active area of the facility is the
earthen area at the facility over which any transportation, storage or
processing of used oil occurs.

) mini of Resional enini I
terms in 40 CFR Part 279 requirements should be replaced with the
"State Administrator; the Executive Director of the Texas Natural
Resource Conservation Commission or his representative-''}

(3) [€5] Recycling of used oil--

(A) Preparing used oil for reuse as a petroleum product
by re-refining [rerefining], reclaiming, or other means;

(B) Using used oil as a lubricant or petroleum product
instead of using a petroleum product made from new oil; or

(C) Burning used oil for energy recovery.

(4) [(6)] Re-refining--Applying processes (other than
crude oil refining) to material composed primarily of used oil to
produce high-quality base stocks for petroleum products, including
settling, filtering, catalytic conversion, fractional/vacuum distillation,
hydro treating, or polishing.

(5) [€PB] Secondary containment--Dikes, berms, retaining
walls, and/or equivalent structures made of a material(s) that is suffi-
ciently impervious to used oil. These structures shall be designed to
meet the specifications found in §324.22(d)(3) of this title (relating to
Soil Remediation Requirements for Used Oil Handlers) to retain [aH]
potential spills of used oil from the tanks or containers, plus run-on wa-
ter, until removal of the spill.

(6) [€%)] Sufficiently impervious to used oil--Capable of
containing all potential spills of used oil from containers and tanks until
removal of the spill.

(7)  [€9)] Synthetic oils--Oils not derived from crude oil.
This includes those from coal, shale, or a polymer-based starting mate-
rial; and non-polymeric synthetic fluids used as hydraulic or heat trans-
fer fluids. Synthetic oils are generally used for the same purpose as
crude oil derived oils and have relatively the same level of contamina-
tion after use.

(8) [49)] Used oil handler--A transporter or an owner or
operator of a used oil transfer, processing, re-refining [rerefining], or
off-specification used oil burning facility.

earthen area at the facility over which any transportation; storage or
$324.3.  Applicability.

The commission incorporates by reference the Applicability and
the Exemptions [exemptions] from Applicability requirements
[applicability will be as] in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
279, Subpart B, §279.10 and §279.11. In addition, the commission
adds the following clarifications and requirements: [and as elarified
here:]

(1) A used oil contaminated with a listed hazardous waste
must be handled under Chapter 335 of this title (relating to Industrial
Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous Waste). United States Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency [ERPA] Hazardous Waste Number "F002"

must be used on used oil that is listed hazardous due to halogenated
contaminants.

(2) Used oil can be stored in tanks and containers not meet-
ing 40 CFR Part 264 or 265. The requirement in 40 CFR Part 279 that
refers to compliance with 40 CFR Part 264 or 265, Subpart K, on used
oil storage applies to used oil stored in surface impoundments. Stor-
age of used oil in lagoons, pits, or surface impoundments is prohibited,
unless the generator is storing only wastewater containing de minimis
quantities of used oil, or unless the unit is in compliance with 40 CFR
Part 264 or 265, Subpart K.

(3) Requirements applicable to mixing hazardous waste
with used oil are in 40 CFR §279.10(b) (relating to Mixtures of Used
Oil and Hazardous Waste). Mixing of hazardous waste with used
oil, by other than generators, in tanks and containers within their
applicable accumulation time limit, requires a hazardous waste permit
per §335.2 of this title (relating to Permit Required). A waste that is
characteristically hazardous for "ignitability only" can be mixed with
used oil. However, the resultant mixture cannot exhibit the hazardous
ignitability characteristic to manage it under this chapter and 40 CFR
Part 279 rather than Chapter 335 of this title. The resultant mixture
formed from mixing used oil and a characteristically hazardous waste,
other than solely ignitable waste, must be tested for all likely haz-
ardous characteristics. The resultant mixture will be a hazardous waste
rather than used oil if it retains a hazardous characteristic, even if the
hazardous characteristic is derived from the used oil. Anyone who
mixes used oil with another solid waste to produce from used oil, or to
make used oil more amenable for production of fuel oils or products
is also a processor subject to 40 CFR Part 279, Subpart F (relating to
Standards for Used Oil Processors and Re-refiners) and §324.12 of
this title (relating to Processors and Re-refiners [Rerefiners]).

(4) A used oil shall not be regulated until it is a spent mate-
rial as defined in 40 CFR §261.1(c)(1) and §335.17 of this title (relating
to Special Definitions for Recyclable Materials and Nonhazardous Re-
cyclable Materials).

(5) Oily water mixtures to be recycled that are contained in
waste management units such as tanks, fractionation tanks, and sumps
that meet the design requirements of the American Petroleum Institute
for oil-water separation or that have been designed for oil-water sep-
aration must be managed under this chapter and meet the prohibition
requirements found in §324.4 of this title (relating to Prohibitions) to
prevent the discharge of hazardous waste into a sanitary sewer. Man-
agement of wastes from other tanks, sumps, and grip trap waste man-
agement units that are plumbed directly to a sanitary sewer must com-
ply with the requirements in Chapter 312 of this title (relating to Sludge
Use, Disposal, and Transportation) and Chapter 330 of this title (relat-
ing to Municipal Solid Waste).

§324.4.  Prohibitions.

The commission incorporates by reference the Prohibitions [will be as]
in 40 Code of Federal Regulations [€ER] Subpart B, §279.12 [and as
speeified here]. In addition, the commission requires the following:

(1) A person must not collect, transport, store, burn, mar-
ket, recycle, process, use, discharge, or dispose of used oil in any man-
ner that endangers the public health or welfare of the environment.

(2) A person commits an offense if the person:

(A) intentionally discharges used oil into a sewer,
drainage system, septic tank, surface water or groundwater, water-
course, or marine water;

(B) knowingly puts used oil in waste that is to be dis-
posed of in landfills or directly disposes of used oil on land;
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(C) knowingly transports, treats, stores, disposes of,, re-
cycles, markets, burns, processes, re-refines [rerefines] used oil within
the state:

(i) without first complying with the registration re-
quirements of this rule; and/or

(ii)  in violation of rules for the management of used
oil;
(D) intentionally applies used oil to roads or land for
dust suppression, weed abatement, or other similar uses;

(E) violates an order of the commission to cease and
desist any activity prohibited by this section or any rule applicable to
a prohibited activity; or

(F) intentionally makes any false representation in any
document used for program compliance.

(3) An exception to paragraph (2) of this section
[stbseetion] is if a person knowingly disposes into the environment
any used oil that has not been separated by the generator from other
solid wastes.

(4) An exception to paragraph (2)(B) of this section
[subseetion] is if the mixing or commingling of used oil with waste to
be disposed of in landfills is the unavoidable result of the mechanical
shredding of motor vehicles, appliances or other metals.

$324.6. Generators.

The commission incorporates by reference rules [Rules] for used oil
generators [shall be as] in 40 Code of Federal Regulations [(€ER)] Part
279, particularly Subpart C. A person or entity that services equipment
involving removal of used oil or changes used oil at a customer's home
or business and transports the used oil from the site in quantities less
than or equal to 55 gallons may choose to be the generator. If the ser-
vice company removing the used oil from equipment does not assume
generator responsibility, the site owner or operator will remain the gen-
erator.

$324.7.  Collection Centers.

The commission incorporates by reference rules for owners or opera-
tors of all [Rules for] "do-it-yourselfer used oil collection centers" and
"used oil collection centers" (as defined in 40 Code of Federal Reg-

(D) notify the commission in writing within 30 days fol-
lowing abandonment or closure of the collection center or stopping col-
lection of household used oil; and

(E) annually report the amount of household used oil
collected by January 25 of each year on a commission form.

(2) Household used oil is not subject to the rebuttable pre-
sumption (a requirement to prove that used oil is not hazardous).

(3) A "Used Oil Collection Center" must:

(A) post and maintain a durable and legible sign iden-
tifying the site as a household used oil collection center. Written re-
quests for signs shall be sent to the Texas Commission on Environ-
mental Quality, Used Oil Recycling Program, P.O. Box 13087, Austin,
Texas 78711-3087;

(B) register each odd numbered year no later than Jan-
uary 25 following the close of the year, with the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality [Fexas Natural Resource Conservation Com-
misstont], Used Oil Recycling Program[; RO- Bex 13087 Austin; Texas
7871H-3087] utilizing a commission form. Registrations expire on De-
cember 31 in even numbered years. New collection centers must reg-
ister within 30 days of initial operation;

(C) collect used oil from households during business
hours at each location to be exempt from the fee on first sale of au-
tomotive oil;

(D) notify the commission in writing within 30 days fol-
lowing abandonment or closure of the collection center or stopping col-
lection of household used oil; and

(E) report annually the amount of household and non-
household used oil collected by January 25 of each year on a commis-
sion form. Mixtures of household used oil and non-household used oil
shall be considered non-household used oil.

(4) Household used oil is not subject to the rebuttable pre-
sumption (a requirement to prove used oil is not hazardous) unless

mixed with non-household used oil.
§$324.11.  Transporters and Transfer Facilities.

The commission incorporates by reference rules [Rules] for used oil

ulations (CFR)§279.1) [shall be as] in 40 CFR Part 279, particularly
Subpart D[; and as speeified here]. All appropriate businesses and gov-
ernment agencies are encouraged to serve as "do-it-yourselfer used oil
collection centers" or "used oil collection centers." Collection centers
collecting used oil from households will be publicized by the commis-
sion. In addition, the commission requires the following:

(1) A "Do-it-yourselfer Used Oil Collection Center" must:

(A) post and maintain a durable and legible sign iden-
tifying the site as a household used oil collection center. Written re-
quests for signs shall be sent to the Texas Commission on Environ-
mental Quality, Used Oil Recycling Program, P.O. Box 13087, Austin,

transporters and transfer facilities [are] in 40 Code of Federal Regula-
tions (CFR) Part 279, particularly Subpart E[; and in this seetion]. In
addition, the commission requires the following:

(1) Underground
[ storage tanks| containing used oil are subject to Chapter
334 of this title (relating to Underground and Aboveground Storage
Tanks) and 40 CFR Part 279.

storage tanks (USTs). USTs

(2) Registration. Transporters must register their used oil
activities if they have not previously registered their specific used oil
activities with the commission and the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA). Transporters must register, through the com-

Texas 78711-3087,

(B) mustregister each odd numbered year, no later than
January 25 following the close of the year, with the Texas Commis-
sion on Environmental Quality [Texas Natural Resource Conservation
Ceommission], Used Oil Recycling Program[; PO- Box 13087, Austin;
Texas 7871H-3087] utilizing a commission form. Registrations expire
on December 31 in even numbered years. New collection centers must
register within 30 days of initial operation;

(C) collect used oil from households during business
hours at each location to be exempt from the fee on first sale of au-
tomotive oil;

mission, using EPA Form 8700-12 and a commission form. Mail reg-
istration forms to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
[Fexas Natural Resource Conservation Commission], Used Oil Recy-
cling Program[; PO- Bex 13087, Austin; Texas 7871H-3087].

§324.12.  Processors and Re-refiners [Rerefiners].

The commission incorporates by reference rules [Rules] for owners and
operators of used oil processing [processers] and re-refining facilities
[rerefiners are] in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 279, par-
ticularly Subpart F[; and in this seetion:]. In addition, the commission
requires the following:
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(1) Underground storage tanks. See §324.11(1) of this title
(relating to Transporters and Transfer Facilities).

(2) Registration. Processors and re-refiners [rerefiners]
must register their used oil activities if they have not previously
registered their specific used oil activities with the commission and
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Processors
and re-refiners [rerefiners| must register, through the commission, us-
ing the EPA Form 8700-12 and a commission form. Mail registration
forms to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality [Texas
Natural Resource Conservation Commission], Used Oil Recycling
Program[; PO- Bex 13087, Austin; Texas 87811-3087].

(3) Analysis plan. Each facility must prepare an analysis
plan. The facility will follow the plan when sampling and analyzing,
keeping records, and complying with analytical requirements for doc-
umenting that used oil is not listed hazardous and/or the used oil fuel
specification has been met. This plan must specify the frequency of
sampling and analysis. It must also specify procedures and analysis to
assure listed hazardous wastes are not mixed with the used oil received.
It must also contain procedures for handling a shipment of contami-
nated used oil. A facility need not prepare an analysis plan if it:

(A) only processes its own used oil; and

(B) uses adequate process knowledge instead of analy-
sis to prove that the used oil meets rule requirements.

(4) Biennial report. The biennial report required by 40
CFR §279.57(b) covering each odd numbered year must be provided
to the commission by December 1 of the odd numbered year if all
used oil operations have been completed for that year. If not, you
must submit the report by January 25 of the following even numbered
year. The information must be entered on a commission form. Mail
the report to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality [Texas
Natural Resource Conservation Commission], Used Oil Recycling
Program[; P-O- Bex 13087 Austin; Texas 787HHH-3087].
§324.13.  Burners of Off-specification Used Oil for Energy Recovery.
The commission incorporates by reference rules [Rules] for burners
of off-specification used oil for energy recovery [are] in 40 Code of

Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 279, particularly Subpart G[; and in
this seetion]. In addition, the commission requires the following:

(1) Underground storage tanks. See §324.11(1) of this title
(relating to Transporters and Transfer Facilities).

(2) Registration. Burners must register their used oil activ-
ities if they have not previously registered their specific used oil ac-
tivities with the commission and the United States Environmental Pro-
tection Agency (EPA). Burners must register, through the commission,
using the EPA Form 8700-12 and a commission form. Mail registra-
tion forms to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality [Fexas
Natural Resource Conservation Commission], Used Oil Recycling Pro-
gram[; PO- Bex 13087 Austin; Texas 7871H1-3087].

§324.14.  Marketers of Used Oil Fuel.

The commission incorporates by reference rules [Rules] for marketers
of used oil which will be burned for energy recovery. These rules are
found in 40 Code of Federal Regulations [€ER] Part 279, [particularly]
Subpart H[; and this seetion]. In addition, marketers [Marketers] must
register their used oil activities if they have not previously registered
their specific used oil activities with the commission and the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Marketers must regis-
ter, through the commission, using the EPA Form 8700-12 and a com-
mission form. Mail registration forms to the Texas Commission on En-
vironmental Quality [Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commis-
sion], Used Oil Recycling Program[; PO- Bex 13087, Austin; Texas
787H-3087].

$324.15.  Spills.

The commission incorporates by reference the Used QOil Spill Pre-
vention, Detection of Releases, and Spill Response requirements in
40 Code of Federal Regulations §§279.22(d), 279.43(¢c), 279.45(h),
279.54(g), and 279.64. In addition, used oil recyclers shall immedi-
ately clean up and properly dispose of any spills of used oil consistent
with [See] Chapter 327 of this title (relating to Spill Prevention and
Control), particularly §327.4(b)(2) of this title (relating to Reportable
Quantities).

§$324.16.  Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs).

The commission incorporates by reference [Per 40 CER 279 (Table
1] the rules for burning used oil containing PCBs [shall be as] in 40
Code of Federal Regulations Part 279 (CFR) (Table 1) and in 40 CFR
§761.20(e).

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205010

Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779

¢ ¢ ¢
30 TAC §324.5

(Editor's note: The text of the following section proposed for repeal
will not be published. The section may be examined in the offices of the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or in the Texas Register
office, Room 245, James Earl Rudder Building, 1019 Brazos Street,
Austin, Texas.)

Statutory Authority

The repeal is proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC), §5.103
(relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to General Policy)
which provide the commission with the authority to adopt any
rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties under the pro-
visions of the TWC or other laws of this state; and under Texas
Health and Safety Code (THSC), §371.026 (relating to Registra-
tion and Reporting Requirements of Used Oil Handlers, Other
than Generators) and THSC, §361.028 (relating to Rules) which
authorize the commission to regulate used oil handlers, to im-
plement the used oil recycling program established by THSC,
Chapter 371, and to adopt rules consistent with the general in-
tent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed repeal implements THSC, Chapter 371.
§$324.5.  Notice by Retail Dealer.

This agency hereby certifies that the proposal has been reviewed
by legal counsel and found to be within the agency's legal author-
ity to adopt.

Filed with the Office of the Secretary of State on September 21,
2012.

TRD-201205011
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Robert Martinez

Director, Environmental Law Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Earliest possible date of adoption: November 4, 2012
For further information, please call: (512) 239-0779
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CHAPTER 335. INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE
AND MUNICIPAL HAZARDOUS WASTE

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ,
agency, or commission) proposes amendments to §§335.1,
335.2,335.10-335.13, 335.19, 335.24, 335.61, 335.62, 335.69,
335.76, 335.78, 335.111, 335.112, 335.151, 335.152, 335.155,
335.168, 335.170, 335.213, 335.222, 335.251, 335.431, and
335.504; and new §335.79.

These amendments were originally published for proposal in the
April 27, 2012, issue of the Texas Register (37 TexReg 3011),
withdrawn on September 19, 2012, and are re-proposed to in-
clude additional revisions.

Background and Summary of the Factual Basis for the Proposed
Rules

The federal hazardous waste program is authorized under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA),
§3006. States may obtain authorization from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to administer the haz-
ardous waste program. State authorization is a rulemaking
process through which EPA delegates the primary responsi-
bility of implementing the RCRA hazardous waste program to
individual states in lieu of EPA. This process ensures national
consistency and minimum standards while providing flexibility
to states in implementing rules. State RCRA programs must
always be at least as stringent as the federal requirements.

Since the beginning of the federal hazardous waste program, the
State of Texas has continuously participated in the EPA's autho-
rization program. To maintain RCRA authorization, the commis-
sion must adopt regulations to meet the minimum standards of
federal programs administered by EPA. Because the federal reg-
ulations undergo regular revision, the commission adopts new
regulations regularly to meet the changing federal regulations.

Texas received authorization of its hazardous waste "base pro-
gram" under the RCRA on December 26, 1984. Texas received
authorization for revisions to its base hazardous waste program
on February 17, 1987 (Clusters | and Il). Texas submitted further
revisions to its hazardous waste program and received final au-
thorization of those revisions on March 15, 1990, July 23, 1990,
October 21, 1991, December 4, 1992, June 27, 1994, Novem-
ber 26, 1997, October 18, 1999, September 11, 2000, June 14,
2005 (Clusters Il - X), March 5, 2009 (Clusters Xl - XV) and May
7, 2012 (Clusters IX and XV - XVIII).

The commission proposes in this rulemaking parts of RCRA Rule
Clusters XIX, XX, and XXI that implement revisions to the fed-
eral hazardous waste program which were made by EPA be-
tween July 1, 2008 and June 30, 2011. Both mandatory and op-
tional federal rule changes in these clusters are proposed. Adop-
tion of one of the federal rule changes is mandatory in order to
maintain RCRA authorization. Although not necessary in order
to maintain authorization, EPA also recommends that the op-
tional federal rule changes be incorporated into the state rules.
In addition, the commission proposes revisions to parts of pre-

viously adopted Clusters XIV, XV, XVI, and XVII that implement
revisions requested by EPA that are needed to maintain autho-
rization. Establishing equivalency with federal regulations will
enable the State of Texas to operate all aspects of the federal
hazardous waste program in lieu of the EPA. All proposed rule
changes are discussed further in the Section by Section Discus-
sion portion of this preamble.

Two corresponding rulemakings are published in this issue of
the Texas Register and include changes to 30 TAC Chapter 305,
Consolidated Permits and 30 TAC Chapter 324, Used Oil Stan-
dards.

Section by Section Discussion

The commission proposes administrative changes throughout
the proposed rulemaking to reflect the agency's current prac-
tices and to conform to Texas Register and agency guidelines.
These changes include updating references to Texas State
Agencies, updating cross-references, and correcting typograph-
ical, spelling, and grammatical errors.

§335.1, Definitions

The commission proposes to amend §335.1(39) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the March 4, 2005,
issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10776). Specifically, this
amendment would revise the definition of "Designated facility" so
that it is consistent with the EPA definition in 40 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) §260.10. Also, the definition is proposed to
be reorganized to separate out the definition of a Texas Class 1
designated facility from a hazardous waste designated facility.

The commission proposes to amend §335.1(59)(B) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the September 8,
2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 53420). This amend-
ment would clarify the definition of "Facility" for the purpose of
implementing corrective action under the authority of a standard
permit. Specifically, this amendment would incorporate by refer-
ence corrective action authorized by 40 CFR Part 267, Subpart
F (Releases from Solid Waste Management Units) to address
corrective action under the authority of a standard permit.

The commission proposes to amend §335.1(95) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the March 4, 2005,
issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10776). Specifically, this
amendment would revise the definition of "Manifest" so that it is
consistent with the EPA definition in 40 CFR §260.10.

The commission proposes to amend §335.1(96) to conform
to federal regulations previously promulgated in the March 4,
2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10776). Specifically,
this amendment would revise the definition of "Manifest tracking
number" so that it is consistent with the EPA definition in 40
CFR §260.10.

The commission proposes to amend §335.1(138)(A)(iv) to con-
form to federal regulations previously promulgated in the July 28,
20086, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 42928). This amend-
ment would add requirements for notification and recordkeeping
to exclude cathode ray tubes (CRTs) that meet the requirements
in 40 CFR §261.39 and §261.40 for reuse and recycling from
classification as a solid waste. This exclusion is also found in
40 CFR §261.4 which was adopted in a previous rulemaking.
This amendment would add additional language from 40 CFR
Part 261, Subpart E concerning conditional exclusions and no-
tification and recordkeeping requirements for CRTs. In addition,
technical corrections are incorporated by reference to conform
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to federal regulations previously promulgated in the March 18,
2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989).

The commission also proposes to amend §335.1(142) to
conform to federal regulations previously promulgated in the
September 8, 2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR
53420). Specifically, this amendment would revise the defini-
tion of "Standard permit" so that it is consistent with the EPA
definition in 40 CFR §124.2(a).

§335.2, Permit Required

The commission proposes to amend §335.2(g) to conform to fed-
eral regulations previously promulgated in the April 4, 2006, is-
sue of the Federal Register (71 FR 16862). Specifically, this
amendment would revise the reporting requirements for treata-
bility studies by reducing the amount of information required to
be submitted.

§335.10, Shipping and Reporting Procedures Applicable to Gen-
erators of Hazardous Waste or Class 1 Waste and Primary Ex-
porters of Hazardous Waste

The commission proposes to amend §335.10 by restructuring
to separate Texas Class 1 waste from hazardous waste mani-
fest requirements thereby eliminating confusion between the two
programs. The commission proposes to incorporate by refer-
ence EPA manifest requirements to ensure consistency. Cur-
rent Class 1 waste manifest requirements are the same as EPA
hazardous waste manifest requirements with some minor dif-
ferences. This rulemaking does not change any of those re-
quirements. The Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest require-
ments are incorporated by reference as published in the March 4,
2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10776) and amended
through the March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR
12989). These changes would allow generators of hazardous
and industrial waste to more readily identify applicable manifest
requirements. This proposed amendment would help ensure
compliance with manifest requirements including proper com-
pletion of the manifest form. Additionally, references to the EPA
are proposed to be changed to the TCEQ and references to the
regional director are proposed to be changed to the executive
director.

§335.11, Shipping Requirements for Transporters of Hazardous
Waste or Class 1 Waste

The commission proposes to amend §335.11 by restructuring
to separate Texas Class 1 waste from hazardous waste mani-
fest requirements thereby eliminating confusion between the two
programs. The commission proposes to incorporate by refer-
ence EPA manifest requirements to ensure consistency. Cur-
rent Class 1 waste manifest requirements are the same as EPA
hazardous waste manifest requirements with some minor differ-
ences. This proposed rulemaking would not change any of the
manifest requirements. The Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest
requirements are incorporated by reference as published in the
March 4, 2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10821) and
amended through June 16, 2005, issue of the Federal Register
(70 FR 35034).

§335.12, Shipping Requirements Applicable to Owners or Oper-
ators of Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities

The commission proposes to amend §335.12 by restructuring
to separate Texas Class 1 waste from hazardous waste mani-
fest requirements thereby eliminating confusion between the two
programs. Manifest requirements for hazardous waste are pro-
posed to be adopted by reference from EPA rules to ensure

consistency. The Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest require-
ments are incorporated by reference as published in the March 4,
2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 10821) and amended
through March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR
12989).

§335.13, Recordkeeping and Reporting Procedures Applicable
to Generators Shipping Hazardous Waste or Class 1 Waste and
Primary Exporters of Hazardous Waste

The commission proposes to amend §335.13(n) to conform
to federal regulations previously promulgated in the March 18,
2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). Specifically,
this amendment would make corrections to typographical errors
in the CFR.

The commission proposes the addition of §335.13(0) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010,
issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). Specifically, this
amendment would implement recent changes to the federal
agreements concerning the transboundary movement of haz-
ardous waste among countries belonging to the Organization
for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), establish
notice and consent requirements for spent lead-acid batteries
intended for reclamation in a foreign country, specify that all
exception reports concerning hazardous waste exports be sent
to the International Compliance and Assurance Division in
the Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance's Office
of Federal Activities in Washington, D.C., and require United
States receiving facilities to match EPA-provided import consent
documentation to incoming hazardous waste import shipments
and to submit to EPA a copy of the matched import consent
documentation and RCRA hazardous waste manifest for each
import shipment. Because of the federal government's special
role in matters of foreign policy, EPA does not authorize states
to administer federal import/export functions in any section of
the RCRA hazardous waste regulations. Although states do not
receive authorization to administer the federal government's ex-
port functions in 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart E, import functions in
40 CFR Part 262, Subpart F, import/export functions in 40 CFR
Part 262, Subpart H, or the import/export related functions in any
other section of the RCRA hazardous waste regulations, state
programs are required to adopt those federal provisions that
are more stringent than existing state requirements to maintain
their equivalency with the federal program. This amendment
is more stringent than the current state rules. Therefore, this
amendment is required by EPA to be adopted into state rules,
in order to maintain authorization.

§335.19, Standards and Criteria for Variances from Classifica-
tion as a Solid Waste

The commission proposes to amend §335.19(b) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the April 4, 2006,
issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 16862). Specifically, this
amendment would reduce the requirements for requests for a
variance from classifying as a solid waste those materials that
are reclaimed and then reused as feedstock within the origi-
nal production process in which the materials were generated
if the reclamation operation is an essential part of the production
process.

§335.24, Requirements for Recyclable Materials and Nonhaz-
ardous Recyclable Materials

The commission proposes to amend §335.24(c)(1)(A) to con-
form to federal regulations promulgated in the January 8,
2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). Specifi-
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cally, this amendment would implement recent changes to the
federal agreements concerning the transboundary movement
of hazardous waste among countries belonging to the OECD,
establish notice and consent requirements for spent lead-acid
batteries intended for reclamation in a foreign country, specify
that all exception reports concerning hazardous waste exports
be sent to the International Compliance and Assurance Division
in the Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance's
Office of Federal Activities in Washington, D.C., and require
United States receiving facilities to match EPA-provided import
consent documentation to incoming hazardous waste import
shipments and to submit to EPA a copy of the matched import
consent documentation and RCRA hazardous waste manifest
for each import shipment. Because of the federal government's
special role in matters of foreign policy, EPA does not authorize
states to administer federal import/export functions in any
section of the RCRA hazardous waste regulations. Although
states do not receive authorization to administer the federal
government's export functions in 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart E,
import functions in 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart F, import/export
functions in 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H, or the import/export
related functions in any other section of the RCRA hazardous
waste regulations, state programs are required to adopt those
federal provisions that are more stringent than existing state
requirements to maintain their equivalency with the federal
program. This amendment is more stringent than the current
state rules. Therefore, this amendment is required by EPA to be
adopted into state rules to maintain authorization.

§335.61, Purpose, Scope and Applicability

The commission proposes the addition of §335.61(i) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the December 1, 2008, is-
sue of the Federal Register (73 FR 72912). This amendment
proposes exemptions for a specific generator status (i.e., large
and small quantity generators and conditionally exempt small
quantity generators (CESQGS)) if those eligible academic en-
tities choose to comply with 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart K (known
as the "Academic Laboratories rule"). The Academic Laborato-
ries rule is proposed to be incorporated by reference in §335.79.
The Academic Laboratories rule establishes an alternative set of
generator requirements applicable to laboratories owned by el-
igible academic entities. The alternative requirements are flexi-
ble but protective and address the specific nature of hazardous
waste generation and accumulation in these laboratories. Fur-
ther detailed discussion of the Academic Laboratories rule can
be found in the Section by Section Discussion in §335.79.

In particular, the amendment to §335.61 would set out exemp-
tions for eligible academic laboratories under different hazardous
waste generator statuses. Specifically, this amendment would
exempt large and small quantity generators from the require-
ments of hazardous waste determination (set out in §335.504)
and the satellite accumulation area rule (set out in §335.69). In
addition, this amendment would eliminate exemptions (set out in
§335.78) for CESQGs, such as the exemption from regulations
under 40 CFR Parts 124, 262 - 266, and 268, and the notification
requirements of RCRA, §3010. However, academic laboratories
under CESQG status would be able to take advantage of the
benefits of the Academic Laboratories rule. Those benefits in-
clude the flexibility to decide when and where on-site hazardous
waste determinations are made and the incentive to remove old
and expired chemicals from the laboratories.

§335.62, Hazardous Waste Determination and Waste Classifi-
cation

The commission proposes to amend §335.62 to conform to fed-
eral regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue of the
Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment would add a
reference to 40 CFR Part 267 which EPA inadvertently omitted
after the rule was promulgated in September, 2005. The amend-
ment would add 40 CFR Part 267 to a list of Parts (261, 264 -
266, 268, and 273) to which a hazardous waste generator must
refer for possible exclusions or restrictions pertaining to manag-
ing specific waste.

§335.69, Accumulation Time

The commission proposes to amend §335.69(a)(4)(B) to con-
form to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010,
issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). This amendment
would correct a limited reference to 40 CFR §268.7(a)(5) which
only addresses waste analysis plans. The amendment would
apply all applicable requirements under 40 CFR Part 268 (per-
taining to Land Disposal Restrictions) to large and small quantity
generators.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.69(b) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, is-
sue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment
would clarify that the requirements in §335.69(b), pertaining to
hazardous waste accumulation time, apply only to large quantity
generators.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.69(d) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue
of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment would
clarify that the satellite accumulation provisions for large quantity
generators are also applicable to small quantity generators. The
amendment would also add the citation of 40 CFR §261.31 to
clarify that this provision applies to acutely hazardous wastes.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.69(e) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue
of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment would
add the citation of 40 CFR §261.31, which was inadvertently
omitted after the dioxin listings for acutely hazardous wastes
listed under 40 CFR §261.31 were promulgated in 1985.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.69(f)(4)(B) to
delete "and" to allow the addition of a new subparagraph.

The commission also proposes to renumber §335.69(f)(4)(C) to
§335.69(f)(4)(D) to add a new subparagraph, and also proposes
an amendment to conform to federal regulations promulgated in
the March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989).
This amendment would correct a limited reference to 40 CFR
§268.7(a)(5) which only addresses waste analysis plans. The
amendment would apply all applicable requirements under 40
CFR Part 268 (pertaining to Land Disposal Restrictions) to large
and small quantity generators.

The commission also proposes the addition of §335.69(f)(4)(C)
to conform to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18,
2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). Subpara-
graph (C) would add 40 CFR Part 267 to the list of other require-
ments hazardous waste generators must follow. EPA inadver-
tently did not include 40 CFR Part 267 in the list after the rule
was promulgated in September, 2005.

The commission proposes changes to §335.69(m) by adding
paragraphs (1) and (2) to conform to federal regulations pro-
mulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register
(75 FR 12989). Specifically, the amendment would incorporate
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requirements for completion of the manifest regarding rejected
loads.

The commission also proposes the addition of §335.69(n) to sep-
arate requirements for rejected loads of hazardous waste from
Class 1 waste. The commission proposes §335.69(n) with new
language addressing Class 1 waste generators. Specifically, this
amendment would add requirements for Class 1 waste to allevi-
ate confusion for requirements for each type of rejected waste.

§335.76, Additional Requirements Applicable to International
Shipments

The commission proposes to amend §335.76(a) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue of
the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would im-
plement recent changes to the federal agreements concerning
the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among coun-
tries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment would
clarify that countries belonging to the OECD must comply with
the requirements of 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H (Transfrontier
Shipments of Hazardous Waste for Recovery within the OECD).

The commission proposes to amend §335.76(d) to conform to
federal requirements promulgated in the March 4, 2005, issue of
the Federal Register (70 FR 10776) and amended through the
March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989).
Specifically, the amendment would incorporate requirements
for completion of the manifest regarding imports of hazardous
waste.

The commission proposes to amend §335.76(f) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue of
the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would im-
plement recent changes to the federal agreements concerning
the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among coun-
tries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment would
clarify that any person who exports hazardous waste to a for-
eign country or imports hazardous waste from a foreign country
into the state must comply with the requirements contained in 40
CFR §262.58 (International Agreements).

The commission proposes to amend §335.76(h) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue of
the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would im-
plement recent changes to the federal agreements concerning
the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among coun-
tries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment would
clarify that transfrontier shipments of hazardous waste for recov-
ery within the countries belonging to the OECD must comply with
the requirements of 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart H.

§3356.78, Special Requirements for Hazardous Waste Gener-
ated by Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators

The commission proposes to amend §335.78(c)(6) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the December 1, 2008, issue
of the Federal Register (73 FR 72954). The amendment would
remove a period at the end of the paragraph and add the word
"or" to allow for an additional paragraph.

The commission also proposes to add §335.78(c)(7) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the December 1, 2008, is-
sue of the Federal Register (73 FR 72912). This amendment
would allow an eligible academic entity to exclude the amount
of unused commercial chemical product (listed in 40 CFR Part
261, Subpart D or exhibiting one or more characteristics in 40
CFR Part 261, Subpart C) generated solely during a laboratory

clean-out from being counted toward its hazardous waste gen-
erator status.

The commission proposes to amend §335.78(j) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the July 30, 2003, issue of the
Federal Register (68 FR 44659). The amendment would remove
the phrase "if it is destined to be burned for energy recovery."
This amendment would clarify recycled used oil management
standards for CESQGs.

§335.79, Alternative Requirements for Hazardous Waste Deter-
mination and Accumulation of Unwanted Material for Laborato-
ries Owned by Eligible Academic Entities

The commission proposes new §335.79 to conform to federal
regulations promulgated in the December 1, 2008, issue of the
Federal Register (73 FR 72912), as amended through the De-
cember 20, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 79304).
This proposed new section would incorporate by reference an
alternative set of generator requirements applicable to laborato-
ries owned by eligible academic entities promulgated under 40
CFR Part 262, Subpart K. Eligible academic entities are colleges
and universities, as well as teaching hospitals and nonprofit re-
search institutes that are either owned by or formally affiliated
with a college or university. The Academic Laboratories rule
does not apply to non-laboratory generated hazardous wastes
from other operations of a university or college nor commercial
laboratories.

The Academic Laboratories rule would provide a flexible but pro-
tective set of regulations that address the specific nature of haz-
ardous waste generation and accumulation in the laboratories
owned or operated by academic entities. Specifically, this rule
would allow eligible academic entities the flexibility to make haz-
ardous waste determinations in the laboratory; at an on-site cen-
tral accumulation area; or at an on-site treatment, storage, or
disposal facility. Also, this rule would provide incentives for el-
igible academic entities to clean-out old and expired chemicals
that may pose unnecessary risk. Further, this rule would require
the development of a Laboratory Management Plan (LMP) which
is expected to result in safer laboratory practices and increased
awareness of hazardous waste management.

The proposed rule would be optional for eligible academic en-
tities. That is, eligible academic laboratories could choose to
comply with 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart K in lieu of the exist-
ing generator regulations. In states authorized to implement the
RCRA program, such as Texas, 40 CFR Part 262, Subpart K
would only be available as an option once it has been adopted
by the state in which the eligible academic entity is located.

The commission also proposes the incorporation of six techni-
cal corrections to the Academic Laboratories rule published in
the December 20, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR
79304). These proposed changes include correction of errors
such as omissions and redundancies as well as removal of an
obsolete reference to the now-terminated Performance Track
program. These proposed technical corrections would improve
the clarity of the state's Academic Laboratories rule. The Aca-
demic Laboratories rule and the corrections are recommended
by EPA to be adopted into state rules, but are not required to
maintain RCRA authorization.

§335.111, Purpose, Scope, and Applicability

The commission proposes to amend §335.111 to make technical
corrections.

§335.112, Standards
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The commission proposes to amend §335.112(a)(1) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue
of the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would
implement recent changes to the federal agreements concern-
ing the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among
countries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment
would specify that all exception reports concerning hazardous
waste exports be sent to the International Compliance and As-
surance Division in the Office of Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance's Office of Federal Activities in Washington, D.C., and
would require United States receiving facilities to match EPA-
provided import consent documentation to incoming hazardous
waste import shipments and to submit to EPA a copy of the
matched import consent documentation and RCRA hazardous
waste manifest for each import shipment.

The commission proposes to amend §335.112(a)(3), (4), and
(13) to conform to federal regulations promulgated in the March
18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). Re-
visions to interim standards for owners and operators of haz-
ardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities in 40 CFR
Part 265 are proposed to be adopted by reference under this
section. This amendment would correct citations, clarify regu-
latory requirements, and incorporate conforming changes that
were inadvertently omitted by EPA under the interim standards
for owners and operators of hazardous waste treatment, stor-
age, or disposal facilities in 40 CFR Part 265. This amendment
is as stringent as the current state rules. EPA recommends that
this amendment be adopted into state rules, but it is not required
to maintain RCRA authorization.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.112(a)(4), to add
language that was inadvertently omitted in a previous rule adop-
tion. Specifically, the language to be added would reinstate the
exception to 40 CFR §§265.71, 265.72, 265.75, 265.76, and
265.77 because these requirements are found elsewhere.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.112(a)(14) to
conform to federal regulations previously promulgated in the
October 12, 2005, issue of the Federal Register (70 FR 59402).
This amendment was previously adopted into §335.221 which
incorporated final National Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants for hazardous waste combustors. These stan-
dards implemented Federal Clean Air Act, §112(d) by requiring
hazardous waste combustors to meet hazardous air pollutants
emission standards reflecting the performance of the maxi-
mum available control technology. In addition, the commission
proposes an amendment to §335.112(a)(14) to include this
incorporation by reference.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.112(b)(7) to up-
date a cross-reference.

§335.151, Purpose, Scope, and Applicability

The commission proposes to amend §335.151 to make technical
corrections.

§335.152, Standards

The commission proposes to amend §335.152(a)(1) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue
of the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would
implement recent changes to the federal agreements concern-
ing the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among
countries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment
would specify that all exception reports concerning hazardous

waste exports be sent to the International Compliance and As-
surance Division in the Office of Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance's Office of Federal Activities in Washington, D.C., and
would require United States receiving facilities to match EPA-
provided import consent documentation to incoming hazardous
waste import shipments and to submit to EPA a copy of the
matched import consent documentation and RCRA hazardous
waste manifest for each import shipment.

The commission proposes to amend §335.152(a)(4) to add lan-
guage that was inadvertently omitted in a previous rule adoption.
Specifically, the language to be added would reinstate the excep-
tion to 40 CFR §§264.71, 264.72, 264.76, and 264.77 because
these requirements are found elsewhere.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.152(a)(9) to con-
form to federal regulations previously promulgated in the July 14,
2006, issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40254). Specifically,
this amendment would make corrections to typographical errors
in the CFR.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.152(a)(3), (4),
(12), and (14) to conform to federal regulations promulgated in
the March 18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989).
This amendment would correct citations, clarify regulatory re-
quirements, and incorporate conforming changes that were in-
advertently omitted by EPA under the permitting standards for
owners and operators of hazardous waste treatment, storage,
or disposal facilities in 40 CFR Part 264. This amendment is as
stringent as the current state rules. EPA recommends that this
amendment be adopted into state rules, but it is not required to
maintain RCRA authorization.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.152(c)(7) to up-
date a cross-reference.

§335.155, Additional Reports

The commission proposes to amend §335.155 to make technical
corrections.

§335.168, Design and Operating Requirements (Surface Im-
poundments)

The commission proposes to amend §335.168(c) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the July 14, 2006,
issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 40254). Specifically, this
amendment would make corrections to typographical errors in
the CFR.

§335.170, Design and Operating Requirements (Waste Piles)

The commission proposes to amend §335.170(c) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the April 4, 2006,
issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 16862). This amendment
would adopt by reference requirements that reduce the record-
keeping and reporting burden imposed on the regulated com-
munity by ensuring that only the information needed and used
to implement the hazardous waste program is collected from fa-
cilities. In addition, outdated language that references a con-
struction time period would be deleted. This amendment is less
stringent than the current state rules, but the reduction in record-
keeping poses minimal risk to human health or the environment.
EPA recommends that this amendment be adopted into state
rules, but it is not required to maintain RCRA authorization.

§3356.213, Standards Applicable to Storers of Materials That Are
To Be Used in a Manner That Constitutes Disposal Who Are Not
the Ultimate Users
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The commission proposes to amend §335.213 to conform to fed-
eral regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue of the
Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment would add a
reference to Chapter 335, Subchapter U, Standards for Owners
and Operators of Hazardous Waste Facilities Operating under a
Standard Permit, to include applicable requirements in 40 CFR
Part 267, which EPA inadvertently omitted after the rule was pro-
mulgated in September, 2005.

§335.222, Management Prior to Burning

The commission proposes §335.222(c)(1)(E) to conform to fed-
eral regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue of the
Federal Register (75 FR 12989). Specifically, subparagraph (E)
would add a reference to Chapter 335, Subchapter U to include
applicable requirements in 40 CFR Part 267, which EPA inad-
vertently omitted after the rule was promulgated in September,
2005. Subsequent subparagraph (E) has been relettered ac-
cordingly.

§335.251, Applicability and Requirements

The commission proposes to amend §335.251(a) to conform to
federal regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue of
the Federal Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would im-
plement recent changes to the federal agreements concerning
the transboundary movement of hazardous waste among coun-
tries belonging to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment would
clarify that entities who transport spent lead-acid batteries in the
United States to export them for reclamation in a foreign country
or who export spent lead-acid batteries for reclamation in a for-
eign country are not subject to the requirements of §335.251.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.251(b)(1) to con-
form to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010,
issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). The amendment
would add a reference to Chapter 335, Subchapter U to include
applicable requirements in 40 CFR Part 267, which EPA inad-
vertently omitted after the rule was promulgated in September,
2005.

The commission proposes §335.251(c) to conform to federal
regulations promulgated in the January 8, 2010, issue of the Fed-
eral Register (75 FR 1236). This amendment would implement
recent changes to the federal agreements concerning the trans-
boundary movement of hazardous waste among countries be-
longing to the OECD. Specifically, this amendment would clarify
that entities who transport spent lead-acid batteries in the United
States to export them for reclamation in a foreign country or who
export spent lead-acid batteries for reclamation in a foreign coun-
try are subject to the requirements of §335.13 and §335.76(h).

§3356.431, Purpose, Scope, and Applicability

The commission proposes to amend §335.431(c)(1) to conform
to federal regulations promulgated in the March 18, 2010, issue
of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). This amendment would
correct errors in two tables: Treatment Standards for Hazardous
Wastes (40 CFR §268.40) and Universal Treatment Standards
(40 CFR §268.48). This amendment is as stringent as current
state rules. EPA recommends that this amendment be adopted
into state rules, but it is not required to maintain RCRA autho-
rization.

§335.504, Hazardous Waste Determination

The commission proposes to amend §335.504(1) to conform to
federal regulations previously promulgated in the July 28, 2006,
issue of the Federal Register (71 FR 42928). This amendment

was inadvertently left out of the last RCRA rulemaking and
would exclude CRTs that meet the requirements in 40 CFR
§261.4(a)(22) for reuse and recycling from classification as a
solid waste. This exclusion is currently found in 40 CFR §261.4.
This amendment is less stringent than current state rules and
encourages recycling of CRTs. EPA recommends that this
amendment be adopted into state rules, but it is not required to
maintain RCRA authorization.

The commission also proposes to amend §335.504(1) - (3)
to conform to federal regulations promulgated in the March
18, 2010, issue of the Federal Register (75 FR 12989). This
amendment would correct typographical errors and citations,
and incorporate omissions. This amendment is as stringent as
the current state rules. EPA recommends that this amendment
be adopted into state rules, but it is not required to maintain
RCRA authorization.

Fiscal Note: Costs to State and Local Government

Nina Chamness, Analyst, Strategic Planning and Assessment,
has determined that, for the first five-year period the proposed
rules are in effect, no significant fiscal implications are antici-
pated for the agency as a result of administration or enforcement
of the proposed rules. The proposed rules are not expected to
have a fiscal impact on most local governments since they are
typically not generators of industrial or hazardous waste nor do
they typically treat, store, or dispose of these wastes. However,
some units of state and local government may experience cost
savings as a result of the proposed rules if they are eligible aca-
demic institutions, teaching hospitals, or non-profit research in-
stitutes with laboratories generating hazardous waste.

The proposed rules would adopt optional and mandatory parts
of some federal rule revisions to the hazardous waste programs
of the RCRA. The proposed rulemaking would make these state
requirements equivalent to federal requirements and allow the
state to maintain its federal authorization of the RCRA program.
The proposed rules also contain provisions to correct typograph-
ical errors, revise citations, and make other administrative cor-
rections.

The proposed rules are part of a comprehensive rule package
implementing RCRA requirements involving proposed changes
to several chapters of 30 TAC. This fiscal note applies only to the
proposed changes to Chapter 335.

Chapter 335 Optional RCRA Hazardous Waste Rules

Adoption of the optional federal RCRA requirements would pro-
vide generators of hazardous waste and hazardous waste fa-
cilities with less costly alternatives than those found in current
rules. If these optional requirements are not adopted into state
rules, these less costly disposal methods will not be available
to generators of hazardous waste and operators of hazardous
waste facilities in Texas, and they will be required to comply with
current and potentially more expensive rules. The proposed op-
tional rules would clarify requirements for notification and record-
keeping to exclude CRTs that meet the requirements in 40 CFR
§261.39 and §261.40 for reuse and recycling from classification
as a solid waste. Cost savings are estimated to range from $50
to $200 per ton of waste recycled. The proposed rules would
revise the definition of "Standard permit" so that it is consis-
tent with the EPA definition at 40 CFR §124.2(a). The proposed
rules would also revise the reporting requirements for treatabil-
ity studies by reducing the amount of information required to be
submitted. Cost savings could range from $50 to $10,000 per
report. The proposed rules would reduce the requirements for
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requests for a variance from classifying as a solid waste those
materials that are reclaimed and then reused as feedstock within
the original production process in which the materials were gen-
erated if the reclamation operation is an essential part of the
production process. Resulting cost savings, depending on the
type of waste, could range from $50 to $200 per barrel of waste.
The proposed rulemaking would reduce the recordkeeping and
reporting burden imposed on the regulated community by en-
suring that only the information needed and used to implement
the hazardous waste program is collected from facilities. In ad-
dition, outdated language that references a construction time
period would be deleted. Cost savings could range from $50
to $200 per ton of waste that is recycled. The proposed rule-
making would provide academic laboratories increased regula-
tory flexibility by allowing them to make hazardous waste de-
terminations in the laboratory; at an on-site central accumula-
tion area; or at an on-site treatment, storage, or disposal facil-
ity. These rules would also provide incentives for the eligible
academic entities to clean-out old and expired chemicals and
require them to develop an LMP. An LMP is expected to result
in safer laboratory practices and increased awareness of haz-
ardous waste management. There are approximately 93 eligible
academic laboratories at colleges, universities, teaching hospi-
tals, and nonprofit research institutions statewide. The annual
cost savings for a laboratory classified as a large quantity gen-
erator could be as much as $12,000 per year, and savings for
a laboratory classified as a small quantity generator could be as
much as $1,000 per year if these laboratories manage their haz-
ardous waste under the proposed option. The development of
an LMP could cost as much as $2,000. The proposed rulemak-
ing would clarify the requirements for usage of the EPA Uniform
Hazardous Waste Manifest form when shipping federally regu-
lated hazardous waste and when shipping state regulated Class
1 waste. The proposed rulemaking would adopt by reference
the EPA Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest system to more
closely conform to the EPA manifest requirements for shipping
hazardous waste. The rulemaking would specify requirements
for manifesting Class 1 waste when the requirements deviate
from the EPA manifest requirements. The proposed rulemaking
would also correct omissions and inaccuracies in the existing
rule.

The proposed rules would also incorporate by reference manda-
tory federal RCRA requirements concerning the transboundary
movement of hazardous waste among countries belonging to
the OECD,; establish notice and consent requirements for spent
lead-acid batteries intended for reclamation in a foreign country;
specify that all exception reports concerning hazardous waste
exports be sent to the International Compliance and Assurance
Division in the Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assur-
ance's Office of Federal Activities in Washington, D.C.; and re-
quire United States receiving facilities to match EPA-provided
import consent documentation to incoming hazardous waste im-
port shipments and to submit to EPA a copy of the matched im-
port consent documentation and RCRA hazardous waste mani-
fest for each import shipment.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a sig-
nificant fiscal impact on governmental entities. The optional re-
quirements of the proposed rules are less expensive than com-
pliance with current rules, and estimated cost savings are de-
tailed under each option. The significance of cost savings will de-
pend on the amount of waste generated and, in many cases, on
whether an entity has chosen to use consultants when comply-
ing with current requirements. There may be increased report-

ing costs to comply with the mandatory requirements concerning
transboundary movement of hazardous waste, but if a regulated
entity uses existing staff, the increase in reporting costs is not
expected to be significant.

Public Benefits and Costs

Nina Chamness also determined that for each year of the first
five years the proposed rules are in effect, the public benefit an-
ticipated from the changes seen in the proposed rules will be pro-
tection of the environment and public safety through increased
recycling, less risk that hazardous materials would be released
to the environment, safer management of laboratory waste, and
less risk that waste shipped to other countries will be discarded
in non-regulated areas. The proposed rules will also allow gen-
erators and operators of hazardous waste facilities to continue
to operate efficiently because state rules will be consistent with
federal RCRA requirements.

In general, the proposed rules are not expected to have a sig-
nificant fiscal impact on individuals. Most hazardous wastes are
not generated by individuals and individuals do not typically own
or operate hazardous waste facilities.

The proposed rules are not expected to have a significant fis-
cal impact on large businesses. Staff estimates that there are
180 permitted hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal
facilities owned by large businesses and close to 13,000 gen-
erators of industrial and hazardous waste that are large busi-
nesses. Compliance with the proposed optional requirements
is expected to be less expensive than compliance with current
rules. Cost savings for a business or individual is expected to be
about the same as the cost savings for governmental entities.
The significance of cost savings will depend on the amount of
waste generated and, in many cases, on whether an entity has
chosen to use consultants when complying with current require-
ments. There may be increased reporting costs to comply with
the mandatory requirements concerning transboundary move-
ment of hazardous waste, but if a business uses existing staff,
the increase in reporting costs is not expected to be significant.

Small Business and Micro-Business Assessment

No adverse fiscal implications are anticipated for small or mi-
cro-businesses as a result of the proposed rules. Most genera-
tors of hazardous waste and most owners or operators of haz-
ardous waste facilities are large businesses. If a small business
is impacted by the proposed rules, it should experience the same
type of cost savings or increases as those experienced by a large
business.

Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Analysis

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a small business regulatory flexibility analysis is not
required because the proposed rules are required to protect the
environment and to comply with federal regulations.

Local Employment Impact Statement

The commission has reviewed this proposed rulemaking and de-
termined that a local employment impact statement is not re-
quired because the proposed rules do not adversely affect a lo-
cal economy in a material way for the first five years that the
proposed rules are in effect.

Draft Regulatory Impact Analysis Determination

The commission reviewed the proposed rulemaking in light of the
regulatory analysis requirements of Texas Government Code,

PROPOSED RULES October 5, 2012 37 TexReg 7901



§2001.0225, and determined that the rulemaking is not subject to
Texas Government Code, §2001.0225 because it does not meet
the definition of a "major environmental rule" as defined in that
statute. Although the intent of the rulemaking is to protect the en-
vironment and reduce the risk to human health from environmen-
tal exposure, the rulemaking is not a major environmental rule
because it will not adversely affect in a material way the econ-
omy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition, jobs, the
environment, or the public health and safety of the state or a sec-
tor of the state. There is no adverse effect in a material way on
the economy, a sector of the economy, productivity, competition,
or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from those revisions
under 42 United States Code (USC), §6926(g), which already
imposes the more stringent federal requirements on the regu-
lated community under the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amend-
ments of 1984. Likewise, there would be no adverse effect in a
material way on the economy, a sector of the economy, produc-
tivity, competition, or jobs of the state or a sector of the state from
those revisions outside 42 USC, §6926(g), because either the
changes are not substantive, or the regulated community would
benefit from the greater flexibility and reduced compliance bur-
den. The regulated community must comply with the more strin-
gent federal requirements beginning on the effective date of the
federal regulations. Because the regulated community is already
required to comply with the more stringent federal rules, equiv-
alent state rules would not cause any adverse effects. There is
no adverse effect in a material way on the environment, or the
public health and safety of the state or a sector of the state be-
cause the rulemaking is designed to protect the environment, the
public health, and the public safety of the state and all sectors of
the state. Because the proposed rulemaking does not have an
adverse material impact on the economy, the rulemaking does
not meet the definition of a major environmental rule. Further-
more, the rulemaking does not meet any of the four applicability
requirements listed in Texas Government Code, §2001.0225(a).
First, the proposed rulemaking does not exceed a standard set
by federal law because the commission proposes this rulemak-
ing to implement revisions to the federal hazardous waste pro-
gram. The commission must meet the minimum standards and
mandatory requirements of the federal program to maintain au-
thorization of the state hazardous waste program. The other pro-
posed changes do not alter substantive requirements although
various changes may increase flexibility for the regulated com-
munity. Second, although the rulemaking proposes some re-
quirements that are more stringent than existing state rules, fed-
eral law requires the commission to promulgate rules that are as
stringent as federal law for the commission to maintain authoriza-
tion of the state hazardous waste program. Third, the rulemak-
ing does not exceed a requirement of a delegation agreement
or contract between the state and an agency or representative
of the federal government, where the delegation agreement or
contract is to implement a state and federal program. On the
contrary, the commission must undertake the waste program.
And fourth, the rulemaking does not seek to adopt a rule solely
under the general powers of the agency instead of under a spe-
cific state law. The commission proposes this rulemaking under
Texas Water Code, §5.103 and §5.105 and under Texas Health
and Safety Code, §361.017 and §361.024.

The commission solicits public comment on the draft regulatory
impact analysis determination. Written comments may be sub-
mitted to the contact person at the address listed under the Sub-
mittal of Comments section of this preamble.

Takings Impact Assessment

The commission evaluated the rulemaking and performed an
assessment of whether Texas Government Code, Chapter
2007 applies. The commission's assessment indicates that
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2007 does not apply to the
proposed rulemaking because this action is reasonably taken to
fulfill an obligation mandated by federal law; therefore, this ac-
tion is exempt under Texas Government Code, §2007.003(b)(4).
The specific purpose of the rulemaking is to maintain state
RCRA authorization by adopting state hazardous waste rules
that are equivalent to the federal regulations. The rulemaking
substantially advances this purpose by adopting rules that
incorporate and refer to the federal regulations. Promulgation
and enforcement of the rules is not a statutory or constitu-
tional taking of private real property. Specifically, the proposed
rulemaking does not affect a landowner's rights in private real
property because this rulemaking does not constitutionally
burden the owner's right to property, does not restrict or limit
the owner's right to property, and does not reduce the value
of property by 25% or more beyond that which will otherwise
exist in the absence of the regulations. The rulemaking seeks
to meet the minimum standards of federal RCRA regulations
that are already in place. 42 USC, §6926(g) imposes on the
regulated community any federal requirements that are more
stringent than current state rules. The regulated community
must already have complied with the more stringent federal
requirements as of the effective date of the federal regulations.
Because the regulated community is already required to comply
with the more stringent federal regulations, promulgating equiv-
alent state rules does not burden, restrict, or limit the owner's
right to property and does not reduce the value of property
by 25% or more. Likewise, the regulated community is not
unduly burdened by those revisions providing greater flexibility,
reduced recordkeeping, reporting, inspection, and sampling
requirements.

Consistency with the Coastal Management Program

The commission reviewed the proposed rulemaking and found
that the proposal is subject to the Texas Coastal Management
Program (CMP) in accordance with the Coastal Coordination
Act, Texas Natural Resources Code, §§33.201 et seq., and
therefore must be consistent with all applicable CMP goals
and policies. The commission conducted a consistency de-
termination for the proposed rules in accordance with Coastal
Coordination Act Implementation Rules, 31 TAC §505.22 and
found the proposed rulemaking is consistent with the applicable
CMP goals and policies. The CMP goal applicable to the
rulemaking is to protect, preserve, restore and enhance the di-
versity, quality, quantity, functions and values of coastal natural
resource areas (CNRAs). Applicable policies are construction
and operation of solid waste treatment, storage, and disposal
facilities, such that new solid waste facilities and areal expan-
sions of existing solid waste facilities shall be sited, designed,
constructed, and operated to prevent releases of pollutants
that may adversely affect CNRAs and, at a minimum, comply
with standards established under the Solid Waste Disposal Act,
42 USC, §8§86901 et seq. Promulgation and enforcement of
these rules are consistent with the applicable CMP goals and
policies because the rulemaking would update and enhance the
commission's rules concerning hazardous waste facilities. In
addition, the rules would not violate any applicable provisions of
the CMP's stated goals and policies.

Written comments on the consistency of this rulemaking may be
submitted to the contact person at the address listed under the
Submittal of Comments section of this preamble.
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Submittal of Comments

Written comments may be submitted to Charlotte Horn, MC
205, Office of Legal Services, Texas Commission on Environ-
mental Quality, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087,
or faxed to (512) 239-4808. Electronic comments may be
submitted at:  http.//wwwb.tceq.texas.gov/rules/ecomments/.
File size restrictions may apply to comments being submitted
via the eComments system. All comments should reference
Rule Project Number 2012-038-335-WS. The comment period
closes November 5, 2012. Copies of the proposed rule-
making can be obtained from the commission's Web site at
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/nav/rules/propose_adopt.html.  For
further information, please contact Cynthia Palomares, P.G.,
P.E., Industrial and Hazardous Waste Permits Section, (512)
239-6079, MC-130, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087.

SUBCHAPTER A. INDUSTRIAL SOLID
WASTE AND MUNICIPAL HAZARDOUS
WASTE IN GENERAL

30 TAC §§335.1, 335.2, 335.10 - 335.13, 335.19, 335.24
Statutory Authority

The amendments are proposed under Texas Water Code (TWC),
§5.103 (relating to Rules) and TWC, §5.105 (relating to General
Policy) which provide the commission with the authority to adopt
any rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties under
the provisions of the TWC or other laws of this state; and un-
der Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC), §361.017 (relating
to Commission's Jurisdiction: Industrial Solid Waste and Haz-
ardous Municipal Waste); THSC, §361.024 (relating to Rules
and Standards); and THSC, §361.036 (relating to Records and
Manifests Required: Class | Industrial Solid Waste or Hazardous
Waste) which authorize the commission to regulate industrial
solid waste and hazardous waste and to adopt rules consistent
with the general intent and purposes of the THSC.

The proposed amendments implement THSC, Chapter 361.

§335.1.  Definitions.

In addition to the terms defined in Chapter 3 of this title (relating to
Definitions), the following words and terms, when used in this chapter,
have the following meanings.

(1) Aboveground tank--A device meeting the definition of
tank in this section and that is situated in such a way that the entire
surface area of the tank is completely above the plane of the adjacent
surrounding surface and the entire surface area of the tank (including
the tank bottom) is able to be visually inspected.

(2) Act--Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 361.

(3) Active life--The period from the initial receipt of haz-
ardous waste at the facility until the executive director receives certifi-
cation of final closure.

(4) Active portion--That portion of a facility where pro-
cessing, storage, or disposal operations are being or have been con-
ducted after November 19, 1980, and which is not a closed portion.
(See also "closed portion" and "inactive portion.")

(5) Activities associated with the exploration, devel-

opment, and production [preteetion] of oil or gas or geothermal
resources--Activities associated with:

(A) the drilling of exploratory wells, oil wells, gas
wells, or geothermal resource wells;

(B) the production of oil or gas or geothermal resources,
including:

(i) activities associated with the drilling of injection
water source wells that penetrate the base of usable quality water;

(ii)  activities associated with the drilling of cathodic
protection holes associated with the cathodic protection of wells and
pipelines subject to the jurisdiction of the commission to regulate the
production of oil or gas or geothermal resources;

(iii)  activities associated with gasoline plants, natu-
ral gas or natural gas liquids processing plants, pressure maintenance
plants, or repressurizing plants;

(iv) activities associated with any underground nat-
ural gas storage facility, provided the terms "natural gas" and "storage
facility" shall have the meanings set out in the Texas Natural Resources
Code, §1.173;

(v) activities associated with any underground hy-
drocarbon storage facility, provided the terms "hydrocarbons" and "un-
derground hydrocarbon storage facility" shall have the meanings set out
in the Texas Natural Resources Code, §91.201; and

(vi) activities associated with the storage, handling,
reclamation, gathering, transportation, or distribution of oil or gas prior
to the refining of such oil or prior to the use of such gas in any manu-
facturing process or as a residential or industrial fuel;

(C) the operation, abandonment, and proper plugging
of wells subject to the jurisdiction of the commission to regulate the
exploration, development, and production of oil or gas or geothermal
resources; and

(D) the discharge, storage, handling, transportation,
reclamation, or disposal of waste or any other substance or material
associated with any activity listed in subparagraphs (A) - (C) of this
paragraph, except for waste generated in connection with activities
associated with gasoline plants, natural gas or natural gas liquids pro-
cessing plants, pressure maintenance plants, or repressurizing plants if
that waste is a hazardous waste as defined by the administrator of the
United States Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with
the Federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended (42 United States
Code, §§6901 et seq.).

(6) Administrator--The administrator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency or his designee.

(7) Ancillary equipment--Any device that is used to distrib-
ute, meter, or control the flow of solid waste or hazardous waste from
its point of generation to a storage or processing tank(s), between solid
waste or hazardous waste storage and processing tanks to a point of
disposal on site, or to a point of shipment for disposal off site. Such
devices include, but are not limited to, piping, fittings, flanges, valves,
and pumps.

(8) Aquifer--A geologic formation, group of formations, or
part of a formation capable of yielding a significant amount of ground-
water to wells or springs.

(9) Area of concern--Any area of a facility under the con-
trol or ownership of an owner or operator where a release to the envi-
ronment of hazardous wastes or hazardous constituents has occurred, is
suspected to have occurred, or may occur, regardless of the frequency
or duration.

(10) Authorized representative--The person responsible
for the overall operation of a facility or an operation unit (i.e., part
of a facility), e.g., the plant manager, superintendent, or person of
equivalent responsibility.
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(11) Battery--As defined in §335.261 of this title (relating
to Universal Waste Rule).

(12) Boiler--An enclosed device using controlled flame
combustion and having the following characteristics:

(A) the unit must have physical provisions for recover-
ing and exporting thermal energy in the form of steam, heated fluids,
or heated gases;

(B) the unit's combustion chamber and primary energy
recovery section(s) must be of integral design. To be of integral design,
the combustion chamber and the primary energy recovery section(s)
(such as waterwalls and superheaters) must be physically formed into
one manufactured or assembled unit. A unit in which the combustion
chamber and the primary energy recovery section(s) are joined only
by ducts or connections carrying flue gas is not integrally designed;
however, secondary energy recovery equipment (such as economizers
or air preheaters) need not be physically formed into the same unit as
the combustion chamber and the primary energy recovery section. The
following units are not precluded from being boilers solely because
they are not of integral design:

(i) process heaters (units that transfer energy di-
rectly to a process stream); and

(ii) fluidized bed combustion units;

(C) while in operation, the unit must maintain a thermal
energy recovery efficiency of at least 60%, calculated in terms of the
recovered energy compared with the thermal value of the fuel; and

(D) the unit must export and utilize at least 75% of the
recovered energy, calculated on an annual basis. In this calculation, no
credit shall be given for recovered heat used internally in the same unit.
(Examples of internal use are the preheating of fuel or combustion air,
and the driving of induced or forced draft fans or feedwater pumps); or

(E) the unit is one which the executive director has de-
termined, on a case-by-case basis, to be a boiler, after considering the
standards in §335.20 of this title (relating to Variance To Be Classified
as a Boiler).

(13) Captive facility--A facility that accepts wastes from
only related (within the same corporation) off-site generators.

(14) Captured facility--A manufacturing or production fa-
cility that generates an industrial solid waste or hazardous waste that is
routinely stored, processed, or disposed of on a shared basis in an inte-
grated waste management unit owned, operated by, and located within
a contiguous manufacturing complex.

(15) Captured receiver--A receiver that is located within
the property boundaries of the generators from which it receives waste.

(16) Carbon regeneration unit--Any enclosed thermal
treatment device used to regenerate spent activated carbon.

(17) Cathode ray tube or CRT--A vacuum tube, composed
primarily of glass, which is the visual or video display component of
an electronic device. A used, intact CRT means a CRT whose vacuum
has not been released. A used, broken CRT means its glass has been
removed from its housing, or casing whose vacuum has been released.

(18) Certification--A statement of professional opinion
based upon knowledge and belief.

(19) Class 1 wastes--Any industrial solid waste or mixture
of industrial solid wastes which because of its concentration, or physi-
cal or chemical characteristics, is toxic, corrosive, flammable, a strong
sensitizer or irritant, a generator of sudden pressure by decomposition,
heat, or other means, or may pose a substantial present or potential dan-

ger to human health or the environment when improperly processed,
stored, transported, or disposed of or otherwise managed, as further
defined in §335.505 of this title (relating to Class 1 Waste Determina-
tion).

(20) Class 2 wastes--Any individual solid waste or combi-
nation of industrial solid waste which cannot be described as hazardous,
Class 1, or Class 3 as defined in §335.506 of this title (relating to Class
2 Waste Determination).

(21) Class 3 wastes--Inert and essentially insoluble indus-
trial solid waste, usually including, but not limited to, materials such
as rock, brick, glass, dirt, and certain plastics and rubber, etc., that are
not readily decomposable, as further defined in §335.507 of this title
(relating to Class 3 Waste Determination).

(22) Closed portion--That portion of a facility which an
owner or operator has closed in accordance with the approved facility
closure plan and all applicable closure requirements. (See also "active
portion" and "inactive portion.")

(23) Closure--The act of permanently taking a waste man-
agement unit or facility out of service.

(24) Commercial hazardous waste management facil-
ity--Any hazardous waste management facility that accepts hazardous
waste or polychlorinated biphenyl compounds for a charge, except
a captured facility or a facility that accepts waste only from other
facilities owned or effectively controlled by the same person.

(25) Component--Either the tank or ancillary equipment of
a tank system.

(26) Confined aquifer--An aquifer bounded above and be-
low by impermeable beds or by beds of distinctly lower permeability
than that of the aquifer itself; an aquifer containing confined ground-
water.

(27) Consignee--The ultimate treatment, storage, or dis-
posal facility in a receiving country to which the hazardous waste will
be sent.

(28) Container--Any portable device in which a material is
stored, transported, processed, or disposed of, or otherwise handled.

(29) Containment building--A hazardous waste manage-
ment unit that is used to store or treat hazardous waste under the
provisions of §335.152(a)(19) or §335.112(a)(21) of this title (relating
to Standards).

(30) Contaminant--Includes, but is not limited to, "solid
waste," "hazardous waste," and "hazardous waste constituent" as
defined in this subchapter; "pollutant" as defined in Texas Water
Code (TWC), §26.001, and Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC),
§361.401; "hazardous substance" as defined in THSC, §361.003; and
other substances that are subject to the Texas Hazardous Substances
Spill Prevention and Control Act, TWC, §§26.261 - 26.267.

(31) Contaminated medium/media--A portion or portions
of the physical environment to include soil, sediment, surface water,
groundwater or air, that contain contaminants at levels that pose a sub-
stantial present or future threat to human health and the environment.

(32) Contingency plan--A document setting out an orga-
nized, planned, and coordinated course of action to be followed in case
of a fire, explosion, or release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents which could threaten human health or the environment.

(33) Control--To apply engineering measures such as cap-
ping or reversible treatment methods and/or institutional measures such
as deed restrictions to facilities or areas with wastes or contaminated
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media which result in remedies that are protective of human health and
the environment when combined with appropriate maintenance, mon-
itoring, and any necessary further corrective action.

(34) Corrosion expert--A person who, by reason of his
knowledge of the physical sciences and the principles of engineering
and mathematics, acquired by a professional education and related
practical experience, is qualified to engage in the practice of corrosion
control on buried or submerged metal piping systems and metal tanks.
Such a person must be certified as being qualified by the National
Association of Corrosion Engineers or be a registered professional
engineer who has certification or licensing that includes education and
experience in corrosion control on buried or submerged metal piping
systems and metal tanks.

(35) Cathode Ray Tube collector--A person who receives
used, intact Cathode Ray Tubes for recycling, repair, resale, or dona-
tion.

(36) Cathode Ray Tube glass manufacturer--An operation
or part of an operation that uses a furnace to manufacture Cathode Ray
Tube glass.

(37) Cathode Ray Tube processing--Conducting all of the
following activities:

(A) Receiving broken or intact Cathode Ray Tubes
(CRTs);

(B) Intentionally breaking intact CRTs or further break-
ing or separating broken CRTs; and

(C) Sorting or otherwise managing glass removed from
CRT monitors.

(38) Decontaminate--To apply a treatment process(es) to
wastes or contaminated media whereby the substantial present or future
threat to human health and the environment is eliminated.

(39) Designated facility--A [Class 1 or] hazardous waste
treatment, storage, or disposal facility which: has received a [United
States Environmental Protection Ageney| permit (or [a faeility with]
interim status) in accordance with the requirements of 40 Code of Fed-
eral Regulations (CFR) Parts 270 and 124; has received a permit (or
interim status) from a state authorized in accordance with 40 CFR Part
271 [(in the case of hazardous waste; a permit issued in accordance
with §335:2 of this title (relating to Permit Required) (in the ease of
nonhazardous waste)]; or [that] is regulated under 40 CFR §261.6(c)(2)
or 40 CFR Part 266, Subpart F [§335:24(5; (g); or (h) of this title (relat-
ing to Regquirements for Reeyelable Materials and Nonhazardous Re-
eyelable Materials) or §335:241 of this title (relating to Applieability
and Requirements)] and [that] has been designated on the manifest by
the generator pursuant to 40 CFR §262.20. For hazardous wastes, if [in
accordance with §33510 of this title {relating to Shipping and Report-
ing Procedures Applicable to Generators of Hazardous Waste or Class
1 Waste and Primary Exporters of Hazardous Waste). H] a waste is
destined to a facility in an authorized state which has not yet obtained
authorization to regulate that particular waste as hazardous, then the
designated facility must be a facility allowed by the receiving state to
accept such waste. For Class 1 wastes, a designated facility is any
treatment, storage, or disposal facility authorized to receive the Class 1
waste that has been designated on the manifest by the generator. Des-
ignated facility also means a generator site designated on the manifest
to receive its waste as a return shipment from a facility that has rejected
the waste in accordance with §335.12 [§33542(e)] of this title (relat-
ing to Shipping Requirements Applicable to Owners or Operators of
Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities).

(40) Destination facility--Has the definition adopted under
§335.261 of this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(41) Dike--An embankment or ridge of either natural or
man-made materials used to prevent the movement of liquids, sludges,
solids, or other materials.

(42) Dioxins and furans (D/F)--Tetra, penta, hexa, hepta,
and octa-chlorinated dibenzo dioxins and furans.

(43) Discharge or hazardous waste discharge--The acci-
dental or intentional spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting,
emptying, or dumping of waste into or on any land or water.

(44) Disposal--The discharge, deposit, injection, dumping,
spilling, leaking, or placing of any solid waste or hazardous waste
(whether containerized or uncontainerized) into or on any land or water
so that such solid waste or hazardous waste or any constituent thereof
may enter the environment or be emitted into the air or discharged into
any waters, including groundwaters.

(45) Disposal facility--A facility or part of a facility at
which solid waste is intentionally placed into or on any land or water,
and at which waste will remain after closure. The term "disposal
facility" does not include a corrective action management unit into
which remediation wastes are placed.

(46) Drip pad--An engineered structure consisting of a
curbed, free-draining base, constructed of non-earthen materials and
designed to convey preservative kick-back or drippage from treated
wood, precipitation, and surface water run-on to an associated collec-
tion system at wood preserving plants.

(47) Elementary neutralization unit--A device which:

(A) isused for neutralizing wastes which are hazardous
only because they exhibit the corrosivity characteristic defined in 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §261.22, or are listed in 40 CFR
Part 261, Subpart D, only for this reason; or is used for neutralizing the
pH of non-hazardous industrial solid waste; and

(B) meets the definition of tank, tank system, container,
transport vehicle, or vessel as defined in this section.

(48) United States Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) acknowledgment of consent--The cable sent to EPA from the
United States Embassy in a receiving country that acknowledges the
written consent of the receiving country to accept the hazardous waste
and describes the terms and conditions of the receiving country's
consent to the shipment.

(49) United States Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) hazardous waste number--The number assigned by the EPA to
each hazardous waste listed in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 261, Subpart D and to each characteristic identified in 40 CFR
Part 261, Subpart C.

(50) United States Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) identification number--The number assigned by the EPA or the
commission to each generator, transporter, and processing, storage, or
disposal facility.

(51) Essentially insoluble--Any material, which if repre-
sentatively sampled and placed in static or dynamic contact with deion-
ized water at ambient temperature for seven days, will not leach any
quantity of any constituent of the material into the water in excess of
current United States Public Health Service or United States Environ-
mental Protection Agency limits for drinking water as published in the
Federal Register.
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(52) Equivalent method--Any testing or analytical method
approved by the administrator under 40 Code of Federal Regulations
§260.20 and §260.21.

(53) Existing portion--That land surface area of an existing
waste management unit, included in the original Part A permit appli-
cation, on which wastes have been placed prior to the issuance of a
permit.

(54) Existing tank system or existing component--A tank
system or component that is used for the storage or processing of haz-
ardous waste and that is in operation, or for which installation has com-
menced on or prior to July 14, 1986. Installation will be considered to
have commenced if the owner or operator has obtained all federal, state,
and local approvals or permits necessary to begin physical construction
of the site or installation of the tank system and if either:

(A) acontinuous on-site physical construction or instal-
lation program has begun; or

(B) the owner or operator has entered into contractual
obligations--which cannot be canceled or modified without substantial
loss--for physical construction of the site or installation of the tank sys-
tem to be completed within a reasonable time.

(55) Explosives or munitions emergency--A situation in-
volving the suspected or detected presence of unexploded ordnance,
damaged or deteriorated explosives or munitions, an improvised explo-
sive device, other potentially explosive material or device, or other po-
tentially harmful military chemical munitions or device, that creates an
actual or potential imminent threat to human health, including safety, or
the environment, including property, as determined by an explosives or
munitions emergency response specialist. These situations may require
immediate and expeditious action by an explosives or munitions emer-
gency response specialist to control, mitigate, or eliminate the threat.

(56) Explosives or munitions emergency response--All im-
mediate response activities by an explosives and munitions emergency
response specialist to control, mitigate, or eliminate the actual or poten-
tial threat encountered during an explosives or munitions emergency,
subject to the following:

(A) an explosives or munitions emergency response in-
cludes in-place render-safe procedures, treatment or destruction of the
explosives or munitions and/or transporting those items to another lo-
cation to be rendered safe, treated, or destroyed;

(B) any reasonable delay in the completion of an explo-
sives or munitions emergency response caused by a necessary, unfore-
seen, or uncontrollable circumstance will not terminate the explosives
or munitions emergency; and

(C) explosives and munitions emergency responses can
occur on either public or private lands and are not limited to responses
at hazardous waste facilities.

(57) Explosives or munitions emergency response spe-
cialist--An individual trained in chemical or conventional munitions
or explosives handling, transportation, render-safe procedures, or de-
struction techniques, including United States Department of Defense
(DOD) emergency explosive ordnance disposal, technical escort unit,
and DOD-certified civilian or contractor personnel; and, other federal,
state, or local government, or civilian personnel similarly trained in
explosives or munitions emergency responses.

(58) Extrusion--A process using pressure to force ground
poultry carcasses through a decreasing-diameter barrel or nozzle, caus-
ing the generation of heat sufficient to kill pathogens, and resulting in
an extruded product acceptable as a feed ingredient.

(59) Facility--Includes:

(A) all contiguous land, and structures, other appurte-
nances, and improvements on the land, used for storing, processing, or
disposing of municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid waste. A fa-
cility may consist of several treatment, storage, or disposal operational
units (e.g., one or more landfills, surface impoundments, or combina-
tions of them);

(B) for the purpose of implementing corrective action
under §335.167 of this title (relating to Corrective Action for Solid
Waste Management Units) or §335.602(a)(5) of this title (relating to
Standards), all contiguous property under the control of the owner or
operator seeking a permit for the treatment, storage, and/or disposal of
hazardous waste. This definition also applies to facilities implementing
corrective action under Texas Water Code, §7.031 (Corrective Action
Relating to Hazardous Waste).

(60) Final closure--The closure of all hazardous waste
management units at the facility in accordance with all applicable
closure requirements so that hazardous waste management activities
under Subchapter E of this chapter (relating to Interim Standards
for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage,
or Disposal Facilities) and Subchapter F of this chapter (relating to
Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste
Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities) are no longer conducted
at the facility unless subject to the provisions in §335.69 of this title
(relating to Accumulation Time).

(61) Food-chain crops--Tobacco, crops grown for human
consumption, and crops grown for feed for animals whose products
are consumed by humans.

(62) Freeboard--The vertical distance between the top of a
tank or surface impoundment dike, and the surface of the waste con-
tained therein.

(63) Free liquids--Liquids which readily separate from the
solid portion of a waste under ambient temperature and pressure.

(64) Gasification--For the purpose of complying with 40
Code of Federal Regulations §261.4(a)(12)(i), gasification is a process,
conducted in an enclosed device or system, designed and operated
to process petroleum feedstock, including oil-bearing hazardous sec-
ondary materials through a series of highly controlled steps utilizing
thermal decomposition, limited oxidation, and gas cleaning to yield a
synthesis gas composed primarily of hydrogen and carbon monoxide
gas.

(65) Generator--Any person, by site, who produces mu-
nicipal hazardous waste or industrial solid waste; any person who
possesses municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid waste to be
shipped to any other person; or any person whose act first causes the
solid waste to become subject to regulation under this chapter. For the
purposes of this regulation, a person who generates or possesses Class
3 wastes only shall not be considered a generator.

(66) Groundwater--Water below the land surface in a zone
of saturation.

(67) Hazardous industrial waste--Any industrial solid
waste or combination of industrial solid wastes identified or listed
as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States En-
vironmental Protection Agency in accordance with the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, §3001 (42 United States
Code, §6921). The administrator has identified the characteristics of
hazardous wastes and listed certain wastes as hazardous in 40 Code
of Federal Regulations Part 261. The executive director will maintain
in the offices of the commission a current list of hazardous wastes,
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a current set of characteristics of hazardous waste, and applicable
appendices, as promulgated by the administrator.

(68) Hazardous substance--Any substance designated as a
hazardous substance under 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 302.

(69) Hazardous waste--Any solid waste identified or listed
as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States Environ-
mental Protection Agency in accordance with the federal Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act, 42 United States Code, §§6901 et seq.

(70) Hazardous waste constituent--A constituent that
caused the administrator to list the hazardous waste in 40 Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 261, Subpart D or a constituent listed
in Table 1 of 40 CFR §261.24.

(71) Hazardous waste management facility--All contigu-
ous land, including structures, appurtenances, and other improvements
on the land, used for processing, storing, or disposing of hazardous
waste. The term includes a publicly- or privately-owned hazardous
waste management facility consisting of processing, storage, or dis-
posal operational hazardous waste management units such as one or
more landfills, surface impoundments, waste piles, incinerators, boil-
ers, and industrial furnaces, including cement kilns, injection wells, salt
dome waste containment caverns, land treatment facilities, or a combi-
nation of units.

(72) Hazardous waste management unit--A landfill, sur-
face impoundment, waste pile, industrial furnace, incinerator, cement
kiln, injection well, container, drum, salt dome waste containment
cavern, or land treatment unit, or any other structure, vessel, appurte-
nance, or other improvement on land used to manage hazardous waste.

(73) In operation--Refers to a facility which is processing,
storing, or disposing of solid waste or hazardous waste.

(74) Inactive portion--That portion of a facility which is
not operated after November 19, 1980. (See also "active portion" and
"closed portion.")

(75) Incinerator--Any enclosed device that:

(A) uses controlled flame combustion and neither meets
the criteria for classification as a boiler, sludge dryer, or carbon regen-
eration unit, nor is listed as an industrial furnace; or

(B) meets the definition of infrared incinerator or
plasma arc incinerator.

(76) Incompatible waste--A hazardous waste which is un-
suitable for:

(A) placement in a particular device or facility because
it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g., con-
tainer inner liners or tank walls); or

(B) commingling with another waste or material under
uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat
or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists,
fumes, or gases, or flammable fumes or gases.

(77) Individual generation site--The contiguous site at or
on which one or more solid waste or hazardous wastes are generated.
An individual generation site, such as a large manufacturing plant, may
have one or more sources of solid waste or hazardous waste, but is
considered a single or individual generation site if the site or property
is contiguous.

(78) Industrial furnace--Includes any of the following en-
closed devices that use thermal treatment to accomplish recovery of
materials or energy:

(A) cement kilns;
(B) lime kilns;

(C) aggregate kilns;
(D) phosphate kilns;
(E) coke ovens;

(F) blast furnaces;

(G) smelting, melting, and refining furnaces (including
pyrometallurgical devices such as cupolas, reverberator furnaces, sin-
tering machines, roasters, and foundry furnaces);

(H) titanium dioxide chloride process oxidation reac-
tors;

(I) methane reforming furnaces;
(J) pulping liquor recovery furnaces;

(K) combustion devices used in the recovery of sulfur
values from spent sulfuric acid;

(L) halogen acid furnaces for the production of acid
from halogenated hazardous waste generated by chemical production
facilities where the furnace is located on the site of a chemical pro-
duction facility, the acid product has a halogen acid content of at least
3.0%, the acid product is used in a manufacturing process, and, except
for hazardous waste burned as fuel, hazardous waste fed to the furnace
has a minimum halogen content of 20% as generated; and

(M) other devices the commission may list, after the op-
portunity for notice and comment is afforded to the public.

(79) Industrial solid waste--Solid waste resulting from or
incidental to any process of industry or manufacturing, or mining or
agricultural operation, which may include hazardous waste as defined
in this section.

(80) Infrared incinerator--Any enclosed device that uses
electric powered resistance heaters as a source of radiant heat followed
by an afterburner using controlled flame combustion and which is not
listed as an industrial furnace.

(81) Inground tank--A device meeting the definition of
tank in this section whereby a portion of the tank wall is situated to
any degree within the ground, thereby preventing visual inspection of
that external surface area of the tank that is in the ground.

(82) Injection well--A well into which fluids are injected.
(See also "underground injection.")

(83) Inner liner--A continuous layer of material placed in-
side a tank or container which protects the construction materials of the
tank or container from the contained waste or reagents used to treat the
waste.

(84) Installation inspector--A person who, by reason of his
knowledge of the physical sciences and the principles of engineering,
acquired by a professional education and related practical experience,
is qualified to supervise the installation of tank systems.

(85) International shipment--The transportation of haz-
ardous waste into or out of the jurisdiction of the United States.

(86) Lamp--Has the definition adopted under §335.261 of
this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(87) Land treatment facility--A facility or part of a facility
at which solid waste or hazardous waste is applied onto or incorporated
into the soil surface and that is not a corrective action management
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unit; such facilities are disposal facilities if the waste will remain after
closure.

(88) Landfill--A disposal facility or part of a facility where
solid waste or hazardous waste is placed in or on land and which is not
a pile, a land treatment facility, a surface impoundment, an injection
well, a salt dome formation, a salt bed formation, an underground mine,
a cave, or a corrective action management unit.

(89) Landfill cell--A discrete volume of a solid waste or
hazardous waste landfill which uses a liner to provide isolation of
wastes from adjacent cells or wastes. Examples of landfill cells are
trenches and pits.

(90) Leachate--Any liquid, including any suspended com-
ponents in the liquid, that has percolated through or drained from solid
waste or hazardous waste.

(91) Leak-detection system--A system capable of detecting
the failure of either the primary or secondary containment structure or
the presence of a release of solid waste or hazardous waste or accumu-
lated liquid in the secondary containment structure. Such a system must
employ operational controls (e.g., daily visual inspections for releases
into the secondary containment system of aboveground tanks) or con-
sist of an interstitial monitoring device designed to detect continuously
and automatically the failure of the primary or secondary containment
structure or the presence of a release of solid waste or hazardous waste
into the secondary containment structure.

(92) Licensed professional geoscientist--A geoscien-
tist who maintains a current license through the Texas Board of
Professional Geoscientists in accordance with its requirements for
professional practice.

(93) Liner--A continuous layer of natural or man-made ma-
terials, beneath or on the sides of a surface impoundment, landfill, or
landfill cell, which restricts the downward or lateral escape of solid
waste or hazardous waste, hazardous waste constituents, or leachate.

(94) Management or hazardous waste management--The
systematic control of the collection, source separation, storage, trans-
portation, processing, treatment, recovery, and disposal of solid waste
or hazardous waste.

(95) Manifest--The waste shipping document, United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Form 8700-22,
(including, if necessary, EPA Form 8700-22A), originated and signed
by the generator or offeror in accordance with the instructions in
§335.10 of this title and the applicable requirements of 40 CFR
Parts 262 - 265. [; that will accompany and be used for tracking the
transportation, disposal, treatment, storage, or recycling of shipments
of hazardous wastes or Class 1 industrial solid wastes: The form used
registered with the EPA-]

(96) Manifest tracking number--The alphanumeric identi-
fication number (i.e., a unique three-letter suffix preceded by nine nu-
merical digits), which is pre-printed in Item 4 of [en] the manifest by a
registered source.

(97) Military munitions--All ammunition products and
components produced or used by or for the Department of Defense
(DOD) or the United States Armed Services for national defense
and security, including military munitions under the control of the
DOD, the United States Coast Guard, the United States Department
of Energy (DOE), and National Guard personnel. The term "military
munitions":

(A) includes confined gaseous, liquid, and solid pro-
pellants, explosives, pyrotechnics, chemical and riot control agents,

smokes, and incendiaries used by DOD components, including bulk
explosives and chemical warfare agents, chemical munitions, rock-
ets, guided and ballistic missiles, bombs, warheads, mortar rounds,
artillery ammunition, small arms ammunition, grenades, mines, tor-
pedoes, depth charges, cluster munitions and dispensers, demolition
charges, and devices and components thereof; and

(B) includes non-nuclear components of nuclear de-
vices, managed under DOE's nuclear weapons program after all
required sanitization operations under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended, have been completed; but

(C) does not include wholly inert items, improvised ex-
plosive devices, and nuclear weapons, nuclear devices, and nuclear
components thereof.

(98) Miscellaneous unit--A hazardous waste management
unit where hazardous waste is stored, processed, or disposed of and
that is not a container, tank, surface impoundment, pile, land treatment
unit, landfill, incinerator, boiler, industrial furnace, underground injec-
tion well with appropriate technical standards under Chapter 331 of
this title (relating to Underground Injection Control), corrective action
management unit, containment building, staging pile, or unit eligible
for a research, development, and demonstration permit or under Chap-
ter 305, Subchapter K of this title (relating to Research, Development,
and Demonstration Permits).

(99) Movement--That solid waste or hazardous waste
transported to a facility in an individual vehicle.

(100) Municipal hazardous waste--A municipal solid
waste or mixture of municipal solid wastes which has been identified
or listed as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

(101) Municipal solid waste--Solid waste resulting from
or incidental to municipal, community, commercial, institutional, and
recreational activities; including garbage, rubbish, ashes, street clean-
ings, dead animals, abandoned automobiles, and all other solid waste
other than industrial waste.

(102) New tank system or new tank component--A tank
system or component that will be used for the storage or processing
of hazardous waste and for which installation has commenced after
July 14, 1986; except, however, for purposes of 40 Code of Fed-
eral Regulations (CFR) §264.193(g)(2) (incorporated by reference
at §335.152(a)(8) of this title (relating to Standards)) and 40 CFR
§265.193(g)(2) (incorporated by reference at §335.112(a)(9) of this
title (relating to Standards)), a new tank system is one for which
construction commences after July 14, 1986. (See also "existing tank
system.")

(103) Off-site--Property which cannot be characterized as
on-site.

(104) Onground tank--A device meeting the definition of
tank in this section and that is situated in such a way that the bottom
of the tank is on the same level as the adjacent surrounding surface so
that the external tank bottom cannot be visually inspected.

(105) On-Site--The same or geographically contiguous
property which may be divided by public or private rights-of-way, pro-
vided the entrance and exit between the properties is at a cross-roads
intersection, and access is by crossing, as opposed to going along, the
right-of-way. Noncontiguous properties owned by the same person
but connected by a right-of-way which he controls and to which the
public does not have access, is also considered on-site property.

(106) Open burning--The combustion of any material with-
out the following characteristics:
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(A) control of combustion air to maintain adequate tem-
perature for efficient combustion;

(B) containment of the combustion-reaction in an en-
closed device to provide sufficient residence time and mixing for com-
plete combustion; and

(C) control of emission of the gaseous combustion
products. (See also "incineration" and "thermal treatment.")

(107) Operator--The person responsible for the overall op-
eration of a facility.

(108) Owner--The person who owns a facility or part of a
facility.

(109) Partial closure--The closure of a hazardous waste
management unit in accordance with the applicable closure require-
ments of Subchapters E and F of this chapter (relating to Interim
Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment,
Storage, or Disposal Facilities; and Permitting Standards for Owners
and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, or Disposal
Facilities) at a facility that contains other active hazardous waste
management units. For example, partial closure may include the
closure of a tank (including its associated piping and underlying
containment systems), landfill cell, surface impoundment, waste pile,
or other hazardous waste management unit, while other units of the
same facility continue to operate.

(110) PCBs or polychlorinated biphenyl compounds--
Compounds subject to 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 761.

(111) Permit--A written permit issued by the commission
which, by its conditions, may authorize the permittee to construct, in-
stall, modify, or operate a specified municipal hazardous waste or in-
dustrial solid waste treatment, storage, or disposal facility in accor-
dance with specified limitations.

(112) Personnel or facility personnel--All persons who
work at, or oversee the operations of, a solid waste or hazardous waste
facility, and whose actions or failure to act may result in noncompli-
ance with the requirements of this chapter.

(113) Pesticide--Has the definition adopted under
§335.261 of this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(114) Petroleum substance--A crude oil or any refined or
unrefined fraction or derivative of crude oil which is a liquid at standard
conditions of temperature and pressure.

(A) Except as provided in subparagraph (C) of this
paragraph for the purposes of this chapter, a "petroleum substance"
shall be limited to a substance in or a combination or mixture of
substances within the following list (except for any listed substance
regulated as a hazardous waste under the federal Solid Waste Disposal
Act, Subtitle C (42 United States Code (USC), §§6921, ef seq.)) and
which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature (20 degrees
Centigrade) and pressure (1 atmosphere):

(i) Dbasic petroleum substances--i.e., crude oils,
crude oil fractions, petroleum feedstocks, and petroleum fractions;

(i) motor fuels--a petroleum substance which is typ-
ically used for the operation of internal combustion engines and/or mo-
tors (which includes, but is not limited to, stationary engines and en-
gines used in transportation vehicles and marine vessels);

(iii) aviation gasolines--i.e., Grade 80, Grade 100,
and Grade 100-LL;

(iv) aviation jet fuels--i.e., Jet A, Jet A-1, Jet B, JP-4,
JP-5, and JP-8;

(v) distillate fuel oils--i.e., Number 1-D, Number 1,
Number 2-D, and Number 2;

(vi) residual fuel oils--i.e., Number 4-D, Number
4-light, Number 4, Number 5-light, Number 5-heavy, and Number 6;

(vii)  gas-turbine fuel oils--i.e., Grade O-GT, Grade
1-GT, Grade 2-GT, Grade 3-GT, and Grade 4-GT,;

(viii) illuminating oils--i.e., kerosene, mineral seal
oil, long-time burning oils, 300 oil, and mineral colza oil;

(ix) lubricants--i.e., automotive and industrial lubri-
cants;

(x) building materials--i.e., liquid asphalt and dust-
laying oils;

(xi) insulating and waterproofing materials--i.e.,
transformer oils and cable oils; and

(xii) used oils--See definition for "used oil" in this
section.

(B) For the purposes of this chapter, a "petroleum sub-
stance" shall include solvents or a combination or mixture of solvents
(except for any listed substance regulated as a hazardous waste under
the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, Subtitle C (42 USC, §§6921, et
seq.)) and which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature (20 de-
grees Centigrade) and pressure (1 atmosphere) i.e., Stoddard solvent,
petroleum spirits, mineral spirits, petroleum ether, varnish makers' and
painters' naphthas, petroleum extender oils, and commercial hexane.

(C) The following materials are not considered petro-
leum substances:

(i) polymerized materials, i.e., plastics, synthetic
rubber, polystyrene, high and low density polyethylene;

(i) animal, microbial, and vegetable fats;
(iii)  food grade oils;

(iv) hardened asphalt and solid asphaltic materials--
i.e., roofing shingles, roofing felt, hot mix (and cold mix); and

(v) cosmetics.

(115) Pile--Any noncontainerized accumulation of solid,
nonflowing solid waste or hazardous waste that is used for process-
ing or storage, and that is not a corrective action management unit or a
containment building.

(116) Plasma arc incinerator--Any enclosed device using a
high intensity electrical discharge or arc as a source of heat followed
by an afterburner using controlled flame combustion and which is not
listed as an industrial furnace.

(117) Post-closure order--An order issued by the commis-
sion for post-closure care of interim status units, a corrective action
management unit unless authorized by permit, or alternative correc-
tive action requirements for contamination commingled from Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act and solid waste management units.

(118) Poultry--Chickens or ducks being raised or kept on
any premises in the state for profit.

(119) Poultry carcass--The carcass, or part of a carcass, of
poultry that died as a result of a cause other than intentional slaughter
for use for human consumption.

(120) Poultry facility--A facility that:

(A) 1is used to raise, grow, feed, or otherwise produce
poultry for commercial purposes; or
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(B) isacommercial poultry hatchery that is used to pro-
duce chicks or ducklings.

(121) Primary exporter--Any person who is required to
originate the manifest for a shipment of hazardous waste in accordance
with the regulations contained in 40 Code of Federal Regulations
Part 262, Subpart B, which are in effect as of November 8, 1986, or
equivalent state provision, which specifies a treatment, storage, or
disposal facility in a receiving country as the facility to which the
hazardous waste will be sent and any intermediary arranging for the
export.

(122) Processing--The extraction of materials, transfer,
volume reduction, conversion to energy, or other separation and prepa-
ration of solid waste for reuse or disposal, including the treatment or
neutralization of solid waste or hazardous waste, designed to change
the physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of any
solid waste or hazardous waste so as to neutralize such waste, or so
as to recover energy or material from the waste or so as to render
such waste nonhazardous, or less hazardous; safer to transport, store
or dispose of; or amenable for recovery, amenable for storage, or
reduced in volume. The transfer of solid waste for reuse or disposal as
used in this definition does not include the actions of a transporter in
conveying or transporting solid waste by truck, ship, pipeline, or other
means. Unless the executive director determines that regulation of
such activity is necessary to protect human health or the environment,
the definition of processing does not include activities relating to
those materials exempted by the administrator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the federal Solid
Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§6901 et seq., as amended.

(123) Publicly-owned treatment works (POTW)--Any de-
vice or system used in the treatment (including recycling and reclama-
tion) of municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature which
is owned by a state or municipality (as defined by the Clean Water Act,
§502(4)). The definition includes sewers, pipes, or other conveyances
only if they convey wastewater to a POTW providing treatment.

(124) Qualified groundwater scientist--A scientist or engi-
neer who has received a baccalaureate or post-graduate degree in the
natural sciences or engineering, and has sufficient training and expe-
rience in groundwater hydrology and related fields as may be demon-
strated by state registration, professional certifications, or completion
of accredited university courses that enable that individual to make
sound professional judgments regarding groundwater monitoring and
contaminant fate and transport.

(125) Receiving country--A foreign country to which
a hazardous waste is sent for the purpose of treatment, storage, or
disposal (except short-term storage incidental to transportation).

(126) Regional administrator--The regional administrator
for the United States Environmental Protection Agency region in which
the facility is located, or his designee.

(127) Remediation--The act of eliminating or reducing the
concentration of contaminants in contaminated media.

(128) Remediation waste--All solid and hazardous wastes,
and all media (including groundwater, surface water, soils, and sed-
iments) and debris, which contain listed hazardous wastes or which
themselves exhibit a hazardous waste characteristic, that are managed
for the purpose of implementing corrective action requirements under
§335.167 of this title (relating to Corrective Action for Solid Waste
Management Units) and Texas Water Code, §7.031 (Corrective Action
Relating to Hazardous Waste). For a given facility, remediation wastes
may originate only from within the facility boundary, but may include

waste managed in implementing corrective action for releases beyond
the facility boundary under §335.166(5) of this title (relating to Cor-
rective Action Program) or §335.167(c) of this title.

(129) Remove--To take waste, contaminated design or op-
erating system components, or contaminated media away from a waste
management unit, facility, or area to another location for treatment,
storage, or disposal.

(130) Replacement unit--A landfill, surface impoundment,
or waste pile unit:

(A) from which all or substantially all the waste is re-
moved; and

(B) thatis subsequently reused to treat, store, or dispose
of hazardous waste. "Replacement unit" does not apply to a unit from
which waste is removed during closure, if the subsequent reuse solely
involves the disposal of waste from that unit and other closing units or
corrective action areas at the facility, in accordance with an approved
closure plan or United States Environmental Protection Agency or state
approved corrective action.

(131) Representative sample--A sample of a universe or
whole (e.g., waste pile, lagoon, groundwater) which can be expected
to exhibit the average properties of the universe or whole.

(132) Run-off--Any rainwater, leachate, or other liquid that
drains over land from any part of a facility.

(133) Run-on--Any rainwater, leachate, or other liquid that
drains over land onto any part of a facility.

(134) Saturated zone or zone of saturation--That part of the
earth's crust in which all voids are filled with water.

(135) Shipment--Any action involving the conveyance of
municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid waste by any means oft-
site.

(136) Sludge dryer--Any enclosed thermal treatment de-
vice that is used to dehydrate sludge and that has a maximum total
thermal input, excluding the heating valve of the sludge itself, of 2,500
British thermal units per pound of sludge treated on a wet-weight basis.

(137) Small quantity generator--A generator who gener-
ates less than 1,000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month.

(138) Solid waste--

(A) Any garbage, refuse, sludge from a waste treatment
plant, water supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility, and
other discarded material, including solid, liquid, semisolid, or con-
tained gaseous material resulting from industrial, municipal, commer-
cial, mining, and agricultural operations, and from community and in-
stitutional activities, but does not include:

(i) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage,
or solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows, or industrial
discharges subject to regulation by permit issued in accordance with
Texas Water Code, Chapter 26 (an exclusion applicable only to the ac-
tual point source discharge that does not exclude industrial wastewaters
while they are being collected, stored, or processed before discharge,
nor does it exclude sludges that are generated by industrial wastewater
treatment);

(i) uncontaminated soil, dirt, rock, sand, and other
natural or man-made inert solid materials used to fill land if the object
of the fill is to make the land suitable for the construction of surface
improvements. The material serving as fill may also serve as a surface
improvement such as a structure foundation, a road, soil erosion con-
trol, and flood protection. Man-made materials exempted under this
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provision shall only be deposited at sites where the construction is in
progress or imminent such that rights to the land are secured and engi-
neering, architectural, or other necessary planning have been initiated.
Waste disposal shall be considered to have occurred on any land which
has been filled with man-made inert materials under this provision if
the land is sold, leased, or otherwise conveyed prior to the completion
of construction of the surface improvement. Under such conditions,
deed recordation shall be required. The deed recordation shall include
the information required under §335.5(a) of this title (relating to Deed
Recordation of Waste Disposal), prior to sale or other conveyance of
the property;

(iii) waste materials which result from activities as-
sociated with the exploration, development, or production of oil or gas
or geothermal resources, as those activities are defined in this section,
and any other substance or material regulated by the Railroad Commis-
sion of Texas in accordance with the Natural Resources Code, §91.101,
unless such waste, substance, or material results from activities as-
sociated with gasoline plants, natural gas, or natural gas liquids pro-
cessing plants, pressure maintenance plants, or repressurizing plants
and is a hazardous waste as defined by the administrator of the United
States Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the fed-
eral Solid Waste Disposal Act, 42 United States Code, §§6901 et seq.,
as amended; or

(iv) amaterial excluded by 40 Code of Federal Reg-
ulations (CFR) §§261.4(a)(1) - (22),261.39, and 261.40, as amended
through March 18, 2010 (75 FR 12989) [Fuly 28; 2006 (71 ER 42928)],
subject to the changes in this clause, or by variance granted under
§335.18 of'this title (relating to Variances from Classification as a Solid
Waste) and §335.19 of this title (relating to Standards and Criteria for
Variances from Classification as a Solid Waste). For the purposes of
the exclusions under 40 CFR §261.39 and §261.40, 40 CFR §261.41 is
adopted by reference as amended through July 28, 2006 (71 FR 42928).
For the purposes of the exclusion under 40 CFR §261.4(a)(16), 40 CFR
§261.38 is adopted by reference as amended through July 10, 2000 (65
FR 42292), and is revised as follows, with "subparagraph (A)(iv) under
the definition of 'solid Waste' in 30 TAC §335.1" meaning "subpara-
graph (A)(iv) under the definition of 'solid Waste' in §335.1 of this title
(relating to Definitions)":

(1) 1in the certification statement under 40 CFR
§261.38(c)(1)(1)(C)(4), the reference to "40 CFR §261.38" is changed
to "40 CFR §261.38, as revised under subparagraph (A)(iv) under the
definition of 'solid Waste' in 30 TAC §335.1," and the reference to "40
CFR §261.28(c)(10)" is changed to "40 CFR §261.38(c)(10)";

(1) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(2), the references to
"§260.10 of this chapter" are changed to "§335.1 of this title (relating
to Definitions)," and the reference to "parts 264 or 265 of this chapter"
is changed to "Chapter 335, Subchapter E of this title (relating to In-
terim Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treat-
ment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities) or Chapter 335, Subchapter F of
this title (relating to Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of
Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities)";

(IlI) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(3) - (5), the refer-
ences to "parts 264 and 265, or §262.34 of this chapter" are changed to
"Chapter 335, Subchapter E of this title (relating to Interim Standards
for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, or
Disposal Facilities) and Chapter 335, Subchapter F of this title (relat-
ing to Permitting Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous
Waste Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities), or §335.69 of this
title (relating to Accumulation Time)";

(IV) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(5), the reference to
"§261.6(c) of this chapter" is changed to "§335.24(e) and (f) of this title

(relating to Requirements for Recyclable Materials and Nonhazardous
Recyclable Materials)";

(V) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(7), the references
to "appropriate regulatory authority" and "regulatory authority" are
changed to "executive director";

(VD) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(8), the reference to
"§262.11 of this chapter" is changed to "§335.62 of this title (relating
to Hazardous Waste Determination and Waste Classification)";

(VIl) in 40 CFR §261.38(c)(9), the reference to
"§261.2(c)(4) of this chapter" is changed to §335.1(138)(D)(iv) " of
this title (relating to Definitions)"; and

(VIll) in40 CFR §261.38(c)(10), the reference to
"implementing authority" is changed to "executive director."

(B) A discarded material is any material which is:

(i) abandoned, as explained in subparagraph (C) of
this paragraph;

(ii) recycled, as explained in subparagraph (D) of
this paragraph;

(iii) considered inherently waste-like, as explained
in subparagraph (E) of this paragraph; or

(iv) amilitary munition identified as a solid waste in
40 CFR §266.202.

(C) Materials are solid wastes if they are abandoned by
being:

(i) disposed of;
(i) burned or incinerated; or

(iii) accumulated, stored, or processed (but not recy-
cled) before or in lieu of being abandoned by being disposed of, burned,
or incinerated.

(D) Except for materials described in subparagraph (H)
of this paragraph, materials are solid wastes if they are "recycled" or
accumulated, stored, or processed before recycling as specified in this
subparagraph. The chart referred to as Table 1 indicates only which
materials are considered to be solid wastes when they are recycled and
is not intended to supersede the definition of solid waste provided in
subparagraph (A) of this paragraph.

(i) Used in a manner constituting disposal. Materi-
als noted with an asterisk in Column 1 of Table 1 are solid wastes when
they are:

(I) applied to or placed on the land in a manner
that constitutes disposal; or

(1l) used to produce products that are applied to
or placed on the land or are otherwise contained in products that are
applied to or placed on the land (in which cases the product itself re-
mains a solid waste). However, commercial chemical products listed
in 40 CFR §261.33 are not solid wastes if they are applied to the land
and that is their ordinary manner of use.

(i) Burning for energy recovery. Materials noted
with an asterisk in Column 2 of Table 1 are solid wastes when they
are:

(1) burned to recover energy; or

(II) used to produce a fuel or are otherwise con-
tained in fuels (in which cases the fuel itself remains a solid waste).
However, commercial chemical products, which are listed in 40 CFR
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§261.33, not listed in §261.33, but that exhibit one or more of the haz-
ardous waste characteristics, or will be considered nonhazardous waste
if disposed, are not solid wastes if they are fuels themselves and burned
for energy recovery.

(iii) Reclaimed. Materials noted with an asterisk in
Column 3 of Table 1 are solid wastes when reclaimed (except as pro-
vided under 40 CFR §261.4(a)(17)). Materials without an asterisk in
Column 3 of Table 1 are not solid wastes when reclaimed.

(iv) Accumulated speculatively. Materials noted
with an asterisk in Column 4 of Table 1 are solid wastes when accu-
mulated speculatively.

Figure: 30 TAC §335.1(138)(D)(iv)

(E) Materials that are identified by the administrator of
the EPA as inherently waste-like materials under 40 CFR §261.2(d) are
solid wastes when they are recycled in any manner.

(F) Materials are not solid wastes when they can be
shown to be recycled by being:

(i) used or reused as ingredients in an industrial
process to make a product, provided the materials are not being
reclaimed;

(ii) used or reused as effective substitutes for com-
mercial products;

(iii)  returned to the original process from which they
were generated, without first being reclaimed or land disposed. The
material must be returned as a substitute for feedstock materials. In
cases where the original process to which the material is returned is a
secondary process, the materials must be managed such that there is no
placement on the land. In cases where the materials are generated and
reclaimed within the primary mineral processing industry, the condi-
tions of the exclusion found at 40 CFR §261.4(a)(17) apply rather than
this provision; or

(iv) secondary materials that are reclaimed and re-
turned to the original process or processes in which they were gener-
ated where they are reused in the production process provided:

(1) only tank storage is involved, and the entire
process through completion of reclamation is closed by being en-
tirely connected with pipes or other comparable enclosed means of
conveyance;

(II) reclamation does not involve controlled
flame combustion (such as occurs in boilers, industrial furnaces, or
incinerators);

(I1l) the secondary materials are never accumu-
lated in such tanks for over 12 months without being reclaimed; and

(1V)  thereclaimed material is not used to produce
a fuel, or used to produce products that are used in a manner constitut-
ing disposal.

(G) Except for materials described in subparagraph (H)
of this paragraph, the following materials are solid wastes, even if the
recycling involves use, reuse, or return to the original process, as de-
scribed in subparagraph (F) of this paragraph:

(i) materials used in a manner constituting disposal,
or used to produce products that are applied to the land;

(i) materials burned for energy recovery, used to
produce a fuel, or contained in fuels;

(iii) materials accumulated speculatively; or

(iv) materials deemed to be inherently waste-like by
the administrator of the EPA, as described in 40 CFR §261.2(d)(1) and

2.

(H) With the exception of contaminated soils which are
being relocated for use under §350.36 of this title (relating to Reloca-
tion of Soils Containing Chemicals of Concern for Reuse Purposes) and
other contaminated media, materials that will otherwise be identified
as nonhazardous solid wastes if disposed of are not considered solid
wastes when recycled by being applied to the land or used as ingredi-
ents in products that are applied to the land, provided these materials
can be shown to meet all of the following criteria:

(i) alegitimate market exists for the recycling mate-
rial as well as its products;

(ii) the recycling material is managed and protected
from loss as will be raw materials or ingredients or products;

(iii) the quality of the product is not degraded by
substitution of raw material/product with the recycling material,

(iv) the use of the recycling material is an ordinary
use and it meets or exceeds the specifications of the product it is replac-
ing without treatment or reclamation, or if the recycling material is not
replacing a product, the recycling material is a legitimate ingredient in
a production process and meets or exceeds raw material specifications
without treatment or reclamation;

(v) the recycling material is not burned for energy
recovery, used to produce a fuel, or contained in a fuel;

(vi) the recycling material can be used as a product
itself or to produce products as it is generated without treatment or
reclamation;

(vii) the recycling material must not present an in-
creased risk to human health, the environment, or waters in the state
when applied to the land or used in products which are applied to the
land and the material, as generated:

(I) 1is a Class 3 waste under Subchapter R of this
chapter (relating to Waste Classification), except for arsenic, cadmium,
chromium, lead, mercury, nickel, selenium, and total dissolved solids;
and

(1)  for the metals listed in subclause (I) of this
clause:
(-a-) isaClass 2 or Class 3 waste under Sub-
chapter R of this chapter; and
(-b-) does not exceed a concentration limit
under §312.43(b)(3), Table 3 of this title (relating to Metal Limits);
and

(viii)  with the exception of the requirements under
§335.17(a)(8) of this title (relating to Special Definitions for Recyclable
Materials and Nonhazardous Recyclable Materials):

(1) atleast 75% (by weight or volume) of the an-
nual production of the recycling material must be recycled or trans-
ferred to a different site and recycled on an annual basis; and

(1) if the recycling material is placed in protec-
tive storage, such as a silo or other protective enclosure, at least 75%
(by weight or volume) of the annual production of the recycling mate-
rial must be recycled or transferred to a different site and recycled on a
biennial basis.

(I) Respondents in actions to enforce the industrial solid
waste regulations who raise a claim that a certain material is not a solid
waste, or is conditionally exempt from regulation, must demonstrate
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that there is a known market or disposition for the material, and that
they meet the terms of the exclusion or exemption. In doing so, they
must provide appropriate documentation (such as contracts showing
that a second person uses the material as an ingredient in a production
process) to demonstrate that the material is not a waste, or is exempt
from regulation. In addition, owners or operators of facilities claiming
that they actually are recycling materials must show that they have the
necessary equipment to do so and that the recycling activity is legiti-
mate and beneficial.

(J) Materials that are reclaimed from solid wastes and
that are used beneficially are not solid wastes and hence are not haz-
ardous wastes under 40 CFR §261.3(c) unless the reclaimed material is
burned for energy recovery or used in a manner constituting disposal.

(K) Other portions of this chapter that relate to solid
wastes that are recycled include §335.6 of this title (relating to Noti-
fication Requirements), §§335.17 - 335.19 of this title, §335.24 of this
title (relating to Requirements for Recyclable Materials and Nonhaz-
ardous Recyclable Materials), and Subchapter H of this chapter (relat-
ing to Standards for the Management of Specific Wastes and Specific
Types of Facilities).

(139) Sorbent--A material that is used to soak up free lig-
uids by either adsorption or absorption, or both. Sorb means to either
adsorb or absorb, or both.

(140) Spill--The accidental spilling, leaking, pumping,
emitting, emptying, or dumping of solid waste or hazardous wastes
or materials which, when spilled, become solid waste or hazardous
wastes into or on any land or water.

(141) Staging pile--An accumulation of solid, non-flowing
remediation waste, as defined in this section, that is not a containment
building and that is used only during remedial operations for temporary
storage at a facility. Staging piles must be designated by the executive
director according to the requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regula-
tions §264.554, as adopted by reference under §335.152(a) of this title
(relating to Standards).

(142) Standard permit [Permit]--A Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) permit authorizing management of haz-
ardous waste issued under Chapter 305, Subchapter R of this title (re-
lating to Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Standard Permits
for Storage and Treatment Units) and Subchapter U of this chapter (re-
lating to Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Fa-
cilities Operating Under a Standard Permit). The standard permit may
have two parts, a uniform portion issued in all cases and a supplemental
portion issued at the executive director's discretion. [A written permit

ttoe o install. modify, o a fed cinal
hazardous waste non-thermal treatment and/or storage facility in ac-
cordance with speeified limitations:|

(143) Storage--The holding of solid waste for a temporary
period, at the end of which the waste is processed, disposed of, recy-
cled, or stored elsewhere.

(144) Sump--Any pit or reservoir that meets the definition
of tank in this section and those troughs/trenches connected to it that
serve to collect solid waste or hazardous waste for transport to solid
waste or hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities; ex-
cept that as used in the landfill, surface impoundment, and waste pile
rules, "sump" means any lined pit or reservoir that serves to collect
liquids drained from a leachate collection and removal system or leak
detection system for subsequent removal from the system.

(145) Surface impoundment or impoundment--A facility
or part of a facility which is a natural topographic depression, man-

made excavation, or diked area formed primarily of earthen materials
(although it may be lined with man-made materials), which is designed
to hold an accumulation of liquid wastes or wastes containing free liq-
uids, and which is not an injection well or a corrective action manage-
ment unit. Examples of surface impoundments are holding, storage,
settling, and aeration pits, ponds, and lagoons.

(146) Tank--A stationary device, designed to contain an
accumulation of solid waste which is constructed primarily of non-
earthen materials (e.g., wood, concrete, steel, plastic) which provide
structural support.

(147) Tank system--A solid waste or hazardous waste stor-
age or processing tank and its associated ancillary equipment and con-
tainment system.

(148) TEQ--Toxicity equivalence, the international
method of relating the toxicity of various dioxin/furan congeners to
the toxicity of 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin.

(149) Thermal processing--The processing of solid waste
or hazardous waste in a device which uses elevated temperatures as the
primary means to change the chemical, physical, or biological charac-
ter or composition of the solid waste or hazardous waste. Examples of
thermal processing are incineration, molten salt, pyrolysis, calcination,
wet air oxidation, and microwave discharge. (See also "incinerator"
and "open burning.")

(150) Thermostat--Has the definition adopted under
§335.261 of this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(151) Totally enclosed treatment facility--A facility for the
processing of hazardous waste which is directly connected to an in-
dustrial production process and which is constructed and operated in a
manner which prevents the release of any hazardous waste or any con-
stituent thereof into the environment during processing. An example
is a pipe in which acid waste is neutralized.

(152) Transfer facility--Any transportation-related facility
including loading docks, parking areas, storage areas, and other similar
areas where shipments of hazardous or industrial solid waste are held
during the normal course of transportation.

(153) Transit country--Any foreign country, other than a
receiving country, through which a hazardous waste is transported.

(154) Transport vehicle--A motor vehicle or rail car used
for the transportation of cargo by any mode. Each cargo-carrying body
(trailer, railroad freight car, etc.) is a separate transport vehicle. Vessel
includes every description of watercraft, used or capable of being used
as a means of transportation on the water.

(155) Transporter--Any person who conveys or transports
municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid waste by truck, ship,
pipeline, or other means.

(156) Treatability study--A study in which a hazardous or
industrial solid waste is subjected to a treatment process to determine:

(A) whether the waste is amenable to the treatment
process;

(B) what pretreatment (if any) is required;

(C) the optimal process conditions needed to achieve
the desired treatment;

(D) the efficiency of a treatment process for a specific
waste or wastes; or

(E) the characteristics and volumes of residuals from a
particular treatment process. Also included in this definition for the
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purpose of 40 Code of Federal Regulations §261.4(e) and (f) (§§335.2,
335.69, and 335.78 of this title (relating to Permit Required; Accumu-
lation Time; and Special Requirements for Hazardous Waste Generated
by Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators)) exemptions are
liner compatibility, corrosion, and other material compatibility studies
and toxicological and health effects studies. A treatability study is nota
means to commercially treat or dispose of hazardous or industrial solid
waste.

(157) Treatment--To apply a physical, biological, or chem-
ical process(es) to wastes and contaminated media which significantly
reduces the toxicity, volume, or mobility of contaminants and which,
depending on the process(es) used, achieves varying degrees of long-
term effectiveness.

(158) Treatment zone--A soil area of the unsaturated zone
of a land treatment unit within which hazardous constituents are de-
graded, transferred, or immobilized.

(159) Underground injection--The subsurface emplace-
ment of fluids through a bored, drilled, or driven well; or through a
dug well, where the depth of the dug well is greater than the largest
surface dimension. (See also "injection well.")

(160) Underground tank--A device meeting the definition
of tank in this section whose entire surface area is totally below the
surface of and covered by the ground.

(161) Unfit-for-use tank system--A tank system that has
been determined through an integrity assessment or other inspection to
be no longer capable of storing or processing solid waste or hazardous
waste without posing a threat of release of solid waste or hazardous
waste to the environment.

(162) Universal waste--Any of the hazardous wastes de-
fined as universal waste under §335.261(b)(13)(F) of this title (relating
to Universal Waste Rule) that are managed under the universal waste
requirements of Subchapter H, Division 5 of this chapter (relating to
Universal Waste Rule).

(163) Universal waste handler--Has the definition adopted
under §335.261 of this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(164) Universal waste transporter--Has the definition
adopted under §335.261 of this title (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(165) Unsaturated zone or zone of aeration--The zone be-
tween the land surface and the water table.

(166) Uppermost aquifer--The geologic formation nearest
the natural ground surface that is an aquifer, as well as lower aquifers
that are hydraulically interconnected within the facility's property
boundary.

(167) Used oil--Any oil that has been refined from crude
oil, or any synthetic oil, that has been used, and, as a result of such
use, is contaminated by physical or chemical impurities. Used oil fuel
includes any fuel produced from used oil by processing, blending, or
other treatment. Rules applicable to nonhazardous used oil, oil char-
acteristically hazardous from use versus mixing, conditionally exempt
small quantity generator hazardous used oil, and household used oil af-
ter collection that will be recycled are found in Chapter 324 of this title
(relating to Used Oil Standards) and 40 Code of Federal Regulations
Part 279 (Standards for Management of Used Oil).

(168) Wastewater treatment unit--A device which:

(A) is part of a wastewater treatment facility subject to
regulation under either the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean
Water Act), 33 United States Code, §§466 et seq., §402 or §307(b), as
amended;

(B) receives and processes or stores an influent waste-
water which is a hazardous or industrial solid waste, or generates and
accumulates a wastewater treatment sludge which is a hazardous or
industrial solid waste, or processes or stores a wastewater treatment
sludge which is a hazardous or industrial solid waste; and

(C) meets the definition of tank or tank system as de-
fined in this section.

(169) Water (bulk shipment)--The bulk transportation of
municipal hazardous waste or Class 1 industrial solid waste which is
loaded or carried on board a vessel without containers or labels.

(170) Well--Any shaft or pit dug or bored into the earth,
generally of a cylindrical form, and often walled with bricks or tubing
to prevent the earth from caving in.

(171)  Zone of engineering control--An area under the con-
trol of the owner/operator that, upon detection of a solid waste or haz-
ardous waste release, can be readily cleaned up prior to the release of
solid waste or hazardous waste or hazardous constituents to groundwa-
ter or surface water.

§335.2. Permit Required.

(a) Except with regard to storage, processing, or disposal to
which subsections (c) - (h) of this section apply, and as provided in
§335.45(b) of this title (relating to Effect on Existing Facilities), and
in accordance with the requirements of §335.24 of this title (relating
to Requirements for Recyclable Materials and Nonhazardous Recy-
clable Materials) and §335.25 of this title (relating to Handling, Stor-
ing, Processing, Transporting, and Disposing of Poultry Carcasses),
and as provided in §332.4 of this title (relating to General Require-
ments), no person may cause, suffer, allow, or permit any activity of
storage, processing, or disposal of any industrial solid waste or mu-
nicipal hazardous waste unless such activity is authorized by a permit,
amended permit, or other authorization from the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (commission) or its predecessor agencies, the
Department of State Health Services (DSHS), or other valid authoriza-
tion from a Texas state agency. No person may commence physical
construction of a new hazardous waste management facility without
first having submitted Part A and Part B of the permit application and
received a finally effective permit.

(b) In accordance with the requirements of subsection (a) of
this section, no generator, transporter, owner or operator of a facility,
or any other person may cause, suffer, allow, or permit its wastes to be
stored, processed, or disposed of at an unauthorized facility or in viola-
tion of a permit. In the event this requirement is violated, the executive
director will seek recourse against not only the person who stored, pro-
cessed, or disposed of the waste, but also against the generator, trans-
porter, owner or operator, or other person who caused, suffered, al-
lowed, or permitted its waste to be stored, processed, or disposed.

(c) Any owner or operator of a solid waste management facil-
ity that is in existence on the effective date of a statutory or regulatory
change that subjects the owner or operator to a requirement to obtain
a hazardous waste permit who has filed a hazardous waste permit ap-
plication with the commission in accordance with the rules and regula-
tions of the commission, may continue the storage, processing, or dis-
posal of hazardous waste until such time as the commission approves
or denies the application, or, if the owner or operator becomes subject
to a requirement to obtain a hazardous waste permit after November 8,
1984, except as provided by the United States Environmental Protec-
tion Agency (EPA) or commission rules relative to termination of in-
terim status. If a solid waste facility which has become a commercial
hazardous waste management facility as a result of the federal toxic-
ity characteristic rule effective September 25, 1990, and is required to
obtain a hazardous waste permit, such facility that qualifies for interim
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status is limited to those activities that qualify it for interim status until
the facility obtains the hazardous waste permit. Owners or operators of
municipal hazardous waste facilities that satisfied this requirement by
filing an application on or before November 19, 1980, with the EPA are
not required to submit a separate application with the DSHS. Applica-
tions filed under this section shall meet the requirements of §335.44 of
this title (relating to Application for Existing On-Site Facilities). Own-
ers and operators of solid waste management facilities that are in exis-
tence on the effective date of statutory or regulatory amendments un-
der the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act (Vernon's Supplement 1991),
Texas Civil Statutes, Article 4477-7, or the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 United States Code, §§6901 et seq., that ren-
der the facilities subject to the requirement to obtain a hazardous waste
permit, may continue to operate if Part A of their permit application is
submitted no later than six months after the date of publication of reg-
ulations by the EPA under RCRA, which first require them to comply
with the standards in Subchapter E of this chapter (relating to Interim
Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment,
Storage, or Disposal Facilities), or Subchapter H of this chapter (relat-
ing to Standards for the Management of Specific Wastes and Specific
Types of Facilities); or 30 days after the date they first become subject
to the standards in these subchapters, whichever first occur; or for gen-
erators who generate greater than 100 kilograms but less than 1,000
kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month and who process,
store, or dispose of these wastes on-site, a Part A permit application
shall be submitted to the EPA by March 24, 1987, as required by 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §270.10(e)(1)(iii). This subsec-
tion shall not apply to a facility if it has been previously denied a haz-
ardous waste permit or if authority to operate the facility has been pre-
viously terminated. Applications filed under this section shall meet the
requirements of §335.44 of this title. For purposes of this subsection,
a solid waste management facility is in existence if the owner or oper-
ator has obtained all necessary federal, state, and local preconstruction
approvals or permits, as required by applicable federal, state, and local
hazardous waste control statutes, regulations, or ordinances; and either:

(1) acontinuous physical, on-site construction program has
begun; or

(2) the owner or operator has entered into contractual obli-
gations, which cannot be cancelled or modified without substantial loss,
for construction of the facility to be completed within a reasonable time.

(d) No permit shall be required for:

(1) the processing or disposal of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is processed or disposed on property owned
or otherwise effectively controlled by the owner or operator of the in-
dustrial plant, manufacturing plant, mining operation, or agricultural
operation from which the waste results or is produced; the property is
within 50 miles of the plant or operation; and the waste is not com-
mingled with waste from any other source or sources (An industrial
plant, manufacturing plant, mining operation, or agricultural operation
owned by one person shall not be considered an "other source" with
respect to other plants and operations owned by the same person.);

(2) the storage of nonhazardous industrial solid waste, if
the waste is stored on property owned or otherwise effectively con-
trolled by the owner or operator of the industrial plant, manufacturing
plant, mining operation, or agricultural operation from which the waste
results or is produced, and the waste is not commingled with waste from
any other source or sources (An industrial plant, manufacturing plant,
mining operation, or agricultural operation owned by one person shall
not be considered an "other source" with respect to other plants and
operations owned by the same person.);

(3) the storage or processing of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is processed in an elementary neutralization
unit;

(4) the collection, storage, or processing of nonhazardous
industrial solid waste, if the waste is collected, stored, or processed as
part of a treatability study;

(5) the storage of nonhazardous industrial solid waste, if
the waste is stored in a transfer facility in containers for a period of
ten days or less, unless the executive director determines that a permit
should be required in order to protect human health and the environ-
ment;

(6) the storage or processing of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is processed in a publicly owned treatment
works with discharges subject to regulation under the Clean Waste Act,
§402, as amended through October 4, 1996, if the owner or operator has
a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit and com-
plies with the conditions of the permit;

(7) the storage or processing of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is stored or processed in a wastewater unit and
is discharged in accordance with a Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimina-
tion System authorization issued under Texas Water Code, Chapter 26;

(8) the storage or processing of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is stored or processed in a wastewater treat-
ment unit that discharges to a publicly owned treatment works and the
units are located at a noncommercial solid waste management facility;
or

(9) the storage or processing of nonhazardous industrial
solid waste, if the waste is processed in a wastewater treatment unit
that discharges to a publicly owned treatment works liquid wastes that
are incidental to the handling, processing, storage, or disposal of solid
wastes at municipal solid waste facilities or commercial industrial solid
waste landfill facilities.

(e) No permit shall be required for the on-site storage of haz-
ardous waste by a person who is a conditionally exempt small quantity
generator as described in §335.78 of this title (relating to Special Re-
quirements for Hazardous Waste Generated by Conditionally Exempt
Small Quantity Generators).

(f) No permit under this chapter shall be required for the stor-
age, processing, or disposal of hazardous waste by a person described
in §335.41(b) - (d) of this title (relating to Purpose, Scope, and Appli-
cability) or for the storage of hazardous waste under the provisions of
40 CFR §261.4(c) and (d).

(g) No permit under this chapter shall be required for the stor-
age, processing, or disposal of hazardous industrial waste or municipal
hazardous waste that is generated or collected for the purpose of con-
ducting treatability studies. Such samples are subject to the require-
ments in 40 CFR §261.4(e) and (f), as amended and adopted in the
CFR through April 4, 2006 [Eebruary 18; 1994, as published in the

Federal Register (71 FR 16862) [(59 ER 8362)], which are adopted by
reference.

(h) A person may obtain authorization from the executive di-
rector for the storage, processing, or disposal of nonhazardous indus-
trial solid waste in an interim status landfill that has qualified for interim
status in accordance with 40 CFR Part 270, Subpart G, and that has
complied with the standards in Subchapter E of this chapter, by com-
plying with the notification and information requirements in §335.6 of
this title (relating to Notification Requirements). The executive direc-
tor may approve or deny the request for authorization or grant the re-
quest for authorization subject to conditions, which may include, with-
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out limitation, public notice and technical requirements. A request for
authorization for the disposal of nonhazardous industrial solid waste
under this subsection shall not be approved unless the executive direc-
tor determines that the subject facility is suitable for disposal of such
waste at the facility as requested. At a minimum, a determination of
suitability by the executive director must include approval by the ex-
ecutive director of construction of a hazardous waste landfill meeting
the design requirements of 40 CFR §265.301(a). In accordance with
§335.6 of this title, such person shall not engage in the requested ac-
tivities if denied by the executive director or unless 90 days' notice has
been provided and the executive director approves the request except
where express executive director approval has been obtained prior to
the expiration of the 90 days. Authorization may not be obtained under
this subsection for:

(1) nonhazardous industrial solid waste, the storage, pro-
cessing, or disposal of which is expressly prohibited under an existing
permit or site development plan applicable to the facility or a portion
of the facility;

(2) polychlorinated biphenyl compounds wastes subject to
regulation by 40 CFR Part 761;

(3) explosives and shock-sensitive materials;
(4) pyrophorics;

(5) infectious materials;

(6) liquid organic peroxides;

(7) radioactive or nuclear waste materials, receipt of which
will require a license from the DSHS [TDH] or the commission or any
other successor agency; and

(8) friable asbestos waste unless authorization is obtained
in compliance with the procedures established under §330.171(c)(3)(B)
- (E) of this title (relating to Disposal of Special Wastes). Authoriza-
tions obtained under this subsection shall be effective during the pen-
dency of the interim status and shall cease upon the termination of in-
terim status, final administrative disposition of the subject permit appli-
cation, failure of the facility to operate the facility in compliance with
the standards set forth in Subchapter E of this chapter, or as otherwise
provided by law.

(i) Owners or operators of hazardous waste management units
must have permits during the active life (including the closure period)
of the unit. Owners or operators of surface impoundments, landfills,
land treatment units, and waste pile units that received wastes after
July 26, 1982, or that certified closure (according to 40 CFR §265.115)
after January 26, 1983, must have post-closure permits, unless they
demonstrate closure by removal or decontamination as provided under
40 CFR §270.1(c)(5) and (6), or obtain an order in lieu of a post-closure
permit, as provided in subsection (m) of this section. If a post-closure
permit is required, the permit must address applicable provisions of 40
CFR Part 264, and Subchapter F of this chapter (relating to Permit-
ting Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treat-
ment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities) provisions concerning ground-
water monitoring, unsaturated zone monitoring, corrective action, and
post-closure care requirements. The denial of a permit for the active
life of a hazardous waste management facility or unit does not affect
the requirement to obtain a post-closure permit under this section.

(G) Upon receipt of the federal Hazardous and Solid Waste
Act (HSWA) authorization for the commission's Hazardous Waste
Program, the commission shall be authorized to enforce the provisions
that the EPA imposed in hazardous waste permits that were issued
before the HSWA authorization was granted.

(k) Any person who intends to conduct an activity under sub-
section (d) of this section shall comply with the notification require-
ments of §335.6 of this title.

(1) No permit shall be required for the management of univer-
sal wastes by universal waste handlers or universal waste transporters,
in accordance with the definitions and requirements of Subchapter H,
Division 5 of this chapter (relating to Universal Waste Rule).

(m) At the discretion of the commission, an owner or oper-
ator may obtain a post-closure order in lieu of a post-closure permit
for interim status units, a corrective action management unit unless au-
thorized by a permit, or alternative corrective action requirements for
contamination commingled from RCRA and solid waste management
units. The post-closure order must address the facility-wide correc-
tive action requirements of §335.167 of this title (relating to Corrective
Action for Solid Waste Management Units) and groundwater monitor-
ing requirements of §335.156 of this title (relating to Applicability of
Groundwater Monitoring and Response).

(n) Except as provided in subsection (d)(9) of this section,
owners or operators of commercial industrial solid waste facilities
that receive industrial solid waste for discharge to a publicly owned
treatment works are required to obtain a permit under this subchapter.
By June 1, 2006, owners or operators of existing commercial industrial
solid waste facilities that receive industrial solid waste for discharge
to a publicly owned treatment works must have a permit issued under
this subchapter or obtain a general permit issued under Chapter 205
of this title (relating to General Permits for Waste Discharges) to
continue operating. A general permit issued under Chapter 205 of
this title will authorize operations until a final decision is made on
the application for an individual permit or 15 months, whichever is
earlier. The general permit shall authorize operations for a maximum
period of 15 months except that authorization may be extended on
an individual basis in one-year increments at the discretion of the
executive director. Should an application for a general permit issued
under Chapter 205 of this title be submitted, the applicant shall also
submit to the commission, by June 1, 2006, the appropriate informa-
tion to demonstrate compliance with financial assurance requirements
for closure of industrial solid waste facilities in accordance with
Chapter 37, Subchapter P of this title (relating to Financial Assurance
for Hazardous and Nonhazardous Industrial Solid Waste Facilities).
Owners or operators of commercial industrial solid waste facilities
that receive industrial solid waste for discharge to a publicly owned
treatment works operating under a general permit issued under Chapter
205 of this title shall submit an application for a permit issued under
this subchapter prior to September 1, 2006.

(o) Treatment, storage, and disposal facilities that are other-
wise subject to permitting under RCRA and that meet the criteria in
paragraphs (1) or paragraph (2) of this subsection, may be eligible for
a standard permit under Subchapter U of this chapter (relating to Stan-
dards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Facilities Oper-
ating Under a Standard Permit) if they satisfy one of the two following
criteria:

(1) facility generates hazardous waste and then non-ther-
mally treats and/or stores hazardous waste on-site; or

(2) facility receives hazardous waste generated off-site by
a generator under the same ownership as the receiving facility.

§$335.10.  Shipping and Reporting Procedures Applicable to Genera-
tors of Hazardous Waste or Class 1 Waste and Primary Exporters of
Hazardous Waste.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsection
[€g) and (h) of this seetion], no person who generates, transports, pro-
cesses, stores, or disposes [generator] of hazardous [er Class 1] waste
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[consigned to an off-sitc solid waste treatment, storage, or disposal
facility within the United States or a primary of hazardous
waste consigned to a foreign country] shall cause, suffer, allow, or
permit the shipment of hazardous waste [er Class 1 waste] unless he
complies with the requirements of paragraph (1) of this subsection,
and the manifest requirements in 40 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) §§262.20 - 262.23, 262.27, 262.42, 262.54, 262.55, and 262.60
and the Appendix to 40 CFR Part 262, as these sections are amended
through March 18, 2010 (75 FR 12989).[:]

(1) In addition, generators, owners or operators of treat-

regulate that particular waste as hazardous; the generator must assure
that the designated facility agrees to sign and return the manifest to the
generator; and that any out-of-state transporter signs and forwards the
manifest to the designated facility.]

(b) No manifest and no marking in accordance with
§335.67(b) of this title (relating to Marking) is required for hazardous
waste transported on a public or private right-of-way within or along
the border of contiguous property under the control of the same person,
even if such contiguous property is divided by a public or private
right-of-way. However, in the event of a hazardous waste discharge

ment, storage, or disposal facilities, and primary exporters shall include

on a public or private right-of-way, the generator or transporter must

a Texas waste code for each hazardous waste itemized on the manifest.

comply with the requirements of §335.93 of this title (relating to

[for generators of industrial nonhazardous Class 1 waste in a quantity
greater than 100 kilegrams per month and/er generators of hazardeus
waste shipping hazardous waste which is part of a total quantity of haz-
ardous waste generated in quantities greater than 100 kilograms in a
calendar moenth; or quantities of acute hazardous waste in exeess of
quantities specified in §335-78(e) of this title (relating to Speeial Re-
Small Quantity Generators); who consign that waste to an off-site solid
waste treatment; storage; or dispesal facility in Texas; a standard (na-
Eorm 8700-22); under both RCRA and Department of Transportation
(DO statutory autherities; is prepared:]

(2) No manifest is required for a hazardous waste gener-
ated by a [the generator is either an industrial] generator that generates
less than [100 kilograms of nonhazardous Class 1 waste per month and
less than] the quantity limits of hazardous waste specified in §335.78 of
this title or a municipal generator that generates less than the quantity
limit of hazardous waste specified in §335.78 of this title(relating to
Special Requirements for Hazardous Waste Generated by Condition-
ally Exempt Small Quantity Generators).[;]

(3) For the purposes of the federal hazardous waste mani-

Hazardous Waste Discharges). [Generators may obtain the manifest
from any source that is registered with the EPA as a supplier of
manifests: A registrant may not print; or have printed; the manifest
for use or distribution unless it has received approval from the EPA
director of the Office of Solid Waste to do so under 40 Code of Federal

Regulations (CER) §262:21-]

(c) Except as provided in subsections (d) and (e) of this sec-
tion, persons who generate, transport, process, store, or dispose of
Class 1 waste shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit the shipment
of Class 1 waste unless the person complies with the manifest require-
ments listed in subsection (a) of this section except for 40 CFR §262.54
and §262.55 with the following changes: [All manifests for hazardeus
wastes must be prepared aceording to the instructions found in the Ap-
pendix to 40 CFR Part 262, and must also contain the Texas Waste
Code for each waste. Manifests for Class 1 wastes must be prepared
aceording to the instructions found in the Appendix to 40 CER Part
262 (pre-printed on the back of the Uniform Hazardous Waste Mani-
itemizing Class 1 waste; the TCEQ solid waste registration numbers
will be used when EPA identification numbers are not required:|

(1)  When Class 1 waste is itemized on the manifest, use the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality solid waste registration

fest requirements incorporated by reference the term, "regional admin-

(SWR) number in place of the EPA identification number and the Texas

istrator" is changed to the "executive director” of the Texas Commis-

waste code in place of the EPA waste code;

sion on Environmental Quality or to the commission, consistent with
the organization of the commission as set out in Texas Water Code,
Chapter 5, Subchapter B. [for generators of hazardeus waste or Class
1 waste generated in Texas for consignment to another state the stan-
is prepared; unless the generator is identified in paragraph (2) of this
seetion;]

(4) For the purposes of the federal hazardous waste man-

(2) When both hazardous and Class 1 waste are itemized
on the same manifest, use EPA identification numbers to identify the
generator, transporter, and receiver;

(3) Use Texas waste codes for each waste itemized on the
manifest;

(4) The term, "regional administrator" is changed to the
"executive director" of the Texas Commission on Environmental Qual-

ifest requirements incorporated by reference, reference to the United

ity or to the commission, consistent with the organization of the com-

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is changed to the Texas

mission as set out in Texas Water Code, Chapter 5, Subchapter B; and

Commission on Environmental Quality. [for a primary experter of
hazardous waste for consignment to a foreign country the hazardeous
waste is accompanied by a standard (nationally uniform) RCRA man-
ifest form {EPA Form 8700-22); and)]

[(5) a generator designates on the manifest one facility
which is autherized to receive the waste deseribed on the manifest: A
to receive the waste in the event an emergency prevents delivery of the
waste to the primary designated facility. An alternate faeility shall be
identified on the manifest in the item marked "Alternate Faeility" if
the transperter is unable to deliver the waste to the designated facility
or the alternate facility, the generator must either designate another
faeility or instruet the transporter to return the wastes}

{(6) for shipments of hazardous waste to a designated fa-
eility in an authorized state which has net yet obtained authorization to

(5) Reference to the EPA is changed to the Texas Commis-
sion on Environmental Quality.

(d) No manifest is required for the shipment of Class 1 waste
where the generator is an industrial generator that generates less than
the quantity limits of Class 1 waste specified in §335.78 of this title or
is a municipal generator that generates less than the quantity limit of
Class 1 waste specified in §335.78 of this title. [At the time of waste
transfer; the generator shalk:]

1 use a manifest system that ensures that interstate and
in the ease of intrastate shipments; are delivered to facilities that are
authorized to operate under an approved state program or the federal
program; and]
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[(2) cnsurc that all hazardous and Class 1 wastes offered for
on are ied by a S . .
to subsections (g) and (h) of this scction or shipments by rail or water,
as specified in subsections (e) and (f) of this section.]

[(¢) For shipments of Class 1 waste within the United States
solely by water (bulk shipments only); the generator shall send three
to the ewner or operator of the designated facility or to the last water
(bulk shipment) transporter to handle the waste in the United States if
transporter]

HH Eor rail shipments of hazardous waste or Class 1 waste
within the United States which originate at the site of generation, the
generator shall send at least three copies of the manifest dated and

[(3) the last rail transporter to handle the waste in the

(e) [€2)] No manifest is required for the shipment of Class 1
waste [whieh is not hazardoeus waste] to property owned or otherwise
effectively controlled by the owner or operator of an industrial plant,
manufacturing plant, mining operation, or agricultural operation from
which the waste results or is produced, provided that the property is
within 50 miles of the plant or operation and the waste is not com-
mingled with waste from any other source or sources. An industrial
plant, manufacturing plant, mining operation, or agricultural operation
owned by one person shall not be considered another source with re-
spect to other plants or operations owned by the same person.

) Neo manifest and no marking in accordanece with
§$335.67(b) of this title (relating to Marking) is required for hazardous
waste transported on a public or private right-ef-way within er aleng
the berder of contiguous property under the control of the same person;
even if such contiguous property is divided by a public or private
right-of-way. Hewever; in the event of a hazardous waste discharge
on a publie or private right-of-way; the generator or transporter must
comply with the requirements of §335:93 of this title (relating to
Hazardous Waste Discharges)-}
$335.11.  Shipping Requirements for Transporters of Hazardous
Waste or Class 1 Waste.

(a) Except as provided by §335.10(2)(2), (d), and (e) of this ti-
tle (relating to Shipping and Reporting Procedures Applicable to Gen-
erators of Hazardous Waste or Class 1 Waste and Primary Exporters of
Hazardous Waste), persons who transport hazardous [Ne transperter
may cause; suffer; allow; or permit the shipment of solid] waste must
comply with the manifest requirements in 40 Code of Federal Regula-
tions (CFR) §263.20, §263.21, and the Appendix to 40 CFR Part 262,
as these sections are amended through June 16, 2005 (70 FR 35034) as
well as the following: [for which a manifest is required under §33510
of this title (relating to Shipping and Reporting Procedures Appliea-
ble to Generators of Hazardous Waste or Class 1 Waste and Primary
Experters of Hazardous Waste) to an off-site treatment; storage; or dis-
posal facility, unless the transporter:]

(1) the person must comply [eomplies] with §335.10 of this
title; and

(2) inthe case of hazardous waste exports, the person must
ensure [ensures] that the shipment conforms to the requirements set
forth in the regulations contained in 40 [Cede of Federal Regulations
€]JCFR])] §263.20.

(b) Except as provided by §335.10(d) and (